STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY

COMMISSIONERS MEETING
5/17/2022 10:00 AM

26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

AGENDA

This meeting will be held in person and the public is welcome to attend.

Storey County Board of County Commissioners are hosting a teleconference meeting this month.
Members of the public who wish to attend the meeting remotely, may do so by accessing the following
meeting on Zoom.com. Public comment may be made by communication through zoom.

Join Zoom Meeting https://us02web.zoom.us/j/83946331479 Meeting ID: 839 4633 1479

Dial by your location

+1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)

+1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)

+1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose)

+1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)
+1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
+1 929 205 6099 US (New York)
Meeting ID: 839 4633 1479
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/k53PAjzuH

For additional information or supporting documents please contact the
Storey County Clerk’s Office at 775-847-0969.

JAY CARMONA ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY

CLAY MITCHELL
VICE-CHAIRMAN

LANCE GILMAN DOREAYNE NEVIN
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Members of the Board of County Commissioners also serve as the Board of Fire Commissioners for
the Storey County Fire Protection District, Storey County Brothel License Board, Storey County
Water and Sewer System Board, Storey County Highway Board, and the Storey County Liquor
License Board and during this meeting may convene as any of those boards as indicated on this or
a separately posted agenda.




All matters listed under the consent agenda are considered routine and may be acted upon by the
Board of County Commissioners with one action, and without an extensive hearing. Any member
of the Board or any citizen may request that an item be taken from the consent agenda, discussed,
and acted upon separately during this meeting. Pursuant to NRS 241.020 (2)(d)(6) Items on the
agenda may be taken out of order, the public body may combine two or more agenda items for
consideration, and the public body may remove an item from the agenda or delay discussion
relating to an item on the agenda at any time. The Commission Chair reserves the right to limit the
time allotted for each individual to speak.

All items include discussion and possible action to approve, modify, deny, or continue unless
marked otherwise.

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 A.M.
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
3 DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of the Agenda for May 17, 2022.
4. DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of the Minutes for April 5, 2022.
5. CONSENT AGENDA FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

[ Consideration and approval of business license first readings:
A. G and S Enterprises - Contractor / 11595 Lemmon Dr. ~ Reno, NV
B. Ijji Noodle House & Poke Don - General / 1 Electric Ave ~ McCarran, NV
C. JMA Construction Company Inc. - Contractor / PO Box 22312 ~ Carson City, NV
D. Pallet Broker LLC - Out of County / PO Box 2043 ~ Sparks, NV
E. RIA Cast House Engineering GMBH / Out of County / PO Box 68 ~ Wabash, IN
F. S&S Mechanical LLC - Contractor / 243 Freeport Blvd. ~ Sparks, NV
G. Sky Fiber LLC - Contractor / 8975 Double Diamond Pkwy A9 ~ Reno, NV
H. TCR Construction LLC - Contractor / 4585 Goodwin Rd. ~ Sparks, NV
I. ThompsonGas, LLC - General / 905 E. Mustang Rd. ~ Sparks, NV
J. T&T Lawns Plus LLC - Contractor / PO Box 1740 ~ Sparks, NV

I Approval of claims in the amount of $1,329,147.12.

III  Consideration and possible approval of Storey County Treasurer's Affidavit of
Mailing Past Due Notice for all Delinquent Parcels pursuant to NRS 361.5648.




10.

11.

12

IV Consideration and possible approval of personnel policy revisions including 201,
Fair Employment Practices; 202, Anti-Harassment; 202A, Pregnancy, Childbirth,
and Related Medical Conditions; 203, Dealing with Allegations of Discrimination
and/ or Prohibited Conduct/Behavior(s); 206, Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace;
207, Reasonable Alcohol and Drug Testing; 216, Outside Employment; 302, Source
of Candidates, Open Recruitment, Promotion, Transfer and Eligible List to Vacant
Positions; 304, Applications, Eligibility or Reduction of Applicants.

PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)

DISCUSSION ONLY (No Action - No Public Comment): Committee/Staff Reports
BOARD COMMENT (No Action - No Public Comment)

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Discussion and consideration directing county staff and lobbyists to draft and propose
a bill in the 2023 Nevada legislative session amending Nevada Revised Statute 403.080
regarding certain newspaper reporting requirements, and to submit the bill either
directly or through legislative leadership or association sponsorship as found
appropriate, and other properly related matters.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of First Reading of Ordinance 22-320 amending
Storey County Code chapter 2.47, an Ordinance increasing longevity pay for the
Justice of the Peace from 1% per year to 2% per year and mirroring the statutory
provisions for nonjudicial elected officials in calculating the increase.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of a proposal from Dube Group Architecture in
association with Melvyn Green and Associates to provide a Preservation Report for
the V&T Virginia City Freight Depot in an amount estimated at $48,000. This
Preservation Report will guide the work of restoration of the historic building and
also facilitate grant funding toward that effort.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of Memorandum of Understanding between
Virginia Township Justice Court (VT]JC) and the Storey County Sherift’s Office (SCSO)
regarding the payment and duties of an additional deputy sheriff who will also
provide part-time bailiff duties for the VT]C.




13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Review and possible approval of the 2022-2023 Storey County Final Budget, for
submission to the Department of Taxation.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of change order for the Lockwood Tower Road
and Retaining Wall Repair Project to extend the pavement replacement up to the fire
district turnaround in an amount estimated by MKD construction at $89,777.00.

RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
BOARD

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of a Memorandum of Understanding for pre-fire
and fuels reduction operations in the Lake Tahoe Basin and along the Sierra Front.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of contracted fuels reduction work by
Wilderness Forestry Inc. in an amount estimated at $36,000.00. Funding related to the
proposed contract is allocated by Nevada Division of Forestry through a sub-grant
extension of the 2017 Storey County FPD Fuels Reduction grant (Grant # HF1801).

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of Personnel Policies P501 Work Week and
Work Time, P502 Pay Periods and Time Reporting, P503 Overtime Compensation,
P504 Rate of Pay, P506 Acting Pay, P507 Scheduled Salary Step Advancement, P1000
Workplace Investigations, And P1001 Discipline Appeals for the Storey County Fire
Protection District.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Review and possible approval of the 2022-2023 Storey County Fire Protection District
Final Budget, for submission to the Department of Taxation.

RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY WATER/SEWER BOARD




21.

22,

23

24.

25.

26.

27,

28.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Review and possible approval of the 2022-2023 Storey County Water and Sewer Final
Budget, for submission to the Department of Taxation.

RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY LIQUOR LICENSE BOARD

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of the First Reading- Amendment to Existing
License- 1st reading for approval of adding an On-Sale and Off-Sale Liquor License
for Virginia City Mexican Restaurant, 65 N C Street, Virginia City NV 89440.
Applicants are Hipolito G. Cerda and Arturo Valadez.

ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible approval of the 2nd reading for General Business License
for Pinon Services, LLC- 1820 Castle Peak Rd, Reno NV 89521. Applicant is Ralph
Strahan.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

Consideration and possible direction of county staff and the Storey County Planning
Commission to consider amendments to Storey County Code Section 17.84.110
Exempt Signs, Section M, to allow up to 50 square-feet for signs associated with the
national, state, or local election processes in all regulatory zones including, but not
limited to, the E Estate and R Residential zones, during election seasons set by NRS,
and other related matters.

DISCUSSION ONLY/NO POSSIBLE ACTION:

Workshop Discussion Only/No Possible Action - Discussion, consideration, general
direction to staff per Commissioner Mitchell’s request to consider decreasing certain
base business license fees and home-based business license fees countywide.

DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION:

For consideration and possible approval of business license second readings:

A. Buzz Oates Construction Inc. - Contractor / 555 Capital Mall Ste. 900 ~
Sacramento, CA

B. Icon Reno Property Owner Pool 2 Nevada, LLC - Out of County / 602W. Office Dr.
Ste 200 ~ Fort Washington, PA




29,

C. Main Electric Supply Company LLC - Out of County / 3600 W. Segerstrom Ave ~
Santa Ana, CA

D. Performance Diesel Service - General / 88 Megabyte Dr. ~ McCarran, NV

E. Prietos Roofing, LLC - Contractor / 3690 Grant Dr. Ste J. ~ Reno, NV

F. RC Roofing, Inc. - Contractor / 7785 Crystal Shores Dr. ~ Reno, NV

G. Rivera’s Mexican Food - Food Truck / 5149 Nanook Ct. ~ Reno, NV

H. Roof Crafters - Contractor / PO Box 41268 ~ Reno, NV

I. Star North Construction, LLC - Contractor / 8745 Technology Way Ste. F ~ Reno,
NV

J. Steak It Up - Food Truck / PO Box 522 ~ Silver Springs, NV

K. Universal Engineering Sciences - Professional / 695 Edison Way ~ Reno, NV

CORRESPONDENCE/NO ACTION:

I. Letter from NDOT clarifying jurisdiction of State Route 342 between Devil’s Gate
and the Fourth Ward School, Gold Hill, and Virginia City.

PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action)
ADJOURNMENT OF ALL ACTIVE AND RECESSED BOARDS ON THE AGENDA

Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of
conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with
the Storey County Employees” Association Comstock Chapter, AFSCME Local 4041

Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of
conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations
with the Storey County Employees” Association Comstock Chapter, AFSCME Local
4041. This meeting will begin immediately following the general meeting of the Board
of Storey County Commissioners.

NOTICE:

Anyone interested may request personal notice of the meetings.

Agenda items must be received in writing by 12:00 noon on the Monday of the week preceding
the regular meeting. For information call (775) 847-0969.

Items may not necessarily be heard in the order that they appear.

Public Comment will be allowed at the end of each meeting (this comment should be limited
to matters not on the agenda). Public Comment will also be allowed during each item upon
which action will be taken on the agenda (this comment should be limited to the item on the
agenda). Time limits on Public Comment will be at the discretion of the Chairman of the
Board. Please limit your comments to three minutes.

Storey County recognizes the needs and civil rights of all persons regardless of race, color,
religion, gender, disability, family status, or nation origin.

In accordance with Federal civil rights law and U.S. Department of Agriculture (USDA) civil
rights regulations and policies, the USDA, its Agencies, offices, and employees, and




institutions participating in or administering USDA programs are prohibited from
discriminating based on race, color, national origin, religion, sex, gender identity (including
gender expression), sexual orientation, disability, age, marital status, family/ parental status,
income derived from a public assistance program, political beliefs, or reprisal or retaliation for
prior civil rights activity, in any program or activity conducted or funded by USDA (not all
bases apply to all programs). Remedies and complaint filing deadlines vary by program or
incident.

Persons with disabilities who require alternative means of communication for program
information (e.g., Braille, large print, audiotape, American Sign Language, etc.) should contact
the responsible Agency or USDA’s TARGET Center at (202) 720-2600 (voice and TTY) or
contact USDA through the Federal Relay Service at (800) 877-8339. Additionally, program
information may be made available in languages other than English.

To file a program discrimination complaint, complete the USDA Program Discrimination
Complaint Form, AD-3027, found online at

http:/ /www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing cust.html and at any USDA office or write a
letter addressed to USDA and provide in the letter all of the information requested in the form.
To request a copy of the complaint form, call (866) 632-9992. Submit your completed form or
letter to USDA by:

(1) mail: U.S. Department of Agriculture
Oftice of the Assistant Secretary for Civil Rights
1400 Independence Avenue, SW
Washington, D.C. 20250-9410;

(2) fax: (202) 690-7442; or

(3) email: program.intake@usda.gov.

USDA is an equal opportunity provider, employer, and lender.

Notice to persons with disabilities: Members of the public who are disabled and require special
assistance or accommodations at the meeting are requested to notify the Commissioners’ Office in
writing at PO Box 176, Virginia City, Nevada 89440.

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING
[, Doreayne Nevin, Clerk to the Board of Commissioners, do hereby certify that I posted, or caused
to be posted, a copy of this agenda at the following locations on or before 05/12/2022; at the Storey
County Courthouse located at 26 S B St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City Fire Department located
at 145 N C St, Virginia City, NV, the Virginia City Highlands Fire Department located a 2610
Cartwright Rd, VC Highlands, NV and Lockwood Fire Department located at 431 Canyon Way,
Lockwood, NV. This agenda was also posted to the Nevada State website at https:/ /notice.nv.gov/

and to the Storey County website at https://www.storeycounty.org/agendacenter.
I

Doreayne Nevjn Clerk-Tredsurer




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 5/17/2022 10:00 AM - Estimate of Time Required: 5 Min
BOCC Meeting

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

« Title: Consideration and possible approval of the Agenda for May 17, 2022

* Recommended motion: Approve or amend as necessary.

* Prepared by: DORE

Department: Contact Number: 775-847-0969

e Staff Summary: See attached

* Supporting Materials: See attached

¢ Fiscal Impact:

* Legal review required: False

* Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:

County Manager Other Agency Review:

* Board Action:

] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

Denied [ ] Continued




Storey County Board of County
Commissioners
Agenda Action Report
Meeting date: 5/17/2022 10:00 AM - Estimate of Time Required: 5 min

BOCC Meeting

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

Title: Consideration and possible approval of the Minutes for April 5, 2022.

Recommended motion: Approve or amend as necessary

Prepared by: DORE

Department: Contact Number: 775-847-0969

Staff Summary: See attached

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact:

Legal review required: False

Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

] Denied [ ] Continued




STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF
COUNTY COMMISSIONERS

MEETING

TUESDAY, APRIL 5, 2022, 10:00 A.M.

DISTRICT COURTROOM
26 SOUTH B STREET, VIRGINIA CITY, NEVADA

MEETING MINUTES
JAY CARMONA ANNE LANGER
CHAIRMAN DISTRICT ATTORNEY
CLAY MITCHELL
VICE-CHAIRMAN
LANCE GILMAN DOREAYNE NEVIN
COMMISSIONER CLERK-TREASURER

Roll Call: Chairman Jay Carmona, Vice-Chairman Clay Mitchell, Commissioner Lance Gilman,
County Manager Austin Osborne, Clerk/Treasurer Dore Nevin, Deputy District Attorney Keith
Loomis, Sheriff Antinoro, Recorder Marney Hansen-Martinez, Project Manager Mike Northan,
District Attorney Anne Langer, Communications Manager Becky Parsons, Public Works
Director Jason Wierzbicki, IT Director James Deane, Assessor Jana Seddon, Senior Planner
Kathy Canfield, Emergency Management Director Lara Mather, Senior Center Director Stacy
York, Tourism Director Deny Dotson, Acting Human Resources Director Jeannie Green,
Community Chest Director Erik Schoen, Comptroller Jennifer McCain, Community
Development Director Pete Renaud, Fleet Manager Trent Sketta.

1. CALL TO ORDER REGULAR MEETING AT 10:00 AM
Meeting was called to order by Chairman Carmona at 10:02 A.M.

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Commissioner Carmona led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3.  DISCUSSION/FOR POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of the
Agenda for April 5, 2022

County Manager Osborne asked to move #7 Staff Reports to after Agenda #27 to the end of the
agenda due to the size of the agenda. He also requested that Item #I in the Consent Agenda be
continued to April 19, 2022, meeting.



Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell move to approve today’s Agenda with noted changes.
Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote.

4. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of the Minutes
for Dec. 12, 2021.

Public Comment: None

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell move to approve the Minutes of the Dec. 21, 2021, meeting
as presented. Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote.

4. CONSENT AGENDA

[. Consideration and possible approval of the Intrastate Interlocal contract beginning fiscal year
2023 to fiscal year 2026 between the State of Nevada acting by and through its Department of
Health and Human Services, Division of Welfare and Supportive Services, the First Judicial
District Court, Storey County and Carson City and the proposed budgets for reimbursement from
the State Child Support Enforcement Program in the amount of $34,782 for F& 2023 and
$35,181 for FY 2024. Moved to April 19, 2022, Agenda

[I. Consideration and possible approval of amendment to the list of appointees to serve on state,
county, and regional boards and committees by adding an additional appointment to serve on the
Western Nevada Development District (WNDD) for the 2022 calendar year.

[1I. Consideration and possible approval of claims in the amount of $1,568,591.15.

IV. Consideration and possible approval of business license first readings:

A. April Showers Water Truck Service LLC — Out of County /21 Salvadore Drive. —
Fernley NV
BRS field Ops Nevada, LLC — Contractor / 11403 N. Research Way — Orem, UT
Bruce Perves Construction Inc. — Contractor / 1360 Greg St. — Sparks, NV
Contact Electric, Inc. — Contractor / 1070 Hartford Court — Reno NV
Comstock Meadows RV Park — General / 580 E. Sydney Dr. — McCarran NV
Deville Plumbing and Heating — Contractor / 774 Mayes Blvd. #10-341 — Incline Village
NV
Gardner’s Water Service, Inc. — Contractor / 8595 Iroquois Tr. — Silver Springs, N
Great Basin Roofing LLC — Contractor / 1101 Hillcrest Ave. — Roseville CA
Par Western Line Contractors, LLC — Contractor / 11276 5" St. #100 — Rancho
Cucamonga, CA
Primary Power Electrical Services, LLC — Contractor / 1200 Golden Parkway — Fallon,
NV
Reno Engineering and Contracting LLC — Contractor / 9395 Hummer Ct. — Reno, NV
Rustic Rope N* Treasures — General / 145 S. C St. — Virginia City, NV

mmounw

—EQ

—

= 7



. Samuel EPC, LLC — Contractor / 550 S. 18" St. — Abilene, TX
Solcius, LLLC — Contractor 1555 N. Freedom Blvd. — Provo, UT
Sonnikson and Stordahl Construction — Contractor / 4858 Sunrise Dr. — Martinez, CA
UV Logistics Inc. — Transportation / 240 Wild Horse Canyon Way — McCarran, NV
West Coast Dirt Works — Contractor / 745 E. Greg St. #4 — Sparks, NV.

LFOozZZ

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell move to approve the Consent Agenda with the noted change.
Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote.

6. PUBLIC COMMENT: (No action) None
8. BOARD COMMENT (No Action — No Public Comment): None

9. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Review and possible approval of the 2022-2023
Storey County Tentative Budget for submission to the Nevada Department of Taxation.

Comptroller Jennifer McCain: Gave an overview of the third quarter review of the tentative
budget. She had not had time to audit. Revenues are about over-collected by 24 percent in the
general fund, with $17 million budgeted and $22 million collected. Countywide we are at an
excess of 17 percent collected. Expenses are 31 percent remaining in the budget and countywide
there is 38 percent remaining. Budget numbers will be adjusted for inflation. Expect increase of
20 percent in sales tax. Commissioners budget up 28 percent. Transfers also come out of this
budget

County Manager Osborne said professional services funds were included in case of other entities
seeking revenue sharing and services would include lobbying, studies and other services. He said
the funds would roll over to the next year if not spent.

Comptroller McCain said Recorders budget up 13 percent. Recorder Marney Hansen-Recorder
said mapping of mining claims would be integrated with current system. Commissioner Gilman
asked why go back to the 1970s. Hansen said it was because of the need to do title searches for
developments in the Virginia City Highlands and Mark Twain.

Comptroller McCain said Assessor’s budget up 7 percent due to a new software contract.
Commissioner Mitchell noted that the collections would be part of the Clerk-Treasurer’s Office.
but all funds are budgeted through the Assessor’s Office. Commissioner Gilman asked if the
costs were anticipated, and Assessor Jana Seddon said they were, but couldn’t estimate what
future costs would be.

Comptroller McCain said Buildings and Grounds budget up 22 percent. The sheriff’s budget has
remained fairly stable, except for three new vehicles and a taser upgrade. Commissioner Mitchell
asked about lower estimates for wages and overtime, lab fees from Washoe County. Sheriff
Antinoro said the Office was close to being fully staffed, plus the county was in negotiations
with the union, and they were looking into a process for event staffing and paybacks for that. He
said the only choices for forensics were Washoe County or Las Vegas Metro, and the fees
change depending on usage of the forensics lab.



Comptroller McCain said the District Court budget would increase 24 percent due to the JAVS
system upgrade. Commissioner Mitchell asked what the upgrades to the JAVS system were.
Clerk-Treasurer Dore Nevin said the JAVS system was the system that recorded commissioner
meetings and District Court, and it was a cybersecurity issue.

Comptroller McCain noted that for the Justice of the Peace department, the JP has been
reorganizing and requested one office manager and an additional admin, as well as eliminating
the position of bailiff and utilizing sheriff’s deputies as bailiffs.

Comptroller McCain said that for Community Relations Department would add a building
maintenance account to handle repairs to historic buildings including the St. Mary’s Art Center
and Historic Fourth Ward School Museum. Also, Comstock TV has requested funding and the
Storey County Senior Center would become its own department.

Comptroller McCain said the Services Department has a 19 percent increase to add a mechanic
and a diagnostic tool for repairing heavy equipment. Commissioner Mitchell asked about the size
of the increase, and Fleet Manager Trent Sketta said the higher number was due to increased
prices.

Comptroller McCain said the IT department received significant increase to improve cyber
security. I'T Director James Deane said 20-25 percent increases for most purchases and
maintenance agreements. Dean also said significant costs for improving the VHF repeater system
on the mountaintops. Commissioner Mitchell asked about line items in individual department
budgets and Deane said that was for their workstations, but IT funded the servers and main
infrastructure. Mitchell also asked if a cloud-based system would be better than JAVS, but Dean
said all equipment would have to be replaced.

Comptroller McCain said the Comptroller’s budget increase would involve a new part time
admin.

Comptroller McCain said Senior Center budget is new addition from the formerly non-profit
center. McCain said the new budget of $950,000 could be brought down to $540,000 after
revenues from grants and meal sales are considered, and that past county support was at about
$500,000.

Comptroller McCain said slight increase in the Emergency Management budget would include
new training. Planning has significant increase due to an existing employee training in GIS and
an improved GIS computer. Commissioner Mitchell asked about salary changes, the cost of the
GIS workstation and noxious weed abatement. Comptroller McCain said that Planning decided
to not hire a full-time planner, but a part time admin. IT Director Deane said a GIS workstation
was one of the highest-end workstations, and Senior Planner Kathy Canfield said the county was
looking for a new noxious weed abatement contractor or would see if the Fire Protection District
could do it.



Comptroller McCain said that expense increases are about 7 percent compared to revenue
increases of 10 percent overall with a revenue increases of $589,000. We expect an ending fund
balance to be lowered about $3-4 million or 20 percent of ending fund balance of current year.

On Special Revenue Funds, Comptroller McCain said Road fund would increase about 11
percent. Equipment Acquisition fund will propose several new vehicles and equipment. No car
manufacturers are taking orders for fleet vehicles. Vactor Truck at 650,000 and small-town plow
for 150,000. Also, 2 new reader boards. 3 new patrol vehicles. The county is looking at
developing county-wide rotation vehicle plans. For Capital Improvement Projects Funds,
working on two large grants, $6 million water projects and Lockwood Community Center
projects at $5 million with grant for 2.5 million. Also, for courthouse fence repair, Lockwood
substation, re-roofing the TRI building and work on Electric Avenue, which would be partially
funded by Tesla and be $2.7. million. Replacing fuel pumps in 4 areas of county, which would
be an expense with the fire district. Also, software programs for project management and
timecard replacement.

Commissioner Mitchell asked about the match for the water project grant, and McCain
responded that the match would come from the infrastructure fund, and that the project would
carry over for a few years. She also said the $5 million grant for the Lockwood Community
Center but would not be completed in one year.

Comptroller McCain said that the Infrastructure Fund was designed to carry a fund balance. Very
narrow field of uses dictated by NRS and will have a resolution by final budget. Will be used to
fund bonds for projects.

Comptroller McCain said the TRI Payback fund is funded by using transferred money from
General Fund or the Fire District. We are not funding this where it should be. We are looking for
other areas to transfer that. When they calculate our payments, they use property and sales tax.
Working on incorporating our TRI fund into the disbursement as the taxes come into the County,
rather than doing the transfers. It will be about $3 to $4 million. Working on $442,000 in grants.

Comptroller Fund VCTC and Piper’s. Budget is what VCTC have approved at last meeting.
Revenues are lower than expenses by about $4,000 each. Both funds have adequate ending fund
balances.

Motion: Commissioner Mitchell moved to approve the Filing of the 2022-2033 Tentative Budget
to the Nevada Department of Taxation as presented. Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote:
Motion carried by unanimous vote.

10. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of Resolution
No. 22-639, a resolution setting grade and salary range of employees fixed by ordinance or
resolution per NRS 245.045 for appointed Storey County officials for the 2021-22 fiscal year and
superseding prior year action by resolution for appointed Storey County employees with
adjustments adding a Business Development Officer and increasing the pay grade for less-than-
part-time (IPT) Lifeguard and IPT Pool Supervisor.



Jeannie Green, Labor Relations, we are requesting this be approved affecting today to help us
recruit.

No Public Comment

Commission Mitchell said that in order to keep the pool open we must be competitive and also
supported the Business Development Manager position.

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell move to approve the Resolution No. 22-639, a resolution
setting grade and salary range of employees fixed by ordinance or resolution per NRS 245.045
for appointed Storey County officials for the 2021-22 fiscal year and superseding prior year
action by resolution for appointed Storey County employees with adjustments adding a Business
Development Officer and increasing the pay grade for less-than-part-time (IPT) Lifeguard and
IPT Pool Supervisor. Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous
vote.

11. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of resolution
No. 22-640, a resolution setting grade and salary range of employees fixed by ordinance or
resolution per NRS 245-045 for appointed Storey County officials for the 2022-23 fiscal year
and superseding prior year action by resolution for appointed Storey County employees with
grade adjustments for Community Relations Coordinator, Comptroller, County Manager, Event
and Business Development Officer, Senior Services Director, less-than-part-time (IPT)
Lifeguard and IPT Pool Supervisor, and the addition of IPT Transportation Driver, IPT
Homemaker, and IPT Program Coordinator (for Storey County Senior Services). Administrative
Officer, Assistant Public Works Director, Bailiff/Director of Security, Communications Director,
Fire Marshal, Fire Marshal/Community Development Director, Management analyst I and II will
be abolished as there are no positions now or anticipated to be allocated to those classes.
Management Analyst II will be retitled to Management Analyst. The general salary schedule will
be consistent with the general employees AFSCME salary schedule and will be adjusted
accordingly on a year-by-year basis to be consistent with the countywide classification plan.

Labor Relations Staffer Jeannie Green said a salary survey was conducted, but some were
adjusted a step to be on average in a place comparable to other counties. Storey is not lagging or
leading in salaries. These positions would be moved to a higher grade, in a step that his closest to
their current pay. Commissioner Mitchell asked about what kind of catch-up measure was used.
Ms. Green said that the lagging was due to an AFSCME negotiated contract, which called for
two years of pay increases for every year of the three-year contract. Non-represented employees
were not given raises for those years, except for the Justice of the Peace position which has a
longevity component, though HR was working with Assistant District Attorney Keith Loomis to
adjust the ordinance. Some classes will be abolished, and general salary schedule step and grade
ranges be adjusted with the AFSCME salary schedule and be adjusted on a year-by-year basis to
maintain consistency. This would be effective July 1, 2022.

No Public Comment



Motion: Commissioner Mitchell moved to approve the Resolution No. 22-640, resolution No.
22-640, a resolution setting grade and salary range of employees fixed by ordinance or resolution
per NRS 245-045 for appointed Storey County officials for the 2022-23 fiscal year and
superseding prior year action by resolution for appointed Storey County employees with grade
adjustments for Community Relations Coordinator, Comptroller, County Manager, Event and
Business Development Officer, Senior Services Director, less-than-part-time (IPT) Lifeguard
and IPT Pool Supervisor, and the addition of IPT Transportation Driver, IPT Homemaker, and
IPT Program Coordinator (for Storey County Senior Services). Administrative Officer, Assistant
Public Works Director, Bailiff/Director of Security, Communications Director, Fire Marshal,
Fire Marshall/Community Development Director, Management analyst I and II will be abolished
as there are no positions now or anticipated to be allocated to those classes. Management Analyst
I will be retitled to Management Analyst. The general salary schedule will be consistent with the
general employees AFSCME salary schedule and will be adjusted accordingly on a year-by-year
basis to be consistent with the countywide classification plan. Seconded by: Commissioner
Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote.

12. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of contract
between Nevada State Department of Health and Human Services Division of Health Care
Financing Policy (DHCFP), Nevada Department of Health and Human Services Division of
Welfare and Support Services (DWSS), and Storey County regarding the administration of
services determining the eligibility of applicants and the eligibility of medical services provided
eligible applicants for Medicaid payments and addressing the County’s portion of those payment,
for a term beginning 07/01/21 and ending 6/30/23, and for an amount not to exceed that
identified in the enclosed contract.

Mr. Osborne said we renew these contracts regularly. Contract for $44,621 is between the state
and county, as required by NRS. Mr. Mitchell asked if it was for the entire contract. Mr. Osborne
said it was and it was based on assessed value.

No Public Comment

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell move to approve the contract between Nevada State
Department of Health and Human Services Division of Health Care Financing Policy (DHCFP),
Nevada Department of Health and Human Services Division of Welfare and Support Services
(DWSS), and Storey County regarding the administration of services determining the eligibility
of applicants and the eligibility of medical services provided eligible applicants for Medicaid
payments and addressing the County’s portion of those payment, for a term beginning 07/01/21
and ending 6/30/23, and for an amount not to exceed that identified in the enclosed contract.
Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote.

13. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Discussion and possible determination that cost of
collecting Water Basin fees by imposing an assessment on all properties within the water basin is
more than revenue expected to be obtained and therefore that the water basin assessments in the
amount of $14,400.00 may be appropriated from the general funds.



Assistant District Attorney Keith Loomis said the State Engineer supervises the water basin and
as per NRS can make the determination that the basin needs further supervision and would hire a
Water Master and assistant. The cost of that would be covered by license fees and to the extent
they are not covered, the county would have to assess fees of property owners in that area. Water
Resources requested that the county put $14,400 into the Tracy Basin and the Dayton Valley
Water Bason. If the cost to levy assessments is greater than the amount of levies obtained, the
county could pay it out of the general fund. They estimate the assessment be $2 per property. Mr.
Loomis said the levies would require the involvement of the Assessor’s Office, the Clerk-
Treasurer’s Office, the Planning Department and possibly Farr West Engineering. The
recommended motion is to pay it out of the general fund.

No public comment

Mr. Mitchell asked what license fees would be used, and Mr. Loomis said fees out of the State
Engineer’s Office. Mr. Mitchell asked what the reason was. Mr. Loomis said that it was an
ongoing annual type of fee, and the county has been paying it. He said in 2014 then-County
Manager Pat Whitten declined the payment because there was no explanation given. He said the
county has paid it for several years but never levied assessments. Ms. McCain said it had been
budgeted at about $6,000 a year, but this year the bill came in at $14,400. Mr. Mitchell said he
was a little hesitant to pay money to the state without a good reason behind it. He would like to
know what it is going for before cutting a check for $14,000. Mr. Gilman said we can ask
questions, can’t we? His experience is once you have the state in line for a check, I tis pretty hard
to deny it, and he was of a mind to request answers. He suggested postponing the item. Mr.
Carmona was concerned the county was putting itself at some sort of risk. Mr. Mitchell said he
had been told that if there were questions, a representative would appear via Zoom. Mr. Mitchell
would like to hold off approving. Mr. Gilman asked what the probability of denying the state the
payment was, and Mr. Loomis said slim and none. Gilman said it didn’t make sense then to
move it down and make the assessment. Ms. Seddon said this assessment was done every year,
though it jumped quite a bit, to keep track of how much groundwater there is, and that nothing in
the water is hazardous. Mr. Osborne said this was a routine matter, but he didn’t see a problem
moving it to the next meeting. He said he would work with Mr. Loomis and have a presentation
at the next meeting. Mr. Mitchell said that he had a hard time passing along a cost to the
taxpayers not knowing what it is for. We don’t want to make it easy to tax our people to do their
work.

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell move to continue this item to the next meeting, on April 19,
2022. Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote.

Mr. Carmona called a recess at 11:51 a.m. The meeting was in session again at 12:05 p.m.

14. RECESS TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTON
DISTRICT BOARD.

15. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Review and possible approval of the 2022-2023 474
Fire District Tentative Budget for submission to the Nevada Department of Taxation.



Comptroller Jennifer. McCain gave a high-level third quarter review of where the district was.
Revenues for the fire district have 8 percent left to collect. The General Fund has 3 percent left to
collect. Revenues for the district are at 29 percent of the remaining budget and just under 25
percent available expenses. For both the revenue and expenses the chief is building an ending
fund balance at a comfortable level. For the 22-23 budget, revenues are $363,000 over expenses.
Transfers will leave a decrease in the ending fund balance of $140,000. This is not where we
would like to see the ending fund balance. There is an 11 percent increase in general fund. There
will be a slight decrease due to the Tesla catch-up payment. The license fees for the fire
prevention program have been moved from Community Development. The fire district will
receive funds from licenses for the first time since 2016. The overall increase in expenses in the
general funds are between 10 and 11 percent, due to merit wage increases. Services and supplies
are up by 9 percent, due to training, personal protective equipment, which expires after so many
years. We are trying to get more rotation and that is causing more upfront money. A transfer of
$500,000 from the Mutual Aid Fund will go to the Capital Projects Fund.

No Public Comment

Mr. Mitchell asked about the new revenue from licensing and permitting being based on 2016
numbers. Fire Chief Jerremy Loncor said that was correct, that he took figures and reduced them,
and got conservative numbers from new revenue sources. Mr. Mitchell also asked about line
items for ground emergency support, and Chief Loncar said he just recently received a $300,000
payment. Mr. Mitchell asked about overtime, and Chief Loncar said it was par for the course for
the Fire District. For a 2-man station, and someone calls off, someone has to be called in so there
is one man to drive the ambulance and another to tend to the patient. Mr. Mitchell also asked
about the communication increase. Chief Loncar said that included a one-time expense of
eliminating night paging for every station. He said reduced tire costs is because they have been
reducing the fleet. He also said he was tying a lot of the fuel costs to NVEnergy funding.

Ms. McCain said the other fund is the Capital Projects Fund, and it will get $500,000 from the
General Fund for Mutual Aid. It will go to new equipment, including retrofitting suspension for
patient comfort, and a new ambulance, a new pickup and a Type 3 brush engine.

Mr. Mitchell asked what percentage of the salary increase is allocated to anticipated retention of
positions and what are new positions. Ms. McCain said the numbers were what was already
plans for the pay chart increase and it does include reserve personnel, but not the seasonals.
Chief Loncar said they looked at how much they could move over, and that the reserve program
was a great way to find new talent and bring them in at a very reasonable rate. He said if
transfers are less, they could hold off on the reserve program.

Ms. McCain said a grant fund created last year from the NVEnergy grant pays for Storey County
employees to do NVEnergy work, and that Chief Loncar is awaiting a grant to pay for a new
ladder truck.

Mr. Gilman — wanted to know the justification for growth in the Fire District, and why the
department can grow to a level that is visionary, but he is not convinced there is justification in a
county the size of Storey. Chief Loncar said he would be glad to meet with Gilman.



Motion: I, Fire Commissioner Mitchell moved to approve the filing of the 2022-2023 474 Fire
District Tentative Budget for submission to the Nevada Department of Taxation.
Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote.

16. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of Resolution
No. 22-638, a resolution setting grade and salary range of employees fixed by ordinance or
resolution per NRS 474-470 for appointed Storey County Fire Protection District officials for the
2022-23 fiscal year and superseding prior year action by resolution for appointed Storey County
Fire District employees with grade adjustments for Fire Chief and the addition of Assistant
Chief, Administrative Assistant I, II, III and Administrative Specialist/Office Manager. The Fire
Inspector position will be abolished on the general salary schedule due to it being recognized
within the SCFFA CBA. The general salary schedule will be consistent with the Storey County
salary schedule and will be adjusted accordingly on a year-by-year basis.

Chief Loncar, this is like what was presented on the county side. [ have 3 different salary
schedules. This is a way to reduce it to too and align them where they need to be. The three
admin positions are not filled positions. This puts us down to the same pay schedule the county is
using. We eliminated Fire Inspector. This was done in conjunction with HR.

No Public Comment

Commissioner Gilman expressed concern about adding more positions. He was opposed to an
Assistant Chief. Chief Loncar said the agenda item isn’t approval for the position but establishes
the position. Mr. Carmona suggested that if the motion were approved, the Assistant Chief
position could be required to come back before the board. Mr. Mitchell sought a holistic
approach to staffing, not wanting to build a bureaucracy. He was also concerned about the staff
recommendation for the fire chief grade having been reduced. Ms. Green said she recommended
the lower grade in the reorganization, but staffers would not lose pay because they would not
lose their steps if they moved to a higher grade. Mr. Gilman didn’t want to amend the resolution.
Mr. Carmona suggested sticking with the resolution but adding the caveat on the assistant fire
chief.

Motion: I, Fire Commissioner Mitchell move to approve Resolution No. 22-638, a resolution
setting grade and salary range of employees fixed by ordinance or resolution per NRS 474-470
for appointed Storey County Fire Protection District officials for the 2022-23 fiscal year and
superseding prior year action by resolution for appointed Storey County Fire District employees
with grade adjustments for Fire Chief and the potential addition of Assistant Chief, subject to
board approval, Administrative Assistant I, I, [II and Administrative Specialist/Office Manager.
The Fire Inspector position will be abolished on the general salary schedule due to it being
recognized within the SCFFA CBA. The general salary schedule will be consistent with the
Storey County salary schedule and will be adjusted accordingly on a year-by-year basis.
Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote.

17. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of changes
made to Policy #503 A Battalion Chiefs Compensation which eliminates provisions for comp
time, includes incentive pay for the Fire Marshal, provides for physical fitness incentive for other



non-represented full-time positions, and to approve a newly introduced Policy #503B Fuels Crew
Compensation.

Chief Loncar said this resolution would eliminate all forms of comp time to align with the rest of
the staff, rather than have one employee get something another could not get. He would add the
Fire Marshal position and put it in line with battalion chiefs, including physical fitness and
training incentives. He said the district puts heavy emphasis on education and physical fitness, it
helps with insurance, and to have a healthier workforce. Didn’t want to leave one employee out
of that. Policy 503B is all grant funded, so there is no cost to the district and offers a similar
incentive to the staff doing the fuel work.

No Public Comment

Motion: I, Fire Commissioner Mitchell move to approve changes in the Battalion Chief Policy
#503 A now known as non-represented employee compensation policy and approve Policy 503B
Fuels Crew Compensation effective July 1, 2022, except for the physical fitness incentive which
will go into effect May 1 to be consistent with testing. Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman,
Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote.

18. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION Consideration and possible approval of an updated
Ambulance fee schedule that has not changed since 2012.

Chief Loncar said the new fee schedule would reflect a 3 percent increase but would not affect
county residents who are on the county’s ambulance subscription program. He said the financial
impact would be on people travelling through the county, and their insurance companies.

Motion: I, Fire Commissioner Mitchell move to approve the proposed fees outlined in the 2022-
2023 Storey County Fire ambulance fee schedule that will become effective July 1, 2022.
Seconded by: Commissioner Gilman, Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote.

19. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION Consideration ad possible approval of the Fire
District requesting an approval of an overfill for a Paramedic position due to three Paramedics
being out on extended leave. Approval of the overfill will allow the district to hire an additional
Paramedic to continue providing emergency services to our residents. If the Paramedics currently
on leave can return to work, this overfill position will be abolished and no longer used.

Chief Loncar said this would cut the need for overtime and would avoid demoralizing staff that
would have to come to work if another paramedic was ill. The overfill position would last no
more than two years.

No public comment
Motion: I, Fire Commissioner Mitchell move to approve the Fire Chief to overfill a paramedic

position effective April 5, 2022, through no later than April 5, 2024. Seconded by:
Commissioner Gilman. Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote.



20. ADJOURN TO CONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY WATER/SEWER BOARD

21. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ATION: Review and possible approval of the 2022-2023 Storey
County Water-Sewer Tentative Budget for submission to the Nevada Department of Taxation.

Comptroller Jennifer McCain reported that the Water Fund revenues are expected to cover the
operational expenses. She said a previously approved 2019 rate increase of 2 percent for water
rates will bring about $8,000. The Water Fund’s ending fund balance increased 2 percent. For the
Sewer Fund, the Infrastructure Fund was to help pay the bonds for the system upgrades that have
just transpired. This transfer is going to be $830,000, which includes $620,000 of past transfers
that were not done, and $210,000 for the current year. This inflow of money will help the Sewer
Fund; From the study these transfers are planned to move forward to fiscal year 2024, which is
when it is expected that the sewer fund will be at a point where it can support itself. The
operational expenses for the Sewer Fund are also projected to drop with the same reorganization
and conservative spending of approximately 5 percent. The increase in revenues and the
decrease in expenses is the expected result of a revenue surplus of approximately $150,000. The
surplus will be needed to be transferred to restricted fund balances dictated by the bond use to
upgrade the system.

No Public Comment

Mr Mitchell asked why the line item for salaries was down and Ms. McCain said it was due to
reorganization. Mr. Mitchell also asked if the rate increase was due to the Gold Hill plant, and
Ms. McCain said now, that was a result of the USDA grant and rate increases were implemented
years before. Mr. Mitchell also asked if there was a sunset rule on these rate increases, and Ms.
McCain said that the county was still paying on the sewer bonds and would be for many more
years.

Motion: I, Commissioner Mitchell move to approve the filing of the 2022-2023 Storey County
Water/Sewer tentative budget to the Nevada Department of Taxation as presented. Seconded by:
Commissioner Gilman. Vote: Motion carried by unanimous vote.

22. ADJOURN TO RECONVENE AS THE STOREY COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY
COMMISSIONERS

23. DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION Consideration and possible approval of 2021-39
Parcel Map requested by applicants and owners Brent Triggs and PF Reno 1V, LLC. The
applicants are proposing a Parcel Map to create a new parcel of land that will be associated with
the existing Britain Drive. Three existing parcels will dedicate approximately a 40-foot width by
the length of their properties to create a new fourth parcel of land that will then be dedicated to
Storey County. The dedication will be a separate action from this Parcel Map. The properties are
located at 135 Britain Drive and 2633 and 2729 Waltham Way, McCarran, Storey County,
Nevada. Assessor’s Parcel Numbers 004-093-28 and 29 and 005-041-07.



with the Porter Group, which assisted her department in obtaining grants, and gave excellent
advice on dealing with the federal government on all the funding sources that were a result of the
pandemic. She praised Honey Menefee, community relations coordinator and Menefee and the
Porter Group were instrumental in helping the county navigate the Cares Act funding, the
American Rescue Plan, the Bipartisan Infrastructure Law, the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs
Act, the State and Local Fiscal Recovery Fund and the Multi-Modal Project Discretionary Fund.
She said she and Ms. Menefee had met with Sen. Jacky Rosen, Sen. Catherine Cortez-Masto,
Congressman Mark Amodei and Congresswoman Susie Lee, or their staffs. Her department had
applied for $7 million in grants for water projects, and additional grants for Community Project
Funding. Ms. Mather said that 6 grants were applied for: $3 million for an additional water
project. $2.5 million to go towards the Lockwood Senior Center, $3 million to go to a new fire
station in VC, $820,000 to go to upgrades at the VC Fairgrounds, $325,000 to go to upgrades at
the Justice Court parking lot and security, $1 million to go towards the Lockwood Sheriff’s
substation upgrades. So, working with the Porter Group we have been able to apply for over $15
million in grants. We don’t know what we will be receiving. [ am hopeful it is our top 3.

Mr. Gilman and Mr. Mitchell agreed that Porter Group is a great asset in Washington DC.

Comptroller McCain said the Clear Government Financial Transparency information has made it
to the Storey County web site.

Assessor Jana Seddon said she was working to fill a vacant slot in her office for about a year.
They will begin assessing new construction in about a month.

IT Director James Deane recognized Jason and Irving Powers for helping on the tower project.
They worked three days and saved county six months and $10,000.

28. PUBLIC COMMENT (No Action): None

29. ADJOURNMENT of all active and recessed Boards on the Agenda: Chairman Carmona
adjourned the meeting at 1:53 p.m.

30. CLOSED SESSION PURSUANT TO NRS 288.220 FOR PURPOSE OF
CONFERRING WITH COUNTY MANAGEMENT AND LEGAL COUNSEL
REGARDING LABOR NEGOTIATIONS WITH THE STOREY COUNTY
EMPLOYEES’ ASSOCIATION COMSTOCK CHAPTER, AFSME LOCAL 4041: Call to
Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of conferring with
county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with the Storey County
Employees’ Association Comstock Chapter, AFSCME Local 4041. This meeting will begin
immediately following the general meeting of the Board of Storey County Commissioners.

Ve

Doregl;le Nevin,Clerk / Treasurer

Respectfally submitted,

By:




Storey County Board of County
Commissioners
Agenda Action Report
Meeting date: 5/17/2022 10:00 AM - Estimate of Time Required: 0-5

BOCC Meeting

Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

Title: Consideration and approval of business license first readings:

A. G and S Enterprises — Contractor / 11595 Lemmon Dr. ~ Reno, NV

B. Ijji Noodle House & Poke Don — General / 1 Electric Ave ~ McCarran, NV

C. JIMA Construction Company Inc. — Contractor / PO Box 22312 ~ Carson City, NV
D. Pallet Broker LLC — Out of County / PO Box 2043 ~ Sparks, NV

E. RIA Cast House Engineering GMBH / Out of County / PO Box 68 ~ Wabash, IN
F. S&S Mechanical LLC — Contractor / 243 Freeport Blvd. ~ Sparks, NV

G. Sky Fiber LLC — Contractor / 8975 Double Diamond Pkwy A9 ~ Reno, NV

H. TCR Construction LLC — Contractor / 4585 Goodwin Rd. ~ Sparks, NV

I. ThompsonGas, LLC — General / 905 E. Mustang Rd. ~ Sparks, NV

J. T&T Lawns Plus LLC — Contractor / PO Box 1740 ~ Sparks, NV

Recommended motion: None required (if approved as part of the Consent Agenda) I
move to approve all first readings (if removed from Consent Agenda by request)

Prepared by: Ashley Mead

Department: Contact Number: 7758470966

Staff Summary: First readings of submitted business license applications are normally
approved on the Consent Agenda. The applications are then submitted at the next
Commissioner's Meeting for approval.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: None

Legal review required: False

Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other Agency Review:




Board Action:

[ ] Approved

[ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied

[ ] Continued




110 Toll Road ~ Gold Hill Divide
P O Box 526 ~ Virginia City NV 89440

(775) 847-0966 ~ Fax (775) 847-0935
CommunityDevelopment@storeycounty.org

To: Dore Nevin, Clerk’s office May 09, 2022
Austin Osborne, County Manager Via Email

Fr: Ashley Mead

Please add the following item(s) to the May 17, 2022 COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:
FIRST READINGS:

G and S Enterprises — Contractor / 11595 Lemmon Dr. ~ Reno, NV

Ijji Noodle House & Poke Don — General / 1 Electric Ave ~ McCarran, NV

JMA Construction Company Inc. — Contractor / PO Box 22312 ~ Carson City, NV
Pallet Broker LLC — Out of County / PO Box 2043 ~ Sparks, NV

RIA Cast House Engineering GMBH / Out of County / PO Box 68 ~ Wabash, IN
S&S Mechanical LLC — Contractor / 243 Freeport Blvd. ~ Sparks, NV

. Sky Fiber LLC - Contractor / 8975 Double Diamond Pkwy A9 ~ Reno, NV

TCR Construction LLC — Contractor / 4585 Goodwin Rd. ~ Sparks, NV
ThompsonGas, LLC — General / 905 E. Mustang Rd. ~ Sparks, NV

T&T Lawns Plus LLC — Contractor / PO Box 1740 ~ Sparks, NV

“rEZoEAmIOWR

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office
Commissioner’s Office Comptroller’s Office



Storey County Board of County
Commissioners
Agenda Action Report
Meeting date: 5/17/2022 10:00 AM - Estimate of Time Required: 0 min

BOCC Meeting

Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

Title: Approval of claims in the amount of $1,329,147.12

Recommended motion: Approval of claims as submitted

Prepared by: Cory Y Wood

Department: Contact Number: 7758471133

Staff Summary: Please find attached claims

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: N/A

Legal review required: False

Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

S5IT




Check Registel

STOREY COUNTY Packet: APPKT04076 - 2022-04-28 Special check request t
Chavone Gable L

By Check Numbe

Vendor Number Vendor DBA Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank
406599 GABLE, CHAVONE 04/28/2022 Regular 0.00 812.09 106539

Bank Code AP Bank Summary

Payable Payment

Payment Type Count Count Discount Payment
Regular Checks 1 1 0.00 812.09
Manual Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Voided Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Bank Drafts 0 0 0.00 0.00
EFT's 0 0 0.00 0.00

1 1 0.00 812.09

missioners:
Approved by the Storey County Board of Com

- missioner
—_— Commissioner Cam
Chairman

- )
A -2
C/j//,é/’”// SR
Comptroller :
-
//_____—-—————"“" Date
Treasurer

4/28/2022 10:27:03 AM Page 1 of



‘heck Registe~ Packet: APPKT04076-2022-04-28 Special check request to Chavone Gable LS

Fund Summary

Fund Name Period Amount
999 Pooled Cash Account 4/2022 812.09
812.09

}/28/2022 10:27:03 AM

Page 2 of 2



Check Registe

STOREY COUNTY Packet: APPKT04075 - 2022/04/29 PERS 715 |

By Check Numb

Vendor Number Vendor DBA Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank
405456 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT ~ 04/29/2022 EFT 0.00 55,010.21 10290

Bank Code AP Bank Summary

Payable Payment
Payment Type Count Count Discount Payment
Regular Checks v 0 0 0.00 0.00
Manual Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Voided Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Bank Drafts 0 0 0.00 0.00
EFT's 2 1 0.00 55,010.21
2 1 0.00 55,010.21
issioners:
Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissio
————
—_— issioner
m;n"'-f Commissioner Commis
air
4 % — .
A .

: ( s
(_M____(_:_’;}'——”——'/ e Date

Comptroller

I —
e Date

Treasurer

4/27/2022 3:44:26 PM Page 1«



“heck Register Packet: APPKT04075-2022/04/29 PERS 715 LS

Fund Summary

Fund Name Period Amount

999 Pooled Cash Account 4/2022 55,010.21
55,010.21

22 3:44:26 PM Page 2 of 2



T Jo T 3begd

Wd 0%:2€:Z Teoz/Lz/y

PLELO'SY  BLEL09I 000 000
PUEL'99  WLELO'SI 000 ok
ZE'8TSTS  TEVISTS 000 000
86°TLT'T 86'TLT'T 000 000
YWELT'EL  BYELZET 000 000
VLELO'99  BL'ELO'99 000 00°0
JuawAhey BN unolsiq  xej

jainseall
ja)0dwod_
/)
{
uewdieyd
hwco_mm_.EEOU \|l|.ll|\||\|\|\l|\ll
jouolsStWwod - —
anolddy
Jeog Auno) A31015 34 NG
:G13UOISSIWWO0D jop
000 YLEL0'99  (lejopuoday (1) :siopuap
000 YL ELO99 :si0puap Ajuno) Asuois - 10 1e30L  (T) :SI0pUSIA
7€'875'T1S Buipjoy/m |esapay 000-10S62-T00 ZE'BTS'TS
000 TE8TSTS zzoe/et/v £80T000L4Q zeoe/ez/v
86°TLT'T Aunaas jeos 000-S0S62-T00 86'TLT'T
000 86'TLT'T ceoz/ec/v 9801000140 ceoz/et/y
Yy ELTET 31ed1P3N 000-£0S62-T00 VY ELT'ET
000 Y ELT'ET ceoe/et/y S80T000.L4Q zzoe/6z/v
000 vL€L0'99
unowy 1s1q BwWepN Junody Jaquiny unoly unowy
Suiddiys junowy ajeq yuawdheqd Jaquinn uawhed 6601 jeq 3sod

2202/62/v0 - 2202/62/10 abuey ajeq juawieq
2202/62/¥0 - 220Z/6T/¥0 2buey ajeq bunsod

awep Jopuda Ag
y1oday A103SIH J0pudp

000 000 4/M Xe] 3wO0du| [BI3Pa4
pI3y/m xe| awodu| |esapa4 YTZ9TOO0ANI
000 000 A3unaas jenos
Aundas |enos €TZITOOANI
000 000 3JedIpaN
3Jedpan ZTZITOOANI
3DIAY3S INNIATY TYNYILNI - 00EV0Y
si0puap AJuno) A3103§ - 10 13§ JOPUBA
aug suun uondisaq way|
uonduasag 13quinpN 3jqeleq

ALNNOD AYOLS




Check Register

STOREY COUNTY Packet: APPKT04074 - 2022-04-29 PR payment L'

By Check Numbe

Vendor Number Vendor DBA Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank

405456 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT 04/29/2022 EFT 0.00 87,989.51 10288
404639 VOYA RETIREMENT INS 04/29/2022 EFT 0.00 11,201.94 10289
300003 AFLAC 04/29/2022 Regular 0.00 1,193.11 106529
300008 AFSCME LOCAL4041 04/29/2022 Regular 0.00 599.40 106530
405610 CALIFORNIA STATE DISBERSEMENT  04/29/2022 Regular 0.00 388.15 106531
300001 COLONIAL LIFE & ACCIDENT 04/29/2022 Regular 0.00 103.38 106532
406598 Michigan State Disbursement Unit (I 04/29/2022 Regular 0.00 622.30 106533
300011 NEVADA STATE TREASURER 04/29/2022 Regular 0.00 2.00 106534
103233 PUBLIC EMPLY RETIREMENT SYSTEN 04/29/2022 Regular 0.00 825.38 106535
300010 STATE COLLECTION & DISBURSEMEI 04/29/2022 Regular 0.00 96.54 106536
300006 STOREY CO FIRE FIGHTERS ASSOC 04/29/2022 Regular 0.00 1,560.00 106537
300005 WASHINGTON NATIONAL INS 04/29/2022 Regular 0.00 808.53 106538

Bank Code AP Bank Summary

Payable Payment

Payment Type Count Count Discount Payment
Regular Checks 12 10 0.00 6,198.79
Manual Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Voided Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00
Bank Drafts 0 0 0.00 0.00
EFT's 5 2 0.00 99,191.45

17 12 0.00 105,390.24

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners:

Commissioner Commissioner

Chairman
/’[/74// S D) <;)Da(£:.§\
L(Zérﬁptroner
Date
Treasurer

4/27/2022 2:20:17 PM Page 1 of



Check Register Packet: APPKT04074-2022-04-29 PR payment LS

Fund Summary

Fund Name Period Amount
999 Pooled Cash Account 4/2022 105,390.24
105,390.24

4/27/2022 2:20:17 PM Page 2 of 2



STOREY COUNTY

Packet: PRPKT01401 - 2022-04-29 Payroll LS
Payroll Set: Storey County - 01

Type

Regular Checks
Manual Checks
Reversals
Voided Checks
Direct Deposits
Total

184

Amount
2,448.03
0.00

0.00

0.00
380,313.60
382,761.63

Payroll Check Register

Report Summary
Pay Period: 4/11/2022-4/24/2022

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners:

Chairman

Commissioner

e & —

Commissioner

53k 35

Comptroller

Date

Treasurer

4/27/2022 1:27:44 PM

Date

Page 9 of 9



STOREY COUNTY

Canceled Payables

Vendor Set: 01 - Storey County Vendors
Bank: AP Bank - AP Bank

Vendor Number Vendor Name

404940 NEV HUMAN RESOURCES, LV
Payment Type Payment Number
Check 106246

Payable Number:
SFY22YAP-MC-Q4-R

Description”
SFY22YAP-MC-Q4

Payment Reversal Register
1] APPKT04104 - void check #10624¢

Total Vendor Amoun'

-2,016.7¢
Original Payment Date  Reversal Date  Cancel Date Payment Amount
03/25/2022 03/25/2022 03/25/2022 -2,016.75
Payable Date Due Date Payable Amount
03/25/2022 03/25/2022 2,016.75

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners:

Commissioner

Chairman Commissioner
Y e S526-2D
' Date
Comptroller
Date
Treasurer

5/4/2022 4:17:27 PM

Page 1 of 2



Payment Reversal Register

Packet: APPKT04104 - void check #106246

Bank Code Summary
Bank Code Canceled Payables  Payables Left To Pay Again Total
AP Bank -2,016.75 0.00 -2,016.75
Report Total: -2,016.75 0.00 -2,016.75

3/4/2022 4:17:27 PM

Page 2 of 2



Check Register

STOREY COUNTY Packet: APPKT04106 - 2022-05-06 AP Payments cw

By Check Number

Vendor Number Vendor DBA Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
Bank Code: AP Bank-AP Bank

404671 PORTER GROUP LLC 05/06/2022 EFT 0.00 6,000.00 10291
406510 SILVER STATE GOVERNMENT RELAT 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 4,000.00 106540
403795 ALPINE LOCK INC 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 262.00 106541
100135 ALSCO INC 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 107.16 106542
403651 ARC HEALTH AND WELLNESS 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 575.00 106543
100073 AUTO & TRUCK ELECTRIC,INC 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 476.00 106544
101605 SIERRA ELECTRONICS 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 125.00 106545
406597 BOSLEY, JACK D 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 1,372.03 106546
406408 BRADY INDUSTRIES OF NEVADA LLC 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 398.80 106547
404634 SIX MILE CANYON MINI STORAGE ~ 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 60.00 106548
405077 MACKAY MANSION 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 207.00 106549
406601 GET TRASH'D REMOVAL SERVICE 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 900.00 106550
406571 BURCIAGA, KIMBERLEE 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 40.00 106551
403671 WASHOE CLUB MUSEUM 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 175.75 106552
404216 CARSON VALLEY OIL CO INC 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 5,838.17 106553
406146 CHOLLAR MINE 1859, LLC 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 1,158.50 106554
100505 CITY OF CARSON TREASURER 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 10.00 106555
405134 CMC TIRE INC 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 9,058.58 106556
403822 COLLECTION SERVICE OF NEV 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 21.23 106557
404833 COMSTOCK FOUNDATION FOR 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 378.00 106558
403887 COMSTOCK GOLD MILL LLC 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 102.00 106559
406406 COMSTOCK PROPANE 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 7,307.59 106560
406052 CONRAD COMMUNICATIONS LLC ~ 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 549.00 106561
403553 CONST SEALANTS & SUPPLY 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 280.00 106562
404466 FIRST CHOICE COFFEE SRV 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 129.90 106563
405648 DIANNE S. DRINKWATER PC 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 1,225.00 106564
406163 DIVIDE GRAPHICS 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 80.00 106565
404547 ELLIOTT AUTO SUPPLY INC 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 349,22 106566
404509 FASTENAL COMPANY 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 1,988.60 106567
101485 FERGUSON ENTERPRISES INC 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 109.37 106568
404117 FLEET HEATING & AIR INCOR 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 1,392.00 106569
100826 FOURTH WARD SCHOOL MUSEUM  05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 29.00 106570
404640 GLADDING, EDWARD A. 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 3,472.00 106571
406591 GLOBAL FOODS INC 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 500.00 106572
101899 GRAINGER 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 164.88 106573
405784 LAKOTA HRM, LLC 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 35.34 106574
404394 GTP ACQUISITIONS PARTNERS, LLC 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 1,187.83 106575
404778 HAT, LTD 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 942.12 106576
102983 USABLUEBOOK 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 3,212.46 106577
403040 HENRY SCHEIN, INC. 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 56.88 106578
102564 HYDRAULIC INDUSTRIAL SERV 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 83.64 106579
100978 INTERSTATE OIL CO 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 3,155.25 106580
403834 IT1 SOURCE LLC 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 7,006.61 106581
406564 KRISTA MEIER LAW LLC, LIFE CARE P 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 1,088.00 106582
101040 L N CURTIS & SONS 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 339.00 106583
101030 LIFE-ASSIST INC 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 10.10 106584
404102 LIQUID BLUE EVENTS LLC 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 2,400.00 106585
102751 LYON CO COMPTROLLER 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 12,623.00 106586
404363 MA LABORATORIES INC 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 1,322.01 106587
404786 THE ROASTING HOUSE LLC 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 2,456.40 106588
406484 LAST RESORT DJ SERVICE 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 150.00 106589
102857 MICHAEL HOHL MOTOR CO 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 151.72 106590
405144 MOTQOROLA SOLUTIONS INC 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 259.37 106591
101226 NEV COMPTROLLER 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 8,859.50 106592

5/6/2022 9:30:37 AM Page 1 of ¢



Check Register Packet: APPKT04106-2022-05-06 AP Payments cw

Vendor Number Vendor DBA Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
101226 NEV COMPTROLLER 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 693.32 106593
101226 NEV COMPTROLLER 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 411,555.71 106594
101265 NEV EMPLOYMENT SECURITY 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 822.63 106595
101241 NEV PUBLIC AGENCY INS PL 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 738.00 106596
403632 NEVADA BLUE LTD (RNO) 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 100.00 106597
101269 NEVADA LEGAL SERVICE INC 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 664.93 106598
404163 NORTON CONSULTING LLC 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 244.00 106599
405127 O'REILLY AUTO ENTERPRISES LLC 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 87.21 106600
103486 PAPE MACHINERY 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 78.51 106601
403895 WAY IT WAS MUSEUM 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 154.00 106602
103233 PUBLIC EMPLY RETIREMENT SYSTEN 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 200.00 106603
404398 RAD STRATEGIES INC 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 2,050.00 106604
404134 QUICKSPACE 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 278.67 106605
402937 RAY MORGAN CO INC (CA) 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 726.51 106606
406606 RENO TAHOE GEO ASSOCIATES INC  05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 3,732.45 106607
103063 RESERVE ACCOUNT 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 150.00 106608
103241 SBC GLOBAL SERVICES IN LD 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 46.91 106609
406367 SHEPHERD SCOTT F. 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 1,600.00 106610
405081 SHERMARK DISTRIBUTORS INC 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 177.00 106611
404187 SHOAF, BRIAN ALLEN 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 14.00 106612
102461 SIERRA CONTROL SYSTEMS 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 4,660.00 106613
102462 SIERRA ENVIRONMENTAL MONITOR 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 579.00 106614
101630 NV ENERGY 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 15,132.36 106615
**Void** 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 0.00 106616
405270 SPANISH SPRINGS CONSTRUCTION, 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 25,668.43 106617
101717 ST CO SCHOOL DISTRICT 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 81,198.42 106618
101745 ST CO WATER SYSTEM 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 3,501.86 106619
405695 STANDLEY, BRUCE 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 200.00 106620
405475 STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 626.05 106621
406588 UNIVERSITY OF KANSAS 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 550.00 106622
101229 STATE OF NEVADA 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 2,425.00 106623
406494 ROY C STRALLA ATTORNEY AT LAW | 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 3,125.00 106624
403892 PONDEROSA MINE TOURS 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 993.00 106625
405185 THATCHER COMPANY 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 1,970.48 106626
102311 THORNDAL ARMSTRONG DELK BALK 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 576.00 106627
403225 TRI GENERAL IMPROVEMENT 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 402.40 106628
405112 TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 15,683.67 106629
405649 U.S. ARMOR CORPORATION 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 1,628.56 106630
101845 US POSTOFFICE (VC) 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 200.00 106631
404828 V & T ROCK, INC 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 46.31 106632
405735 VC TOURS LLC 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 418.00 106633
403268 CELLCO PARTNERSHIP 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 3,947.48 106634
404147 VIRGINIA CITY GRAND PRIX 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 2,500.00 106635
406468 VLAMINCK, ARRON DANIEL 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 50.00 106636
405574 WASHOE COUNTY FORENSIC SCIENC 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 364.00 106637
101809 WEDCO INC 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 73.44 106638
101920 WESTERN NEVADA SUPPLY CO 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 671.03 106639
404481 CNA SURETY 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 50.00 106640
405466 ZOLL MEDICAL COPRPORATION 05/06/2022 Regular 0.00 3,157.80 106641

5/6/2022 9:30:37 AM Page 2 of 4



Check Register Packet: APPKT04106-2022-05-06 AP Payments cw

Vendor Number Vendor DBA Name Payment Date Payment Type Discount Amount Payment Amount Number
404295 WELLS ONE COMMERCIAL CARD 05/06/2022 Bank Draft LR 0.00 32,422.81 DFT0001093
Bank Code AP Bank Summary
Payable Payment

Payment Type Count Count Discount Payment

Regular Checks 169 101 0.00 682,693.15

Manual Checks 0 0 0.00 0.00

Voided Checks 0 1 0.00 0.00

Bank Drafts 30 1 0.00 32,422.81

EFT's 1 1 0.00 6,000.00

200 104 0.00 721,115.96

Approved by the Storey County Board of Commissioners:

Commissioner

S, - 22

Date

Chairman Commissioner

Ao

Cbmptroller

Treasurer Date

5/6/2022 9:30:37 AM Page 3 of



Check Register Packet: APPKT04106-2022-05-06 AP Payments cw

Fund Summary

Fund Name Period Amount
999 Pooled Cash Account 5/2022 721,115.96
721,115.96

5/6/2022 9:30:37 AM Page 4 of 4




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 5/17/2022 10:00 AM - Estimate of Time Required: 5

BOCC Meeting

Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

Title: Consideration and possible approval of Storey County Treasurer's Affidavit of
Mailing Past Due Notice for all Delinquent Parcels pursuant to NRS 361.5648

Recommended motion: Approve as part as the Consent Agenda

Prepared by: DORE

Department: Contact Number: 775-847-0969

Staff Summary: Annual approval of Affidavit

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact:

Legal review required: False

Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:

County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




STOREY COUNTY
TREASURERS AFFIDAVIT OF MAILING
PAST DUE NOTICE FOR ALL
DELINQUENT PARCELS

PER NRS 361.5648

[, DOREAYNE NEVIN, Treasurer and Ex-Officio Tax Receiver for the County of
Storey, State of Nevada, do hereby affirm that I have mailed past due notices to
all property owners who are delinquent in their taxes for the 2021 /2022 tax year.
[ affirm that these notices were mailed on April 6, 2022. They were mailed and

returned as follows:

TOTAL DELINQUENT NOTICES MAILED: 347
TOTAL DELINQUENT NOTICES RETURNED: 17
TOTAL DELINQUENT NOTICES UNDELIVERABLE: 7

DATED THIS 6t DAY OF MAY 2022

(g g Wouine

Doreayne NeVin
Storey County Clerk-Treasurer

APPROVED THIS 17t DAY OF MAY 2022

Chairman Jay Carmona
Storey County Board of Commissioners



Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 5/17/2022 10:00 AM - Estimate of Time Required: 15 min.

BOCC Meeting

Agenda Item Type: Consent Agenda

Title: Consideration and possible approval of personnel policy revisions including 201,
Fair Employment Practices; 202, Anti-Harassment; 202A, Pregnancy, Childbirth, and
Related Medical Conditions; 203, Dealing with Allegations of Discrimination and/or
Prohibited Conduct/Behavior(s); 206, Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace; 207,
Reasonable Alcohol and Drug Testing; 216, Outside Employment; 302, Source of
Candidates, Open Recruitment, Promotion, Transfer and Eligible List to Vacant
Positions; 304, Applications, Eligibility or Reduction of Applicants.

Recommended motion: In accordance with staff recommendation, I (commissioner)
motion to approve personnel policy revisions including 201, Fair Employment Practices;
202, Anti-Harassment; 202A, Pregnancy, Childbirth, and Related Medical Conditions;
203, Dealing with Allegations of Discrimination and/or Prohibited Conduct/Behavior(s);
206, Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace; 207, Reasonable Alcohol and Drug Testing;
216, Outside Employment; 302, Source of Candidates, Open Recruitment, Promotion,
Transfer and Eligible List to Vacant Positions; 304, Applications, Eligibility or Reduction
of Applicants.

Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department: Contact Number: 7758470968

Staff Summary: POOL/PACT conducted an audit of the county Human Resources
office programs and policies and advised some of the personnel policies required revision
in order to be compliant with state and federal regulations and best practices.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: none

Legal review required: TRUE

Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other Agency Review:

51V




* Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 202

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 05/19/08
REVISED: 12/05/17

05-17-22

AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER:
AOPAW SUBJECT: Anti-Harassment

1 POLICY: The Employer promotes a productive work environment and does not tolerate
verbal, physical, written, or graphical conduct/behavior(s) that harasses, disrupts, or interferes
with another’s work performance or that creates an intimidating, offensive, or hostile
environment based on that person’s race, color, religion, age, gender, sexual orientation,
pregnancy, gender identity or_expression, political affiliation, national origin, ancestry,
disability, veteran status, membership in Nevada National Guard, genetic information,
domestic partnership, or any other basis that is prohibited by law.

2 PROHIBITED CONDUCT - BEHAVIOR(S): The employer will not tolerate any form of
harassment, including any conduct/ behavior(s) on the part of employees, volunteers, clients,
customers, vendors, contractors, etc., that impairs an employee’s ability to perform his/her
duties. Examples of prohibited conduct/behavior(s) include, but are not limited to:

* Offensive verbal communication including slurs, Jokes, epithets, derogatory comments,
degrading or suggestive words or comments, unwanted sexual advances, invitations, or
sexually degrading or suggestive words or comments.

e Offensive written communications including notes, letters, notices, emails, texts, or any
other offensive message sent by electronic means.

e Offensive gestures, expressions and graphics including leering, obscene hand or finger
gestures, sexually explicit drawings, derogatory posters, photographs, cartoons,
drawings, or displaying sexually suggestive objects or pictures.

* Physical contact when the action is unwelcomed by recipient including brushing up
against someone in an offensive manner, unwanted touching, impeding or blocking
normal movement, or interfering with work or movement.

* Expectations, requests, demands, or pressure for sexual favors.

3 TRAINING: The employer will provide training every two (2) years to all employees on the
prevention of discrimination and prohibited conduct/behavior(s) in the workplace. All new
employees will be provided a copy of this policy upon hire and the contents will be discussed
during the new hire orientation process. New employees will participate in training on the
prevention of discrimination and prohibited conduct/behavior(s) within thirty (30) days of
hire. A copy of this policy will be made available to applicants upon request.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County HR Personnel Director and/or Aciistrative
Ofttieer-will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

Page | of |



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 201

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 05/19/08
REVISED: 12/15/16-12/05/17 —
05-17-22
AUTHORITY: BOC

COUNTY MANAGER: AOPAW

SUBJECT: Fair Employment Practices

2.1

PURPOSE: It s the policy of the employer to provide equal employment opportunity for all
applicants and employees.

POLICY: The employer recognizes the fundamental rights of applicants and employees to be
assessed on the basis of merit. Recognition of seniority and current employment with the
employer may also be considered. Therefore, it is the policy of the employer to provide equal
employment opportunity for all applicants and employees. The employer does not sanction or
tolerate discrimination in any form on the basis of race, color, religion, age, gender, sexual
orientation, pregnancy, gender identity or expression, political affiliation, national origin,
ancestry, disability, veteran status, membership in the Nevada National Guard. domestic
partnership, or genetic information, or any other basis prohibited by law.

The employer will:

I Recruit, hire, train, and promote for all job classifications without regard to race, color,

religion, age, gender, pregnancy, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression,
political affiliation, national origin, ancestry, veteran status, membership in the Nevada
National Guard, domestic partnership, genetic information, or disability, or any other basis
prohibited by law, as well as to ensure that all compensation, benefits, transfers, layoffs,
return from layoffs, employer-sponsored training, social, and recreation programs will be
administered in conformance with the employer’s policy.

Comply with all applicable laws prohibiting discrimination in employment including
Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, the Age Discrimination in Employment Act of
1967, the Equal Employment Opportunity Act of 1972, the Immigration Reform and
Control Act of 1986, the Americans with Disabilities Act, as amended, the Genetic
Information Nondiscrimination Act of 2008, the applicable Nevada Revised Statutes on
Equal Employment Opportunity (NRS 613), and any other applicable federal, state, and
local statutory provisions.

Provide reasonable accommodation wherever the need for such is known by the employer,
and/or the applicant or employee indicates a need for such reasonable accommodation,
provided that the individual is otherwise qualified to perform the essential functions of the
assigned job and the employee’s performance of the assigned job dutics does not pose a
threat to the safety of him/herself or others.



4. Hold all managers and supervisors responsible for ensuring that personnel policies,
guidelines, practices, procedures, and activities are in compliance with federal and state
fair employment practices, statutes, rules, and regulations.

2.2 Scope of this policy

This policy applies to all persons involved in the operation of the employer and prohibits
harassment, discrimination, and retaliation hy any employee, including supervisors and coworkers,
volunteers, customers or clients of the employer, and any vendor or other service provider with
whom the employer has a business relationship. The employer will not tolerate instances of
harassment, discrimination, or retaliation, whether or not such behavior meets the threshold of
unlawful conduct. While single incidents of alleged harassment, discrimination, or retaliation may
not be sufficiently severe or pervasive to rise to the level of being a violation of the law, the
employer nevertheless prohibits such conduct and may impose appropriate disciplinary action
against any employce engaging in such.

2.3 Equal Employment Opportunity Officer designated

The primary responsibilities for ensuring fair employment practices for the employer are promoted
and adhered to are assigned to the employer’s designated Equal Employment Opportunity (EEO)
Officer. The employer’s designated EEO Officer will also serve as the Americans with Disabilities
(ADA) Coordinator, unless otherwise noted, and as such, also has responsibility for coordinating
the employer’s compliance with federal and state disability laws. The EEO Officer shall be
designated by the County Commissioners or County Manager. The name and work telephone
number of the designated individual will be posted on bulletin boards at employer work sites
(reference: Notice — Designation of Equal Employment Opportunity Officer). In the event the
designated EEO Officer is unavailable, County Manager is designated as the alternative EEO
Officer.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County HR Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER: 202A

POLICIES AND PROCEDURE EFFECTIVE DATE: 5/17/22
AUTHORITY: BOCC
COUNTY MANAGER: AO

SUBJECT: Pregnancy, Childbirth, and Related Medical Conditions

1. Policy

It is the County’s policy to comply proactively with the applicable employment provisions of
discrimination laws, including the Federal Pregnancy Discrimination Act (PDA) and Nevada
Pregnant Workers’ Fairness Act under NRS 613.

The employer is committed to provide reasonable accommodation whenever a female
employee/applicant requests an accommodation for a condition of the employee relating to
pregnancy, childbirth, or a related medical condition, provided that the individual is otherwise
qualified to perform the essential functions of the assigned job, absent undue hardship. Related
medical conditions include, without limitation, a physical or mental condition intrinsic to
pregnancy or childbirth, including mastitis or other lactation-related medical condition,
gestational diabetes, pregnancy-induced hypertension, preeclampsia, post-partum depression, loss
or end of pregnancy, and recovery from loss or end of pregnancy.

2. Accommodation

[f a female employee/applicant requests an accommodation for a condition of the
employee/applicant relating to pregnancy, childbirth, or a related medical condition, the ADA
Coordinator and employec/applicant shall engage in a timely, good faith and interactive process
to determine an effective, reasonable accommodation.

Whenever a manager/supervisor becomes aware that a female employee has requested an
accommodation, the manager/supervisor should promptly notify the ADA Coordinator.

Upon learning of the employee’s request for accommodation, the ADA Coordinator shall
arrange to meet with the manager/supervisor and the employee to discuss her accommodation
request, the need for an explanatory statement from the employee’s physician concerning the
specific accommodation recommended by the physician for the employee, and the impact of the
proposed accommodation on the employer.

Accommodation for Employees: Reasonable accommodations may include a change in the
work environment or in the way things arc customarily carried out that allows the employee
to have equal employment opportunities, including the ability to perform the essential
functions of the position and to have benefits and privileges of employment; such as:

¢ Modifying equipment or providing different seating;
¢  Revising break schedules, including the frequency and duration;



e  Providing space, other than a bathroom, for expressing milk (see Leave for Nursing
Mothers policy, 612),

e  Providing assistance with manual labor if thc manual labor is incidental to the
primary work duties of the employee;

e  Authorizing light duty;

e Temporarily transferring employee to less strenuous/hazardous position;

e  Restructuring position or providing moditied work schedule; or

e Leave, with or without pay, if no other reasonable accommodation which would
allow the employee to continue to work is available.

Accommodation for Applicants: Reasonable accommodations may include a modification to
the application process for an applicant or the manner in which things are customarily
carried out that allows the applicant to be considered for employment or hired for a position.

Prohibitions
The employer will not:

e Refuse to provide a reasonable accommodation unless the accommodation would
imposc an undue hardship.

e  Take adverse employment action against an employee because the employee
requests or uses a reasonable accommodation.

e Deny an employment opportunity to an otherwise qualified applicant because they
have requested a recasonable accommodation.

e  Require an employee or applicant to accept an accommodation she did not request or
chooses not to accept.

e  Require an employce to take leave if a reasonable accommodation is available that
would allow the employee to continue working.

Requirements of Other Laws

The employer may make pregnancy-related inquiries and require medical exams that are required
or necessitated by applicable laws or regulations; ¢.g., federal safety regulations, OSHA
requirements.

Notice Requirements

The employer will provide a written or electronic notice to all new employees upon
commencement of employment that they have the right to be free from discriminatory or
unlawful employment practices pursuant to this Act. The notice includes a statement that a
femalc employee has the right to a reasonable accommodation for a condition of the employee
relating to pregnancy, childbirth, or related medical condition. This notice will be provided
within ten days after an employee notities her immediate supervisor that she is pregnant. This

notice will also be posted at conspicuous locations that are accessible to employees.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County HR Director will review this policy every 5
years or sooner as necessary.



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER: 203
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 05/19/08

REVISED: 03/16/10-12/06/16
12/05/17 -5-17-22

AUTHORITY: BOC
COUNTY MANAGER: AO— PAW

SUBJECT: Dealing with Allegations of Discrimination and/or Prohibited

I1.

Conduct/Behavior(s)

Process

Employees or applicants who believe they are being discriminated against or subjected to any
form of prohibited conduct/behavior(s) as described in this policy by another (e.g. employee,
client, customer, vendor, contractor, etc.) because of their race, color, religion, age, gender,
sexual orientation, national origin, ancestry, disability, veteran status, genetic information, or
domestic partnership, as well as those who belicve they have witnessed another employee,
client or member of the public being subjected to prohibited conduct/ behavior(s), have an
affirmative duty to bring the situation to the attention of the employer. Employees covered by
a collective bargaining agreement may opt to use the process described in this policy or in an
applicable grievance procedure delineated by their collective bargaining agreement, but may
not use both.

Employee Responsibilities

Employees who believe they personally are being or have been subjected to prohibited
conduct/behavior(s) and/or are the target of any form of prohibited conduct/behavior(s), or
have witnessed any other employee being subjected to these behaviors, should immediately:

1. Identify the offensive conduct/behavior(s) to the alleged harasser and request that
the behavior cease.

Note: An employee is NOT required to talk directly to the alleged harasser or to
the employee’s supervisor. It is critical, however, that the employce contacts one
of the individuals listed in sections 2 or 3 below if s/he believes s/he is being
targeted or has witnessed what the cmployeec believes to be prohibited
conduct/behaviors(s) directed to or committed by another employee(s), client(s),
customer(s), vendor(s), contractor(s), etc.

2. If the employee feels uncomfortable in speaking directly to the alleged harasser or
if the employee requested the prohibited conduct/behavior(s) to cease, but the
request did not produce the results desired, the employee should report the
conduct/behavior(s) as soon as possible to a supervisor or manager or to the
employer’s designated EEO Officer or the Administrative Officer and/or

Personnel HR Director.

3. Employees who believe the EEO Officer has engaged in prohibited
conduct/behavior(s) should bring such concerns to the attention of the alternate
EEO Officer or to the County Manager. Employees may also report the



I11.

IV.

conduct/behavior(s) to any County Commissioner or the county’s District
Attorney. In cither case, the recipient of the request will designate an objective
person to conduct an independent impartial investigation in into the allegations.

4. An employee who witnesses or obtains information regarding prohibited
conduct/behavior(s) by his/her immediate supervisor is required to report the
incident to the EEO Officer or Administrative -Officer and/orPersonnel HR
Director, or otherwise as described in subsection (3) above.

5. Applicants are encouraged to contact the designated EEO Officer or the alternate.

Supervisor/Manager Responsibilities

Regardless of whether the employee involved is in the supervisor’s or manager’s department
and regardless of how s/he became aware of the alleged prohibited conduct/behavior(s), all
supervisors and managers must immediately report all allegations or complaints or
observations of such conduct/behavior(s) to the EEO Officer, Administrative Officer and/or
Personnel HR Director, Elected Official, Department Head, or County Manager. The
information must include:

1. The persons(s) involved, including all witnesses;

2. A written record of specific conversations held with the accused and any witnesses;
and

3. All pertinent facts, including date(s), time(s), and locations(s).

A supervisor’s or manager’s failure to immediately report such activities, complaints, or
allegations will result in discipline, up to and including termination.

Investigation

Upon being made aware of allegations or complaints of prohibited conduct/behavior(s), the
employer will ensure that such allegations or complaints are investigated promptly. The
employer treats all allegations or complaints seriously and expects all employees to be candid
and truthful during the investigation process.

The employcr will make efforts to ensure that all investigations are kept as confidential as
reasonably possible. Employees will be requested to refrain from discussing the subject content
with others, particularly while the investigation is in progress. Employees may be required to
provide information to regulatory agencies and/or the employee’s union representative or
attorney. The employer will release information obtained only to those individuals necessarily
involved in the investigation and the administration of the complaint with a business need-to-
know, or as required by law.

The employer will communicate to the individual who made the initial complaint, as well as
the individual against whom the complaint was made;,—whether —the -allegations—were
substantiated -or not._that the investigation is complete. the employer took the complaint
seriously, and that the employer took appropriate action. The employer is not obligated to
disclose to the complainant what actions were taken against the accused.




VI.

If evidence arises that a participant in the investigation made intentionally false statements,
that employce will be disciplined, up to and including possible termination.

[fit is determined that a violation of this policy has occurred, the employer will take remedial
action against the perpetrator commensurate with the severity of the offense. Such remedial
action may include, but is not limited to, counseling, verbal warning, written reprimand,
transfer, demotion, suspension without pay, and/or termination. The employer will also initiate
action to deter any future prohibited conduct/behavior(s) from occurring,.

With regard to disability-related complaints, the EEO Officer (when appropriate, working with
the supervisor and/or the complainant) shall propose a resolution to the complaint based upon
the findings of such investigation. Such resolution will include reasonable accommodation
when the employer determines that such a reasonable accommodation can be provided by the
employer.

Training

The employer will provide training every two years to all employees on the prevention of
discrimination and prohibited conduct/behavior(s) in the workplace. All new employees will
be provided a copy of this policy upon hire and the contents will be discussed during the new
hire orientation process. New employees will participate in training on the prevention of
discrimination and prohibited conduct/behavior(s) as part of the new-hire orientation process.
A copy of this policy will be made available to applicants upon request.

Prohibition Against Retaliation

Retaliation is adverse treatment which occurs because of opposition to prohibited
conduct/behavior(s) in the workplace. The employer will not tolerate any retaliation by
management or by any other employee against an employee who exercises his/her rights under
this policy. Any employee who believes s/he has been harassed, retaliated or discriminated
against in any manner whatsoever as a result of having filed a complaint, assisted another
employee in filing a complaint, or participated in an investigative process, should immediately
notify the EEO Officer or the alternate. The employer will promptly investigate and deal
appropriately with any allegation of retaliation.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County HRPersonnel Director—and/or
Administrative Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 206

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 05/19/08
REVISED: 18-11/12-05-17
REVISED: 01/13/2020
05/17/22
AUTHORITY: BOC
COUNTY MANAGER: AO

SUBJECT: Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace

I. Policy: The employer recognizes that substance abuse in our nation and our community
exacts staggering costs in both human and economic terms. Substance abuse can be
reasonably expected to produce impaired job performance, lost productivity, absenteeism,
accidents, wasted materials, lowered morale, rising health care costs, and diminished
interpersonal relationship skills. This drug and alcohol free workplace policy applies to
volunteers as well as employees.

1)

2)

b)

c)

d)

The employer is committed to:
Maintaining a safe and healthy workplace for all employees, and volunteers;

Assisting employees or volunteers who recognize they have a problem with drugs
or alcohol in receiving appropriate treatment;

Periodically providing employees and volunteers with information about the
dangers of workplace drug abuse; and

When appropriate, taking disciplinary action for failure to comply with this policy.

The employer strictly prohibits the following behavior:

a) The use, sale, attempted sale, manufacture, attempted manufacture, purchase,

b)

possession or cultivation, distribution and/or dispensing of illegal drugs or
prohibited substances by an employee during work hours or on employer premises
and in any amount. Prohibited substances include medical and recreational
marijuana, the use or possession of prescription medicines for which the individual
does not have a valid prescription, and the inappropriate use of prescribed
medicines for which the employee has a valid prescription. The prohibition also
includes using over-the-counter medications contrary to manufacturer instructions,
or consumer products not meant for human consumption. In addition, the employer
prohibits employees from possessing open containers of alcoholic beverages while
on the employer’s premises and/or while on duty and from working with a blood-
alcohol level of .02 or more at any time.

Bringing alcohol, illegal drugs, and other substances which may impair the safety
or welfare of employces or the public onto the premises controlled by the employer
or placing in vehicles or equipment operated on behalf of the employer.

Page 1 of 7



3)

4)

5)

6)

c) Driving an organizational vehicle while on or off duty with a blood alcohol level
of 0.02 or more or under the influence of an illegal drug, regardless of the amount.

d)

Public safety personnel performing job-related functions which require possession
and/or transportation of such substances are exempt from this section,

Reporting Requirements

a

A supervisor who receives information or is a witness to any use of illegal
drugs, prohibited substances, or alcohol by an employee which violates
employer’s policies or the law, is required to report this information to
thehisther departiment head, County Manager, or HRAdministrative Officer
and/or Personnel Director immediately. The information reported must include:

= The persons(s) involved, including all witnesses;

*=  Any information gathered, such as actual observation of drug /alcohol use,
the presence of paraphernalia, observation of any unusual physical signs or
behaviors;

* A written record of specific conversations held with the accused and any
witnesses;

* All pertinent facts, including date(s), time(s), and locations(s).

A department head is required to report this information to the HR to his/her
Hamediate supervisor, e.g. the County Manager. Admmistrative Officer and-or
Persennel—Director, and may not conduct a formal investigation, relecase
findings, or administer discipline prior to this disclosure and without specific
authorization to do so.

An employee who witnesses or obtains information regarding illegal
drug/alcohol use by his/her immediate supervisor is required to report the

Specimen collection, drug testing procedures, sample collection, and alcohol
testing procedures will comply with all applicable provisions of federal and state
law.

A positive test result for alcohol or drugs will be grounds for disciplinary action,
up to and including termination.

Employees in safety-sensitive positions as defined in 49 CFR Part 382, et seq., are
subject to the Federal Department of Transportation (DOT) (49 CFR Part 40) and
the Federal Motor Carrier Satety Regulations (FMCSR), as prescribed by the
Federal Motor Carrier Safety Administration (FMCSA) (49 CFR Parts 382, 383,
387, 390-397, and 399) see policy HR 206A , as well as the employer’s Drug

and Alcohol-Free Workplace Policy.

Page 2 of 7



11.

8)

The employer receives funding through federal grants and it is therefore subject to
the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988. Marijuana (including medical marijuana),
cocaine, opiates, amphetamines, (including methamphetamines), phencyclidine
(PCP), MDMA are considered illegal Schedule I or II drugs through the federal
government. All employees must comply with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of
1988 and may not have any detectable level of Schedule I or I1 drugs in their system
while at work. Failure to comply will result in disciplinary action, up to and
including termination.

As provided in NRS 453A, the employer is not required to provide reasonable
accommodation for the medical use of marijuana for:

a. Attorneys, investigators, special investigators or other employees acting
in his/her professional or occupational capacity within the
District Attorney’s Office, and

b. Pecace Officers or other employees acting in his/her professional
occupational capacity in a law enforcement agency.

Employee Responsibilities

Each employee is responsible for reviewing and complying with the employer’s Drug and
Alcohol-Free Workplace Policy.

D)

2)

3)

4

Each employee is responsible for meeting standards for work performance and safe on-
the-job conduct.

Employees shall not report to work under the influence of alcohol, illegal drugs, or
misused prescription or over-the-counter drugs.

Employees who suspect they may have a substance abuse problem are encouraged to
seek counseling and rchabilitation from the employer’s Employee Assistance Program
(EAP) provider, a substance abuse professional or other treatment provider. The
employer’s medical insurance policy or other preferred programs may provide for
payment of some or all of the treatment costs.

It is the responsibility and obligation of employees in safety-sensitive positions to
determine, by consulting a health care provider if necessary, whether or not a legal drug
s/he is taking may/or will affect his/her ability to safely perform his/her job duties. An
employee in a safety-sensitive position whose medication may affect their ability to
safely perform their job must contact the HR Administrative- Officer-and/or-Personnel
Director who will attempt to find an appropriate alternative assignment. If no
alternative assignment is available, the employee may take sick leave or be placed on
a medical leave of absence (if available and the employee otherwise qualifies) or take
other steps consistent with the advice of a healthcare provider. If an employee reports
to work under the influence of prescription medication and as a result of this

Page 3 of 7



I1L.

action endangers himself/herself or others, the employee will be disciplined, up to and
including termination.

5) Each employee must report the facts and circumstances of any criminal drug or alcohol
conviction that occurred while on duty or which may impact the employee’s ability to
perform the duties of his/her job. If duties involve driving a vehicle, the employee must
report to his/her supervisor a conviction for driving under the influence (DUI), and/or
revocation or suspension of the driver’s license pending adjudication. Notification to
employer must occur before resuming work duties or immediately after the conviction
or revocation/suspension. Failure to notify employer will result in disciplinary action,
up to and including termination. The supervisor shall immediately forward the
notification to the HR Director-notify-the employer's atormey.

6) Employees in safety-sensitive positions identified by the employer are subject to
random drug and alcohol testing as provided in policy # 206A Vehicle Operators Drug
and Alcohol Policy.

7) Employees must act as responsible representatives of the employer and as law- abiding
citizens. It is every employee’s responsibility to report violations of this policy to
his/her immediate supervisor; County Manager or thete County HRAdministrative
OfficerPersonnel Director. Such reporting is critical in preventing serious injuries or
damage to the employer’s property.

8) Employees who are required to submit to a drug/alcohol test must complete and sign
the consent form. Employees acknowledge that by consenting to testing they are
waiving any expectation of privacy between the employer and the employee in the
information provided related to the drug/alcohol test.

9) Public Safety employees and applicants for Public Safety positions are also subject to
the Public Safety Department’s Drug Testing Policy.

Department Head Responsibilities: The department head or his/her designee is
responsible for:

B Authorzing the testing of employees.
2} Coordinating drug andror alcohol testing.
3) - Completion of a required consent form.

1) _Notifying the HR Director of possible violations of this policy and requesting HR
proceed with reasonable suspicion testing.employees-of-positive-test-results-and-their
rrght-to-a retest of the same sample.

42) Providing requested documentation to the HR Director.

313)In_conjunction with the HR Director, ilmplementing disciplinary action against
employces who fail to comply with provisions outlined in this policy.

Page 4 of 7



v

(r)

7

8}

NotHying the employer's attorney of an employee's conviction of a tederal or state
erimtnal drug and/or alcohol statute violation

Ensuring that the drug and or alcohol test forms and results are kept contidential and
only provided to employees with a business need for the information.

fdentiiving salety—sensthive posttions,

Yy Notying employees th departiment satety-sensttive posttions that-they are subject to

random drug and/or aleohol testing.

Supervisor Responsibilities: Supervisors are responsible for:

§°]
~——

Notifying the Department Director of possible violations of this policy and requesting
HR be notified.

Peterminmg - reasonable suspraion exists to warrant devg and-or aleohol testing and
detathing. 1 writing, the specitic facts, symptoms, or observations that are the basts for
the reasonable suspicton.

Submitting requestedthe documentation to the department head and/or HR Director

destgnec,

Complying with the appropriate provisions outlined in this policy that apply to
supervisory personnel.

HR Director Employer Responsibilitiess: Employers are responsible for:

D

3)

4

Providing communication and training on this policy to include a training program to
assist supervisors to recognize the conduct and behavior that gives rise to a reasonable
suspicion of drug and/or alcohol use by employees and how to take appropriate
corrective action.

Receiving and maintaining employee drug and alcohol testing records and files from
all sources and assuring that they are kept confidential.

Making drug and/or alcohol testing and notice forms available.
Notifying appropriate department heads of positive results of drug and alcohol tests.

Administering the contract with a third party to provide drug and alcohol testing
services.

Overseeing the administration of the employer’s Drug and Alcohol-Free Workplace
Policy.

Designating safety-sensitive positions.

Page 5 of 7



Vi

Vil

VIIIL.

8)

9)

Notifying employees in department safety-sensitive positions that they are subject to
random drug and/or alcohol testing.

Ensuring the administration of all pre-employment drug testing for positions identified
as safety-sensitive (see policy Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy # 206A).

Employee Education

The employer maintains information relating to the hazards of and treatment for drug- and
alcohol-related problems. Proactive training and information shall be sponsored by the
employer periodically. Any employee may voluntarily seek advice, information, and
assistance. Medical confidentiality will be maintained consistent with this policy.

Employee Assistance and Voluntary Referral

)

3)

The employer strongly encourages employees who suspect they have substance abuse
problems to voluntarily refer themselves to a treatment program. A voluntary referral
is defined as being one that occurs prior to any positive test for illegal drugs or alcohol
under this policy and prior to any other violation of this policy, including a criminal
conviction of that individual for a drug- or alcohol-related offense. A decision to
participate in the employee assistance or other treatment program will not be a
protection or defense from discipline.

Any employee who voluntarily requests assistance in dealing with a personal drug
and/or alcohol problem may do so through a private treatment program for drug and
alcohol problems. An employee who is being treated for substance abuse in a
recognized rehabilitation program may, if the Americans with Disabilities Act applies,
be entitled to reasonable accommodation so long as the employee is conforming to the
requirements of the program and is abstaining from the use of controlled substances
and/or alcohol.

The cost of the drug or alcohol rehabilitation or treatment program shall be borne by
the employee and, if applicable, the employee’s insurance provider. All information
regarding an employee’s participation in treatment will be held in strict confidence.
Only information that is necessary for the performance of business will be shared by
the employer’s management. Employees are limited to treatment for substance abuse
one time only under this policy.

Searches

L.

[f the employer suspects that an employee or on-site contractor is in possession of’
illegal drugs, prohibited substances, alcohol, or contraband in violation of this policy,
the employer may scarch employer vehicles parked on the county’s property, lockers,
desks, and work area. By entering into or being present at a job site while on employer
time or rcpresenting the employer in any way, an individual is deemed to have
consented to such searches. If an individual is asked to submit to a scarch and

Page 6 of 7



refuses, that individual will be considered insubordinate and will be escorted off the
job site and disciplined, as appropriate. The employer may take whatever legal means
consistent with policy that arc necessary to determine whether alcohol, prohibited
substances, or illegal drugs are located or being used on employer property. The
employer may call upon law enforcement authorities to conduct an investigation if
deemed necessary.

2. Searches will be conducted by management personnel or law enforcement authorities
to-and may or may not be conducted in the presence of the person whose property or
work area is searched. Any suspected contraband will be confiscated and may be turned
over to law enforcement as appropriate. Any person whose property is confiscated will
be given a receipt for that property by the employer’s representative conducting the
search.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County HR Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Offieer-will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

Page 7 of 7



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 207
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE:  05/19/08

REVISED: 11-17-09 & 08-03-10
REVISED: 1-18-11

& 12/05/17

05/17/22

AUTHORITY: BOC
COUNTY MANAGER: AOQPAW

SUBJECT: Reasonable Alcohol & Drug Testing

)

2)

3)

4)

5)

Reasonable Suspicion Testing

When any supervisor has reasonable suspicion that an employee may be under the influence
of alcohol or drugs, the supervisor will notify theemployee in question will be directed by the
department head or designee who shall in turn notify the HR or-the employer's Administrative

Officer/Personnel Director, who will determine if the employee is required to submit to drug
and/or alcohol testing,.

The HR Dircctor supervisor-shall be responsible to determine if reasonable suspicion exists to
warrant drug and/or alcohol testing and shall be required to ensure there is documentation, in
writing, regardingthe specific facts, symptoms, or observations which form the basis for such
reasonable suspicion. When-possible, the documentation will be forwarded to-the department
head-or designee to-authorize the drug and/or-alcoholHest of an-employee.

The HRdepartment-head-or Administrative Officer/Personnel Director shall direct an employee
to undergo drug and/or alcohol testing if there is reasonable suspicion that the employee is in

violation of this policy. The employee will be placed on administrative leave with pay pending
results of the test.

The employce who is required to submit to reasonable suspicion testing:

a) Must sign a consent form. By consenting to testing the employee acknowledges that s/he
1s_waiving any expectation _of privacy between the employer and employee in the
information provided related to the drug/alcohol test.

b) Will be immediately provided transportation by the employer to the location of the test.
¢) Will be advised to refrain from eating or drinking before being tested.

d) Will be provided transportation by the employer to his/her home after s/he submits to the
test or refuses to be tested.

Circumstances which constitute a basis for determining reasonable suspicion may include, but
are not limited to:

a) Information provided either by reliable and credible sources or independently
corroborated.

b) The first line supervisor or another supervisor/manager receives information from
a reliable and credible source as determined by the department head and IIR
Direcror that an employee is violating the employer’s policy.



d)

¢)

a.

Direct observation of drug or alcohol use.

The first line supervisor or another supervisor/manager directly observes an
employee using drugs or alcohol while an employee is on duty. Employee admits
using drugs, prohibited substances, or alcohol prior to reporting to work or while at
work.

Drug, prohibited substance, or alcohol paraphernalia possibly used in connection
with illicit drugs or alcohol found on the employee’s person or at or near the
employee’s work area may trigger a request for testing.

Evidence that the employee has tampered with a previous test for drugs, prohibited
substances, or alcohol.

5) The following behaviors will also contribute toward reasonable suspicion and, collectively
or independently, on a case-by-case basis may provide a sufficient reason for requesting a
test for drugs, prohibited substances, or alcohol:

A pattern of abnormal or erratic behavior.

This includes, but is not limited to, a single, unexplainable incident of serious
abnormal behavior or a pattern of behavior which is radically different from what
is normally displayed by the employee or grossly differing from acceptable
behavior in the workplace.

Presence of physical symptoms ot drug and/or alcohol use.

The supervisor observes physical symptoms that could include, but are not limited
to, glassy or bloodshot eyes, slurred speech, poor motor coordination, or slow or
poor retlex responses different from what is usually displayed by the employee or
generally associated with common ailments such as colds, sinus problems, hay
fever, and diabetes.

Violent or threatening behavior.

First Incident: If an employee engages in unprovoked, unexplained, aggressive,
violent, and/or threatening behavior against any person, the department head may
request that the employce submit to drug and/or alcohol testing.

Second Incident: Whether or not an employee has previously received formal
counseling or disciplinary action for unprovoked, unexplained, aggressive, violent,
or threatening behavior, upon a second or subsequent episode of similar
behavior/conduct, the department head wili request that the empioyee undergo drug
and/or alcohol testing.

Absentecism and/or tardiness.

[f an employee has previously received disciplinary action for absentecism and/or
tardiness, a continued poor record that warrants a second or subsequent disciplinary
action may, in combination with other relevant behaviors, result in drug and/or
alcohol testing.

An employee who is required to submit to reasonable suspicion testing will be
immediately provided transportation by the employer to the location of the test.



The employee will be advised to refrain from eating or drinking before being tested.
After the employec submits to the test or if the employee refuses to be tested, the
employer will provide transportation for the employee to his’her home.

I1 Post-Accident Testing

Each employee involved in an accident will be tested for illegal drugs, prohibited
substances and alcohol as soon as possible after the accident, but after any
necessary emergency medical attention has been provided. Accidents that trigger
testing are thosc that result in:

a. Death:
b. Medical treatment other than first-aid treatment;
¢. Loss of consciousness; or

d. Property damage cstimated to be valued at or in excess of $1,500.00 or the
vehicle becoming immobilized because of the event, unless determined otherwise
by the HR Administrative Officer-and/or-Personnel Director, subject to concurrence
of the County Manager.

An employee who is subject to a post-accident test must sign a consent form and
remain readily available for testing. An employee who leaves the scene before the
test is administered or who does not make him/herself readily available may be
deemed to have refused to be tested, and such refusal may be treated as a positive
test. The employce will be advised to refrain from cating or drinking before being
tested. Further, the employee, subject to a post-accident test, must refrain from
consuming alcohol for eight hours following the accident or until the employee
submits to an alcohol test, whichever comes first.

An employee who is required to submit to post-accident training will be
immediately provided transportation by the employer to the location of the test.

Upon completion of the test:

a. If the employee caused or contributed to the accident, or the
employer determines there is a risk to return him/her to work, the
cmployee will be provided transportation to his/her home and
placed on administrative leave with pay pending the results of this
test.

b. If the employer determines the employee did not cause or

contribute to the accident, the employee will be transported back to
the work site (if medically able) and will resume work.

If the test comes back positive and the employer needs to conduct further
investigation, the employee will be placed on administrative leave with or without
pay.

Note: NRS 616C states a positive test for illegal drugs, prohibited substances
(including marijuana), or alcohol per limits set forth in NRS 484C can cause the
denial of workers’ compensation claims. The test for marijuana must be a blood
test.



In the event an employee is so seriously injured that s/he cannot provide a blood,
breath, or urine specimen at the time of the accident, the employee must provide
necessary authorization, as soon as the employee’s physical condition allows, to
enable the employer to obtain hospital records or other documents that indicate the
presence of drugs, prohibited substances, or alcohol in the employee’s system when
the accident occurred.

In the event federal, state, or local officials conducted drug and/or alcohol testing
following an accident, the employee will be required to sign a relcase allowing the
cmployer to obtain the test results from such officials.

Il Department Safety-Sensitive Positions

| 8

Storey County may conduct pre-employment testing for drugs and random testing
for drugs, prohibited substances, and/or alcohol for positions identified as
department safety-sensitive by the HRAdministrative Officer-and/orPersonnel
Director. Successfully passing these tests is a condition of future or continued
cmployment. (Also, see policy 206A Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy)

Department safety-sensitive positions mean employment positions which may, in
the normal course of business:

a. Require the employee to operate the employer’s vehicles or heavy equipment
or private vehicle on company business on a regular and recurring basis; and/or

b. Involve job dutics which, if performed with inattentiveness, errors in judgment
or diminished coordination, dexterity, or composure, may result in mistakes that
could present a real and/or imminent threat to the personal health and safety of
the employee, coworkers, and/or the public, including positions that require use
of dangerous tools/equipment; performance of job duties at heights; use of
dangerous chemicals; inspect and make final determinations on life-safety code
compliance; or carrying fircarms in the performance of job duties.

The HRAdmintstrative-Officer-and/or Personnel Director shall maintain a list
entitled “List of Paositions Nesignated as Nepartment Safety-Sensitive.” The list
shall be a public record. Before a-position-is-included on-this-Hist-the Administrative
Otheer—and-orPersonnel Directorshall post-a notice i -a conspicuous—location
accessible to employees-at the work site-attected that-a-pesition s to-be tneluded as
departinent—safety-sensitive for—purposes of pre-employment—drug—testing —and
sandam dimes and aleahobtesting The natce wiltlatford an opportunity for comment
withtti-twenty (204 calendar dav period

The HR Administrative Officer-and/orPersonnel-Director shall meet and consult
with the recognized employee organization’s representative, where affected
employees are represented, before a position is included on this list. The final
determination to place a position on the list shall be made by the County Manager.
The HR Administrative Officer-and/or-Personnel Director will maintain a master
list of safety-sensitive positions subject to random testing.



IV Random Testing - (see policy Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy #
206A)

\% Return-to-Work Testing/Follow-Up Testing

I If the employer agrees to continue employment, an employee who violates this
policy and undergoes rehabilitation for drugs or alcohol will, as a condition of
returning to work, be required to undergo follow-up testing as established by the
HRemployer's-Administrative-Officer-and/or-Personnel Director and department
head. The extent and duration of the follow-up testing will depend upon the safety
and sccurity nature of the employee’s position and the nature and extent of the
employee’s substance abuse problem. The HRemployer s-Administrative Officer
and/orPersonnel Director and department head will review the conditions of
continued employment with the employce prior to the employee’s returning to
work. Any such condition for continued employment shall be given to the employee
in writing. The HR Administrative—Officer—and/or—Personnel Director and
department head may consider the employee’s rehabilitation program in
determining an appropriate follow-up testing program.

!\l

Any employee subject to return-to-work testing that has a confirmed positive drug
or alcohol test will be in violation of this policy and subject to termination.

VI Consequence of Refusal to Submit to Testing/Adulterated Specimen

I. An employee who refuses to submit to testing for drugs and/or alcohol, or who
consents to a drug or alcohol test but fails to appear timely at the collection site, or
who fails to give his/her sample after reasonable opportunity to do so, or engages
in conduct which attempts to or does impact the validity of any such testing, will
be treated as a refusal to submit to a drug or alcohol test. Such refusal shall be
treated as a positive test and may result in disciplinary action up to and including
termination.

2. Submission of an invalid, substituted, or adulterated specimen will be considered a
refusal to test and such refusal shall be treated as a positive test and may result in
disciplinary action, up to and including termination.

3. A diluted positive test result shall be treated as a positive test and may result in
disciplinary action up to and including termination.

VII  Testing Guidelines

1. The employer may test for alcohol and illegal substances including but not limited to:
* Marijuana (THC)*
* Cocaine, including crack
* Opiates, including heroin, codeine and morphine
* Amphetamines, including methamphetamines
* Phencyclidine (PCP)

1. * NOTE: Tests for marijuana for workers’ compensation purposes must be a blood test.In
addition to testing for the above substances, CDL holders are subject to testing
for the following substances:



1.  6-Acetylmorphine
2. MDMA (Ecstasy)
NOTE: (see policy Vehicle Operators Drug and Alcohol Policy # 206A)

o8 Where applicable, the employer will follow federal testing procedures for
drugs and alcohol set forth by the Federal Department of Transportation
(DOT) 49 CFR Part 40 and the Federal Motor Carrier Safety Regulations
(FMCSR). These regulations may be amended from time to time.

VIII Option for Drugs and Prohibited Substances Retest

In the event that an employee is required to submit to a screen test for drugs/prohibited

substances within 30 days of employment, the employee shall have the right to submit an

additional screening test, at his/her own expense, to rebut the results of the initial screening test.

The emplover shall accept and give appropriate consideration to the results of such a screening
test. This provision does not apply to the extent that it is inconsistent or otherwise conflicts with
an applicable collective bargaining agreement or federal law. or to a position funded by a federal
grant.

In all other cases:

1) No later than seventy-two (72) hours after receipt of a positive drug
test, an employee who tests positive may request a confirmatory retest of
the same sample at his/her expense at a certified laboratory of his/her
choice.

2:2) Upon request, the medical review officer (laboratory primary point
of contact) will authorize the laboratory holding the employee’s sample
to release to a second laboratory, approved by the State Department of
Health and Human Services, a sufficient quantity of the sample to conduct
a sccond testing analysis.

3-3) '1he employee will be required to authorize the laboratory to provide
the employer with a copy ofits test results. The accuracy of the test results
will be verified by the laboratory conducting the analysis. The result of
the confirmatory test is final.

X Requirement for Drug Testing

An employce who tests negative dilute will be required to immediately retest. The
employee will:

1. Be given the minimum possiblc advance noticc of retest,
2. Will be accompanied by a supervisor to the collection site, and

3. Will not be allowed to eat or drink between the period of being noticed of
the retest and the actual test.

The retest will not be under direct observation unless directed so by the Medical Review
Officer. If the retest is also negative dilute, the test will be considered negative and the



employer will not conduct a third test unless directed to do so by the Medical Review
Officer.

X Confidentiality

All medical and rehabilitation records are confidential medical records and may not be
disclosed without the prior written consent of the patient, authorizing court order, or
otherwise as permitted by statc and federal law. Positive test results may only be
disclosed to the employee; the appropriate medical and substance abuse treatment
providers; the employer’s attorney; the HR Director; an employer representative
necessary to respond to an alleged violation of this policy; individuals within the
employer who have a need-to-know of drug and/or alcohol testing results; and a court
of law or administrative tribunal in any adverse personnel action.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County HR Personnel Director-and/or
Administrative-Officer will review this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 216

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 06/17/08
REVISED: 12/05/17
05/17/22
AUTHORITY: BOC

AO  PAW

COUNTY MANAGER:

SUBJECT: Outside Employment

I Policy

In order to maintain a work force that is fit and available to provide proper services and
carry out functions of the employer, employecs are prohibited from engaging in outside
employment which presents real or potential conflict with or negatively impacts their
employment with the employer.

I Conflicting Employment

Outside employment may be classified as in conflict with the employer’s interests if it;

1.

9

Interferes with or negatively impacts the employee’s ability to perform his/her
assigned job.

Prevents the employee’s availability for work beyond normal working hours,
such as emergencies or peak work periods, when such availability is a regular
part of the employee’s job.

[s conducted during the employee’s work hours.

Requires the services of other employees during their normally scheduled work
hours.

Makes usc of the employer’s telephones, computers, supplies, or any other
resources, facilities, or equipment.

Is represented as an activity of the employer or an activity endorsed, sanctioned,
or recommended by the employer.

Takes advantage of the employee’s employment with the employer, except to
the extent that the work with the employer may demonstrate expertise or
qualification to perform the outside work.

Requires the employee to schedule time off at specific times that could disrupt
the operation of the employer.

Involves employment with a firm that has contracts or does business with the
employer. Exceptions to this policy have been identified in policy 212, Code
of Ethical Standards.

©:10._Employment ncgatively impacts the public perception of the integrity or

111 Procedure

credibility of the County.

Page 1 of 3



1. Each employec will provide notice to their Department Director of outside employment

anddetermine whether s/he believes the proposed outside employment may conflict
with his/her employment with the employer.

[}

AR-eriphoyee miust nottty  histhersupervisor o departinent-head of the outside
emplovment Hsuch outside emploviment may-be reasonably perceived o be w-conthiet
with his her emploviment. ot the emplovee is unsure about o percerved contlict

‘o

.2.In order to determine if there is a conflict with the employee’s duties, the Department
Direclor-stpervisor-of fhiaager may request information, such as:

e The outside employer’s name;

e Hours of proposed employment;

e Job location; and

e—Duties to be performed.

4 Buties to be pertormed . H thesupervisor or departiment head turns dow i the request, the emplovee
iy request-aid the emplover will grant - review by anothier persot at o manaeeient level.
B3

S. I the supervisor—or department head belhieves that there 1s a conflietor perceived
conthiet. s/he will consubt with the Adimmistrative Othicer and-or Personnel Director 1n
aking the final determination. Hhe tinal determrination is subject to validation by the
Adimnistrative Oftceratid-or Personnel Director:

6.3 If there is a perceived conflict with the employee’s employment the-the supervisor or
Ddepartment Directorhead will conter with the HR Director. If the HR Director is in

agreement, the Department Director will inform the employee, in writing, that the

outside employment is not allowed, and a copy of the correspondence will be placed in
the employee’s personnel file.

7.4.Within 30 calendar days of receiving written notice from thchis‘her—supervisor or
Dédepartment Directorhead of the conflict, the employee must terminate the outside
employment if s/he wishes to remain an employee of Storey Countyy-and/or the Storey
County Fire District,

%.5.Employees who engage in outside employment which is prohibited by this policy are
subject to discipline, up to and including termination.

9.60.Provisions of policies and procedurcs of thc fire-district or Sheriff’s Office may provide
additional restrictions or conditions for approval of outside employment and will
remain in effect as they are currently written or as they may be modified.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County HRPersennel Director and/or
Administrative Otficer-will review this policy every S years or sooner as necessary.

Page 2 of 3



Page 3 of 3



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER 302
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 08-19/08
REVISED: 01-20-09/ 08-04-15
12-04-18/ 08-04-20
05-17-22
AUTHORITY: BOC
COUNTY MANAGER: AO

SUBJECT: Source of Candidates; Open Recruitment; Promotion; Transfer and Eligible
List to Vacant Positions

118 PURPOSE

It is recognized that the role of the department is critical in the hiring process and that utilizing the
subject matter expertisc of those in the hiring department will help ensure the selection of the most
appropriately qualified candidate for each position. Therefore, the county will involve department
management in the recruitment, examination, and selection process.

2, POLICY

2.1 Filling Positions

Regular positions may be filled by applicants selected from an existing eligible applicant pool. If
no eligible applicant pool has been established or the pool contains no qualified applicants, the
employer may initiate a recruitment (promotional from within or open to outside the organization)
to create or rencw an eligible applicant pool. Applications from present employees may be
considered for open positions before non-employee applicants are considered. For open
recruitments, the position vacancy announcement will be posted internally and externally.

The general policy of the county is to fill vacant or new positions from within the organization
when possible, depending upon qualifications and interest of existing regular full-time, part-time,
and casual employees. Employecs are encouraged to apply for any vacancy for which they may
qualify.

Promotional recruitments limit consideration of applicants to qualified employees currently
working within a single department of the employer (departmental/promotions) or to qualified
employees currently working within the employer (employer-wide/promotional). These internal
recruitments are limited to employees in regular part-time and regular full-time status. Preference
may be given to post-probationary employees with 12 or more months of service to the employer.

When deciding what type of recruitment to initiate, the employer will consider such factors as the
impact of the decision on the employer’s efforts to have a workforce which is representative of:
a. The local population;
b. The qualifications and level of responsibility required by the position;

c. The extent to which the knowledge and skills required for the position can readily be
acquired on the job;

d. The qualifications of employees potentially available for placement on a promotional list;
e. The effects on retention of present employees; and
f.  The likelihood of attracting well-qualified outside applicants.

After the employer has determined how it will announce the vacancy, it will develop a recruitment
plan by determining the applicant pool it wishes to target and in what geographic region it will
advertise; determining what types of media (c.g., internet, newspapers, trade journals) will be used
to advertise and cnsuring outreach efforts reach diverse applicant groups.

Page 1 of 3



2,2 Eligible Applicant Pool

a. The employer may maintain eligible applicant pools consisting of the names of applicants
eligible for hire based on the recruitment process. While generally used to fill a single
position, eligible applicant pools may be used to fill additional positions which occur
within 6 months of the establishment of the pool. Eligible applicant pools for law
enforcement and fire protection positions may be maintained for up to 12 months when
published as such.

b. Any person on an appropriate reinstatement list shall be considered for employment in
accordance with the employer’s established layott policy.

¢. An applicant will be removed from the eligible applicant pool if the applicant submits a
written request to be removed, or if the applicant fails to respond within an allotted time
period to instructions regarding participation in an examination or selection interview. An
cligible applicant who refuses an offer of employment will be removed from the eligible
applicant pool unless the specific circumstances of the refusal warrant otherwise as
determined by the employer.

2.3 Transfers

a.  Aninternal transfer is a lateral change ol 'an employee from one position to another position
in the same class or to a different class in the same salary range.

b. Internal transfers and promotions do not change the employec’s date of hire. However, the
anniversary date for future performance evaluations and merit salary increase
considerations shall become the date of promotion.

24 Scope

[t is recognized that the role ot the department is critical in the hiring process and that utilizing the
subject matter expertise of those in the hiring department will help ensure the selection of the most
appropriately qualified candidate for each position. Therefore, the employer will involve
department management in the recruitment, examination, and selection process.

2.5 Source of Applicant

Regular positions may be filled by applicants selected from existing eligible lists. If no eligible list
exists, the employer may initiate a recruitment (open or promotional) to create an eligible list.
Applications from present employees may be considered for open positions before non-employee
applicants are considered. For open recruitments, the position vacancy announcement will be
posted internally and externally.

Promotional recruitments limit consideration of applicants to qualified employees currently
working within a single department of the employer (departmental/promotions) or to qualified
employees currently working within the employer (employer-wide/promotional).

When deciding what type of recruitment to initiate, the employer will consider such factors as the
impact of the decision on the employer’s efforts to have a workforce which is representative of:

The local population;
b. The qualifications and level of responsibility required by the position;

¢. The extent to which the knowledge and skills required for the position can readily be
acquired on the job;

d. The qualifications of employees potentially available for placement on a promotional list;
e. The effects on retention of present employees; and
f. The likelihood of attracting well-qualified outside applicants.

Page 2 of 3



After the employer has determined how it will announce the vacancy, it will develop a recruitment
plan by determining the applicant pool they wish to target and in what geographic region they will
advertise; determining what types of media (e.g., internet, newspapers, trade journals) will be used
to advertise and ensuring outreach efforts reach diverse applicant groups.

2.6 Emergency Appointment

In case of an emergency, as approved by the HR Director, an appointment may be made without
regard to the provisions of Storey County HR policies relative to job announcements, postings,
and appointment. Emergency appointments shall not continue longer than 120 60 working days in
any 12-month period.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County Personnel Director and/or Administrative
Officer will review this policy every S years or sooner as necessary.

Page 3 of 3



STOREY COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE NUMBER: 304

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 08/19/08
REVISED: 1/20/09
10/17/17
12/04/18
05/17/22
AUTHORITY: BOCC
COUNTY MANAGER: AO

SUBJECT: Applications, Eligibility or Reduction of Applicants

PURPOSE: This policy is designed to establish guidelines for the district in regard to applications

received.

POLICY: A. General Requirements for Filing of Applications.

I. Application Forms. Applications for employment must be made in writing
and submitted to the Human Resources office on a prescribed application form.

2. Multiple Vacancies. Applicants must complete a separate application form for
cach vacancy unless the job announcement indicates otherwise.

3. Required Submittals. The employer may also require résumés, completed
supplemental questionnaires, and other evidence of education, training,
experience, or other lawful requirements, including licenses and certifications.

4. Signatures. Applications must be signed by the applicant. An electronic
signature is acceptable for applications submitted through the employer’s
online application portal, unless the employer does not maintain an online
application and portal.

5. Ownership. Applications and supplementary materials submitted become the
property of the employer.

B. Application Filing Period

Recruitment announcements will specify the application filing period. Applications must
be received or postmarked by the due date specified. Application periods will end at the
close of the business day or at the specific time stated on the recruitment announcement.
A job announcement may be cancelled at any time and for any reason as determined by
the employer.

Eligibility of Applicants
An applicant may be disqualified from further participation in the recruitment process

and/or from placement on an cligible list by the employer for material reasons, including,
but not limited to, those listed below:

I. The application does not indicate the candidate possesses the qualifications
required for the position.

2. The application is not fully, truthfully, legibly, and/or neatly completed.

3. The applicant for employment as a peace officer ;firefighter—or a position which
entails physical access to computer and/or equipment used to access the Nevada
Criminal Justice Information System or the National Crime Information Center
may be disqualified for prior convictions that relate to the position for which s/he
is being considered as provided for in NRS 245, NRS 268, or NRS 269 as
applicable.

Page 1 of 2



e

The applicant has been discharged from or resigned in licu of dismissal from any
prior employment for any cause which would constitute a reason for dismissal
from employment with the employer.

The applicant does not appear at the time and place designated for an
examination or interview.

The applicant is a former employce of the employer who, absent a compelling
reason, quit without notice.

Applicant’s failure to possess a valid license, certificate, permit, etc. If a
prospective applicant for a position cannot obtain the required license,
certiticate, permit, or occupational certitication required for the job, s/he will not
be given any further employment consideration for the subject position. Any
Job offer, offer of promotion, or offer of transfer previously made will be
withdrawn.

The applicant is a former employee whose performance evaluations indicated
below acceptable performance and/or behavioral problems, such as
insubordination, dishonesty, leave abuse, or excessive tardiness.

D. Limitation of Application Pool to Most Qualified

The employer may determine at any point in the recruitment process that only those
applicants who are deemed most qualified for the vacancy being filled will continue to be
considered.

Preference for Military Veterans and Residents

in_compliance with NRS 281.060(2) if ihe qualifications for applicanis aic equal, the
County will give preference first to honorably discharged militarv personnel who are
citizens of the State of Nevada, and second, to citizens of the State of Nevada

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The County HR Director will review this policy every 5 years

or sooner as necessary.

Page 2 of 2



Storey County Board of County
Commissioners
Agenda Action Report
Meeting date: 5/17/2022 10:00 AM - Estimate of Time Required: 15 min.

BOCC Meeting

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

Title: Discussion and consideration directing county staff and lobbyists to draft and
propose a bill in the 2023 Nevada legislative session amending Nevada Revised Statute
403.080 regarding certain newspaper reporting requirements, and to submit the bill either
directly or through legislative leadership or association sponsorship as found appropriate,
and other properly related matters.

Recommended motion: I (commissioner) move to direct county staff and lobbyists to
draft and propose a bill in the 2023 Nevada legislative session amending Nevada Revised
Statute 403.080 regarding certain newspaper reporting requirements, and to submit the
bill either directly or through legislative leadership or association sponsorship as found
appropriate, and other properly related matters.

Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department: Contact Number: 7758470968

Staff Summary: On May 3, 2022, the Board of Storey County Commissioners activated
the Board of Highway Commissioners (BOHC) in accordance with NRS 403. NRS
403.080 requires the BOHC to complete full record of all proceedings of the board and its
fiscal accounting, and the accounts must immediately after each meeting (once per
month) be published in a local newspaper. This NRS mandates reporting requirements
exceeding that for other boards including, for instance, the Board of Storey County
Commissioners, Storey County Regional Transportation Commission, and other boards
and committees of the county. Monthly postings of this information are costly, burden
limited county resources, and appear to serve no purpose other than to duplicate
information which is already available to the public on the county’s website, public
records databases, and other means which are open and available for public viewing and
access. County staff proposed to strike out NRS 403.080 subsections 3(b) and 3(c) for
these reasons, and to continue making BOHC financials and other information available
to the public similarly to other county public records.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: none




Legal review required: TRUE

Reviewed by:

Department Head

County Manager

Board Action:

Department Name:

Other Agency Review:

Approved

[ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied

[ ] Continued




May 17, 2022 BOCC Meeting

DRAFT BILL FOR CONSIDERATION

NRS 403.080 is hereby amended as follows:

NRS 403.080 Clerk: Election; salary; duties.

1. The board shall elect a clerk from among its members.

2. If, at a primary, general or special election, a majority of the voters of the county approve
the issuance of bonds for roads and bridges, the clerk shall receive in addition to his or her regular
salary $25 per month. The salary must be paid out of the county treasury in the manner provided
for the payment of county officials.

3. The clerk shall:

(a) Keep a full and complete record of all the proceedings of the board and an accurate account
of all expenditures of money. The account must show the purposes for which, and the persons to
whom, the expenditures were ordered expended.

(bd) Keep the clerk’s records and accounts in suitable books provided by the county. The
records and accounts must be open to inspection by any qualified elector.

(ce) Keep an inventory of all machinery, implements and other property purchased for road
and bridge work, and shall exercise general care and supervision of the machinery, implements
and other property.

(df) Perform such other duties as may be prescribed by this chapter or by the board of county
highway commissioners.

[Part 3: Art. 1:257:1913; 1919 RL p. 2898; NCL § 5358] + [Part 3:Art. 3:257:1913; 1919 RL
p. 2903; NCL § 5374] — (NRS A 1993. 1077)

Page 1 of 1



Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 5/17/2022 10:00 AM - Estimate of Time Required: 5
BOCC Meeting

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

Title: Consideration and possible approval of First Reading of Ordinance 22-320
amending Storey County Code chapter 2.47, an Ordinance increasing longevity pay for
the Justice of the Peace from 1% per year to 2% per year and mirroring the statutory
provisions for nonjudicial elected officials in calculating the increase

Recommended motion: | (commissioner) move to approve the First
Reading of Ordinance 22-320

Prepared by: Keith Loomis

Department: Contact Number: 775-847-0964

Staff Summary: Human Resources has recommended that Chapter 2.47 be amended to
provide that the Justice of the Peace be entitled to the same percentage increase in pay for
longevity as are all other elected non-judicial officials under NRS 245.044. The code
section currently provides for a 1% increase in pay for longevity for each year of service.
The amendment would provide for a 2% annual increase. In the case of elected public
officials other than judicial officials the longevity pay is calculated after completing a
four year term of service. As elected officials serve six year terms, the longevity pay for
justices of the peace would begin after serving a six year term.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact:

Legal review required: False

Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other Agency Review:
Board Action:

1O



[ ] Approved

| Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied

[
[

] Continued




Summary- An Ordinance increasing longevity pay for the Justice of the Peace from 1% per year
to 2% per year and mirroring the statutory provisions for nonjudicial elected officials
in calculating the increase.

Bill No. 131
ORDINANCE NO. 22-320

TITLE AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTIONS OF CHAPTER 2.47 OF THE
STOREY COUNTY CODE TO PROVIDE FOR AN INCREASE IN
LONGEVITY PAY FOR THE JUSTICE OF THE PEACE FROM A 1%
INCREASE PER YEAR TO A 2% INCREASE PER YEAR, TO MIRROR
THE LONGEVITY PAY PROVISIONS FOR NON-JUDICIAL ELECTED
OFFICIALS AND PROVIDING OTHER MATTERS PROPERLY RELATING
THERETO.

The Board of County Commissioners of Storey County Nevada do ordain:

SECTION 1. That Chapter 2.47 of the Storey County Code is amended as hereafter set forth
(Bold underlined text is added stricken-text is deleted).

SECTION 2. Section 2.47.010 LONGEVITY PAY is hereby amended as follows

A justice of the peace who has served in his/her office for more than feururfourfour six years is
entitled to an additional salary of ene two percent of his/her base salary for each full calendar

year he/she has served in his/her office. - Fhe-additional-salary provided-in-this-seeti

SECTION 3 Section 2.47.020 COMPUTATION OF PAY is hereby amended as follows:
Payment for longevity under the provisions of this section must-be-computed-on-the basis-of full

O

(a) Must be calculated on July 1 of each vear by multiplying 2 percent of the base salary as

last set by the Board of County Commissioners for-the-appropriatefiseal-year-by the

number of full calendar vears the Justice of the peace has served in his or her office :-and

(b) Must not exceed 20 percent of the base salary as last set by the Board of County

Comissioners for-the-appropriatefiscal-vear—.




Proposed on , 2022,

by Commissioner

Passed on , 2022
Vote: Ayes: Commissioners

Nays: Commissioners

Absent Commissioners

Jay Carmona, Chair
Storey County Board of County Commissioners

Attest:

DOREAYNE NEVIN
Clerk & Treasurer, Storey County

This ordinance will become effective on , 2022,




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 5/17/2022 10:00 AM - Estimate of Time Required: 15 min

BOCC Meeting

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

Title: Consideration and possible approval of a proposal from Dube Group Architecture
in association with Melvyn Green and Associates to provide a Preservation Report for the
V&T Freight Depot in an amount estimated at $48,000. This Preservation Report will
guide the work of restoration of the historic building and also facilitate grant funding
toward that effort.

Recommended motion: I, [commissioner], move to approve the proposal from Dube
Group Architecture in association with Melvyn Green and Associates to provide a
Preservation Report for the V&T Freight Depot in an amount estimated at $48,000.

Prepared by: Mike Northan

Department: Contact Number: 7753356991

Staff Summary: Phase 1 is estimated at $16,000 which will catalog all the work that
needs to be done. Phase 2 is estimated at $32,000 which will include the design for the
work identified.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: 48,000

Legal review required: False

Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
] Denied [ ] Continued




dubé ¢dgroup

March 7, 2022

Mike Northan
Operations and Projects Coordinator, Storey County, Nevada
P.O. Box 435, Virginia City, NV 89440

RE: Virginia & Truckee Railroad 1876 Freight Depot Preservation Plan
Dear Mike:

We are pleased to offer architectural / engineering services to prepare a Preservation Plan for
the 1876 Virginia & Truckee Railroad Freight Depot located on the northwest corner of E Street
and Sutton Avenue in Virginia City, Nevada. It is our understanding the County, through the
Virginia City Tourism Commission, will market the depot and surrounding grounds as a venue for
weddings, special events, and meetings. The intent of this project is to prepare a preservation
plan consisting of a report supplemented by preliminary drawings that documents its current
condition and recommends appropriate treatment recommendations for future work based on
a business / assembly occupancy. Specifically, our scope will include:

Phase 1 Scope of Work — Fixed Fee

Task 1 — Field Investigation - assess, document, and evaluate existing conditions and obtain
required information for treatment recommendations for existing foundation, floor, walls and
roof framing including finishes, and openings. This would include site investigation, field
measurements, photographing, and documentation of existing conditions limited to visual
inspection only. No removal of finishes or other destructive demolition is proposed for this task.

Task 2 — Proposed Design Solutions — develop design solutions and recommendations for
rehabilitation, restoration, and / or reconstruction of building elements. Where structural issues
were noted, repair and strengthening options will be proposed for discussion. Exterior
weatherization, life safety, and accessibility options will be proposed for discussion. Tasks 1 and
2 deliverables will be a letter report with recommendations (electronic PDF submittal).

Phase 2 Scope of Work - Estimated Fee

Task 3 — Preliminary Design — develop preliminary design drawings and review with the County
and SHPO as needed. Demonstrate how the design proposals meet the Secretary of the
Interior’s Standards. Task 3 deliverables will be 24 x 26 drawings (electronic PDF submittal).
Task 4 — Preservation Plan and Construction Documents — prepare a Preservation Plan for the
building that will be used to guide proposed capital improvements including prioritization /

P | 7753231001 — f | 775.323.2220
458 court street | reno, nevada 89501 | thedubegroup.com



Virginia & Truckee Railroad 1876 Freight Depot
Proposal for A/JE Services
Page 2 of 2

phasing and construction budgets. Prepare construction documents for review, permit, and
bidding purposes. Task 4 deliverables will be 24 x 36 drawings and a bound report (electronic
PDF submittal).

Project Team Our team and proposed roles include: Dubé Group Architecture will be
responsible for project management and historic architecture. Principal historic architect, Peter
R. Dubé, NCARB, AIA, has practiced architecture in Nevada for thirty four years and meets the
Secretary of the Interior’s Professional Qualifications Standards for Historic Architecture. In
addition to serving for a decade as the appointed architect board member for the Nevada Board
of Museums and History, Pete served on and chaired the City of Reno Historical Resources
Commission. Melvyn Green & Associates will provide structural assessment. Principal
structural engineer Melvyn Green, P.E., has practiced in the field of engineering since
establishing his firm in 1972 and meets the Secretary of the Interior’s Professional Qualifications
Standards for Engineering. Mel has worked on numerous projects for National Park Service,
Bureau of Land Management, University of California, in addition to international projects.

Timeline Our proposal is based on the assumption that our agreement for professional
services will be executed within 15 days of this proposal and work would begin within 10 days
after receipt of executed proposal. We would anticipate up to 45 days for completion of Phase
1 and up to 90 days for completion of Phase 2.

Proposed Fee The fixed fee for Phase 1 is $16,000. A good budget number for architectural
and structural for Phase 2 would be $32,000. Until we complete Phase 1, we won’t know the
exact scope of the project including whether we will need to engage civil, mechanical, and
electrical engineers to assist in developing preliminary plans and construction documents. Once
we complete Phase 1, we can amend the agreement with a fixed fee for Phase 2.

Again, we thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal.

Sincerely, v
/“\

¥ P 4

DUBE GROUP ARCHITECTURE
Peter R. Dubé, NCARB, AlA, Principal

NV Architect License No. 2443



Storey County Board of County
Commissioners
Agenda Action Report
Meeting date: 5/17/2022 10:00 AM - Estimate of Time Required: 10 Min

BOCC Meeting

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

Title: Consideration and possible approval of Memorandum of Understanding between
Virginia Township Justice’s Court (VTJC) and the Storey County Sheriff’s Office
(SCSO) regarding the payment and duties of an additional deputy sheriff who will also
provide part-time bailiff duties for the VTJC.

Recommended motion: I (commissioner), move to approve the Memorandum of
Understanding between the VTJC and the SCSO and authorize the Justice of the Peace,
the Sheriff of Storey County and the Chairman to sign.

Prepared by: Keith Loomis

Department: Contact Number: 775-847-0964

Staff Summary: With the departure of the VTJC bailiff, Judge Herrington and Sheriff
Antinoro are proposing that a part-time bailiff for the Justice’s court be hired and paid for
by the Justice’s Court to provide bailiff duties and that the bailiff when not performing
bailiff responsibilities act as a deputy sheriff for the SCSO. The present MOU provides
for this understanding.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact:

Legal review required: False

Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




Memorandum of Understanding Between
Virginia Township Justice Court
and

Storey County Sheriff’s Office

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is entered into by and between the Virginia
Township Justice Court (VTJC) and the Storey County Sheriff’s Office (SCSO).

Previous to the VTJC employing a full-time bailiff, the SCSO provided bailiff services to the VTIC.
This was performed on a voluntary basis and not required by Nevada Revised Statute.

Eventually, the VTIC employed a full-time bailiff. The SCSO continued to provide coverage to the
VTIC during bailiff’s planned and unplanned absences.

Due to increased VTJC caseload, without adding another SCSO position, it has become difficult
for the SCSO to provide this coverage to the VTJC. Although the VTIC caseload has increased, it
has not yet reached the threshold where another bailiff position is warranted.

The VTJC and the SCSO agree that ongoing cooperation between the two offices in delivering
bailiff duties is mutually efficient and beneficial. The VTIC and the SCSO agree that if funding
were provided by the VTIC to staff one full-time SCSO position, the SCSO would provide court
coverage to the VTJC. The SCSO would then be able to utilize this position to supplement staff at
the jail when court is not in session.

The areas of cooperation will include:

e VTIC will provide the following to the SCSO:
o Funding to the SCSO for one full-time deputy sheriff
o Court calendar on a monthly and weekly basis.

e SCSO will provide the following on-demand bailiff duties to the VTIC at least 30 minutes
prior to court hearings and during court hearings:
o Maintain order in the courtroom;
o Provide security to the presiding judge and others during court proceedings;
o Atdirection of the presiding judge, removes unruly persons from the courtroom:;
o Escort detainees into the courtroom from transport vehicles in the courthouse
parking area;
Calls court to order
Ensures potential witnesses are separated from jurors prior to and throughout
trial;
o Provide security screening of the courthouse facility on court days and maintains
appropriate decorum in court whenever court is in session.

o

Memorandum of Understanding Between VTJC and SCSO 2022 Page 1 of 2




This agreement will become effective July 1, 2022, and will remain in effect until amended or
terminated by mutual agreement of the VTJC and SCSO. An amendment or termination must

be done in writing.

Either party may unilaterally terminate the agreement. Notice of the termination must be given on or
before March 15t of any year and the termination will be effective as of June 30" of the same year.

Approved on the day of

, 2022

STOREY COUNTY

VIRGINIA TOWNSHIP JUSTICE COURT

Jay Carmona, Chairman

Gerald Antinoro, Storey County Sheriff

Approved as to form:

E.F. Herrington, Justice of the Peace

Anne Langer, District Attorney

Memorandum of Understanding Between VTJC and SCSO 2022 Page 2 of 2




Storey County Board of County
Commissioners
Agenda Action Report
Meeting date: 5/17/2022 10:00 AM - Estimate of Time Required: 30 minutes

BOCC Meeting

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

Title: Review and possible approval of the 2022-2023 Storey County Final Budget, for
submission to the Department of Taxation.

Recommended motion: I, , approve the filing of the 2022-2023 Storey County
Final Budget, to the Department of Taxation

Prepared by: Jennifer McCain

Department: Contact Number: 7758471133

Staff Summary: Final 2022-2023 Storey County General Fund and other Special
Revenue Fund Budgets attached for review and submission to the Nevada Dept. of
Taxation

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: Yes

Legal review required: False

Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued




STOREY COUNTY
2022-2023
FINAL
BUDGET



SUMMARIES
ALL FUNDS



5/6/22 jm

General Fund

REVENUES

Taxes (Secured + Unsecured)
Centrally Asssessed

Youth Services

License & Permits
Intergovernmental

Charges for Services

Fines

Interest & Misc

Misc

Indigent Assistance

From Fire District

Transfer from Ind Acc / Grants
Prior year adj

Total Revenues

EXPENDITURES

Commissioners
Salaries/Wages
Benefits

Service & Supplies
Capital Outlay

Clerk/Treasurer
Salaries/Wages
Benefits

Service & Supplies
Capital Outlay

Recorder
Salaries/Wages
Benefits

Service & Supplies
Capital Outlay

Assessor
Salaries/Wages
Benefits

Service & Supplies
Capital Outlay

1 of 4

2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2022-23
Audit Audit Audit Final Tentative Final

10,756,962 12,623,037 13,660,976 10,266,843 13,761,987 13,761,988

1,923,000

27,219 31,383 32,949 32,613
2,678,554 2,719,322 1,952,013 1,471,230 1,686,450 1,686,450
2,395,011 2,610,988 2,272,666 2,015,325 2,213,305 3,045,184
2,527,094 2,117,184 1,776,439 1,864,766 1,821,156 1,821,156
8,340 164,142 216,567 125,700 125,400 205,400
1,182,490 1,382,571 179,107 225,350 215,065 341,065
19,575,670 21,648,627 20,090,717 17,924,827 19,823,363 20,861,243
454,337 288,925 278,899 334,850 330,914 325,447
184,618 178,109 169,104 202,348 206,986 209,431
76,244 27,445 25,675 758,181 1,276,517 1,323,293

1,161 0
715,199 495,640 473,678 1,295,379 1,814,417 1,858,171
225,248 224,838 239,804 244215 223,038 223,038
119,327 137,693 140,629 161,927 156,972 138,875
233,942 165,088 223,900 180,165 183,270 196,302
578,517 527,619 604,333 586,307 563,280 558,215
190,194 163,936 155,929 168,334 177,887 177,887
94,026 76,054 83,774 94,362 97,377 95,157
50,576 88,207 27,623 47,900 83,500 83,500

372 1,028
334,796 328,569 268,354 310,596 358,764 356,544
294,145 255,884 204,758 241,749 236,059 216,131
149,805 131,516 113,052 156,668 163,192 137,918
145,150 91,301 48,392 87,710 121,795 108,763
1,585

589,100 478,701 367,787 486,127 521,046 462,812

5-6-22 Final Summary 2022-23.xlsx

Change
from
Tentative to
Final

5.0%

2.4%

-0.9%

-0.6%

-12.6%

General



5/6/22 jm

General Fund

Administrative
Salaries/Wages
Benefits

Service & Supplies
Capital Outlay

Bldg & Grounds
Salaries/Wages
Benefits

Service & Supplies
Capital Outlay

Sheriff/Jail
Salaries/Wages
Benefits

Service & Supplies
Capital Outlay
Debt Service

Community Development
Salaries/Wages

Benefits

Service & Supplies

Capital Outlay

DA
Salaries/Wages
Benefits

Service & Supplies
Capital Outlay
Debt Service

District Court
Salaries/Wages
Benefits

Service & Supplies
Capital Outlay

JOP
Salaries/Wages
Benefits

Service & Supplies
Capital Outlay

2 of 4

2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2022-23

Audit Audit Audit Final Tentative Final
210,884 271,948 227,400 185,458 190,538 199,404
111,721 315,621 288,637 280,838 324,845 321,874
709,979 610,039 518,303 297,410 295,878 319,878

3,518
1,036,102 1,197,608 1,034,340 763,706 811,261 841,156
133,045 138,428 162,267 254,206 278,354 279,841
64,331 74,636 91,776 142,859 171,729 169,751
143,969 160,270 164,869 283,294 419,500 427,000
71,768 1,299 6,414 6,000 10,500 10,500
413,113 374,633 425,326 686,359 880,083 887,092
2,137,080 2,074,072 2,196,030 2,544,331 2,460,772 2,467,982
1,215,659 1,265,826 1,362,857 1,748,981 1,730,963 1,716,005
564,313 447,508 486,593 549,085 630,069 635,419
72,587 17,648 5722 17,568 17,568
3,989,639 3,805,054 4,051,202 4,842,397 4,839,372 4,836,974
598,245 412,260 420,781 537,428 447 247 453,508
187,875 198,552 208,035 296,887 250,979 250,444
144,702 85,658 81,360 149,953 155,711 155,712
980

930,822 697,450 710,176 984,268 853,937 859,664
346,891 369,647 393,530 406,756 412,520 439,118
168,731 184,476 199,474 216,312 226,478 226,443
156,188 129,265 125,898 419,750 433,250 433,250
671,810 683,388 718,902 1,042,818 1,072,248 1,098,811
131,780 165,682 100,615 195,565 258,000 258,000
131,780 165,682 100,615 195,565 258,000 258,000
232,376 254,736 271,496 282,517 319,810 341,214
105,295 133,751 141,938 170,724 215,289 218,099
29,335 21,497 37,090 47,600 44775 45,127
367,006 409,984 450,524 500,841 579,874 604,440

5-6-22 Final Summary 2022-23.xIsx

Change
from

Tentative to
Final

3.6%

0.8%

0.0%

0.7%

2.4%

0.0%

4.1%

General



5/6/22 jm

General Fund

Health & Human Services

Salaries/Wages
Benefits

Service & Supplies
Capital Outlay

Pool & Parks
Salaries/Wages
Benefits

Service & Supplies
Capital Outlay

Community Relations

Salaries/Wages
Benefits

Service & Supplies
Capital Outlay

Communications
Salaries/Wages
Benefits

Service & Supplies
Capital Outlay

Service Dept
Salaries/Wages
Benefits

Service & Supplies
Capital Outlay

IT Dept
Salaries/Wages
Benefits

Service & Supplies
Capital Outlay

Comptroller
Salaries/Wages

Benefits
Service & Supplies
Capital Outlay

Senior Center
Salaries/Wages
Benefits

Service & Supplies
Capital Outlay

3 of 4

2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-21
Audit Audit Audit

6,777 6,911 3,191
2,905 3,060 1,076
86,402 92,619 101,937
96,084 102,590 106,204
63,073 65,964 67,118
13,451 15,652 17,484
28,342 37,809 41,906
6,903 1,743
104,866 126,328 128,251
143,681 192,770 158,783
56,957 70,525 63,238
688,064 838,593 1,028,300
888,702 1,101,888 1,250,321
610,978 651,013 703,834
249,717 304,788 342,267
95,205 72,644 92,813
20,123 16,958
976,023 1,028,445 1,155,872
194,894 202,530 217,183
94,151 110,660 115,266
69,850 51,727 62,095
95,372 23,163 1,383
454,267 388,080 395,927
266,248 287,668 314,293
152,919 173,509 190,263
124,484 154,497 258,335
250,484 168,428 3,024
794,135 784,102 765,915
270,706 301,901 219,446
134,511 198,135 131,892
81,707 91,140 88,323
486,924 591,176 439,661
0 0 0

2021-22

Final

4,574
2,642
160,387

167,602

77,560
21,453
35,472

134,485

152,400
54,395
1,152,870

1,359,665

705,654
358,974
153,130
5,000
1,222,758

247,703
143,890
86,740
20,000
498,333

371,787
243,001
391,950
19,380
1,026,118

239,012
148,144
123,925

511,081

0

2022-23

Tentative

9,147
5,523
171,783

186,453

80,929
24,971
53,600

159,500

55,706
31,810
1,044,220

1,131,736

648,943
368,229
150,300
5,000
1,172,472

299,811
179,857
121,150

16,000
616,818

382,924
259,832
858,402
56,450
1,667,608

260,997
181,727
133,100
575,824
387,584
202,346
360,050

949,980

2022-23

Final

9,147
5,433
171,783

186,363

81,979
25,002
53,600

160,581

65,253
34,359
1,044,220

1,143,832

666,337
353,575
150,300
5,000
1,175,212

305,368
177,485
121,150

16,000
620,003

396,030
258,759
812,043
52,250
1,519,082

272,532
185,935
137,600
596,067
395,327
204,787
360,050

960,164

5-6-22 Final Summary 2022-23.xIsx

Change

from

Tentative to

Final

0.0%

0.7%

1.1%

0.2%

0.5%

-2.5%

3.4%

1.1%

General



5/6/22 jm

General Fund 2018-2019  2019-2020  2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2022-23 C?r:fe
Tentative to
Audit Audit Audit Final Tentative Final Final
Emg Management
Salaries/Wages 25,946 20,734 21,803 76,050 89,924 95,428
Benefits 2,710 8,081 7,520 34,065 40,029 37,512
Service & Supplies 28,016 46,061 26,815 67,350 78,305 78,305
Capital Outlay 4,400
56,672 79,276 56,138 177,465 208,258 211,245 1.4%
Planning
Salaries/Wages 157,044 135443 143,364 214 141 192,678 201,930
Benefits 74,153 69845 74,611 114,146 94,446 96,007
Service & Supplies 29,002 66652 80,531 162,100 226,135 226,135
Capital Outlay
260,199 271,940 298,506 490,387 513,259 524,072 2.1%
Prelim Expenses 13,875,756 13,638,153 13,802,032 17,282,257 18,674,210 19,718,500 5.3%
Contingency (no<3% of Expense) 518,468 560,226 591,555  5.3%
Total Expense 13,638,153 13,802,032 17,800,725 19,234,436 20,310,055 5.3%
Total Revenue 19,675,670 21,648,627 20,090,717 17,924,827 19,823,363 20,861,243 5.0%
Revenue vs Expense | -1,349,815 6,955,474 6,288,685 124,101 588,927 551,188 -6.8%
50 R A A R S B SR T T AR R
Grant Revenue 2,500,000
Transfer In:
Transfer Out to:
Roads 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000
TRI-Payback 600,000 600,000 600,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,500,000
USDA Fund o
Fire ‘ e
Emergency Mitigation 55,000 50,000 78000 78,000
Pipers 105,000 109,000 110,000 105000 105,000
To Capital Projects 5,000,000 2,000,000 5,000,000 2,500,000
Grants 100,000
Prior Period adj
Total Transfer 7,049,729 1,055,000 1,159,000 3,588,000 6,505,000 4,683,000
Beginning Fund Bal 12,454,343 11,104,528 17,774,361 22,904,046 19,440,147 19,440,147
Revenue 21,648,627 20,090,717 17,924,827 19,823,363 20,861,243
Grant 2,500,000
Expenses 13,638,153 13,802,032 17,800,725 19,234,436 20,310,055
Transfers Out 1,055,000 1,159,000 3,588,000 6,505,000 4,683,000
Ending Fund Bal 11,104,528 18,060,002 22,904,046 19,440,147 16,024,074 15,308,335 -4.7%

4 of 4

5-6-22 Final Summary 2022-23.xlsx

General



Summary - General Fund

5-6-22 jm

18-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2022-23
Audited Audit Audit Final Tentative Final Tentative to Final
Beginning Fund Balance 12,454,344 11,104,529 17,774,361 22,904,046 19,440,147 19,440,147
Revenue 19,575,670 21,648,627 20,090,717 17,924,827 19,823,363 20,861,243
Grants/Transfer In 2,500,000
Expenses 13,875,756 13,638,153 13,802,032 17,800,725 19,234,436 20,310,055
Transfers Out 7,049,729 1,055,000 1,159,000 3,588,000 6,505,000 4,683,000
Ending Fund Balance 11,104,529 18,060,003 22,904,046 19,440,147 16,024,074 15,308,335 -4.7%
Summary - Indigent Medical
18-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2022-23
Audited Audit Audit Final Tentative Final
Beginning Fund Balance 484,798 493,466 528,791 518,626 383,790 383,790
Revenue 60,744 76,562 78,800 65,164 75,965 75,965
Expenses 52,076 41,237 88,965 200,000 200,000 200,000
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance 493,466 528,791 518,626 383,790 259,755 259,755 0.0%
Summary - Roads
18-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2022-23
Audited Audit Audit Final Tentative Final
Beginning Fund Balance 400,253 930,746 920,634 791,883 503,728 503,728
Revenue 1,249,297 1,143,486 1,137,081 1,132,959 1,706,958 1,306,957
Expenses 710,054 1,600,764 1,665,832 1,821,114 2,019,394 2,013,239
Transfers In (8,750) 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000 400,000
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance 930,746 873,468 791,883 503,728 591,292 197,446  -199.5%
Summary - Emergency Mitigation
18-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2022-23
Audited Audit Audit Final Tentative Final
Beginning Fund Balance (41,391) (10,692) 31,194 33,543 33,543 33,543
Revenue 30,699 96,225 827,325 78,000 78,000 78,000
Expenses - 54,339 824,976 78,000 75,000 75,000
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance (10,692) 31,194 33,543 33,543 36,543 36,543 0.0%
Summary -Equipment Acquisition
18-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2022-23
Audited Audit Audit Final Tentative Final
Beginning Fund Balance 583,247 2,729,120 2,869,186 3,154,647 3,199,549 3,199,549
Revenue 328,582 361,866 452,095 328,622 356,614 356,614
Expenses 26,709 230,306 153,634 283,720 1,201,700 1,675,700
Other Financing Source 1,844,000 (13,000) (13,000)
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance 2,729,120 2,860,680 3,154,647 3,199,549 2,354,463 1,880,463 -25.2%
Summary - Capital Projects
18-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2022-23
Audited Audit Audit Final Tentative Final
Beginning Fund Balance 1,342,667 5,729,262 3,362,221 1,449,349 1,706,349 1,706,349
Revenue 93,732 117,165 70,299 2,093,000 9,264,784 9,264,784
Expenses 1,286,181 2,484,206 1,983,171 1,836,000 10,134,393 9,919,030
Other Financing Sources 5,579,044
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance 5,729,262 3,362,221 1,449,349 1,706,349 836,740 1,052,103 20.5%

lof4

5-9-22 Final Summary 2022-23.xIsx Summary Storey Co



Summary - Infrastructure

Beginning Fund Balance
Revenue
Expenses
Transfer to Capital Projects
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance

Summary - Stabilization

Beginning Fund Balance
Revenue
Expenses
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance

Summary - USDA

Beginning Fund Balance
Revenue
Expenses
Other Financing Source
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance

Summary - Drug Court

Beginning Fund Balance
Revenue
Expenses
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance

Summary - Technology

Beginning Fund Balance
Revenue
Expenses
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance

Summary - Genetic Marker

Beginning Fund Balance
Revenue
Expenses
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance

20of 4

18-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2022-23
Audited Audit Audit Final Tentative Final
2,219,981 1,865,434 2,663,004 2,264,870 1,545,642 1,545,642
488,650 797,570 470,672 500,000 500,000 500,000
- 868,806 1,219,228 1,196,002 1,196,002
(843,197)
1,865,434 2,663,004 2,264,870 1,545,642 849,640 849,640 0.0%
18-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2022-23
Audited Audit Audit Final Tentative Final
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 600,000 600,000
0 0
400,000 200,000 200,000
1,000,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 600,000 400,000 400,000 0.0%
18-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2022-23
Audited Audit Audit Final Tentative Final
29,187 29,697 29,707 29,717 29,717 29,717
4,779,827 393,500 250,860 500,266 500,266 500,266
4,528,827 393,490 250,860 500,266 500,266 500,266
(250,490)
10
29,697 29,707 29,717 29,717 29,717 29,717 0.0%
18-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2022-23
Audited Audit Audit Final Tentative Final
30 50 30 30 30 30
450 480 670 400 400 400
460 500 670 400 400 400
20 30 30 30 30 30 0.0%
18-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2022-23
Audited Audit Audit Final Tentative Final
130,227 177,389 224,293 295,957 248,057 248,057
110,771 136,068 130,784 57,100 91,800 91,800
63,609 91,164 59,120 105,000 105,000 105,000
177,389 222,293 295,957 248,057 234,857 234,857 0.0%
18-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2022-23
Audited Audit Audit Final Tentative Final
48,787 57,440 63,055 71,452 76,552 76,552
14,846 10,860 13,420 11,100 8,600 8,600
6,193 5,245 5,023 6,000 6,000 6,000
57,440 63,055 71,452 76,552 79,152 79,152 0.0%

5-9-22 Final Summary 2022-23.xlsx Summary Storey Co



Summary - Indigent Accident

18-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2022-23
Audited Audit Audit Final Tentative Final
Beginning Fund Balance 5,354 5,354 22,416 67,915 77,212 77,212
Revenue 90,718 104,616 109,843 89,297 97,992 97,992
Expenses 90,718 87,554 64,344 80,000 80,000 80,000
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance 5,354 22,416 67,915 77,212 95,204 95,204 0.0%

Summary - Justice Court Fund

18-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2022-23
Audited Audit Audit Final Tentative Final
Beginning Fund Balance 44,071 63,681 81,969 26,479 39,979 39,979
Revenue 46,283 37,598 65,081 67,000 63,000 63,000
Expenses 26,673 19,310 120,571 53,500 63,000 63,000
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance 63,681 81,969 26,479 39,979 39,979 39,979 0.0%
Summary - Park Fund
18-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2022-23
Audited Audit Audit Final Tentative Final
Beginning Fund Balance 132,355 132,355 84,704 88,525 75,125 75,125
Revenue 6,500 3,189 3,821 1,600 1,500 1,500
Expenses 116,000 51,618 15,000 27,500 27,500
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance 22,855 83,926 88,525 75,125 49,125 49,125 0.0%
Summary - TRI Payback
18-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2022-23
Audited Audit Audit Final Tentative Final
Beginning Fund Balance 3,154,850 3,594,263 4,154,354 2,409,354 683,354 683,354
Revenue 629,149 629,149
Expenses 315,587 194,909 2,500,000 3,000,000 2,300,000 3,300,000
Transfers in 755,000 755,000 755,000 1,274,000 1,026,000 2,000,000
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance 3,594,263 4,154,354 2,409,354 683,354 38,503 12,503 -208.0%
Summary - Grants
18-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2022-23
Audited Audit Audit Final Tentative Final
Beginning Fund Balance 84,584 110,074 119,625 104,732 826 826
Revenue 221,987 75,672 130,540 392,818 429,764 2,959,764
Expenses 196,497 66,121 145,433 496,724 422,264 2,922,264
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance 110,074 119,625 104,732 826 8,326 38,326 78.3%
Summary - VC Rail Project
18-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2022-23
Audited Audit Audit Final Tentative Final
Beginning Fund Balance 685,972 545,048 1,918,957 2,193,158 1,149,742 1,149,742
Revenue - 690,611 350,000 500,000 500,000
Expenses 158,745 250,000 1,393,416 480,000 480,000
Other Financing Sources (140,924) (166,410)
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance 545,048 386,303 2,193,158 1,149,742 1,169,742 1,169,742 0.0%

30f4 5-9-22 Final Summary 2022-23.xlsx Summary Storey Co



Summary - VCTC

18-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2022-23
Audited Audit Audit Final Tentative Final
Beginning Fund Balance 252,991 453,909 884,726 1,002,600 703,533 703,533
Revenue 1,561,327 1,742,327 1,280,947 1,406,000 1,657,000 1,657,000
Expenses 1,360,409 1,319,275 1,163,073 1,705,067 1,660,917 1,685,335 2.7%
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance 453,909 876,961 1,002,600 703,533 699,616 675,198 -3.6%

Summary - Piper's Opera House

18-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2022-23
Audited Audit Audit Final Tentative Final
Beginning Fund Balance 40,610 77,119 33,635 86,716 71,059 71,059
Revenue 151,041 110,166 139,503 156,000 274,000 169,000
Expenses 219,532 153,650 195,422 281,657 278,206 286,916 -1.2%
Transfer In 105,000 109,000 110,000 105,000 105,000
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance 77,119 33,635 86,716 71,059 171,853 58,143  -195.6%

40of4 5-9-22 Final Summary 2022-23.xIsx Summary Storey Co



001
GENERAL FUND



001
REVENUE



G jo 1 abed

WV $€:0S5:8 220Z/9/S

%000 000 00'000°0€ 00°000°0€ 00'000°0€ 000 00°€6v'TY
%000 000 00'65Z°0LE 00'652°0LE 000 000 000
%0070 000 00°0S¥°989°T 00°0S+989°T 00°0ETTLYT LS'SEB'OST'E L6°TT0TS6'T
%000 000 00000 00'000°Z 00°08L9 00'54S'9 00'0S8°0T
%000 000 00°000°009 00°000°009 00°000°00% 0E'TZETSS'T 08°'0T9'€8S
%000 000 00°000°LE 00°000°L€ 00°000°€6 €9°79T V1T T¥'LS0°L0T
%000 000 00°000°09€ 00°000°09¢€ 00°000°0S€E ST'TLO0TE T9°678°7SE
%000 000 00°0SY 00°0St 00°0SY ST'8 0S°LE6
%000 000 00°000°00S 00°000°00S 00°000°00% YT'661°9SL LY LYTTIS
%000 000 0000008 00°000°08 00°000°08 00°STT'8Y 00°5.8°68
%000 000 00°000°E 00°000°€ 000 000 000
%000 000 00'000°€ 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 00'06LC 000z,
%000 000 00'000°€ 00'000°€ 000 000 000
%000 000 00°000°€ 00000 00°000°€ 00°0TS 00°08v‘t
%000 000 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 00°000°0€ 0S°9SL°9T €Y' TOE8L
%000 000 000 000 000 ST9T9vT 000
%000 000 00'000°9T 00'000'9T 00'000°s¢ 00°0v 00°£80°0S
%000 000 00°000vS 00°000'tS 0000008 S2°099°St S/'9T0'6ST
%00°0 000 SLL86‘TILET  SL'L86'TIL'ET  00°9SY'TITTT vy OvI's6v'ST  VE'STE'E69°ET
%000 000 00°000°€69°T 00°000°€69°T 00°000'€Z6°T $T°G9L'STET 96°668'€08'T
%000 000 7E'869°€T TE'869°EC 00°€T9'CE $T°T6L'SE 6€°6Y6CE
%000 000 000 000 000 95°L6L 58'666'9T
%000 000 00'000°€ 00°000°¢ 00°000°€ LLYTTET 9£°00¢
%000 000 000 000 000 6v°'C 6S°SC6
%000 000 00°0000T 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 8Y°0LY6T 6€° 1T LT
%00°0 000 00°000°006°T 00°000°006°T 00°000°0SL S0'¥05°008°C 98't6v'6TZ'T
%000 000 00°000°008 00°000°008 000000021 19°66YL8T°C STL6L'TET'T
%000 000 8T'SLT'8LS'9 8T'SLT'8LS9 00'80£'S69°S L9'v9TL9€'9 8€°£95°0SL'S
%000 000 STYITYSLT STHYIT'PSLT 00'SET'809°C LY 6TT'SPI'T 69 TTZ'¥99°C

(aseanaq) leuld aAneud) je8png|elol  Anandyjelol  Anandy jejoL

/ 8seaiu| €202-720C €202-2207 2202-1202 220Z-1202 1202-0202

% y23png 198png juaied
judied 0} 323png

AJewwing 1UNOJJY

T uosuedwo)

1oday uositedwo) 108png

T uosuiedwo)

SX1 40 N317 NI SLWAd 434
SINVYO 31VIS

000-00€€€-T00
000-00TEE-T00

DNIGNN4 TVANIWNYIAODYILNI - €€ :dnosoidynay

:SLINY3d / SISNIDIT - Z€ :dnoinidyasy jejo)
YVA/3ISN J3dS ONINNV1d,

VIYLSNANI ON3Y JOHVL
SLIWY3d 5019

XVL 3SIHONVY4

S3ISNIDN LIWVEYD

$334 S3LLAILN

S3ISN3DIT NOILNLILSOY¥d
0D - 141 SISNIDIN ONINYO
0D - SISNIDIT ONIWYD
141 SISN3DIM Yonon
S3SN3IDIN YoNOIN
VIYLSNANI ON3Y JOHVL
HOY3IW -ALNNOD 40 1NO
9suadI "sng-vy1S3l

(409) SISN3DIN SSANISNG

000-3022E-T00
000-5022E-T00
000-80TZE-T00
000-80TZE-T00
000-50TZE-T00
000-7OTZE-T00
005-E0TZET00
000-E0TZE-T00
005-20TZE-T00
000-COTZE-T00
005-TOTZE-T00
O0E-TOTZE-T00
00Z-TOTZE-T00
000-TOTZE-T00

SLIWY3d / SISNIDN - Z€ :dnoinydynay

IINTYOTVA aV - T€ :dnoasidyaay |e3o)

Q3SS3SSV ATTVYLINID-ILVILS
S3DIAY3S HLNOA
IVIYLSNANI ON3Y 30HVL
SYV3A ¥OI¥d LNINDONI3a
TVIYLSNANI ON3Y 30HVL
YV3IA LSYI4 ININDNIM3A
IVIYLISNANI ON3Y JOHVL
YOSSISSV-WIYOTVA AV
IVIYLSNANI ON3Y 3OHVL
YV3IA LINIHYND WIHOTVA QV

000-80TTE-T00
000-Z0TTE-T00
005-S0TTE-T00
000-SO0TTE-T00
00S-€0TTE-T00
000-E0TTE-TO0
00S-TOTTE-T00
000-TOTTE-T00
005-00TTE-T00
000-00TTE-T00

W3IYOTVA aV - T€ :dnoinidyasy

ALNNOD A3YOLS

aNNd 1vY43IN3IO - T00 :pung
J3qUWINN JUNONY




G Jo 7 abed

WV +€:05:8 2202/9/S

%00°0 000 00°9ST‘TZ8‘T 00'9ST‘TZ8T 00'99L'v98°T 95'SL6'VLIT 09°6€0°8LL'T
%000 000 00°000°00L 00°000°00L 00'000°00L 6L'vL6'S9 ¥S'SSTT9L
%0070 000 000 000 000 000 00'009‘T
%000 000 00°000C 00000 000 SC'S91 000
%000 000 00°000'TT 00°000°TT 000 00'ZL1'6 00'8€8°€
%000 000 00'000°T 00°000°T 000 00'00Z‘T 00°00Z
%000 000 000 000 000 000 000
%000 000 00°0009T 0000091 00°00S STITE6 v8'LEE
%0070 000 00°000'6 00'000°6 00°0009 €5'T99°6 YY'6€T'L
%000 000 00°008 00008 00008 00°0LS 00°S€8
%000 000 00°000'Z€ 00'000°2€ 00'000Z€ YT EV8'9T St'70S‘€E
%000 000 000 000 000 00'S 000
%000 000 00'000°€ 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 00'SYTC 00°0STC
%000 000 00'006'T 00°006°T 00°00%T 00'009°T 009TTC
%00°0 000 0000002 00°000°0Z 00°000°0T 0S°£20°ST SY'9SYYT
%00°0 000 00000'T¢ 00'000°TZ 00'0059T 0S'€16°LT 00°0EV€C
%00°0 000 00'6VT'9TT 00'6¥T9TT 00'06660T €€'SE]'EIT SL86Y'6L
%000 000 00°000Z€ 00°000ZE 00°000'9C L8LTLTE 96'8T1CE
%000 000 00'000°SS 00'000'SS 00'000'SS 000 0v'€S8°0S
%000 000 000 000 00°00S 00'06€T 000
%000 000 00°L0S°LES 00'£0S°LES 00'946099 L6°T8L'6€9 0S'208C6C
%000 000 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 00'0059 00'009vT 00°00Z'ST
%000 000 00°000°0ST 00'000°0ST 00'000°0ST 76'T199LY 8E YL 9SE
%000 000 00°000'S 00°000'S 00'00SY 00°06T°S 00'STS9
%000 000 00°000°SS 00°000'SS 0000005 TEL9E9Y LE'TTT'BS
%000 000 00'000°SE 00°000°SE 00°000'%C TT°L08°8T TL'T9T°9C
%000 000 00°008°L 00°008°L 00001, 86'8L0L 18'196°L
%9T'vb-  00°6€980v°'C-  S8'E8I'SHO‘E S8'7T8'ESY’S 0S'vZE'STOC 8T°012'L92°C 80°999°2£2°C
%000 000 00'99T'65Y 00'99T°65Y 00'vST'18¢ v0'7ST'LSE 00°€€9vTY
%80T 00'T9€'T6 00128796 00'09v'1L8 0S'TE8TVL 80°LLY'TT8 TL7986T18
%000 000 S8°LT¥'9S8 S8°LT¥'9S8 00'vZZ'€69 0L'6¥8°9€L vEBLY'STL
%000 000 00'8%0'60T 00'8%0°60C 00°€SS'LYT TT'v€9°91C S9°ZE99ET
%000 000 00°000°0t'T 00°000°0tT 00°000'S0T 9%'9S8VTT 0€'vL0TTT
%000 000 00'8€L’S 00'8€L’S 00'vE8Y 0TvIY's YE€0T’S
%00°0 000 00'vZLTT 00vZLTT 00°L29TT 20'886°6 90'987CT
%000 000 000 000 000 LS'BELYT £9°8L8TT
%00°00T- 00°000°00S‘C- 000 00'000°00S°C 000 000 000

(aseanaq) |eui4 anueua) 193png |g101 Aoy jeaop Aingoy ero0p

/ @seasnu| €202-2202 €202-220C 220Z-1202 [44\rag ¥4 114 1202-0202

% 193png 193png juaseq
uased 0} 133png

T uosuedwo)

T uosiedwo)

:SIDIAYIS HO4 SIDYVHD - ¥E :dnoinidynay (ejoy

$334 3I9VNNOL LYOdI
NOILVAVIX3/LOTdIAVYO
SNOISSIDNOD - 100d WIMS
INLINQV/S3ISSVd 100d WIMS
$334 SAILMIDV4 NYvd
S11S0d3a ¥3IWO0LSND
$3IDIAY3S YO4 IDYVHD

$334 LNIHSINYVYO 44143HS
10Y¥1NOD 504

$334 S,44143HS

$334 TIVr

¥3AN343a°and-1D 3o1snr
$334 YOLVOILSIANI DA

$334 1¥NOD 3DILSNF

$334 14N0D 1D141SIa
V1S31-C 14Vd-VYSO

G134 LOVYINOD-ONITIIE
ONISNOH 1OVYLINOD Vig

334 ONII4 31VAIANYD
V1531 -T 14Vd-VSO

$334 ddV ISN3IDI1 SSINISNG
NOISSIWINOD/S334 HOSSISSY
TVIYLSNANI ON3Y JOHVL
$334 Y3a¥0D3Y

$334 AING 431D

$334 431D

000-Z08v€-T00
000-8T9YE-T00
000-609Y€-T00
000-C09%€-T00
000-T09¥€-T00
000-7T¥vE-T00
000-CTEPE-T00
000-60€¥€-100
000-v0EVE-T00
000-Z0EVE-T00
000-TOEYE-T00
000-S¥¢vE-T00
000-TTZvE-T00
000-¥0Zv€-T00
000-00C€-T00
00Z-6TTYE-T00
000-6TTPE-T00
000-8TTvE-T00
000-0TTYE-T00
00¢-80T¥E-T00
000-20T¥E-T00
000-70Tv€-T00
00S-Z0TYE-T00
000-Z0T¥E-T00
LLT-TOTYE-T00
000-TOTYE-T00

S3DINY3S HO4 SIDYVH) - vE :dnosoidynay

:ONIANNS TVLNIWNYIAODYILNI - €€ :dnos9idynay (ej0L

XV1 3937AIYd HIA YO1LOW
1420S

1422 JIsva

3LVLIS-HOVEAVd OT'T LLdY
3LV1S - ISNIDJM ONIANVO
XV.L¥0Nnon

XV131134V9ID
INIWIOVYNVYIN ADN3IOHIN3I
SINVYD Tv¥3Q34

000-605€€-T00
000-Z0SEE-T00
000-90S€€-T00
000-505€€-T00
000-v0S€E-T00
000-€0SEE-T00
000-C0SEE-T00
ZvT-00vEE-T00
000-00¥€€-T00

J3quiny unNoYy

Hoday uosuedwo) 198png



G jo € abed

WV +€:05:8 2Z0Z/9/S

%666~ 00°6€9'STET- 09°ZYZ'T98°0Z 09°I889LI'EZ  0S'9T8'VI6'LT  TT'VEG'LIG'ET  LO'6TL'060°0T
%666~ 00°6€9'STE'T- 09°ZYT'198°0Z 09°I889LI'ET  0S9Z8VI6'LT TTVEG'LIG'ET  LO'6TL'060°0T
%96°€ 00°000°€T 00°S90TVE 00°5908Z€ 00°0S€°S2T £8906T¥9 €9°059°8LT
%000 000 000 000 000 000 6LLTTT
%000 000 00°000°52 00°000°ST 000 000 000
%000 000 0000088 00°000°88 000 000 000
%000 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°00S 69°8.8 LO'6ET'8
%000 000 00°0SL 00°0SL 00°0SL 0L'T6Y°C 0v'070T
%000 000 00'000°ZT 00000ZT 00°000CT SL'8S8CE 89'€TT'ET
%000 000 00°000°0T 00"000°0Z 00°000°02 TE'LSS8S 8T'€6V'6C
%000 000 00°000°0€ 00'000°0€ 00°000°0S £¥'891°9¢ 6'STYLL
%000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 00°000°S 68 ¥SE'ETT SYYLLYT
%000 000 0000002 00°000°0T 00°00002 €Y°€9C'T9E €0°£96'00T
%000 000 000 000 00°00T 000 00,
%000 000 000 000 00°000°T 000 00°0SL
%00°0 000 00°008°8¢ 00°008'8C 00°000°8T 00'856'S¢ 00'T0v'vC
%000 000 00°ST 00°ST 000 000 ¢6°ST
%S6°0€ 00'000°€T 00°000°SS 00'000°CY 00'000CY ESPVET'ES PTTE9'6Y
%000 000 00°0009S 00°0009S 00°0009S L8'650°€ST- S6'90%'ZST-
%08°€9 00°000°08 00°00v'S02 00°00¥'SZT 00°00.STT 0S°S9L‘T8T A 74 4 14
%000 000 00°000C 00°000C 00°000C 00°'S8T 00°EVT T-
%L9°99 00°00008 00°000°002 00°000°0ZT 00°000°0CT 0S°0S59LT St'TS9'TIT
%00°0 000 000 000 00°00€ 000 000
%000 000 00'00v°C 00°00%°C 0000v°C 00'96%°C 00v9€'E
%000 000 00°000°T 00°000°T 00°000T 00'80€C 00'TSST
%000 000 000 000 000 00'92C 000
(aseasdaq) leuly anyejua) jedpngjeaol  Auapdyelol  Alandy |ejol
/ @seasnu) €202-2202 €202-2202 ze0z-1202 ¢z0z-120 1202-0202
% —328png 198png juaseq
juaied 0} 328png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

:je3o) poday

:ANN4 TYY3IN3ID - T00 -pund |B30L

:3NN3IA3Y SNOINVTIIIISIN - 9€ :dnosnidyAay |ej0)

SYNGWIZY NIV 3IDNVINSNI
a10s S1vVaN

SIGVNNVYD

SANN43Y

S311T¥N3d D11 Sng

SYA YOI¥d-ALTVYN3Id VA AV
0130 YAIFALTVYN3d TVA QY
YVY3A LN3IYYND ALTVN3d
IN3IWAVJY3IAO

Y3H1O0 - DSIN

IN3SN AINNOD B Y3INNVIS
31A¥d SNOILYNOQ/8I4INOD
SONIQTING ALNNOD - SIN3Y
ONIZVYO 4OTAVL

S3ILTVAQY - SIN3Y
SONINYV3 LS3YILNI

000-0099€-T00
000-9959€-T00
000-0559€-T00
000-0€S9€-100
000-9TS9€-T00
000-¥TS9€-T00
000-ZTS9€-T00
000-0TS9E-T00
000-9059€-T00
000-0059€-100
9€T-00v9€-T00
000-00¥9¢€-T00
000-€0¢9€-T00
000-T0¢9¢-T00
000-00¢9€-T00
000-00T9€-T00

3INNIAIY SNOINVTIIISIN - 9€ :dnoioidyaay

:$1133404 ANV SINI4 - S€ :dnoanidynsy |ezo)

7E¥GV) pund |00YdS Jusuewad
S3NI4 14N0D VT

INI4 1D1¥1SI1a
SLNWSSV/S3NI4 JTIN3ANT
1019/JISN3Y03/TYNY W3HD
Of S9JIAISS |el] 3ld

000-9TTSE-T00
000-60TSE-T00
000-Z0TSE-T00
000-€0TSE-T00
000-TOTSE-TO0
000-7%0SE-T00

S1134404 ANV S3NI4 - S€ :dnosnidynay

JaquInp 3UNo2dY

yoday uosiiedwo) 128png



001-101
COMMISSIONERS



0 T abed

WY £S:€2:0T T202/9/S

Asewwing JuNO2Y

%000 000 0000001 00°000°0T 00'000°0T 000 000
%000 000 0000002 000000 00'0009 000 000
%CT9T-  00'vTT'E- 009,91 000000 000 00'1609T 000
%LETS 00°000°0S 0000L°0TT 000009 00°000°0S 00°€08°TE 000
%000 000 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 0S'EV6'T 000
%000 T0°0- 00'00Z°€89 10°00Z°€89 00'000°20€ ¥5'929°02¢ 00'880°ST
%000 000 00°000T 00000°T 000 S6'TLE ¥¥°909°T
%00°0 000 00'00Z°T 0000Z°T 000 05926 000
%000 000 0000002 000000 00°000°9T 000 000
%000 000 0000€°T 00°00€T 00°00€ 000 000
%000 000 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 00'000°€ ¥1°'88L 89°6TE
%00°00T- TO0- 000 100 000 6v'88L°C 000
%000 000 000S8°C 00°0S8°C 00°0S¥‘T ¥8°9v0°C 85°590C
%000 000 0000Z‘T 00°00Z°T 00°0SC 000 000
%000 000 0000S°T 00°00S'T 0000S°T 006 vL 7T
%000 000 00'00v‘TT 00°00t‘TT 00°0SLY 0L°£89°€ 00°06T
%000 000 00'0S6°€ 000S6°€ 000 98°6¢S 00°TL6
%00°0 T0°0- 00°009°€Y T0°009°cY 00°0006T TLL98T 000
%00°0 000 00006y 00006t 00'000% TTLSO'E 6v'9LT'Y
%00°0 000 00°000T 00°000T 00°000°T TT¥9 76'16C
%8T°1T 00°Stv‘C 00'TEV60T 00°98690C 00°8v€20T Y0'TY9‘6€T 6v° 0T 69T
%€0'T9-  00'620T- 00°£S9 00'989'T 00629°T LLYET 000
%S9°T- 00'6L- 00'6TLY 00'86L"Y 00'SS8'Y 67°'80Y'E ETEE6'E
%00t~ 00 T¥6'E- 00°ZvSv6 00'€8t86 0069068 06°'T€6'9S 0Z°'€0L9L
%ST0 00'9¢ 00'Z€T'LT 0090Z°LT 00°0£09T 77°700'8 9/°99v°L
%188 00'89YL 00°182°C6 00°€T8V8 00°'S2L'06 98'¥9T1'TL 0v'T00'T8
%S9°T- 00°L9%°S- 00°LYY'STE 00'v16°0€€ 00°0S8‘vEE Y0€LSTVT SL°868°8LT
%00°0 000 000€6'Y 000€6'v 00626 ISTV9'y 07°6689
%89°T- 00°L9%°S- 00°L15°0C€E 00't86'SCE 00'TZ6°62€ €5°0€6°LET SS'666°TLT

(aseasaq) |euly ELV L TET 193png |e101 Aingoy [eroL Aoy |ejo)

/ @seasnu| €202-2202 €202-220T T20z-1202 2202-1202 T20Z-020C

% 1o3png 193png juased
juased 03 @8png

T uosuedwo)

yoday uosiiedwo) 198png

1 uosuedwo)

ALID VINIDYIA
3SS3SSY LON ¥31VMANNOYO
IOILVZINVYOYO ADNVAYISNOD

VANN-NMVA3-GONM-0JVN
SI9

S3DIAY3S TYNOISSII0¥d
40ddNS/SININIIYOV INIVIN
S3D1LON JNeNnd
1IN3Wd4013A3A JIWONOD3
S3YIL

135310 B SVO

WS spJoday

FYVYMLI0S ¥31LNdINOD
IN3NdIND3 ¥31NdNOD
JONVNILNIVIN OLNVY
ONINIVYL

'dI¥2s8Ns 8 S3Na

13AVYL

INOHdI13L

S311ddNS 321440

T0S-008€5-T0T-100
000-¥TTES-TOT-T00
000-T80€5-TOT-T00
000-080€5-TOT-T00
0/Z-0£0€S-TOT-100
000-0£0€5-T0T-T00
000-8¢¥0€5-TOT-T00
000-Cv0ES-TOT-T00
000-T¥0€5-TOT-100
000-0v0€S-TOT-100
000-S€0€5-TOT-T00
000-7€0€S-TOT-T00
000-€€0€5-TOT-T00
000-60€5-T0T-T00
000-¥TOES-TOT-T00
000-€T0€S-TOT-T00
000-CT0ES-TOT-T00
000-TTOES-TOT-T00

SISN3IdX3 TYNOILYYHIJO - 0€S :Tdnosnidydx3

:S1143IN39 IONIYA - 026 :Tdnosnidydx3 |e3oy

ALI¥NDI3SIVIDOS
JYVOIdIN
JONVINSNI HLTV3H
10vd

Sd3d

000-¥T0¢5-T0T-T00
000-€T0¢S-TOT-T00
000-¢T0¢S-TOT-T00
000-0T0ZS-TOT-T00

S1143IN38 IONIY4 - 025 :Tdno1nidydx3
:3SN3IdX3 103410 AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnoinidydx3 |e3ol

ALIAIONOT
SIOVM B S3IIVIVS

000-0¢0TS-T0T-T00
000-0T0TS-101-100

3SN3IdX3 103410 AYVYTVS - 0TS :Tdnoinidydx3
SYINOISSIWINOD - TOT :3uawiedaq

J3qWINp JuUNo2Y

ALNNOD A3YOLS




v 0 7 3bed

WY £S:€Z:0T 2202/9/S

%LETT-  €0°9YT'8LLT- 00 TLI'TYS9  €0°LIV'6TE'S  00°6LE'€88'Y  6L'TLE'8TT'Y  90°8L9'ELY
%LETT-  €0°9YT'8LLT- O00TLI'TPS9  €0°LIV'6TE'S  00°6LE'€E88'Y  6LTLE'8TT'Y  90'8L9€LY
%10°8Z- 00°000'7Z8‘T- 00°000°€89‘v  00°000°S0S'9  00°000°88S‘E  00°000‘T6T'E  00°0
%000 000 00°000'S0T 00°000°S0T 00°000°0TT 0000528 000
%00°0S  00°000°00S 00°000°00S'T  00°000°000'T  00°000°000‘T  00°000°0S. 000
%000 000 00°000°00% 00°000°00t 00°000°00% 00°000°00€ 000
%00°0S-  00°000°005'Z- 00°000°00SC  00°000°000°'S  00°000°000'C  00°000°000'CT 000
%000 000008 00°000'8L 000 00°000'8L 00°005'8S 000
%000 00°000°00T 00°000°00T 000 000 000 000
%00°0 000 00°LTL'SYE 00°LTL'SYE 00°'TE6'€6T vL99T'L9T L6°TVL
%000 000 000 000 00°000°0T 000 000
%00°0 000 00°LTL'VEE 00°LTL'VEE 00°TE68LT 19°00%'S92 000
%000 000 00°000'TT 00°000°TT 00°000°S €1°99LT L6TYL
%E0°S L6'SLLIY 00°9L5°LL6 £0°008°0€6 00°0SZ'v9Y £6'685'88C S8'TE6'VT
%00°0 000 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 000 000
%00°0 000 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 000 000
%000 000 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 00°000°0T T€'886'T 000
(asea1d3q) leuty angeud) @dpngejor Auandyjelol  Alapov jeloL
/ @seanu| €202-220C £202-2202 2202-1202 2202-1202 1202-0202
% 1o8png 198png jualed
jualed 03 123png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

:|eyo) 1oday
:SYINOISSININGD - TOT :3udwisedaq (e10)

1$3D¥NOS ONIDNVYNI4 YIHLO - 0LS :Tdnosoidydx3 jejo)
S¥3did OL ¥3IISNVYL 000-TECZS-TOT-T00
MIVEAVd 1YL OL ¥IISNVYL 000-8¢CZS-T0T-T00
SAVOY OL ¥34SNVYL 000-G¢¢Z5-TOT-1T00
)30M4d TVLIdVD OL ¥IISNVYL 000-v¢¢/S-TOT-100
“LIW 943NI OL 43I4SNVYL 000-€¢¢ZS-TOT-100
SINVYD OL ¥I4SNVYL 000-0T¢ZS-TOT-100

SIDUNOS ONIINVNIF YIHLO - 0LS :Tdnosnidydx3

:SNOINVYTIIISIN - 095 :Tdnosoidydx3 [ejo)
318110NA3Q 3IDNVYNSNI 000-¢0995-T0T-100
WNIW3Yd IDNVUNSNI 000-00995-T0T-100
SNO3INVTIIDSIN 000-00595-TOT-T00
SNO3INVYTI3DSIN - 095 :Tdnosoidydxy

:SISN3dX3 TYNOILYYIdO - 0€S :Tdno1nidydx3 [ejo)

aooMID01 ¥05-008€S-10T-T00
NIVML XYV €05-008€S-TOT-T00
SANVIHOIH DA ¢05-008¢€S-T0T-100

JaquinN 3unoldy

uoday uosiiedwo) 198png



001-102
CLERK / TREASURER



#S 10 € abed

WY 6t:8%:8 2202/9/S

%06°0- 00°590°S- 00°STZ‘8SS 00°082°€9S 00°L0€'98S 85 8EE'0EY ¥S'ZEEV09
%000 000 00°000°0€ 00°000°0€ 00°000°0€ 8€'E8E'ST E€V°6SETY
%000 000 00°000'0€ 00°000°0€ 00°000°0€ 8E'EBE'ST EV'6SETY
%05°8 00°2ZE0‘ET 00°Z0€°99T 00'0L2'€ST 00°S9T°0ST v6°0T8'T0T 2T°0vSZ8T
%000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 00°000'S ST°£09 000
%000 000 00°000°ST 00°000°ST 00°000'ST Z0'€E09T 9L'T89'ET
%000 000 00°0€Z 00°0€T 00°STC pT°916'S v¥'SL0°8
%000 000 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 00"000°0T TTT9v'1T 167858
%000 000 00'000°SZ 00'000°SZ 00'000°ST 6L°€06°LT 68'2TZ79
%9T'EVT'T 00°ZEQ'ET 00'ZLT'VT 00°0YT'T 00°0S6 S9'v79'8 ST'986
%00°0 000 00'002°C 0000TC 00002°C 000 L0°S66
%000 000 000 000 000 000 v9°LTC
%000 000 00°000°ST 00°000°ST 00'000'ST 0€'TZ9'TT LY YEGYT
%000 000 00000t 00'000'Y 00'000t S6'Y90°E ¥€'520C
%000 000 00°00Z°S 00'00Z°s 00°00Z's YT E9TY EV'L6T'E
%00°0 000 00'000°C 00°000C 00°000C 000 00'6Z€ET
%000 000 00°000°0S 00°000°0S 00°000°0S vL Ly8ST T8y Y
%000 000 00'008°T 00°008‘T 00'000'T 6S'TCIC 66'668
%000 000 00000 00'000°€ 00'000°€ S8 69°'vv6
%000 000 00°00L 00°00Z 00°009 88'97S €9'6€0'T
%000 000 00°000°S 00°000'S 00°000°S 08'690'C S6°02Z'e
%000 000 00'000°8 00'000°8 000009 YT'v68L 85°00L'8
%ES'TT-  00°L60°ST- 00°S/8'8ET 00°2L6°9ST 00°£Z6'T9T 1922911 £€°629°0VT
%00°0 000 00'697T 00'69¢°T 000 6£°0C LS°00€
%000 000 00'vET'E 00'vE€T'E 00'TvS’e 98'¥59°C 87912’
%96°CC-  00°L608T- 00'9TL'09 00°€T8'8L 00°S0T°0L 9€'00€9Y TSEESTI
%000 000 00'0v0vT 00°0v0vT 00'8t8°91T S£°002°S 9€'v789
%000 000 00'919°6S 00'9T9°6S 00'€EY'TL S8'SYYLS 09'vS.L'89
%000 00°0 00°8€0°€Z¢ 00°8€0°€Z¢ 00'STZ'vvT S9°1Z5'861 95°€08'6€C
%000 000 00T 00T 00'2LT'vT ¥£'088°6 TSVSEYT
%000 000 000 000 000 8v°99 000
%000 000 00°L£0°€CT 00°££0°€CT 00°€v6'6CC Ev'v/L5'88T S0'6YY'STT

(aseanaq) |eutd 2AneuR) 193png |e30L Aoy jgol  Ajanoy jesol

/ @seanu| €202-2207 €202-T20¢ 20z-120T 220zZ-1202 T202Z-0202

% 198png 128png juaieq
juaied 0} 198png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

2HIWNSYIYL NYITD - 20T Juawiiedaq |e3oy

*SNOANVTIIDSIN - 095 :Tdnounidydx3 je3oy

SANN43Y

000-0£595-20T-T00

SNOANVTIIISIN - 095 :TdnosDIdydx3

:SISN3dX3 TYNOILVYIdO - 0€S :Tdnosnydydxg jejo)

SIINLXIH ANV 3YNLINGNS
S3DIAY3S TYNOISS3I104d
40ddNS/SLININIIYOV INIVIN
S3DILON D1and
INIWIOVNVIN Q¥0D3Y
FIVYMLIOS ¥3LNdNOD
IN3NdIND3 ¥3LNdINOD
6TAINOD -SIOYVHI NNV
S39UVHD MNVE

ONINIVYL

S3SV31 ANV SINIY
FDNVNILNIVIN LNIINdIND3
3ISN3dX3 NOILD313
'dl¥2sans ¥ sana

TIAVEL

INOHd313L

S311ddNS 301440

39V1S0d

000-7Z0€5-¢0T-100
000-0£0€5-¢0T-T00
000-650€5-¢0T-T00
000-8%0€S-COT-T00
000-S€0€5-C0T-T00
000-7€0€5-20T-100
000-€£0€5-20T-100
619-T€0£5-COT-100
000-T€0€S-20T-T00
000-6¢0€5-20T-T00
000-9T0€5-20T-T00
000-5T0€5-20T-T00
000-¥T0€5-20T-100
000-€T0ES-C0T-T00
000-CT0€S-COT-T00
000-TT0€5-20T-T00
000-0T0€5-20T-T00

S3ISN3dX3 TYNOILYYIHO - 0€S :Tdnoinidydx3

S114IN38 IONIYS - 0ZS :Tdnosnidydx3 |eyo)

ALIYND3IS TIVID0S
3Y¥VOIA3N
IDNVINSNI H1TV3H
10vd

Sd3d

000-vT0¢5-C0T-T00
000-€T0ZS-C0T-T00
000-CT0¢S-20T-T00
000-TT0¢5-20T-100
000-0T0¢S-20T-100

S1133IN38 IONIYA - 026 :Tdnosnidydxg
:3SN3dX3 1D3Y10 AYVIVS - 016 :Tdnoinidydx3 jejop

ALIAIONOT
JWILY3A0
SIOVM 8 SIYVIVS

000-0¢015-¢0T-T00
000-TT01S-20T-T00
000-0TOTS-20T-T00

3ISN3dX3 1D3H1Q AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnosnidydxy
YIYNSYIYUL HYIDD - 20T :uswedsg

J3quINN Junoddy

Moday uosuedwo) 328png



001-103
RECORDER



S 40 t abed

WY 6+:8%:8 2202/9/S

%00°0 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°00S 20°98¢€ €1°9C
%000 000 00005 00°00S 00°00S 20°98€ €1°9C
%000 000 00°000°€8 00°000°€8 00°00V'LY $9°891°CC 06°965°LT
%00°0 000 000009 00°0009 00°0009 v6'881 STTIET
%000 000 00°000C 00°000'C 00°000C STIVT 00°'SL
%000 000 00°000°€T 00°000°€T 00°000°ZT L9°6L8'6 Tv°'98€'6
%000 000 0000002 00°000°0T 00°000C PS'EEET 8°85C
%000 000 00°008°C 00°008C 00°008°C 80°66'T 78591
%00°0 000 00°005°C 00°005°C 00°000C 000 000
%000 000 00°000°S 00°000'S 00°000°€ 00°L0E'T 09'298°C
%000 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°00S 000 000
%00°0 000 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 00°000°€ S.°888'T SS°ShL9
%000 000 00°000C 00°000C 00°000C 67°6€S'T 9v'867°T
%00°0 000 00°00T°8T 00°00T‘8T 00°000'% 00°0v8 000
%00°0 000 00°008‘T 00°008‘T 00°008°T 9908 05'SPE
%00°0 000 00°000°T 00°000T 00°000'T 68°78% $6°92L
%000 000 00°005°C 00°005°C 00°00S°C TLS6E 000
%00°0 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°00S 98°17T 8v°€9€
%000 000 00°00S‘T 00°005°T 00°00S'T 06'E€LET SE'6TS'T
%000 000 00008 00008 00°008 60°'TET S0'81S
%8T'T- 00°022°C- 00°LST‘S6 00°LLE'L6 00°29€'v6 ¥9°0L8°6S LY'YLL'ES
%000 000 00'645C 00'6L5C 00'T¥¥C L6°€EL9'T 6€'SS0T
%0 - 00'vSET- 007TTCE 00'9LY€EE 00'TTEZE SO'STT'6T 07'S9YT€
%IE 6" 00'998- 00vTt'8 00°062'6 00'2LE°0T 70'80S°€ LT6Y6Y
%00°0 000 00'2€0°TS 00'2€0CS 00'8€T'6Y 09°€L5°S€E TLV0E'S
%00°0 000 00°L88°LLT 00°£88°LLT 00'vEE'89T S€'S88°0CT 6L°876'SST
%000 000 00782t 0028’y 000 000 000
%000 000 000 000 000 000 08'90T
%000 000 00'S09°€LT 00°S09°€LT 00 ¥EE'89T SE°G88°0CT 66'T78°SST

(aseaiaq) Jeuly EI U] e8pngeiol  Awapoy el Auanoy jelop

/ @seanu) £€202-2202 £202-220T 2202-1202 2202-1202 1202-0202

% 193png 198png jualed
juaied 0} 198png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

:SNOINVTIIISIW - 095 :TdN0JDIdYdxX] |ejoL

SNO3NVTI3DSIN

000-00595-€0T-100

SNO3INVTIIDSIN - 095 :Tdnoinidydx3
:S3ISN3dX3 TYNOILYYIJO - 0€S :Tdnounidydx3 jejol

NOILVAY3ISI¥d/NOILYHOLSIY
S3DIAY3S TVNOISSII0Yd
SIN3INIIYOV INIVIN
LIN3IWIOVNVIN Q¥0D3Y
JYYML0S ¥3LNdNOD
LIN3IWJIND3 ¥3LNdWOD
ONINIVYL

$3SV3I1 ANV SINIY

W14

39VH0LS W14

ONIddVIN

IDONVNILNIVIAN ININDIND3I
*d1¥2saNs 18 sand

13AVYL

INOHd3IIL

$317ddNS 321440

39V1S0d

000-6£0€5-€0T-T00
000-0Z0€5-€01-100
000-650€5-€0T-T00
000-S€0€5-€0T-T00
000-7E€0€S-€0T-T00
000-€€0€5-€0T-100
000-620€5-€0T-100
000-£Z0€S-€0T-T00
000-6T0€5-€01-100
000-8T0ES-€0T-T00
000-ZTOES-€0T-T00
000-7TOES-€0T-T00
000-€TOES-€0T-100
000-CT0£S-€0T-T00
000-TTOES-€0T-T00
000-0T0€S-€0T-100

S3SN3IdX3 TYNOILYY3IdO - 0€S :Tdnoinidydx3

:§1143IN38 IDONIYS - 0ZS :TdnosDIdydx3 [e30L

FYVIIQ3IN
3JONVINSNI HLTV3IH
10vd

Sd3d

000-€T0CS-€0T-T00
000-TT0ZS-€0T-T00

S1133N38 IDNIYA - 02S :TdnoDidydx3

:3SN3dX3 103410 AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnosnidydx3 jejoL

ALIAIONO1
awiuan0

SIOVM B SIYVIVS

000-0C0TS-€0T-100
000-TTOTS-€0T-T00
000-0TOTS-€0T-T00

3ISN3dX3 1D341a AYYIVS - 0TS :Tdnoanidydx3

¥3QYO0I3Y - £0T 3udwnedaq

J3QWINN JUNOJDY

yoday uosuedwo) 338png



G Jo G abed

WV 6v:8+:8 2Z02/9/S

%29°0- 00°022°C- 00°vvS‘9SE 00'9L°8S€E 00°96S‘0T€ 0£°918v0Z 1Z'vSE‘892
%00°0 000 000 00°0 00°0 S0°90S‘T 26°L20°T
%000 000 000 000 000 S0'905T 76°LT0T
(asea103q) leuly anyejuaL @3png |le3ol  Alapovielol  Alapdy |ejol
/ @seainu| €202-220¢ €202-720C z20z-120¢ ze0z-120¢ 1202-0202
% 13dpng 193png jualey
jualed 03 198png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

:43Q¥0D03Y - €0T ‘uawnedaq |ejoL

1019 - 0v9 :1dnounydydx3 |e3o)
1IN3INGIND3 ¥3LNdWOD 000-09T1¥9-€0T-T00
09 - 09 :Tdnoinidydxy

JaquInp 3uNodYy

uoday uosiiedwo) 198png



001-104
ASSESSOR



S 40 9 abed

WY 6v:8%:8 220Z/9/S

%8T°TT-  00'vET‘8S- 00°2T8T9Y 00°9%0‘TZS 00°L2198Y €¥°60v'78C 6€°L8LLIE
%0L0T-  00°CEO‘ET- 00°€9L°80T 00°S6L‘TZT 00°0TL‘L8 6€°TOL'ET T0°LL6'6Y
%000 000 000 000 000 000 00'98S‘T
%00°0 000 00°000°€L 00°000°€L 00°000°€L ST'8T0'ST 0S°0€€0Y
%000 000 00°009°T 00'009°T 00'008 €7'856 95°09L
%00°0 000 00°009 00°009 000 000 000
%000 000 00°0SS 00°0SS 00°0SS ¥6'99T 19°€2€
%00°0 000 00°00€ 00°00€ 00°00€ 000 05792
%00'8€-  00°CEOET- 00°€92°12 00'S67vE 00°0vT'T €9°026 ST'790T
%00°0 000 00°00€ 00°00€ 00°00€ 0092 6Ty
%00°0 000 00°000C 00°000C 00°000C 00°06% 00°'SLS
%00°0 000 00°0S0°T 00°0S0'T 00°020'T 0¥'8T0T ST¥I0T
%000 000 000 000 00°009 0v'¥9S 0v'¥9S
%00°0 000 00°0S8 00058 00°0SL LL°8€8 88'09.
%00°0 000 00°002°T 00°002‘T 00'00Z‘T 16'9SC AR 143
%00°0 000 00°052°T 00'0S2'T 00°0S2°T 5226 90°€TET
%000 000 00°00€T 00°00€T 00°00€T v €6C ¥€'S€9
%00°0 000 00°00S°€ 00°00S°€ 00°005°€ 88'62C'C ov'LTt
%6¥'ST-  00'vLT'ST- 00'8T6°LET 00°Z6T€9T 00'899°9ST 78°59L88 8T°ZSO'ETT
%000 00'€TET 00'E€TET 000 000 19°0CY 000
%bv8- 00'68¢- 00'vET'E 00°€Z¥'E 00'50S°€ 0°L0v'T SY'LT6'C
%EV'8T-  00°0S9'VT- 0007819 00°06%'6L 00'6TC'TL SOPTE'EE STY60'SY
%00°0 000 00°ZETTT 002€ETTT 00°CET'TT TTI8Y'Y S0'9t0°S
%L8°9T-  008Y9'TT- 00'66€°LS 00°L¥0'69 00°CTL0L €6°TYT8Y €v'¥86°6S
%vv 8- 00°876°6T- 00'TET'9TT 00'650°9€C 00°6¥LT¥T TTIV6'691 02'8SL'v0T
%00°0 000 00'2LT'VT 00°2LTYT 00'2LT'YT SS'ZE0TT ¥0°L06°TT
%000 000 000 000 000 I¥'680°T 000
%668~ 00'826°6T- 00'658'T0C 00°£8L°TTT 00°LLY'LTT 97'618°9ST 9T'IS8'T6T

(aseanaq) leuly angejud) je8png g0l Auandy jelol  Anandy jejor

/ @seanu| €202-2202 €202-2202 2202-1202 2202-1202 1202-0202

% 193png 393png jualed
juaied 03 123png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

:YOSSISSY - #OT :3udwisedaq je3ol

:§3SN3dX3 TYNOILYY3dO - 0€S :TdnosD3dydx3 je3oy

S3YNLXI4 ANV JYNLINYNS
S3DIAY3S TYNOISSI40dd
40ddNS/SLININIFYOV INIVIN
S3D1LON DInand

135310 B SVO

SIWYO4INN

FHVMLI0S ¥31LNdINOD
FDNVNILINIVIN OLNV
ONINIVYL

SIMSBTIVHSYVYIN 008 4SSV
ONILNIYd

d1¥2saNns ® s3ana

TIAVYL

3INOHd313L

S317ddNS 301440

39V1SOd

000-¢Z0€S-¥0T-T00
000-0Z0€5-¥0T-T00
000-650€5-¥0T-100
000-8¥0€5-70T-T00
000-0v0€5-¥0T-T00
000-6€0€5-¥0T-T00
000-¥€0€S-¥0T-T00
000-0€0€5-¥0T-T00
000-620€5-¥0T-T00
000-TZ0€S¥0T-T00
000-0¢0€S-¥0T-T00
000-¥TOES-¥0T-T00
000-€TOES-¥0T-T00
000-CT0ES-¥0T-100
000-TT0€S-¥0T-T00
000-0T0€S-¥0T-100

S3ISN3dX3 TYNOILYYIdO - 0€S :Tdnoinidydx3
:S1143N39 IONIYS - 075 :TdnosDIdydx3 jejo)

ALI4ND3IS TVIDOS
JYVOIA3IN
IDNVYNSNI H1TV3H
10vd

SY3d

000-%T0¢S-¥0T-T00
000-€T0¢S-¥0T-T00
000-¢T0¢S-¥0T-T00
000-TT0¢S-¥0T-T00
000-0T0¢S-¥0T-100

S1143IN39 IONIYS - 0TS :Tdnoinidydx3

:3SN3dX3 103410 AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnoinidydx3 |ejo)

ALIA3ONOT
JWILY3IAO
SIOVM B SIIIVIVS

000-0¢0TS-¥0T1-100
000-TTOTS-¥0T-100
000-0TOTS-¥0T-100

3ISN3dX3 173410 AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnoinidydx3

YOSSISSY - vOT Judwedaq

J3qWINp 3UN02Y

Joday uosiedwo) 128png



001-105
ADMINISTRATIVE



G Jo 1 9bed

WV 8+:£2:01 2202/9/S

%000 00°000°0T 0000001 000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 000 000 000 000
%000 000 00008 00°008 00°0S¢ 19'68¢€ ¥6'85C
%000 000 00000C 00000 00000°T 8S°LTS SE'SLL
%00 ov'o 008ET'T 09°LET'T 00°0st [4%:$74 P'6€S0T
%000 000 00°00S‘T 00°00S‘T 00°0S0°T 000 08'TS
%000 000 000 000 00°000% 00°0T9°C SL'868C
%000 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°00S 000 000
%000 000 00"000°S 00°000°S 000269 66'79Z'T 00°08€y
%000 000 000 000 000 000 i 66'TT
%000 000 000 000 00°000°€ 000 000
%00°00T- ¢O0'0- 000 200 00°000C 000 000
%000 000 000 000 000 8T1°GET 000
%000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 00°000'S TET6TL ov'LT6
%000 000 00"00S‘€ 00°00S‘€ 00°000°€ 0E'vhL'E TEVIYS
%0070 000 000009 00°0009 000009 80'8¢ 6v°'E6
%000 000 00°000'ST 00°000°ST 00°000'ST 80'Z¥99T L9°¥88°LT
%000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 00°000'S €8°09t'C 9€°I8T'E
%000 000 00'000'T 00°000‘T 00'000°T L6°T9 2z'60¢e
%16°0- 00°TL6C- 00°vL8TZE 00°S¥8'vIE 00°8€8°082 80°LL9VTT 09°9€9°88¢
%000 000 00°000°0%¢ 00°000°0tT 00000002 9%°769'8€T €E€'E8E08T
%000 000 000 000 000 LO'6E6 68'801'T
%E9'Y 00'8CT 00168 00°€9LC 00'689°C 08'v97C STTET'SE
%S9°C- 00°ZvS- 00°£LE6'6T 00°6Lt°0C 00'TST'8T YT SLYTT 8L°'9t8°9€
%C9°0T- 00'tv€6- 002982 00'96.8 002498 LT'€S0L L6'TLOTT
%L0°E- 00°€79'T- 00v8T'TS 00°£08°CS 00'TZETS A EATA 47 8E'E6L'SS
%S9V 009988 00'v0v'66T 00°8€S°061 00'8SY°SST 20°20L'v9T 98'66€°LTT
%0070 000 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 0000001 T1°2¢€ 96'T¥8
%16V 009988 00'v0v‘68T 00'8€S°08T 00°8St'SLT 16'69Y'¥9T 06°L55'92¢

(eseasdaq) leuyy annejud) edpngelol  Auapdy|elol  AAndy (3oL

/ 3seanu| €202-2202 €202-2202 [4{\raavdira ¢20T-1202 1202-020¢

% 123png 128png juaseg
juaied 0} 198png

AJewwing JUNOJJY

1 uosuedwo)

1oday uosuiedwo) 193png

T uosuedwo)

SAIQ-HLTV3IH TVINIW

000-€¥0€S-S0T-T00

SIL 000-T¥0€S-S0T-T00

135310 8 SVYO 000-0¥0€5-50T-100
AIN3IW3IOVNVIN G¥40D3Y 000-G€0€5-50T-100
JYVYMLI0S ¥3LNdNOD 000-7€0€5-50T-T00
AIN3IWdIND3 ¥31NdWOD 000-€€0€S-S0T-T00
SIDYVHD MNVE 000-T€0€S-S0T-T00
IDNVNILNIVIN OLNY 000-0€0€5-50T-100
ONINIVYL 000-6¢0€5-S0T-T00

V113Q-S3SV31 ANV SIN3Y
S3SV3T ANV SINIY

€TT-£T0ES-SOT-T00
000-£20€S-S0T-T00

SYIvd3y 000-9¢0€5-50T-100

S3iLnin 000-C¢0€5-S0T-T00

3IDNVNILNIVIN LINIWIND3I 000-9T0EG-S0T-T00
"d1¥2sSaNs B sina 000-7T0ES-G0T-100

13AVYL 000-€T0ES-G0T-100

3INOHd313L 000-¢T0ES-G0T-100

$311ddNS 321440 000-TTOES-S0T-T00

39V1S0d 000-0T0ES-S0T-T00

S3SN3dX3 TYNOILYYIdO - 0€S :Tdnounidydx3

:S1133N38 IONIYS - 02S :TdnoinIdydx3 B30y

AYVIQISaNS SNI 334113Y

000-910¢S-S0T-T00

ALIYND3S TVID0S 000-¥10C5-S0T-100
IYVYIIQ3IN 000-€T0¢5-G0T-100
IDNVYNSNI HLITVIH 000-¢T0Z5-G0T-T00
10vd 000-TT0ZS-S0T-T00

SY3d 000-0T0¢S-50T-T00

SL1I43IN39 IONIY4 - 02§ :Tdnosnidydx3

:3SN3IdX3 1031 AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnosnidydx3 je3o)

JNILI3INO
SIOVM B SIVIVS

000-TT0TS-S0T-T00
000-0TOTS-S0T-T00

3ISN3dX3 103410 AYYIVS - 0TS :Tdnosidydx3
JALLVHLSININGY - SOT :juawedaq

J13quWINN 3UN0Y

ALNNOD AJHOLS




[T

0 7 abed

WY 8b:£Z:0T1 2202/9/S

%00°0 000 000 000 000 000 00°000°009
%000 000 000 000 000 000 00°000°00%
%000 000 000 000 000 000 00°0000S
%00°0 00°0 00°000'ST 00°000°ST 00°000°6 82°vS8°C TZ9ELEVT
%000 000 000 000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 000 00°000°S 000 000
%000 000 00°000°'S 00°000°S 000 000 €S°LYSTVT
%000 000 000 000 000 000 SSC9T
%000 000 00°000°0T 00'000°0T 00000t 8T vS8°T €1°920'T
%00°0 00°000°€T 00°000‘€T 000 00°00T‘9T €6°68L‘9 Tv9Lb‘9
%000 000 000 000 00°000°ST SY'v0E‘E I¥'90€'9
%000 000 000 000 00°009 8Y'S8Y'E 00°0LT
%000 000 000 000 00°00S 000 000
%000 00°000°0T 0000001 000 000 000 000
%000 00°000°€ 00'000°€ 000 000 000 000
%C6°E 8€°000°TT 00°8£8°T6T 79°L48°08T 00°0T€2LT 8T'vLS'00T £0°060892
%000 000 000 000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 000 000 000 00'006TT
%000 000 000 000 000 TSLLY'T v OIET
%000 000 000 000 000008 00'6vv'€ 0S°LISY
%000 000 000 000 000 000 00°€0T'S€E
%000 000 00°00L 00°00£ 00°00L 97°09 000
%000 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°000'T 000 000
%000 000 000 000 000 0S'€0v 058698
%000 000 000 000 000 000 STIYT'T
%000 000 00°0000L 00°000°0L 00°000°0€ 0S'98YTT 000
%000 000 000 000 000 000 75949C
%000 000 00°0v9CST 00°0v9°ZST 00'0v9°LLT €L°989°LYy 65 EEV VYT
%000 000 000 000 000 000 000
%000 000 00°009°0T 00°009°0T 00'000T €9°56 SL18E
%000 00°000T 00°000°T 000 000 000 000

(aseasnaq) leuly angejua) 1e8pngejor  Auapdvjelol  Auanoy [elor

/ @seasnu| €202-220C €202-2202 [4{\r4d v{1r4 cToz-120z 1202-0202

% 193png 198png juaieq
juaied 03 193png
T uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

ADVEAV 141 OL 434SNVYL
SAVOY OL ¥Y34SNVYL
"LIW OY3N3 OL1 434SNYYL

000-8¢¢/£S-S0T-T00
000-5¢¢/S-S0T-T00
000-€¢¢/S-SOT-TO0

S3DYNOS ONIDNVNIL YIHLO - 0£S :Tdnoinidydxg

:SNOINVITIISIN - 095 :Tdnosnidydx3 [e3oL

3AY3S3Y INIWITLLIS
378110NA30 IONVINSNI
WNIW34d 3DNVINSNI
AYVSSININOD
SNO3INVIIIDSIN

000-0T995-50T-T00
000-20995-S0T-T00
000-00995-50T-T00
000-90595-50T-T00
000-00595-50T-T00

SNO3NVTIIDSIA - 095 :Tdnosnidydxg
:INJWNYIAOD TVHINIO - 0vS :Tdnounidydxg |e3oL

ANN4 AL34VS

STVIISAHd - 1vJI1Q3N
S3ddNS LNIW3IDYO4N3I
SAIQ-AINYOLLY 1D114NOD
SAIQ-SSINLIM 1¥3dX3

000-9T€¥S-S0T-T00
000-STEVS-SOT-T00
000-60€¥5-S0T-100
000-2¥Z¥S-S0T-T00
000-9%¢vS-50T-T00

LININYIAOD T1VYINID - 0pS :Tdnoinidydxg

SISNIdX3 TYNOLLYYHIdO - 0€S :Tdnoinidydx3 jejo)

HOLVIN - INVY9

3SSISSV LON ¥3LVMANNOYD
axmi

ONILNIYd Tv931
VANN-NMVA3-GANM-0DVN
INNOYONIVE 8 LNIYdYIONIS
SIYNLXI ANV JUNLINYNS
SNOILY13d Y08V1 3S¥3IAAV
SI9

SNOILVILO93IN NOINN
1H9I3¥4 -S334 TYNOISS340¥d
S3DIA¥3S TYNOISSIF0¥dd
SININ3IIYOV INIVIN
S3J1LON JInand
SAIQ-S3DIAY3S TVIYL 34d

000-TOvES-S0T-100
000-¥TTES-S0T-100
000-0TTES-S0T-T00
000-S80€5-S0T-T00
000-080€5-S0T-T00
000-SZ0€S-S0T-T00
000-¢Z0€5-S0T-T00
000-T£0€S-S0T-T0O0
TZT-0£0€5-S0T-T00
000-0£0€5-S0T-T00
000-650€5-S0T-T00
000-870€S-S0T-T00
000-7¥0€5-50T-100

Jaquinp unody

Hoday uosuedwo) 398png



G Jo € abed

WY 8%:£2:0T 220Z/9/S

%69°€ 8€°5686¢C 00°9ST‘T¥8 79°092'T18 00'90L€9L 66568V ST'6EE'E6TC
%69 8€°S68°6C 00'9STT¥8 79'09Z°T18 00°90L°€9L 6v°L6568Y ST'6EE'E6T'T
%00°0 000 000 00°0 00°0 00°0 00'000°65T‘T
%000 000 000 000 000 000 00°000°60T
(aseasdeq) |euiq aAneudy 198png |e10L Aanoy |e3o0) Aanoy |gr01
/ aseasnu| €202-2202 €202-220¢ 7202-120C 220z-120C T202-020T
% 123png 398png jualed
juaied 031 198png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

:|e3o) yoday
:IALLVYLSININGY - SOT :3udwisedaq [e30L

:$304NOS ONIDNVNIL HIH1O0 - 045 :Tdnosnidydx] jejoy
SY3did OL Y34SNVYL 000-T€CLS-SO0T-T00
JaquINN 3uUNo2dY

Moday uosiedwo) 338png



001-106
BUILDING & GROUNDS



WV §2:20:8 2202/6/S

Alewiwing JUuN0JJY

T uosuedwo)

11oday uosiiedwo) 123png

T uosuedwo)

ALNNOD A3YOLS

%6L°T 00°00S'L 00°000°LZ¥ 00°00S‘6TV 00'v62°€8¢ ¥0'vZEL9T 9€'8ZE‘€9 :S3SN3IdX3 TYNOILYYH3IdO - 0€S :Tdnoinydydx3 jejoy
%000 000 00°005 00°00S 00°00S 00°00¢ 000 SIYNLXI4 '8 IYNLINYNS 000-¢Z0€5-90T-T00
%000 000 00°006 00°006 00006 11°880°T SEY09C SINIWIIYOV INIVIN 000-650£5-90T-100
%79'6 00°005°L 00°005'S8 00°000°8L 00°000°€S 9£'799v€ 6v°871°0C JDNVNILNIVIN ONIQTING 000-250€5-90T-T00
%000 000 00009°C 00°009°C 00'85t'C 09'STT'T 08°718°T AYANNV1 000-€50€5-901-100
%000 000 00°000°0S 00°000°0S 000 000 000 SLHOINL3IYLS 000-8€0€5-901-100
%000 000 00°00T'8 00°00T‘8 00°089't 15°0LT'Y 0v'818°E FYVYMLIO0S ¥3LNdINOD 000-7£0€5-90T-100
%000 000 00°000C 00°000°C 00°000C 19'789'T 65TITC LIN3GIND3 ¥31NdINOD 000-€£0£5-90T-1T00
%00°0 000 00°000% 00000t 00000 £v°'768 Yardo) ONINIVYL 000-620£5-901-100
%00°0 000 000 000 000 000 0£'GST 3SNOHLY¥YN0D 8€T-2¢0£5-901-100
%00°0 000 00°009‘T 00009°T 00'88Y'T S8°09€'T ¥0'0€S'T S3SV3IT ANV SINIY 000-£20€5-90T-100
%00°0 000 00°000°S€ 00°000'SE 00'000°S€ 76°L17'ST 09'8%S'6T $317ddNS ONILYYILO 000-¥20€5-90T-100
%00°0 000 00000022 00°000°02¢ 00°000°59T PT°€88V8T 17°598°¢ S31LniLn 000-2¢0€5-90T-T00
%000 000 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 7T'v89°C $1°658 IDONVNILNIVIA ININJIND3 000-910£5-90T-100
%00°0 000 000 000 000 000 L6TEY SNOIL4I¥ISENS B S3Nd 000-¥10€S-901-100
%000 000 00'000°€T 00°000°€T 00'89%'ZT 05'805'8 £€'6509 INOHdI13L 000-¢10£5-901-100
%000 000 00°008 00°008 00008 6%°58S 6v'86¢ $311ddNS 321440 000-TT0€5-90T-T00
SISNIdX3 TYNOILYYIO - 0€S :Tdnosidydx3y
%ST'T- 00'8/6°T-  00'TSL'69T 00'6ZLTLT  00°6S8T¥T 0Z'9€9TTT 6S°SLL'T6 ~ ‘SLI43INI8 IDONIYL - 02S Tdnolnydydx3 je3oyL
- %550 0077 00°€S0% 00 TE0Y 00'189°€  ¥9769¢ 9THT'T IYVIIQIN 000-€T025-90T-T00
%Ly € 00°SEYC- 00889 00°6T2'TL 00°€¥00S L9°¥95'Sy 65 TSL'8€ IDNVYNSNI HLTVIH 000-¢10C5-901-100
%000 000 00°€9T'ST 00°€9T'ST 00788'vT 0v'066'S OV €LYV 10vd 000-TT0¢5-90T-100
%€S0 00'SEY 00°'TSL18 009TET8 00°€ST'vL 6v°88€LS 86°L0E9Y SY¥3d 000-0T0Z5-90T-T00
S1143N39 3ONIYS - 025 :Tdnosnidydxy
%ES 0 00°L8Y%°T 00°T¥8°6LT 00°vSE8LT 00'90TvST €8°€09°L6T 07'£92'T9T  :3SNIdX3 1D3YIQ AYVIVS - 0TS :7dnounydydx3 |eoL
o N %000 000 000 000 000 8T6LT'T 0C'6TY JNILYINO 000-TT0T5-901-100
%ES0 00'£8Y'T 00'T¥8'6LC 00'¥SE'8LT 00'90T'%5C SSPTE96T 00'8¥8'19T SIOVM B SAYVIVS 000-0T0T5-90T-100
ISN3dX3 103HIA AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnoinidydx3
SANNOYD 8 DNIATING - 90T :3uswiiedag
Jaquiny Junoddy
(aseasaq) |eui4 anuejual 198png |eloL Ajaoy [e3oL Aianoy |eon
/ @seanu| €202-2202 €202-7202 2202-1202 2202-1202 1202-0202
% 1e3png 198png juaied
judied 0} 128png




s
<
wn
o~
~N
(e
o)
o~
o~
(@)
o~
o)
=
w

%08°0 00°600°L 00°260°£88 00°€80°088 00°65€'989 L0°v959LS 99°v8L ECE
%08°0 006002 00°260°£L88 00°€80°088 00°6S€'989 L0'%9S'9LS 99'v8Lc€TE
%00°0 000 00°00S°0T 00°00S°0T 000009 000 IS ETV9
%000 000 00°00S°0T 00°00S°0T 00°000°9 000 TS'ETY9
(eseasdaq) leuy anneul] 198png |e30L Aianoy je3op A3anoy |e30)
/ @seasu| €202-7202 €202-2201 22021202 2202Z-1207 T1202-0202
% 123png 128png juaied
juaied 0} 193png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

:|eyo] Joday
'SANNOYD B ONIATING - 90T :3udwiiedaq |eioL

:0v9 - 0v9 :Tdnosoidydx3 jeio)
AV1LNO TVLIdVD 000-0T0%9-90T-T00
0v9 - 0v9 :Tdnoinidydxy
laquinpn Juno2y

1oday uosuedwo) 198png



001-107/
SHERIFF



G J0 T 8bed

WY 8Z€€:0T 2202/9/S

%000 000 00°000'ST 00°000°ST 00°000'ST 16 LYT'YT 1S0€L°0T
%00'0 000 00°09T'ST 00°09T°ST 00°'STS‘€C TY'€S6°CT OT"€9T61
%000 000 00°00t'6T 00°00t‘6T 00°00%'6T St°0L9'CT 9°LSY'L
%000 000 00°000°SY 00°000°St 00°000°0% 6L'v78'6€E 69°7¥L0C
%000 000 00°000'T 00°000°T 00°000°T TLTIE 05°ZET
%000 000 000 000 000 000 £8°78C°0Y
%000 000 00°00S‘T 00°00S‘T 00°00S‘T 00'9%T 08'16
%000 000 00°00t'€ 00°00t‘€ 00°00t'€ 00°SLS'T 00't88
%000 000 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 00°000°€ TET88'T 9E 9% Y
%000 000 00°000°TT 00°000°TT 00°000°0T S0'¥87°8- LTESER
%000 000 00°000% 00°000't 00°000°% 78°0L5E 88'8YL'E
%000 000 00°00ST 00°00S°T 00°002°T 00°€18 0£'666
%98°0- 00°856'v1- 00°S00'9TL‘T  00°€96°0EL‘T  00°TS6'8VL‘T  L6°ZTVO'SOT'T  €9°9S8T9ET
%000 000 000 000 000 LE199C 000
%000 000 000 000 00'T99T 18'%9T ¥7'88¢€
%000 000 00°'ZEE'8 00°ZEEB 009658 70°€89°c G8'EEEY
%6€°0 00°v0T 00'SL6'9C 00'T£8°9C 00°006°LT 69°LLS'€T 81°L6T°LT
%19°€- 00'vLS'v- 00'901°22T 00°089°9ZT 00°TOS'ZTT G€°995°9 9t'685'6
%09°€- 00°LIY'ET- 00°8YL'65€ 00°S9T‘€LE 00°ZEL'90Y ¥£'619'68¢C 95°895°LEE
%000 000 00°€L1°09 00°€LT°09 00°L€9°ST 000 000
%00°0 000 00'v¥6°T9T 006191 00°0£8'99T 07'L80v9T SE'88E'SLT
%000 000 00°€SL'SET 00°€SL'SET 00°'60€'TET 000 000
%0t°0 00'626'C 00'vL6°0vL 00'St0'8€EL 00°SL79L 6L°9L9'VTL 66°067'808
%670 00°012°L 00°Z86°L9Y'T  00°TLL'09Y'T  OO'TEEvYS‘T  LL'L86'668T  90°0£0°961°C
%000 000 00°L8€'6T 00°£8€'6T 00°L8€E'6T 8T'SYEIT 86°TES'LT
%000 000 00°'v06'61 00'v06°6T 00'6958Y L8Y8TYT 8€'668'LY
%St°0 00°LTE 00'T9€'TL 00vv0°TL 00°'T6LTL €°09€°90T S0'0STv0T
%00°0 000 00°TT9'%9S 00°CT9'v9S 00°L0V'L¥S 9L LTE LYT 919515
%6€°0 00°€689 00'S8TZ'T6L'T  00°ST8'SSL'T  00°LLT'9S8'T  €V'6L9'STS'T  61°988°6LLT

(eseasdq) |euly annejud) jedpng je3ol  Auanoy elol  Auandy jejor

/ @seanu| €202-220T €202-220C T202-1202 2202-1202 1202-0202

% 1o3png 123png jualed
jualed 03 123png

AJewwing JUN0JDY

T uosuedwo)

1oday uosiedwo) 198png

1 uosuedwo)

IDNVNILNIVIN OLNV
ONINIVYL
SNOILVIINNNINOD
S3SVIT ANV SIN3Y
S317ddNS ONILYY¥3IdO
S3lLnun
JIDONVNILNIVIN INIWGIND3
*d1¥2saNns B sana
13AVHL

INOHd313L
S311ddNS 321440
39V1SOd

000-0€0€5-£0T-T00
000-620€5-£0T-100
000-820€5-£0T-T00
000-220€5-£0T-T00
000-vC0€S-20T-T00
000-7¢0€5-20T-T00
000-9T0€5-£0T-T00
000-¥TOES-£0T-T00
000-€T0€S-Z0T-T00
000-ZTOES-£0T-T00
000-TTOES-£0T-T00
000-0TO€5-£0T-T00

S3SN3dX3 TYNOLLYYIdO - 0€S :Tdnoinidydx3

:S1133IN39 IDNIYA - 0TS :Tdnoinidydx3 |ejoy

dNOD INIWAOTdNINN
AL1¥4ND3S VID0S
33A0TdWI TIVI 3¥VIIQIN
JYVOIdIN

TVl IDNVINSNI HLTV3H
3DNVYNSNI H1ITV3H
33A0TdN3I TIVI LOVd
10vd

33A0TdW3 IVl S¥3d
S¥3d

000-ST0¢S-£0T-T00
000-vT0¢S-£0T-T00
00T-€T0¢S-£0T-T00
000-€T0¢S-£0T-T00
000-ZT0CS-£0T-T00
00T-TT0¢S-£0T-T00
000-TT0¢S-£0T-T00
00T-0T0¢S-£0T-T00
000-0T0¢S-20T-T00

S1143N38 IDNIY4 - 0ZS :TdnoJnidydx3

:3SN3dX3 103410 AYYIVS - 0TS :Tdnounidydx3 ejo)

ALIAZONO1
33A0TdWI TIVI IWILY3A0
INILYINO

VI SIOVM/AYVIVS
SIOVM 1B SIYVIVS

000-0Z0TS-£0T-T00
000-TTOTS-Z0T-T00
00T-0TOTS-£0T-1T00
000-0TOTS-Z0T-T00

ISN3dX3 103410 AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnosnidydx3

ALNNOD A3YOLS

44143HS - £0T :usunuedaq

JaquinN junoddy




S j0 7 3bed

WV 8Z:€€:0T 220Z/9/S

%00°0 000 000052 000052 00°00S‘T 8T°ZI0T 00°S8S‘T
%000 000 00°00SC 00°005C 00°00S°T 8T°ZTI0T 00'585T
%00°0 000 00'vZ6°L6 00'¥26°L6 00°LEV'Z8 00°892'vL 00°L0T 6L
%000 000 00°000°S 00°000°Ss 00°000°S 000 00°TLLTT
%000 000 002626 00'26C6 00°LEV'LL 00°€STvL 00°9€€29
%000 000 000 000 000 00°'ST 000
%00°0 000 00°000v9T 00°000‘¥9T 00°00529T 0£°0T966 9L'6V6'TET
%000 000 00'005C 00°005C 00°005°C 00°€0Y‘T 00'729°C
%000 000 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 00°000°0T LSTES'S vvT6L’S
%00°0 000 0000009 00°000°09 00°000°09 St vvL €T 97'9T99%
%000 000 000005 0000052 0000052 00'ST99T 8%°7S9°LT
%000 000 00°000°8 000008 00'000'8 ¥8°790°S €889
%000 000 00°005C 00'005C 00°000°T 000 000
%000 000 00°000ST 00°000°S¢ 00°000°S¢ 66'259°9T L9'T6EET
%000 000 00°000'S 00°000°S 00°000°S 8v'S86't WwTETY
%000 000 00°000'T 00'000T 00'000°T 06'ZT€E §5'99S
%000 000 00°000SC 00°000°S¢ 00°0005Z LO'L6T'YT TELEEIT
%9%°T 00°0SE‘S 00°S66°0LE 00°S9‘S9E 00°8%9°20¢€ Y LLL'YIT TTIS6'ELT
%000 000 00°005°C 00'00S°C 00'00S°C 000 000
%000 000 00°000°5¢ 00°000°S¢ 00°000°52 ¥$°922°6 S9°560°L
%00°0 000 00°000°0T 00'000°0T 00°000°0T STLTT'6 SLLTSTT
%000 000 000 000 000 S¥'598°6€ 00'6tt'T
%000 000 00°000'S 00°000°S 00°000°S 000 000
%000 000 00°29¥'vS 00'29%'vS 00°€€6'vY 00°€09°9% 00'98.8€
%000 000 000 000 000 86°CT 7E'60L
%000 000 00°005°L 00°00S°L 00°00S°L 06'L72'8 Z0'65€8
%000 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°00S 000 00'Z6¥
%000 000 00'000'ST 00'000°ST 00'000°ST ¥0'6L0°ET 0T'0TL9
%000 000 00°000°0L 00°000°0L 00°000°S€ €5°7EE9E LT'9VTTY
%000 000 00°000°ST 00°000°ST 00°000°ST 87L8¥'0T 96'¥10°CT
%000 000 00°000C 00°000C 00°000C OT'TIST €9°75bT
%000 000 00°€TE'ET 00'€ZEEC 00°008°CT ¥T'S¥9°9 1S°202°TT
%L0'66  000SE‘S 00°0S.°0T 00°00t'S 00°00%'S 6L°LS6'E $9'991°8T

(aseasaq) leuty anneua) 1e8png [e30L  Auandy jelor  Auanoy jejol

/ @seanu| £202-2202 €202-7202 2202-120¢ 2202-1202 1202-0202

% 123png 129png juaieqd
juaied 0} 198png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

:$3DUNOS ONIDNVNI4 ¥IHLO - 0£S :Tdnoinidydx3 eo)

140ddNS ALINNWINOD

000-9T0/S-L0T-T00

S3D¥NOS ONIDNVNI4 ¥3IHLO - 045 :Tdnoinidydx3

:SNOINVTIIDSIN - 095 :Tdnosnidydx3 [e3oL

319110NA3Ad IDNVYNSNI
WNIW3dd 3IDNVINSNI
SANN43Y

000-¢0995-£0T-100
000-00995-£0T-T00
000-0£595-£0T-T00

SNO3NVTIIISIW - 095 :Tdnoinidydx3
{INJWNYIAOD TVYINIO - OpS :Tdnosidydx3 jeloL

JYIH/LSIL INIWAOTdN3-34d
S311ddNS ILVIAINI

Q004 ILVIANI

STVDISAHd - 1v2Id3N
IVIIA3W - 3LVIAINI
SINY3ISIY

S311ddNS LN3IW3DYOIN3I
SNOILVOILSIANI TVID3IdS
TOYLNOD TVININY

321440 SY3INOY0D

000-0€YS-£0T-T00
000-8TEYS-Z0T-T00
000-ZT€VS-Z0T-T00
000-STEYS-Z0T-T00
000-vTEYS-L0T-T00
000-€TEVS-Z0T-T00
000-60€¥S-Z0T-T00
000-£0€¥S-Z0T-T00
000-¥0€YS-£0T-T00
000-€0€v5-Z0T-T00

AINJNNYIAOD TVHINIO - 0tS :Tdnoioidydxy

1$ISNIdX3 TYNOILYYIdO - 0€S :Tdnosnidydx3 [ejo)

HOLVIA - INVY9
SINIWHSINYVYO 44143HS
INNOYONIVE B INIYdYIONI
SNOILV13Y ¥09V1 ISY3INAV
S3DIAY3S TYNOISSIF0¥d
S334 v

SIN3W33¥OV INIVIN
3DNVNILNIVIA ONIQTING
S3D1LON Jgnd

S3YIL

135313 B SVO

SIWYO4INN

INIWIOVNVIN 4003
FHVMLI0S ¥3LNdWNOD
LIN3WdIND3 ¥3LNdWOD

000-TOv€S-Z0T-T00
000-60€€5-20T-T00
000-S£0€5-£0T-T00
000-TZ0€S-£0T-T00
000-0£0€5-£0T-T00
000-690€5-20T-T00
000-650€5-£0T-T00
000-ZS0€S-£0T-T00
000-8¥0€5-20T-T00
000-Tv0€5-20T-T00
000-0v0€5-20T-T00
000-6€0€5-£0T-T00
000-v€0€5-Z0T-T00
000-€€0€S-20T-T00

Jaquiny unoy

Hoday uosiiedwo) 1893png



G jo ¢ abed WY 8Z:€€:0T 2202/9/S

%50°0- 6L°L6ET- 00°'vL6°9E8Y 6L TLE'6ESY 00°£9€‘2v8Y 89°869'v¥S‘E 15°10Z'TS0Y :|e3o) poday
%S0°0- 6L°L6EC- 00'vL6°9E8‘Y 6LTLE'6E8'Y 00°£9€‘Tv8Y 89°869'VVSE 1S10Z'TS0Y :344143HS - £0T :3udwpedaq |e3o)
%000 17°0 00'895°LT 6L°L9S'LT 00°0 00°0 v6°12L'S ‘09 - 0v9 :Tdnoinidydx] |e3o)
%000 170 00'89S°LT 6L°L9SLT 000 000 ¥6'TTL'S AV1LNO VLIdVD 000-0T0%9-£0T-100
09 - 09 :TdnoDIdydx3
Jaquinp 3unoNy
(eseasdaq) [E] anneual 198png |e301L Ananoy [e101 Aianoy |exo)
/ @seanu| €202-720¢ €202-220¢ 720T-120C 7202-120T 1202-020¢
% ye3png 193png juaied
juaied 0} 1a3png

1 uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)
Joday uosiuedwo) 198png



001-109

COMMUNITY
DEVELOPMENT



¥ Jo T sbed

WY Z¥:G€:0T 2202/9/S

%000 000 00'000°0T 000000 0000001 TT'8%0°S 0€°0T8L
%000 000 00'00S°C 00005 00000 00'9¢€ 000
%000 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°00S 000 L6TE
%000 000 00°002°T 0000Z°T 00002'T YT EES TTLTL
%000 000 00'%¥0°92 00't0'9C 00°€€S9T 95'€99'8T CE0ET’E
%000 000 00'000°S 00°000°S 00°000°'S 66°9¢ 76'0S€°E
%000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 00000°'S [y 443 9€988°T
%000 000 00'TSS'ST 00'TSS'ST 00'v80°LT SY'Tv0's 00'S0L’E
%100 S9°0 00'7LETT SETLETT 00°TLETT St'vTE9 0€°'€TSTT
%000 000 0000S°T 00°00S°T 00°L0¥'S 86'9T0'T 000
%000 000 000 000 00°000'S 000 SE€'T9L9
%000 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°00S 000 000
%000 000 0000S°T 0000ST 00°00S 000 000
%100 f4 %} 00'562°C 88'V67'C 00°016°€ 06'6v€ 88°€98°¢€
%000 000 00°000°6T 00°000°6T 00'00S°LT SL'ETE'E [4% 744
%000 000 0000S'TT 00°00S‘TT 00°000°0T €8'v9v°0T S6'089°¢T
%000 000 00000t 00000t 00000 70'867'T 8€°L97°C
%000 000 0000S°T 00°00S‘T 00°00€T SEVL0T 95'987'T
%12°0- 00°S€S- 00'vb°0ST 00°6L6°0ST 00°L88'96C 2€°59S0vT 16'v€0°80C
%000 000 000 000 000 0S°6€ 70'€0T
%0t T 0016 009459 00°'S8t°9 00°€6L'L 6EVIEY 06°098°S
%000 000 000 000 000 8L'6S ¢S81T
%EB €E- 00°79T'¢- 00°0S€‘6L 0021528 00°€96't8 L6'7L80Y $9°99€°95
%000 000 0095961 00'959°6T 00'v9t'2T 6E°€SL' $1°296°0T
%8L'T 00'9€5C 00798'vvT 009ZETYT 00°£99°T8T 67°S7598 89'€C9VET
%011 001929 00'80S‘€SY 00°LYT LYY 00°82v'LES 18°59t°66C 0L°08L°0TY
%000 000 000 000 000 9€'98L 9¢'v18
%000 000 000 000 000 8v°0SST €0'7L6'9
%0v'T 001929 00°80S€SY 00°LvT LYY 00'8TY'LES L6'8TT96T TEV66°TTY

(eseasdaq) leuiq aAReud) 123png |g301 Aoy je301 Ajanoy je3op

/ 3seanu) €202-7202 €202-2202 T202-120T 2202-1202 1202-0202

% 198png 198png jualed
juaied 0} 128png

AJewwing Juno2ddYy

1 uosuedwo)

1oday uosiiedwo) 198png

T uosuedwo)

135310 B SVO 000-070€5-60T-T00
SIWYO4LINN 000-6€0€5-60T-T00

dIND3 12310¥d 1YNOSY3d 000-9€0€5-60T-100
1IN3IWIOVYNYIN Q¥0D3Y 000-S€0€5-60T-1T00
JYYML40S ¥3LNdINOD 000-7€0€5-601-100

1N3W4IND3 ¥3LNdINOD
JDONVNILNIVIN OLNY

000-€£0€5-601-T00
000-0£0€5-60T-T00

ONINIVYL 000-6¢0€5-60T-100
S3SVY3I1 ANV SLN3Y 000-220€5-60T-T00
$31MddNS ONILYY¥IHO 000-7¢0€5-601-100
S3ILAILN 000-¢¢0€5-60T-T00

ONILNIYd 000-020€5-60T-100

JDONVNILNIVIN INIWNJIND3
'dI¥IsaNns 8 sana

000-910£5-601-100
000-¥10€S-60T-T00

13AVYL 000-€T0£5-60T-100
INOHdI13L 000-CT0ES-60T-100
$311ddNS 321440 000-TT0£S-601-1T00
39V1S0d 000-0T0€S-60T-100

S3SN3IdX3 TYNOLLYYIdO - 0€S :Tdno1ndydx3
:S1143N38 IONIYA - 0TS :TdnosDidydx3 |ejoy

V1S3l 00¢-€T0¢S-60T-T00

YVIIQIN 000-€10C5-601-100

V1S3l 00¢-¢10¢5-601-100

IDNVYNSNI HLTVIH 000-¢t0¢S-60T-T00
10vd 000-TT0¢S-60T-T00

SY3d 000-0T0¢5-60T-100

S1143N38 IONIYA - 0ZS :Tdnoinidydx3
‘3SN3dX3 13410 AYVIVS - 0TS :TdnosDydydx3 |e3ol

JNILY3INO
V1S3l
S3OVM 8 SIVIVS

000-TT0TS-60T-T00
00¢-0TOTS-60T-T00

000-0T0TS-60T-100

3ISN3dX3 1D3YI10 AYYIVS - 0TS :Tdnosnidydx3
IN3IWdOT13A3A ALINNWIWO)D - 60T :3uawisedaq
JaqWINN JuNoXYy

ALNNOD A3YO01S




4 40 7 abed

WY Z+:S€:0T 2202/9/S

%L9°0 LL9TL'S 00'99'658 €2°LE6ESS 00°89Z'v86 91'1Z9°T0S 08°'SLT0TL
%L9°0 LL19TL'S 00'99'658 €T°LE6ESS 00°892v86 9T°129‘T0S 08'SLT0TL
%00°0 000 000 000 000 90°968°C €T°€ST9
%000 000 000 000 000 90'968°C €T°€ST9
%00°0 00°0 000 00°0 00°00S 00°0 000
%000 000 000 000 00°00S 000 000
%00°0 LL0 00°ZTL'SST €TTILSST 00°€SY'6VT L6°€69°8S 90°L0T'SL
%000 000 00°00tC 00°00%‘C 000 000 000
%000 000 000 000 000 000 0S'7S6°L
%000 000 00°000'S 00'000°S 00°000°S 000 00°S8T
%000 000 00°00S°C 00°00SC 00'00SC vEEET ST0S
%000 000 00°000°T 00'000°T 00°L6T €0°79S T0°LL8°T
%000 000 00°000°8 00'000°8 000008 S8'6vY 6%°SYT
%000 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°00S 00°SST 00°59¢
%000 000 00°00T 00°00T 00°00T 000 000
%000 000 00°0S29 00'0SZ‘9 00'0SZ9 0T'849 vy eoL
(aseasdaq) leuty annejua) jedpngelol  Aagovielol  Auandy (eloL
/®seanuy £202-2207 £202-2202 7202-1207 7202-1202 1202-0202
% 198png 193png jualeq
ju3led 03 133png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

:|eyo] oday
:INJIINdO1IAIA ALINNINOD - 60T :3udwiiedaq [e30L

:SNOANVTIIDSIN - 095 :TdnouDidydx] jejoL
SANN43y 000-0€595-60T-100
SNO3INVTIIDSIN - 096 :Tdnosnidydx3

:INJWNYINOD TVYINIO - 0vS :Tdnosnidydx] jeyo)
NOILNIAIYd Y14 000-90€%S-60T-T00
AINIAINYIAOD TVHINID - 0t :Tdnosnidydx3

:SISNIdX3 TYNOILYYHIdO - 0€S :Tdnos9idydx3 [eor
S3YNLXI4 ANV I¥NLINYNA 000-2Z0€5-60T-T00
SNOILY13Y Y08V 3SYIAQY 000-TZ0€S-60T-1T00
SI9 0£¢-0£0€5-601-T00
S3DIAY3S TYNOISSIH0¥d 000-0£0€5-60T-T00
SININIIYOV INIVIN 000-650€5-60T-T00
IDNVNILNIVIA ONIQTING 000-2S0€5-60T-100
$3DILON JI18Nd 000-870€5-60T-T00
1N3W4013A3A JIWONOD3 000-¢70€S-60T-100
S3YIL 000-TY0€5-601-100
Jaquinp junoddy

Hoday uosuedwo) 198png



001-111
DISTRICT ATTORNEY



S 40 v 1 abed

WY 6¥:8%:8 2202/9/S

%8Y°T 00°€9592 00'T18°860°T 00°8v2‘TL0T 00°8T8°TV0‘T €L°660°€S9 SS'T06°8TL
%000 000 00°0SZ‘EEY 00°0SZ€EY 00°0SL‘6TY ¥8'ELT'0ST 89°L68'STT
%000 000 00°000°00% 00°000°00t 0000000 €0°0ZT'OVT €8'T6V'ETT
%000 000 00°00S‘T 00°00ST 00°00S'T 86°7S0'T 65°C1TT
%000 000 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 00°00S 0zZ'00T 01°0ZT
%000 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°00S (387454 €T°E0L
%000 000 00°00S‘€ 00°00S‘€ 00°000°C €€'856 LT906C
%000 000 0000S‘T 00°00S°T 00°00S°T 000 000
%000 000 00°000C 00000 00000 0S°9vS 00°59¢
%000 000 00'00S‘T 00°00S‘T 00°00S°T SYvv0'T 0€'TIST'T
%000 000 000 000 000 000 £€8°S76
%000 000 000009 000009 00°00Sv 0S'9€T’E 0S°£97°¢
%000 000 00°00SC 00°005°C 0000S°T TTvES 000
%000 000 00'000C 00°000'C 00000C 68°9LT vL792C
%000 000 00°0SL°T 00'0SLT 00°0SL‘T 7S'79ST €'8YTT
%000 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°00S Y69ty 9t'8LY
%¢0°0- 00°S€- 00"€Evv92e 00°8L¥°9TC 00°2TE9TT S0'S8‘89T 8L ELY'66T
%000 00°TLY'T 00 TLY'T 000 000 000 000
%9 00°S8¢ 00°£9€9 00786°S 00'868°S LEILEY 79°LST'S
%08 €~ 00'60€‘€- 00CTLE8 00°'T20°L8 00'€TE8L 0v'8vS'6S 78'0€€'€L
%ET'T 00°4ST 00046CT 00°€18°CT 00'STTET L¥7999°9 88'£59°9
%S0T 00'T9Z°T 00°€26°TCT 00799°0ZT 00'9£68TT 18'297'86 Y LTEVTT
%S9 00°8659¢ 00'8TT'6EY 00°0ZS‘TIY 00°9SL‘901 v8'TLOVEE 60"0€S°€6€
%000 000 00'SLTLT 00°'SLTLT 00'TZLYT Tv°068°TT LL7998'TT
%000 000 000 000 000 ToLs 6L°YS
%EL9 00'865°9¢C 00°EV6‘TTY 00°SYE‘S6€E 00'S€0'T6E TETI9TTE €5°809'T8¢€

(eseaaq) |euly ETV L TTET 128png |gj01 Aanoy je3o1 Aianoy jeyol

/ @seanu) €202-720C €202-2202 2202-1202 7z0z-120T 1202-0202

% ~3e3png 198png juaied
juaied 0} 128png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

*AINYOLLY 1D141SIA - TTT :uswisedaq |e3on

:S3ISN3dX3 TYNOILYY3dO - 0€S :Tdnoinidydx3 jeoy

S3DIAY3S TVNOISS3404dd
40ddNS/SININIIYOV LNIVIN
IDNVNILNIVIA ONIGTING

000-0£0€S-TTT-T00
000-6S0€S-TTT-T00
000-£S0€S-TTT-T00

AIN3W3OVNVYIN a¥0D3Y 000-GE0ES-TTT-T00
JYVMLIOS ¥3LNJINOD 000-7€0€S-TTT-100
LIN3INdINDI ¥3LNdINOD 000-€€0€S-TT1-100
ONINIVYL 000-6¢0€S-TTT-100

$3SV31 ANV SIN3IY 000-£¢0€S-TT1-100
S31LniLn 000-CZ0€S-TTT-100

"d1¥2s8Ns 8 $Ina 000-7TOES-TTT-100
13AVYL 000-€T0ES-T11-100

INOHdIIL 000-CT0ES-TTIT-100

$311ddNS 321440 000-TTOES-TTT-T00
39V1S0d 000-0TOES-TTT-100

S3ISN3dX3 TYNOILYYHIHO - 0£S :Tdnosnidydx3

‘S1143IN38 IONIYA - 0TS :TdnoiDidydx3 |e3oy

ALI¥ND3S TVIDOS 000-7T0¢S-TIT1-100
JYVIIQIN 000-€T0¢S-TTT-T00
IDONVYNSNI HLTVIH 000-CT0ZS-TTI-T00
10vd 000-TT0ZS-TTIT-100

SY¥3d 000-0T0¢S-TTTI-T00

S1133N38 IONIYA - 0TS :Tdnounidydx3

:3SN3dX3 1D3¥1A AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnoinidydx3 |ejog

ALIAIONO1
EEYYe)
S3IOVM B SIFVIVS

000-0¢0TS-TIT-TO0
000-TT0TS-TTIT-TOO
000-0T0TS-TTT-T00

3SN3dX3 103Y1a AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnosnidydx3
AINYOLLY 1D1¥1S1Q - TTT 3udwpedag
JaqUINN 3UN02DY

Joday uosuedwo) 3198png



001-112
DISTRICT COURT



S J0 GT abed

WY 6t:8%:8 Z2202/9/S

%00°0 000 00°000'8S¢ 00000852 00°595°S6T 79'8¥S‘TIT L0°ST9'00T
%00°0 000 00°000°Z2T 00°00022T 00°590°02T €8°907vTT YE9TS'SL
%000 000 00°000°S 00'000°S 00°000°S 00'569°C 0S°L0T'vT
%000 000 00°000'S0T 00°000°S0T 00°S90°€0T €v'¥201CT ¥8°859°09
%000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 00°000°S 000 000
%000 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°00S 000 00°0SL
%000 000 00'0009 00'000'9 000009 ot'L0Y 000
%000 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°00S 0008 000
%00°0 000 00°0009€T 00°0009€T 00°00S'SL 6L°TYEL8 €4°860°ST
%000 000 00°00Zt 00002t 00002t €£°5S0°E 88'6L5C
%000 000 00°000t 00'000t 00°00S‘€ 9%°790'S 6¥°020°€
%000 000 00'000°€ 00'000°€ 00'000°€ 96'6TT'T 000
%000 000 00'000°09 0000009 0000009 ¥9'6SSTL 9€°09SVT
%000 000 00°008v9 00'008v9 00008t 00'v¥S'S 00'8€6'Y
(aseasdaq) |euiy anneual 198png |e30L Aianoy je101 Aianoy |g301
/ @seasnu| €20¢-2202 €202-2202 7202-1202 2202-120C T1202-020¢
% 123png 108png juaied
jualed 03 198png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

11¥N0D 1D1¥1S1Q - ZTT uawiedaq [e10)

:INJWNYIA0D TVY¥INID - 0vS :Tdnosoidydx3 jejoy

AINYOLLV 1O1MINOD
¥3AN3430 Onand
NOILN3IL3d JTINIANT
ONILY0d3Y LY¥N0D
SyodNr
SY313Y¥dY3LNI

000-Z¥¢S-CTT-100
000-S¥CPS-¢TT-100
000-v¥ZvS-¢TT-100
000-€¥CvS-¢TT-T00
000-CvZvS-¢TT-100
000-T¥CPS-¢TT-100

AIN3IWNYIA0D TVHINIO - 0pS :Tdnosnidydx3

:S3ISN3IdX3 TYNOILYYIdO - 0€S :Tdnosnidydx3 [ejoL

31VOILS3ANI 3DNILN3IS-34d
3DIAY3S HLNOA 3104Vd
SIYNLXId ANV IYNLINYNS
S3DIAY3S TYNOISS340¥d
JONILNIVIA LNIWCIND3I

000-CZ0€S-CTT-T00
000-0£0€5-¢TT-T00

S3SN3dX3 TYNOILYYIdO - 0€S :Tdnosnidydx3
1¥N0D 1D1Y1SIa - ZTT :3uawiiedag

Jaquinp 3unoly

Hoday uosuedwo) 198png



001-113
JUSTICE COURT



G 40 91 abeq

WV 6:8v:8 £202/9/S

%000 000 00'000°€ 00°000°€ 00'000°S 07’18 08'000Y
%000 000 00°000'T 00°000°T 000 000 000
%98°0 00°7S€ 00°LZTTY 00°SLL'0V 00°0S8‘0v 92°260°€2 8L°€60°TE
%000 000 00°000T 000007 00°000'T ¥6'9S SE'06C
%00°0 000 000 000 000 000 09'vL9'T
%000 000 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 0Sv0T'T SE'89L°9
%000 000 00°00€'8 00°00€‘8 00°008‘s TOv8TT 08'v1S
%000 000 00'000T 00°000T 000 00°0LT 000
%000 000 000 000 00°000°0T 00'000°€ 0S'TIS'S
%000 000 00°00T 00°00¢ 00°00T 0S'SL SLES
%00°0 000 000 000 00°00S 000 000
%000 000 00'000C 00'000C 00°00S 90'€8€T 84959
%000 000 00'00T'TT 00'00T‘TT 000YT‘TT S6°LE0°0T €1°088'6
%000 000 00000 00000t 000 000 99°0v¥'T
%000 000 00'00S‘T 00°00S°T 00°00S'T 00,6 000
%00°0 000 000 000 000 000 9L'88
%000 000 00000T 00°000‘T 00°006 ET'vPE 0S°€29
%000 000 00°05T 00°0ST 00°0ST 000 00942
%000 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°00S 6L°6TY 66V
%00°0 000 000 000 000 000 00°059-
%16°0T 00°ZSE 00°LLS'E 00'STT'E 00091 98'867C 84'609
%000 000 0000T°C 00002 00000 6EETTC TT'¥99°C
%000 000 00°00S‘T 0000S‘T 0000S'T €1°L08 6L'6€7'T
%IET 00°018C 00°660°8TZ 00°687'STT 00'vZL'0LT 272°509°72T €6°LE6TYT
%000 000 00'945'T 00'945T 00'ZSET 75086 YEYET'T
%TL9 00'TTE 00'8Y6'Y 00°LE9'Y 00960t 61'88T°€E 9€'0T8°E
%58 '€~ 00°'T9L'E- 00'6T0'v6 00'08L°L6 00°E€TL VL TE'68S'SY SELETTS
%000 000 00°LSt'8T 00°LSt'8T 00'SST'VT 81°20T9 TovL
%YL 9 00'0929 00'660°66 00'6£8°C6 00'80%'9L 20°'S¥9'99 99°€67'8L
%699 00°v0Y‘1Z 00'VTZ'TYE 00°0T86TE 00°L15°282 9.°0v9°62C 8T'96v'TLT
%CY'ST 00'59Z°€ 00°0TT9T 00'S¥8CT 00'8TY'TT 10°£19°6 86'SE0°0T
%000 000 00°8St 00°8St 00°ST8 68'565'9 6L°9TC'Y
%C6°S 00'6€T°ST 00'9¥9'vZE 00°£05°90€ 00'¥87°0LZ 98'LTY'ETT TV EVPT'LST

(eseasnaq) |euiy aanejul] 198png |e30L IS VRIVATS T Aoy jejor

/ @seadu| €202-720¢ €202-220¢ q20z-1202 2202-120C T202-020¢

% 198png 198png juaied
jualed 0} 398png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

ONILY0d3Y 14N0D
Jr sasuadx3 sounf

000-€vcvS-ETT-T00
000-¢vTPS-€1T-TO0

AININNYIAOD TVYIN3ID - 0pS :Tdnosnydydx3

:SISN3dX3 TYNOILYYIJO - 0€S :Tdnosnidydx3 je3o)

Y3L1IY4YILINI
SIYNLXId ANV I¥NLINYNS
$3DIAY3S TYNOISSII0Hd
40ddNS/SININIIYOV LNIVIN
Df S921AISS [ell] 3ld

H1TV3IH TVAN3N SET'L SUN
135310 8 SVO

SINYO4INN

LIN3INIDOVYNVIN Q40D3Y
IYYML30S ¥3LNdNOD
SY3LNdWOD
IDNVNILNIVIN OLNY
S3SV3I1 ANV SLN3Y
ONILNIYd

JDNVNILNIVIN LNINGIND3
"d1¥2s9Ns %8 sIna

13AVYL

INOHdJ3I13L

$311ddNS 321440

39V150d

000-8Z0€S-€TT-100
000-C£0€S-€TT-T00
000-0£0€5-€TT-T00
000-650€5-€TT-100
000-v¥0€S-€TT-T00
000-€70€S-€TT-T00
000-0v0€5-€TT-T00
000-6€0€5-€TT-T00
000-SE0ES-€TT-100
000-7E0ES-€TT-T00
000-€€0€S-€TT-T00
000-0€0€5-€TT-100
000-00€S-€TT-T00
000-9TOES-€TT-T00
000-¥TOES-€TT-T00
000-€TOES-ETT-T00
000-TTOES-ETT-T00
000-TTOES-€TT-T00
000-0TOES-€TT-T00

S3ISN3IdX3 TYNOILLYYIdO - 0€S :Tdnoinidydx3

:S114IN38 IDNIYS - 026 :Tdnoanidydx] |ejoy

ALI¥ND3IS IVIDOS
FYVIOIA3IN
3ONVYNSNI HLTV3H
10vd

S¥3d

000-¥T0CS-€TT-100
000-€T0¢S-€TT-T00
000-¢T0CS-€TT-T00
000-TT0CS-€TT-T00
000-0T0ZS-€TT-T00

S1143IN38 IDNIYS - 0TS TdnoiDidydx3
:3SN3dX3 103Y10 AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnosnidydx3 |ejoy

ALIAIONOT
JNILY3IAO
SIOVM B SIFVIVS

000-0C0TS-€TT-T00
000-TTOTS-€T1T-T00
000-0TOTS-€TT-T00

3SN3dX3 1D381a AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnoinidydx3
1¥N0D DILSAS - ETT :uawedaq

J3qWINN JUN02DY

uoday uosuedwo) 328png



$G 4o £ 1 abed

WY 6v:8%:8 2202/9/S

%YV 00995y 00°0vv'09 00'v/86LS 00"T8°00S Yv'6€0°9LE 69°€25°0SY
%000 000 00°0 000 000 00°0 000
%00°0 000 000 000 000 000 000
%000 00°0 00°000'y 00°000‘t 00°0SL‘9 0Z'10L 08°S66'y
%00°0 000 000 000 00°0SZ 000 00°0S¢C
%000 000 000 000 00'00S‘T 00'00Z°T 00°0SL
%000 000 000 000 000 00°08S- 00°S-
(eseasdaq) leuy anueua] 1@3png jelol  Auapdy jelol  Auapoy jelol
/ @seanu| €202-220C €202-220T 20z-120T Z202-120T 1202-020T
% 128png 198png juased
judied 03 198png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

:14N0D IDILSNC - €T :Judwiedaq [e3oL

'SNOANVITIISIN - 095 :Tdnouidydx3 |ejo)
LIN3IWIOVYNVYIN 34NQTUM 000-G9595-€TT1-100
SNO3INVTIIISIW - 09S :Tdnounidydx3

:INJINYIA0D TVH¥INIO - 0bS :Tdnoinidydx] |ejoL
$311ddNS IN3IN3IDYO4N3 000-60€7S-ETT-T00
AINYOLLY LDIMTANOD 000-Z¥CpS-€ETT-T00
¥3AN343Q dNand 000-S¥Z¥S-€TT-100
Jaquinn 3unody

Hoday uosuedwo) 198png



001-114
HEALTH SERVICES



$S Jo 8T abed

WV 6v:8+:8 2202/9/S

:AJS UBWINYH 73 Y3|B3H - pTT :Juawsedaq |e3o)

:SISN3dX3 TYNOLLYYIO - 0€S :Tdnoinidydx3 jeoy

OYIINVI/INIWIDVId HLNOA
JIAY3S 133104d A1IHD TvdNy
10310¥d H1TV3IH Y43IWNSNOD

1502 1vd3034 agvviN
LIN3IN3IYOV SIDIAY3S HLNOA

3FDONVLSISSY LNIOIANI
AIN3W3349V 3DIAY3S HLNOA

000-STZESVIT-T00
000-¢TCES-VIT-T00
000-TTCESVTT-T00
000-0TCESVTT-T00
000-Z0TES-VT1-T00
000-Zv0ES-¥TT-T00
000-S¥0ES-¥T1-T00

S3SN3IdX3 TYNOILYYIO - 0€S :Tdnoinidydx3

:S1143IN38 IONIYA - 02S :Tdnoinidydx3 jejo)

3YVIIQ3N
3DNVINSNI HLTV3H
10vd

S¥3d

000-€T0ZS-¥TT-T00
000-¢T0¢S-¥TT-T00
000-TT0ZS-¥T1-T00
000-0T0¢S-¥TT-T00

%S0°0- 00706~ 00°€9€°98T 00°€SY'98T 1Y°209°29T 1S°29L°2T1 1€Y02°90T
%000 000 00°€8L°TLT 00°€8LTLT 007285091 8E'SETOTT 08'9€6T0T
%000 000 00°00t‘€ 00°00t‘E 00°00%°E 000 000
%000 000 00°€86'9S 00°€869S 00°£8S'SY 00°£85'Sy 00°€ET 9
%000 000 00°000't€ 00°000'v€ 00°000v€ 8ETS6'PE 08'9TL'TE
%000 000 00°00t‘€T 00°00%'€T 00°00% ‘€T 000 000
%000 000 00°000°0% 00°000°0t 00°000°0% 00°L65S'6T 00'TSEZE
%000 000 000006 000006 00°000°6 000 00°9€L
%00°0 000 00°000°S 00°000'S 00°000°S 000 000
%E9'T- 00°06- 00°€EY'S 00°€2S‘S 06'149°C SL'E88'Y ££°9/0T
%00°0 000 00°€€T 00°€€T 7€°99 L0't0T S8'9Y
%8T 1~ 00°06- 00790°C 00ZST'T €0°LS6 SS'8TIET 8LY6T
%000 000 00295 00795 08°082 $5°09T SE9
%000 000 009£9°C 009£9°T SLLEET 85°00€°C SE'8TL
%000 000 00°LYT'6 00°LYT'6 1S°ELS'Y 8E8VLL 8T'T6T'E
%000 000 00°LYT'6 00°LYT'6 1S°€LS'Y 8E8YL'L 8T'T6T'E
(aseasaq) leuyy angejua) 1e8pngelol Aoy jelol  Auandy jeol
/ @seasnu) £202-2202 £202-2202 2202-1202 220T-120¢ 1202-0202
% 198png 393png juaieq
judied 0} 198png

T uosuedwo)

1 uosuedwo)

S1133N38 IDNIYS - 075 :Tdnosnidydx3

:3SN3dX3 1D3H1Q AYVIVS - 0TS :TdnoJnidydx3 je3o)
saSeM 13 saliees 000-0TOTS-¥TT-T00
ISN3IdX3 13410 AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnosnidydx3
AJS UBWINYH 3 Y3|eaH - HTT :Juawiiedag
JaquinN Junoddy

Joday uosuedwo) 193png



001-115
SWIMMING POOL



#S 40 61 dbed

WV 6v:8%:8 2202/9/S

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

%89°0 00'T80T 00°T85°09T 00"0056ST 00°S8Y‘VET 67°LEB'TS 6v°E8YTTT
%000 00°0 000 00°0 00°0 00°0 000
%000 000 000 000 000 000 000
%000 00°0 000 00°0 00°0 00°0 00°00T
%00°0 000 000 000 000 000 00°00T
%00°0 00°0 00°009°€S 00°009°€S 00°ZLY’SE 19'VOV‘ET 8v'18L°9C
%00°0 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 000 000 000
%000 000 00°00S°€ 00°00S‘€ 00°00S‘E €T°09LT 68°98¢€
%00°0 000 00°00S’€E 00°00S‘€ 00°00S°€ LT°6L6 ST8TY'T
%000 000 00°000°€ 00'000°€ 00'000°€ 66'920°T 85°£98'T
%000 000 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 0000001 SS'LY6'T EYYI8TT
%000 000 00°00S‘C 00'00S‘C 00'000T 0L°8T 000
%000 000 00000C 00°000T 00°000C 000 0S°€L
%00°0 000 00°000T 00°000'T 000 000 00'8T¥'T
%000 000 000 000 000 STLST 88'ST
%000 000 000 000 000 000 000
%000 000 00°009°T 00'009°T 00'0LET 00°066 00°00€
%000 000 00°00S‘S 00°00S'S 00°Z0T‘S TT9S6'E 96'65¢'C
%000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 00°000°€ 0LLSTT LTEE6'E
%00°0 000 00°000°TT 00°000°TT 00°000°€ 08°0TY T8YSTC
%10 00°TE 00°200°SC 00'TL6'VT 00°ESY'TT 86°965°ST 8v'v8YLT
%850 00°0¢ 00°LSP'E 00°LEv'E 00°LEV'E ST'vv6'T SL6LY'T
%9€'T 0091 00'68T°T 00°€LTT 00'SZTT 96°LYL 297243
%C6'€- 009t 006209 00'S£29 00220y STLSY €5°7TSY
%EY0 00'v¢ 00°0£9°S 00'9t9°s 00'STY’S 9T'6L6'T ¥'692°C
%LS'T 00°L12 00,598 00°0vY'8 00'vSY'L 9T'v¥SE9 TT88TL
%0E'T 00°0S0°T 00'6.6'T8 00'626°08 00°09S°LL 0L°SE8'TS €S°LTTL9
%000 000 000 000 000 1671 0€'LT
%0€'T 00°0S0'T 00'6L6T8 00'62608 00'095°LL 6L°7T8TS €2°00T°L9

(aseasaq) leuyy annejuaL 1e8png jelol Auanoy jejor  Ajapoy jelol

/ @seasnu| €202-2202 €202-220T 2202-120¢ 2202-1202 1202-020¢

% 198png 193png juased
jualed 03 198png

100d ONINWIMS - STT :3uawedaq |ejoy

:0v9 - 0¥9 :TdnoinIdydx3 |e3ol

AVILNO TVLIdYD

000-0TO¥9-STT-T00

0v9 - 09 :Tdnosnydydxa

:INJWNYIAOD TVHINIO - 0tS :Tdnosnidydx3 |e3o

SANN43Y 11S043a

000-¢T¥¥S-STT-T00

AIN3IWNYIAOD TVHINID - 0pS :Tdnoinidydx3z

:S3ISN3dX3 TVYNOILYYIJO - 0€S :Tdnosnidydx3 |ejoy

1314 1Mva3Sva-LNIVIA MYvd
ANIVIA XYVd AV

ANIVIN Xdvd 1N

LNIVIN XYVd HOA

ANIVIA dVd DA

S311ddNS NOISSIONOD 100d
S3YNLXIH ANV JYNLINYNS
SLINY3d

S3J1LON D1gNnd
3DNVN3LNIVIN 01NV
ONINIVYL

S31MddNS ONILVYY3IdO
SIVIINIHD

3DNVNILNIVIN LIN3INGIND3

S0S-00Z€5-STT-100
¥0S-00£€5-STT-100
€0S-00£€5-STT-100
70S-00Z€5-STT-100
T0S-00£€5-STT-100
000-960€5-STT-100
000-¢Z0€5-STT-100
000-890€5-STT-T00
000-8¥0€5-STT-100
000-0€0€5-STT-100
000-620€5-STT-100
000-vZ0€5-STT-T00
000-€20€5-STT-T00
000-9TO€5-STT-T00

S3SN3dX3 TYNOILYYIdO - 0€S :Tdnosnidydx3
'S1143IN38 IDONIYA - 026 :TdnoJDidydx3 3oL

ALIYND3S TVID0S
JYVIIA3N
FDNVINSNI HITV3IH
10vd

Sd3d

000-¥T0CS-STT-T00
000-€T0CS-STI-T00
000-CT0¢S-STT-T00

S1I143N39 IDNIYA - 025 :Tdnoimidydx3

:3SN3dX3 1D3HIQ AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnosoidydx3 [e3oy

JNILY3A0
SIOVM B SIVIVS

000-TTOTS-STTI-TOO
000-0TOTS-STT-TO0

ISN3dX3 1D3¥1d AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnoinidydx3
100d SONIWWIMS - STT :3uawpedag

Jaquinpn unoddy

Hoday uosiedwo) 328png



001-116

COMMUNITY
RELATIONS



G 40 07 abed

WY 6¢:8%:8 2202/9/S

%000 000 00°000'82T 00°000'82T 00°000'8ZT 00°000'8ZT 00°000°00T
%000 000 00°000°SS 00°000'SS 00°000°SS 00°000°SS 00°000°SS
%00°0 000 00°000°0LT 00°000°0LT 00°000°0¥T 00°000°0t'T 00°000°0t'T
%000 000 000 000 00'STT'v¥e 00'STT'vHe SLv0T€8C
%00°0 000 00°000°0S 00°000°0S 00°000°0S 6v°265'TE 07°S9%'TS
%000 000 0000052 0000052 00°000°S2 €1°986'¢T S9'€EET9C
%000 000 0000052 00°000°S¢ 00°000°SZ 9£'909°9T SSTET'ST
%00°0 000 00°07T'SEE 00°02T'SEE 00°000°8T 65°800°9 78'808'S
%000 000 000057 00005°C 00°000°€ 00°0S€ 05'v88
%00°0 000 00°0SZ 00°0SZ 00°009 96'¥95 00°0LE
%000 000 000 000 000 000 666
%000 000 00000°9T€ 00°000°9T€ 000 000 000
%000 000 00000C 00°000'C 000 000 PE'ST9
%00°0 000 00052 00°0S2 00°00T 000 000
%000 000 00'68C 00°58C 00'05C 000 000
%000 000 00°009°T 00°009°T 00°009°T 16'S9%'T 000
%000 000 000 000 000 000 T6'vET
%00°0 000 00°St'T 00°Stt'T 00000t 00'SL 00°08T
%000 000 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 000 00°0%
%00°0 000 000 000 000 00°LYT 75851
%000 000 00°00S 00°00S 00005 000 000
%00°0 000 00°0v6'S 00°0v6S 00°000'% T0'€E€’E 000
%000 000 000 000 000 000 S50
%00°0 000 00'0SL 00°0S2 00°0SL S9TL 10°L0%
%00°0 000 00°002 00002 00'002 000 00'TT
%10°8 00°'6¥5C 00°6SE‘VE 00°018‘TE 00'S6EVS 8E°€L9TH 87'8€7'€9
%80°LT 00°8€T 00'9t6 00808 00°0T2°C 97'8€9'T PEYIYT
%0C t- 00°ZSP- 00°L0€0T 00°6SL°0T 00'T¥E02 TTvvt'L €E°LLOTT
%00°0 000 00'808°C 00'808°C 00919°S 69°780'C 87970t
%Ty9T 00'€98°C 00'862°0¢C 00'SEV'LT 00'822°92 7E'8SH'TE €E0TL'SY
%vT°LT  00°LbS‘6 00°€S2'S9 00°90L‘SS 00°00t°2ST 69°CYE90T +9°78L'8ST
%YT'LT  00°LYS'6 00'€SC'S9 00'90LSS 00°00¥'CST 69°TYE'90T ¥9°78L8ST

(aseaxaq) leuy aAnejua] 1e8png k301 Aoy jelol  Alady |ejop

/ @seasnu| €202-220C €207-2202 2202-1202 2202-1202 1202-0202

% 128png 199png jualed
juaied 03 128png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

Y3LIN3D 19V SAYVIN INIVS
Advdan

1S3HD WOD ALIAILDY HLNOA
OJA-Y31N3D ¥OIN3S

0TT-£00£5-9TT-T00
000-900£5-9TT-100
000-¥00£5-9TT-T00
000-C00Z5-9TT-T00

S32YNOS ONIDNVNIF ¥IHLO - 05 :Tdnoinidydx3
:SNO3INVTIIDSIN - 095 :Tdnoinidydx3 jeroy

AMXTNVE a004
JAMNVE 004

000-¥0¥9S-9TT-T00
000-£0t9S-9TT-T00

SNOANVTIIDSIN - 095 :Tdnoinydydx3

:SISNIAX3 TYNOILYYICO - 0€S :Tdnosnidydx3 |ejoL

S3DIAY3S TVNOISSIH0¥d
SNOILdI¥DSaNS B8 SINA
LND ¥OIN3S "ON-"INIVIN 5019
3DNVNILNIVIN ONIGTING
S3YIL

135310 B SVO

FYVYMLJ0S ¥43LNdWN0D
IN3W4IND3 ¥31NdINOD
JONVNILNIVIN 01NV
ONINIVYL

S317ddNS ONILVY3IdO
S3nin

3IDNVNILNIVN LN3INdIND3
T3AVYL

INOHdIT13L

S311ddNS 301440

39V1S0Od

000-0£0€5-9TT-T00
000-650€5-9TT-100
L¥T-£S0€5-9TT-100
000-£50€5-9TT-T00
000-T¥0€5-9TT-100
000-0v0€S-9TT-100
000-v€0€S-9TT-T00
000-0€0€S-9TT-100
000-620€5-9TT-100
000-v¢0€5-9TT-T00
000-70€5-9TT-100
000-9T0ES-9TT-100
000-€T0€S-9TT-T00
000-¢T0€S-9TT-T00
000-TT0€S-9TT-T00

$ISN3IdX3 TYNOILYYIJO - 0€S :Tdnosnidydx3

:S1143IN38 IONIYA - 026 :Tdnosnidydx3 |ejoL

3Y¥VIIA3IN
FDONVYNSNI HLTV3H
10vd

Sd3d

000-€T0Z5-9TT-100
000-CT0¢S-9TT-T00
000-TT0¢S-9TT-T00

S1143IN38 IDNIYA - 0TS :Tdnoinidydx3
:3SNIdX3 1D3Y10 AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnosoidydx3 |e3oy

SIOVM B SIVIVS

000-0TOTS-9TT-T00

ISN3IdX3 103410 AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnosnidydx3
SNOILY13Y ALINNWINOD - 9TT :3udwiiedag

13quINp JUN02dY

yoday uosiiedwo) 198png



S J0 17 3bed

WY 6v:8v:8 2202/9/S

%L0°T 00°960°CT 00°ZES'EVT'T 00°9ELTET'T 00°599°6S€‘T S6°609'86T°T 16'282°0ST'T
%00°0 000 00°000°659 00°000659 00°0£8°v80°T 08°Zv0°ZT0T L6°L86°0L6
%000 000 00°0SLvC 00°0SLvT 000 000 000
%000 000 00'000°0C 00°00002 00°000°0C 08°7LT'S 000
%000 000 00°0SZ'€ 00'0ST‘€T 00'000°S¢ 00'000°SZ 780019
%000 000 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 00'000°0T 00°000°0T
%000 000 000 000 000000 00'000°0Z 00°000SsT
%000 000 00°005°0L 00°005°0L 00°00S‘0L 00°0000L 00°00S°0L
%000 000 00"000°0T 00'000°0T 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 00°000°0T
%000 000 00'000°0ZT 00°000°0CT 00°000°0ZT 00°000°0ZT 00°000°0ZT
%000 000 000 000 00°Zv€'00T 00'S0v‘18 000
%000 000 000 000 00°€ETEVTT 00'0SL°SL 0b'Z89°€0T
%000 000 00°00S°LT 00°00S°LT 00°00S°LT 00°005°LT 00'00S°LT
(aseasnaq) leul4 aaneua] 198png |g101 Aoy jezop Aanoy |e3op
/ @seanu| €202-2202 €202-720C [44\Iag ¥4 174 [441raa ¥4ir4 1202-0202
% 199png 193png juasey
jualed 03 193png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

!SNOILVIIY ALINNINOD - 9TT :3udwiiedaq e3o)

1$3D4NO0S ONIDNVNI4 YIHLO - 0£S :Tdnooidydx3 [ejor

ALXD0LSWOD

JSIA HSVYL UNS
AY313INW3D

140ddNS WN3SN 3414
NIVML X4VIN

S3DIAY3S 3UVI HITV3IH
3SS0d d33r

TOOHDS QYVM H1dNO4
S34-4.10 YOIN3S

ALNNOD HLYON/SYOIN3S
NOILNILX3 3YNLINDIYOV AN

LYT-8T0LS-9TT-T00
000-vT0ZS-9TT-T00
Z¥T-600/5-9TT-100

Jaquinp 3unoy

Hoday uosiiedwo) 198png



001-117
COMMUNICATIONS



G 40 7z 3bed

WY 6+:8%:8 2202/9/S

:IN3JWNYIAO0D TVHINID - 0pS :Tdno1nidydx3 jejor

3IDINY3IST16

000-TTEYS-LTIT-TO0

AINJIWNYIAOD TVYINID - 0pS :Tdnosnidydx3
:SISN3dX3 TYNOILYYIO - 0€S :Tdnoinidydx3 je3o)

SIUNLXId ANV JUNLINYNG
SI9

SIDIAY3S TYNOISS340dd
SIN3W33Y¥OV INIVIN
3DNVNILNIVIN ONICTING
ALIYND3S

13S31a B SVO

SWYO4INN

FHVYMLIOS ¥3LNdNOD
LIN3INdIND3 ¥31NdINOD
FDNVNILINIVIN 01NV
ONINIVYL
SNOLLYDINNIWINOD
S3SV3IT ANV SIN3Y
S317ddNS ONILVY3dO
ONILNIYd
IDNVNILNIVIN LINIINDIND3I
"dI¥dsaNs B sana
T3AVYL

3INOHd3131

S317ddNS 321440

0/Z-0£0€5-LTT-T00
000-650€5-2TT-T00
000-0¥0€5-LTT-T00
000-6€0€5-£TT-T00
000-v€0€S-ZTT-T00
000-€€0€5-ZTT-T00
000-0€0€S-ZTT-T00
000-6¢0€S-LTT1-100
000-8Z0€S-LT1-T00
000-£Z0€S-ZTT-T00
000-7Z0€S-ZTT-100
000-0Z0€S-ZTT-T00
000-9T0€S-ZT1-100
000-vT0ES-ZTT-100
000-€TOES-LTT-T00
000-ZT0ES-LTT-T00
000-TTOES-ZTT-T00

SISNIdX3 TYNOILLYYIdO - 0€S :Tdnosnidydx3

:S1143IN38 IDNIYS - 02S :TdnosnIdydx3 |ejoL

3VIIQIN
FDONVYNSNI HLTV3IH
10vd

Sd3d

000-€T0CS-ZTT-T00
000-¢T0¢S-LTT-T00

%000 00'0 00°000'89 00°000'89 00°000'89 66°8Y9°0Z ¥S'LESST
%000 000 0000089 0000089 00°000'89 6687907 ¥S°LES'ST
%000 000 00°00£°08 00°00€°08 €0°0ET'E8 SL9TOTY TSLTLLL
%000 000 00°00SC 00°005C 00°00S'C 77'88¢ 80'695'€
%000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 00°000°S 05°L06 0S'88L'T
%000 000 00°000'T 000001 00°000°T S6'6€ €9°€SY'S
%000 000 00°005°T 000051 00°00S'T 66'1ST 10'T9T
%000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 00°000'9 6116 59°/89
%000 000 000 000 100 000 €T'E9Y'6
%000 000 00°009 00°009 00°009 OT'+1T S8'1TT
%000 000 00°002°T 000021 00'00Z'T 000 000
%000 000 00°00%'€C 00°00Y°€C 00°009°0Z 00°SEY'9T 89'8757C
%000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 00°000°S 0T'Z€T'T 6V v6TY
%000 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°00S 00°t0T 000
%000 000 000002 00000 00°000'9 ¥8°'6L8"Y 15°£S6'T
%000 000 00°00S'¥T 00°00SvT 10°000'ST 66'66L'8 9T'TE]'TT
%000 000 00°00T 00°00T 00°00T 00°00T vv'Srr's
%000 000 00°005'T 00°00S‘T 00°00S'T 60°S6L $6°0SS
%000 000 00°00S 00°00S 00005 0006 000
%000 000 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 000009 €ETIL 000
%000 000 00°00S 00005 00°0€9°€ 68°61 ¥8°TT
%000 000 000 000 000 L87€0€ 000
%000 000 00°0009 00°000°9 00°000°S 10°585'E S6'9E€Y
%000 000 00°005°T 00°005°T 10°00S'T 89°'T00'T STELOT
%86'€-  00VS9VI- 00°SLS€SE 00'622'89€ 00'vL6'8SE 65°675'T8¢ 95°99Z‘TvE
%T9'C 00°S¥Z 00'809°6 00'€9€'6 00°2€2°0T £9°206°L w9166
%68°€- 00'25T'9- 00°921°ZST 00'8LZ7°8ST 00'880°Z¥T 90'¥10°SeT L5°0LT'TST
%8EVE-  00'8ET'ET- 00°2LT'ST 00°0TS8€ 00°LEV'TY 9T EVETT 06°£99VT
%LLT 00'T6V'Y 00°69599T 00820791 00°£12'S9T YL '697°9€T L9TTH'S9T
%89°C 00'v6€°LT 00°LE€'999 00°€v6'8%9 00'59°S0L 06°SET'8SS 9L"EE]'E0L
%LL'T 00'ZST'T 00°0TLTY 00'85S‘TY 00°€95°0F ¥9°'T1SC8 96'020v0T
%L9°C 00°Z¥T9T 00°£29°€29 00°S8€°£09 00'T60°599 9T'vTL'SLY 08718665

(eseasaq) leuld anyejuad) jedpng jejol  Auamdy |elol  Alapoy |ejo)

/ 3seasnu| £202-2202 £202-2202 T20T-1202 T20T-1202 1202-0202

% 198png. 123png juaied
juaied 0} 398png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

S1143N39 IDNIYA - 0TS :Tdnoinidydx3

:3SNIdX3 1D3UIA AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnosnidydx] |ejoy
JNILYINO 000-TTOTS-ZTT-100
SIOVM B SIVIVS 000-0T0TS-ZTT-100
3ISN3dX3 103410 AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnoinidydx3
SNOLLYDINNWWWOD - £LTT :3uswpedaq
Jaquinn Junoly

yoday uosuedwo) 328png



S J0o €7 abed

WY 6v:8%:8 2Z02/9/S

%ET0 00°0vLC 00°CIZ'SLTT 00°ZLY'TLT'T €0'8SL°722'T 08'v€6°206 90°T/8SST'T
%00°0 000 00°000‘S 00°000°S 00°000°‘S 68°861'T 86°LS6°9T
%000 000 00°000S 00°000°S 00'000°S 68'86V'T 000
%000 000 000 000 000 000 86'£569T
%000 000 00°000°Z 00°000°C 00°000° 89'% 000
%000 000 00°000C 00°000C 00°000C 89t 000
(aseasdaq) Jeuty anneusL 1@3png je3oL  Auamdyjelol  Auamdy jeloL
/ @seanu| €202-220C €202-720¢ 220Z-120¢ 20z-1202 1202-020T
% 123png 198png jualed
juaied 03 1938png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

!SNOILYDINNININOD - LTT :3uswisedaq |e3oL

:0v9 - 0v9 :TdnoJo1dydx3 [ejoy
¥3LNdWOD 000-09T¥9-LTT-T00
AVILNO TV1lIdYD 000-0TO¥9-ZTT-100
09 - 0v9 :Tdnoioidydx3

:SNO3INVTIIDSIA - 095 :Tdnoinidydx3 jejor
SNOINVTIIDSIN 000-00595-2T1-100
SNOANVTIIISIN - 095 :Tdnosnidydx3
aquinN unody

Jo0day uosuedwo) 123png



001-118
SERVICE



$S 40 pz 3bed

WY 6t:8%:8 2202/9/S

%¢S°0 00°SST‘E 00°€00°029 00°818919 00°€EE86Y OV'616°EEY 1"080°06€
%00°0 000 00°000°9T 00°000°9T 00°000°02 00°058‘8T 16'78€T
%000 000 00°000°9T 00°000°9T 00°00002 00'058°8T 16'78€'T
%00°0 000 00°0SL 00°0SL 00°02¢L 00°86T 000
%00°0 000 00°0SZ 00°0SL 00°0CL 00'86T 000
%00°0 000 00°00v°0Z1 00°00v°02T 0002098 9T°vI8'STI 443745
%000 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°00S 000 000
%000 000 00°00%'S 00°00%‘S 00766t 16°STT'E 0£'656°€
%000 000 00'000°TT 00°000°TT 00°000°s 0Z'STST 96'S80°T
%000 000 00°000°LZ 00'000°2T 00'000°LT ¥8°'L62'18 0v'0zZL'6T
%000 000 00'000¥T 00'000%T 00825 ST'TEET 8789
%000 000 00°000C 00°000°C 00°000T T9°789T 000
%000 000 000009 000009 000009 TT6LE'S 19'SYE’S
%000 000 00°000°S 00'000°S 00°00S°€ ST'80T 000
%000 000 00°000°SY 00°000°SY 00°000°0€ 0£°€50°0T €LvLT'ET
%000 000 00°00Sy 00°00St 00005y 67°0€ET 8E'ISY
%000 000 000 000 000 000 0082LT
%CET- 00°2LET- 00°S8V‘LLT 00°LS8°6LT 00°068°EHT 8v°'S9T V0T 18°S92'STT
%981 00’18 00'8¢Y'y 00°LYE Y 00°£8S°E T9°68Y°C 87'8SL°C
%89°¢- 00'80LC- 00'196°0L 00'699°€L 00°£TT’ES '8L9'6E 86°0CL'vY
%896~ 00'0LE‘T- 0094LTT 009YTvT 00°SZL VT 0,625t 8ETULT'S
%S8'T 00'529T 000Z€'68 00'569°L8 00'TSETL SLLOYLS LT'YT9°79
%S8°T 00°LSS‘S 00°89€°S0€ 00°T1866C 00°€0L°LYT 9,°168V6T 0S'T8TL1T
%000 000 000 000 000 L9°60€T 18'180°T
%S8'T 00°LSS‘S 00'89€°S0€ 00'T18°66¢ 00'€0L°LYT 60'78S'€6T 69°00T°9TZ

(eseasdaq) Jeuiy4 annejual] 198png |e101 Aanoy jero) Ainnoy jeyo)

/ @seanu| €202-2202C €202-7202 2202-1202 2202-1202 1202-0202

% 198png 128png jualed
juaied 0} 198png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

:3DIAY3S - 8TT :3udwpedaq |e3oL

1019 - 019 :Tdnoun3dydx3 |e3op
AV1LNO TV1IdVvD 000-0T079-8TT-T00
0v9 - 0v9 :Tdnosnidydx3
*INJNYIN0D TVHINID - 0pS :Tdnosoidydx] je3o)
SIVDISAHd - VDIQ3N 000-STEYS-8TT-100
AINIWNYIAOD TVHINIO - 0vS :Tdnosnidydx3

:SISN3dX3 TYNOILYYIdO - 0€S :Tdnosnidydx3 |e3or
SINIWIIYOV INIVIN 000-650€5-8TT-100
AYANNY 000-€S0€S-8TT-100
S3YIL 000-TPOES-8TT-T00

135310 B SVO 000-070€S-8TT-T00
IYVYMLIOS ¥3ILNJNOD 000-¥€0ES-8TT-100
Y3LNdINOD 000-€€0ES-8TT-T00
IDNVNILNIVIN OLNY 000-0€0€S-8T1-100
ONINIVYL 000-620€5-811-100

$311ddNS ONILYY¥IHO

IDNVNILNIVIA LNIWJIND3 000-9T0¢S-811-100

SNOILJI¥ISENS 8 S3INA 000-¥T0ES-811-100
S3ISN3dX3 TYNOILYYIdO - 0€S :Tdnoin3dydx3

000-¥20€S-8TT-T00

:S1143IN38 IONIYS - 026 :Tdnosnidydx3 |e3o)
IYVIIA3N 000-€T0ZS-8TT-T00
JONVYNSNI HLTV3IH 000-¢T0ZS-8TT-100
10vd 000-TT0ZS-8TT-100
SY3d 000-0T0ZS-8TT-100
S114IN38 IDNIYS - 02§ :Tdnounidydx3
:3SN3dX3 10381A AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnosnidydx3 [e3o)
JNILYINO 000-TTOTS-8TT-100
SIOVM B SIYVIVS 000-0TOTS-8TT-T00
ISN3dX3 103Y1A AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnoinidydx3
IDIAY3S - 8TT ‘uawpedaq
JaquinnN Junoddy

Hoday uosuedwo) 128png



001-119
IT



¥ Jo 1 abed

WY 6S:2t:0T 2202/9/S

%€E0'9T-  00°000°S- 00°00Z°9Z 00°00Z°T€ 00°00S'6L LETIZOL 66°0L5°98
%000 000 00°00TZVT 00°00T‘Z¥T 00°0SE'8Y 8%'T89°6€ ST'19T
%000 000 00°00S°LT 00°00S°LT 000052 000 ¥1°959
%000 000 00°00T°C 00°00T°C 000 000 000
%¥0'CC-  TO'SL8TT- 00°000C¥ TO'SL8ES 00°000°0Z vL0LT'6 8'SLT'Y
%000 000 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 000 87°S6¢E
%000 000 00°000°ST 00°000°ST 00°000°ST weeL's TSTEY'E
%000 0S'0T 00°€60°0Z€ 05'280°02€ 00°00L'06 LT99ELS 80'8¥S'6€
%000 000 00°00L°L 00°00LL 00°000°L LL'68Y'9- L8°€60'8
%000 000 00°00S°LT 00°00S°LT 00°000C LSTSTT S9°789°€
%000 000 00°009°9 00°009°9 00°0009 68'S6L'E 98'6v6'T
%000 96T 00°0Z8'LET $0'8T8°LET 00°008°9Y €5°0L6'TY 70°96€91
%TL9v-  00°000°CC- 00°00T°ST 00001 LY 00°000°0Z 00'89S'S ¥8'0vT'TeT
%000 000 00°00S'S 00°00S'S 00°000°S 000 00°069
%000 000 000499 00'0£9°9 00'000°€ Tv'L86 6L7786C
%000 000 000 000 00'000°S 000 L6'TL8T
%000 000 00°00S°L 000052 00°0009 0T'80¥'E €L'VL9'TT
%000 000 00012T 00'012T 000 68°6T 000
%000 000 00°00TT 00°00T°T 00'000T 000 000
%000 000 00°00S'8 00°00S'8 00°000°0T LTTT6'Y 7€'€009
%000 000 00'000°C 00°000C 00°000'T 56966 76'S8€
%1v°0- 00°€L0°T- 00°65£8S¢ 00°7€8'65¢ 00°T00°€vZ 10°8ZE'TLT 78297061
%00°0 000 000 000 000 08°9SS 000
%Y 00061 00°ZYvL’S 00'75S’S 00'16€’S LL80T'Y TTT8EY
%L6'€- 00°£60°S- 00'8ET'ECT 00°S€T'8TT 007T8VIT 0v'655TL v6°LST'88
%000 000 00°0v0vT 00°0v0vT 00°0v0vT 89°EYT'L €€°€59°9
%€ 00'v€8'E 00'6€8'STT 00'500'7TT 00'8%.'80T 9€'656'98 ¥€'696°06
%LY'E 00°90T°ET 00°0€0°96€ 00'v26'28€ 00°L8LTLE 99°STYE62 6L°T6C'VIE
%CY'E 00'90T'€T 00°0£0'96€ 00'v26T8€ 00°L8LTLE 99°'STY'e6T 6L°C6TVTE

(eseasnaq) leui4 anpejual 328png |e30L Ananoy jejol Aoy jejop

/ @seanu| €202-220C €202-7207 2202-1202 2202-120T 1202-020C

% 1°8png 198png juaied
judied 0} 198png

AJewwing JUNO2JY

T uosuedwo)

11oday uosiiedwo) 198png

1 uosuedwo)

S3DIAY3S TYNOISSIF0Ud
SINIW3IYOV LNIVIN
JIDNVNILNIVIA ONIQTING
S100L

ALI¥ND3S

S3YIL

135310 B SVO

JYYML40S YILNDINOD
IN3IHIND3 ¥3LNdWOD
JDNVNILINIVIN OLNY
ONINIVYL
SNOLLYDINNININOD
S3SV31 ANV SIN3Y
SYlvd3y

$311ddNS ONILVY3dO
S3LLniLN

JDNVNILNIVIN INIWAIND3
SNOLLdI¥DSENS/sINa
13AVYL

INOHdITIL

$3NddNS 321440

000-0Z0€5-6T1-100
000-650€5-611-100
000-ZS0€S-6TT-100
000-¥S0€5-6T1-100
000-TSOES-6T1-100
000-T¥0€S-6T1-100
000-0v0€S-6TT-100
000-7€0€5-6TT-100
000-0€0€S-6T1-T00
000-6¢0€5-6TT-100
000-870€S-611-T00
000-£70€S-6TT-T00
000-9¢0€S-6TT-T00
000-7Z0€S-6TT-100
000-Z¢0€S-6TT-100
000-9T0ES-6TT-100
000-¥TOES-6TT-100
000-€TOES-6TT-100
000-CTOES-6TT-T00
000-TTOES-6TT-T00

S3SN3IdX3 TYNOILYHIJO - 0€S :Tdnoinidydx3

:S1143IN38 IDNIYL - 0TS :TdnoiDIdydx] |e3oL

dWOD IN3IW3IAOTdNINN
3YVIIA3IN

JONVINSNI HLTV3H
1Jvd

Sd3d

000-ST0CS-6TT-100
000-€T0¢S-6TT-100
000-CT0ZS-6T1-T00
000-TTOCS-6TT-100

S1143N38 IDNIY4 - 02§ :Tdnosnidydxy

:3SN3dX3 1D341a AYVIVS - 0TS :1dnoinidydx3 |e3oL

S3OVM B S3I¥VIVS

000-0TOTS-6T1-T00

3SN3dX3 103410 AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnoinidydx3
11- 61T :3uauniedag
JaquInN 3unody

ALNNOD A3YOLS




40 7 abed

WY 65:2+:0T 2202/9/S

%LY T 08°525°8¢- 00°780°61S‘T 08°£09°LSS‘T 00'811°920°T T6'ELT'SEL 0Z'v16°S9L
%LY'T- 08'525°8¢- 00°Z80°61S‘T 08°L09°LSS‘T 00°8TT920‘T 16°ELT'SEL 0Z'vT6°S9L
%bvL- 00°002‘v- 00°0S2°TS 00°0Sv°9S 00'08€°61 SL'885°6 85°€20°
%t L- 00002t~ 00°052TS 00°0S¥'9S 00°08€6T SL'885°6 8S'€20°¢
%00°0 00°0 00°00T 00°00T 00°00T IT°6v6'6 67°6TT'T
%00°0 000 000 000 000 000 £€9720C
%000 000 000 000 000 €T'¥9L'6 000
%00°0 000 00°00T 00°00T 00°00T 8681 9996
%0v°S- 08'8SE‘9- 00°€V6‘TT8 08'T0E‘8S8 00°0S8‘T6€ 8€°288°05C TL'STT9ST
%S6'8€-  ST96VL- 00'0SL'TT STovT'6T 00°000°0T 918816 8L'890'Y
%00°0 000 00°000°S 00°000°'S 00°000°S 00'00S‘€ 00°'SET
(aseasnaq) leuly anneual 1edpngjelol  Auanov jelol  Alapoy |ejoL
/ @seanu| €202-220T €202-720C (4414 74114 2202-1202 1202-020C
% 328png 198png jualed
jualed 03 398png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

:|eyo] Hoday
111 - 6TT :3uawisedaq |ejoL

:0v9 - 0v9 :Tdnoinidydx3 jeio}
1N3INGIND3 ¥Y3LNdWOD 000-09T¥9-611-100
09 - 0v9 :Tdnosoidydx3
:SNOINVTIIDSIN - 095 :Tdnosnidydx3 [e3oL
318110NA3d IDNVINSNI 000-¢0995-6TT-100
1N33YOV 1SIHD ALINNWINOD 000-7Z595-6TT-T00
SNO3NVTIIDSIN 000-00595-61T-100
SNO3INVTIIDSIW - 095 :Tdnoinidydx3

:$3SN3dX3 TYNOILYY3dO - 0€S :Tdno1oidydx3 jejor
S3YNLXI4 ANV FUNLINYNA 000-CZ0€S-6TT-100
SI9 0/7-0£0€5-611-100
JaquinN unoxy

Hoday uosuedwo) 198png



001-121
COMPTROLLER



+G 40 £Z abed

WY 6¥:8%:8 2202/9/S

‘¥ITIOYLdWOD - TZT :3udwpredaq |e3o)

%TS'E 00°€v2'0T 00°£9096S 00'vZ8'SLS 00°T80'TTS 96°L0L0TY 0E'199°6EY
%000 000 00°0 000 000 €E'€8T 000
%000 000 000 000 000 €E'E8T 000
%8E'E 00°00S‘t 00°009°LET 00°00T‘EET 00°SZ6°€CT L1°982°00T 0L°72€°88
%000 000 00°000°8% 00°000'8t 00°000'8t 00°00S°LY 00°00S°0t
%000 000 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 66°0S8'T €9°278
%000 000 00'00895 00°008'9S 00'00€'LY 8LETLLE 86'8V€'SE
%000 000 00°002°T 00°00Z'T 00°00Z°T 0S'tTE SLET18
%000 000 00°SSL'T 00°SSL°C 00°00Z°€ 87°L00C LSTSET
%000 000 00'000't 00°000't 00000t LELYY'T L0'88TC
%YL 1T 00°005°T 00°00t‘8 00°006'9 00°0S¥‘9 9v'82Z‘¢ 86°0LS'T
%00'0 000 00'00S‘T 00°00S'T 0000S'T 0€'0TE'T €8°€86'T
%00°0 000 00°S6T‘T 00'S6T'T 00°549 ¥9°SYT'T 88'6€9
%00°09 00°000°€ 00°000°8 00°000'S 00°000°S St'STLT 000
%00°0 000 00°00S 00°00S 0000S5'T 000 0L'86%
%000 000 000007 00°000'C 00000C 88'1Z8'T 6'TULET
%000 000 00052 00°0S¢ 00°00T 7S°0€T 6€°0€C
%TET 00802t 00°S€6°S8T 00°£2L'18T 00" v¥1'8YT 79°L90°LTT TTT68TET
%000 000 000 000 000 LTVTE 000
%y 00891 00256’ 00'¥8.'€ 0099%°€ 6'S¥9°C 8%°756°C
%68 '€ 00't89°¢- 00'S€0'T6 00'6TLtV6 00°€v€'99 9€'5507S ¥6'85€°09
%000 000 00CET'TT 00°Z€TTT 00'vZv'8 9L°€9L'Y 6V vv6'y
%ELOT 00v2L'L 00'9TL'6L 00°266TL 0011669 Tv°88C°LS 0£'9€9°€9
%IV 00°SESTT 00°7€S'TLT 00°,66°092 00°210°6€2 ¥8°0L0°€6T 6E°9VY'6TT
%00°0 000 000 000 000 vLv8 €0°'TC
%'t 00'SES'TT 00'2€STLT 00°£66°09T 00'2T0'6€C 0T'986C6T 9€'STY'6TT

(asea1d2q) leuly ELULUET @dpng |e3ol  Auamdyelol  Alapoy |ejol

/ @seasnu| €202-2202 €202-2202 2202-1202 2202-1202 1202-0202

% 1e3png 198png juaied
juaied 03 198png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

:SNO3NVTIIDSIW - 095 :Tdnoanidydx3 je3ol

SNO3NVTI3DSIN

000-005995-T¢T-T00

SNO3ANVTIIDSIN - 095 :Tdnoinidydx3

:SISN3dX3 TYNOILYYHIdO - 0€S :Tdnoinidydx3 |ezop

139ang/Lany
S3UNLXI4 ANV JYNLINYNA
S3DIAY3S TYNOISSII0YHd
S3DILON DgNnd
IYVYMLI0S Y3LNDINOD
1IN3INJIND3I ¥3LNdINOD
ONINIVYL

S3SVITANV SINIY
"d1¥2$8NS 3 S3na
J3AVYL

INOHdI13L

$3ddNS 321440
39V1S0d

000-060€5-TCT-T00
000-¢Z0€5-T¢T-T00
000-0£0€5-T¢T-100
000-8¥0ES-TZT-T00
000-7€0€5-TT-T00
000-€€0€S-TCT-T00
000-6¢0€5-TCT-100
000-£¢0E5-T¢T-T00
000-¥TOES-TCT-T00
000-€TOES-TZT-100
000-TTOES TCT-100
000-0TOES-TCT-100

S3SN3IdX3 TYNOILYHIJO - 0€S :Tdnosnidydx3

:S114IN38 IDNIYA - 026 :Tdnoinidydx] |e3o)

dIWOD INIWAOTdWINN
FYVOIAIN

IDNVINSNI HLTV3H
10vd

Sd3d

000-STOCS-TZT-T00
000-€T0¢S-TCT-100
000-CT0CS-TZT-100
000-TT0CS-TCT-T00
000-0T0CS-TZT-T00

S1143IN38 IONIYS - 026 :Tdnosnidydxy

:ISNIdX3 173410 AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnosnidydx3 |e3ol

3JNILYIAO
SIOVM B SINVIVS

000-TTOTS-TZT-T00
000-0TOTS-TZT-T00

3SN3dX3 13¥1d AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnosnidydxa
¥3ITI0¥LdINOD - TZT :uswiiedaq

Jaquinp Junoddy

1oday uosiuedwo) 398png



001-125
SENIOR SERVICES



$S 40 gz abed

WY 6¥:8+:8 2202/9/S

%L0°T 00°¥8T°0T 0091096 00°086°6v6 00°0 00°0 000
%00°0 000 00°000‘0t2 00°000°0vC 00°0 000 000
%000 000 00°000°0Z 00°000°0Z 000 000 000
%000 000 00°000°02T 00°000°02T 000 000 000
%00°0 000 00°0S0°0ZT 00°0S0°0ZT 000 000 000
%000 000 00°0ST 00°0ST 000 000 000
%00°0 000 00°00S‘T 00°00S‘T 000 000 000
%000 000 00008 00008 000 000 000
%000 000 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 000 000 000
%000 000 00°00S°S 00°00S‘S 000 000 000
%0070 000 00°000°€ 00000 000 000 000
%000 000 00°00S‘8 00°00S‘8 000 000 000
%000 000 00°000°T 00°000‘T 000 000 000
%00°0 000 00°00S‘L 00°00S°L 000 000 000
%000 000 00°00S‘T 0000S°T 000 000 000
%000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 000 000 000
%0070 000 00°000°L 00°000°L 000 000 000
%000 000 00°000°0€ 00°000°0€ 000 000 000
%0070 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 000 000 000
%000 000 000008 00°000'8 000 000 000
%000 000 00°00S°L 0000SL 000 000 000
%000 000 00°0000T 00°000°0T 000 000 000
%000 000 00°00S°~ 00°00SL 000 000 000
%00°0 000 00°00S 00°00S 000 000 000
%1CT 00° Tt 00°£8LV0T 00°9v€°202 00°0 00°0 000
%910 0001 00°L¥b’9 00°LEV9 000 000 000
%66'T 00711 00°Z€EL'S 00°029°S 000 000 000
%8L €~ 00°0TLC- 00°€¥0'69 00°€SLTL 000 000 000
%EEB 00'808°C 00'70S9€ 00'969°€E 000 000 000
%C9°C 00'T22'C 0019028 00°0¥8v8 000 000 000
%00°C 00°EVLL 00°LZ€'S6E 00°'v8S°L8E 00°0 000 000
%00°C 00°€EVL'L 00°LTE'S6E 00'¥8S°L8E 000 000 000

(aseasaq) |eulq aAnejua] 133png |B30) Aianoy jejol Aanoy |e30L

/ 3seanu) €20Z-220¢ €20Z-720t ¢e0e-120t T202-120¢ 120Z-0202

% 128png 123png juaied
juaied 0} 198png

1 uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

1193U?) JOIUaS - §ZT ‘Juawpedaq [e10L

:SNO3ANVTIIISIN - 095 :Tdnosoidydx3 jejo)

WNINIYd IDNVINSNI
IWOD/S1V3N Y04 1S0D 004

000-00995-S¢T-T00
000-90595-S¢T-T00

SNO3ANVTIIISIN - 095 :TdnoiDIdydx3

:SISN3dX3 TYNOILLYY3dO - 0€S :Tdnosnidydx3 |eoL

ONISILYIAQY

S3DIAY3S TYNOISS340dd
SNOILJI4IS8NS B S3INA
FONVNILNIVIA ONIATING
ALI¥ND3S

S3YIL

13S310 B SVO
FYVMLI0S ¥3LNdNOD
IN3INdIND3 ¥3LNdNOD
FDNVNILINIVIN 01NV
ONINIVYL

S317ddNS ONILYY3d0
S3nin

ONILNIYd

IDNVNILNIVIAN ININGIND3
13AVYL

3INOHd3T3L

S311ddNS 301440
39v1S0Od

000-T09€5-S¢T-T00
000-0Z0€5-5¢T-100
000-650€5-S¢T1-100
000-£S0€S-SCT-T00
000-TS0€5-5¢T-100
000-TP0E5-GCT-100
000-0v0€5-S¢T-100
000-7€0€5-SCT-100
000-€€0€S-SZT-100
000-0€0€5-S¢T-100
000-620€5-S¢1-100
000-720€5-SCT-100
000-2Z0€5-S¢T-100
000-0¢0€S-SZT-100
000-9T0ES-SCT-T00
000-€T0€5-SCT-100
000-CT0€5-5¢T-100
000-TTOES-SCT-100

S3SN3dX3 TYNOILYY3dO - 0€S :Tdnosnidydx3y
:S1143IN39 IDNIYA - 02§ :Tdnoiidydx3 |ejoL

ALIYND3S VID0S
3Y¥VOIA3N
FDONVINSNI H1TV3H
10vd

SY3d

000-¥T0¢5-SCT-100
000-€T0ZS-SCT-100
000-CT0¢S-S¢T-T00
000-0T0¢5-5¢T-100

S1143N38 IONIY4 - 075 :Tdnosmidydx3
:3SNIdX3 1D341A AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnosnidydx3 [e3oL

SIOVM B SINVIVS

000-0TOTS-SCT-T00

ISN3dX3 1D3Y1a AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnosnidydxy

133U 101UdS - GZT ;Juawpedaq

JaqWINN JUN02Y

Hoday uosuedwo) 128png



001-142

EMERGENCY
MANAGEMENT



S 40 67 abed

WY 6t:8%:8 2202/9/S

%EV'T 00°£86'C ov'SYT'1IZ 01°85280C LT'SOVLLT TI8°'6€ET'STT 88°LET9S
%00°0 000 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 69°L20°'SC V6'SELT
%000 000 00'0000T 00°0000T 00°000°0T 69°LT0ST Y6'SELT
%000 000 0v'S0E‘89 0v"S0E89 00°0S€°LS €8'899'6 €€°6L0VT
%000 000 00'000°S 00°000°S 00°000°S 00°/8 0S'Zer
%000 000 00"000°0€ 00°000°0€ 00"000°0€ 78'8T¥'8T 8T'880°€
%000 000 000 000 000 000 0z'zot
%000 000 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 00000°T T0°Z0L €0'8St
%000 000 ov'v87'T ov'v8T‘T 00°00S LTE0E €'9STT
%000 000 00000 00°000C 00°00S‘T L6°TS 000
%000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 00°000°€ 89°79%'T 86'09ST
%000 000 00°0LT'C 00'04T‘C 00°000% 00°6%€T G8'05T'8
%000 000 00°00S‘t 00°00S‘Yy 00'00SY 8E'SLY SLY6L9
%000 000 00°009 00°009 000 00'96¢ 000
%000 000 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 00°00S‘T 000 000
%000 000 00°009 00°009 00°0S€E 00°SLE 000
%000 000 00°TST'8 00°'TST'8 00°000°€ 89'61C'E 000
%000 000 00°00S°C 00°00S°C 0000S°C 8T'vL9C 8€'858'T
%000 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°00S vLTST €0°LLT
%679~ 00°LTSC- 00°T1ISLE 0062001 LT°S90VE 8€°0€Z'9T €S°6TSL
%000 000 000 000 000 (SETY S6'EVET
%909 0064 00'€8€T 00'v0€‘T 00°€0T‘T 01°049 €7°69¢
%000 000 00'80t°S 00'80t°'S LT'S8L'Y 90°082°C S8'S/9Y
%L6'65- 0090t~ 00808 00'vT0L 00'Z€6°S 0S°099°T 0S'0ET'T
%C1'9 000T9'T 00°€16°LT 00°€0€°9T 00'Sv2'Te 0Z°90ZTT 000
%19 00'v0S‘S 00'82v'S6 00'vZ6'68 00°0S0°9L T16°CT vy 80°€08‘TC
%000 000 000 000 000 L678°T 000
%C19 00'v0S’S 00'8T¥'S6 007668 00'0S0°9L 6T°€E8ETY 80'€08TT

(eseasaq) |euly anneua) 198png |g101 Aanoy 301 Aoy jejor

/ @seanu) €202-720¢ €202-2202 220Z-1202 2202-1202 1202-0202

% 3e3png 193png juaseqd
juaied 0} 198png

T uosuedwo)

1 uosuedwo)

{INIWIDVNVIN ADNIDYINI - ZrT :3uawisedaq |e3ol

:INJWINYIAO0D TVHINID - 0vS :Tdnosnidydx] |e3oy

NOILVOLLIW ADN3IOY3IN3

000-06Et¥S-¢¥T-T00

AINIWNYIAO0D TVHINID - 0pS :Tdnoinidydx3

:S3ISN3dX3 TYNOILYYIdO - 0€S :Tdnoinidydx3 je3oy

SI9 0£¢-0Z0ES-C¢PT-100

S3DIAY3S TYNOISSIH0Yd 000-0£0€S-¢¥T-100
S3YIL 000-TP0ES-¢vI-T00

135310 3 SVO 000-0v0€5-¢vT-100
JYVYML40S ¥3I1NdNOD 000-7€0€S-¢HT-100

1N3NdIND3 ¥3LNdNOD
3DNVNILNIVIN OLNY

000-€€0ES-CPT-T00
000-0£0€S-¢v1-100

ONINIVYL 000-6¢0€S-¢vI-T00

S31MddNS ONILYYIdO 000-%¢0€S-¢rT-100
S3ILniLN 000-220€S-¢vT-100

ONILNIYd 000-0¢0€S-¢vI-100

*d1¥2s8Ns 8 $Ina 000-¥TOES-¢vTI-100
REINATN 000-€T0ES-¢PTI-100

INOHdI13L 000-CT0ES-¢PI-T00

$311ddNS 321440

000-TTOES-CYT-TOO

SISN3IdX3I TYNOILYYIO - 0€S :Tdnoinydydx3
:S1143N38 IONIYS - 0ZS :TdnosDidydx] |ejoL

ALI¥ND3S TVIDOS 000-%T0ZS-¢PT-T00
FYVIIQIN 000-€T0¢S-¢vT-T00
IDNVYNSNI HLTV3IH 000-¢T0¢S-¢vI-T00
10vd 000-TT0¢S-¢vT1-100

SY¥3d 000-0T0¢S-¢v1-100

S1143IN39 IONIYA - 02§ :Tdnoinidydx3
:3SN3dX3 1D3Y10 AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnounidydx3 [e3o)

JNILY3IA0
SIOVM B SIVIVS

000-TTOTS-C¥T-100
000-0T0TS-¢¥1-T00

3ISN3dX3 1D3HIA AUVIVS - 0TS :Tdnooidydx3
INIWIOVNYIN ADNIDYIW3 - ZvT :udwiedag
Jaquiny uno2dy

1oday uosuedwo) 328png



001-143
PLANNING



¥ J0 1 3bed

WY 9%:05:0T 2Z0Z/9/S

Atewwing Junodoy

%000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 00°000°S 00°0T¢C 0S'EvYy
%000 000 00°00S‘SLT 00°00S°SLT 00'000'vZT TTLT8'E S6'vY9EL
%000 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°00S 6v°0SY 8T LBL
%000 000 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 0g0ze 0S'60L°T
%000 000 00°0S9 00°0S9 00°00S 99°991 0T'LE
%000 000 00'SETY 00'SETY 00°00T v'z89 62°68C'T
%000 000 000529 000529 00002 000 86'61
%000 000 00°000T 00°000'T 00°000°T 000 000
%000 000 00°0009 00°0009 00'00€‘E 4 &34 96'€91
%000 000 00°000°ST 00°000°ST 00°000°ST 000 000
%000 000 000 000 000 000 00°EY
%000 000 00°00t 00°00% 00°00% 000 000
%000 000 00°00T 00°00T 00°00T 000 000
%000 000 00000 00°000C 00°00Z°C 88'I8Y'T 00°zzs
%000 000 00005 00°00SC 00°00SC 7S'6L 9€'6S
%000 000 00'000°T 00°000T 00'000T S0'686 Z8'1LS
%000 000 00°000'T 00000T 00°000'T 0T'64C 6L°76€
%00°0 000 00°000°T 00°000°T 00°000°T 89'89 64'8SC
%S9°T 00°T9S‘T 00°L00°96 00°9vv'v6 00°9PTPIT 61°82599 YETI9VL
%000 000 00°002'T 0000Z°C 00288 9€'€0T vTTve
%08'Y 00'vET 00'826'C 00'v6LC 00°S0T‘E 60°€6LT €8'786T
%9L°€E- 00'6L7°T- 00'9€LCE 00'STOvE 00°029°CY 0L°L9Y'vT v€'79L8C
%000 000 00'90.°6 009046 00'90L°6 SS'6L6°C 1L6°66Y'E
%C6°S 00'90LC 00°'LEV'8Y 00'TEL'SY 00'8Z8°LS 6v'¥80°LE 96°€Z0°0Y
%08V 00°252°6 00°0€6'10C 00°8£9°C6T 00" TVI‘PIT 69°vTI18CT 8L E9E‘EVT
%000 000 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 00000°€ 000 96°€6
%88 002526 00'0€6°86T 00'8/9°68T 00'TYTI'TTC 69'vTT'8CT 78°697'€VT

(aseasaq) leuty annejud) 1e8png k3oL Auadvjelol  Auandy jejol

/ 3seanu) €202-2202 €202-7202 220Z-1202 220Z-120C 1202-0202

% 193png 328png juaieq
jualed 0} 123png

T uosuedwo)

}1oday uosiedwo) 123png

T uosuedwo)

SI9

S3DIAY3S TYNOISSII0dd
40ddNS/SLNIWIIYOV INIVIN
S3D1LON Jnand

13S310 B SVO

3YVYMIIO0S ¥31LNdWNOD
LIN3IWdIND3 ¥3LNdWOD
3DNVNILNIVIN 01NV
ONINIVYL

TOYINOD d3Im

3SN3dX3 ONILVYY3IdO
ONILNIYd

JONVNILNIVIN IN3NGIND3
'dI¥ISaNs B sand

13AVYL

INOHd3T13L

$311ddNS 321340

39V1LSOd

0/¢-0£0€S-€vT-T00
000-020€S-€¥T-T00
000-650€S-€¥T-100
000-8Y0€S-EVT-100
000-0v0€S-€¥T-100
000-7E0ES-EVT-T00
000-€€0€5-€EVT-T00
000-0€0€S-€¥T-T00
000-6C0€S-E¥T-T00
000-SZ0€S-€vT-100
000-7C0ES-EVT-T00
000-020€S-€¥T-T00
000-9T0ES-E¥T-T00
000-¥TOES-E¥T-100
000-€TOES-E¥T-T00
000-CTOES-€EVT-T00
000-TTOES-€¥T-T00
000-0TOES-€EVT-T00

SISN3dX3 TYNOILYYIdO - 0€S :Tdnoinidydx3y

*S1143IN38 IONIYS - 0ZS :TdnosDidydx3 |eoL

ALIYND3S TVID0S
JYVOIQ3IN
3ONVYNSNI HLTV3H
10vd

Sd3d

000-¥T0¢S-€¥T-100
000-€T0CS-EVI-T00
000-¢TOCS-EVT-T00
000-TTOZS-EVT-T00
000-0T0CS-€VT-T00

S114IN38 IONIYL - 02S :TdnosDIdydx3

:3SN3dX3 103410 AYVIVS - 016 :Tdnounidydx3 |e30)

JNILY3INO
S3IOVM 8 SIVIVS

000-TTOTS-E¥T-T00
000-0TOTS-€E¥T-T00

3SN3dX3 123410 AYVIVS - 0TS ‘Tdnoinidydx3
IN31YVd3a ONINNVYd - EPT 3udwiedaq

ALNNOD A3YHOLS

J3QWINN JUN02JY




t 40 7 sbed

WY 9+:0S:0T 2202/9/S

%TT°T 00°€18°0T 00°2L0v2S 00°'6SZ'€TS 00°L8€E'06Y 2S°'1S9°€0T ¥5°905'862
%ITC 00°€T8°0T 00°2£0'v2S 00'65C°€TS 00°L8E'06Y 75°1S9°€0T ¥5°905'862
%00°0 000 00°00S 00°00S 000 000 000
%000 000 00°00S 00°00S 000 000 000
%00°0 00°0 00°5€9°s22 00°S€9°52C 00°00T°29T ¥9°800°6 r'1ES08
%000 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°00Z°T 000 00885
(2seas2q) leuly anuejual je8png|eiol  Auapdy(elol  Ajandy eol
/ @seanu| €202-27202 €202-220T 2202-1202 2202-1202 1202-0202
% 128png 193png juaied
juaied 0} 198png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

:|e30) Joday
:INJ1¥VYd3a ONINNVId - €T :uawisedaq |e3oL

:SNOINVIIIISIN - 095 :TdnosDIdydx3 |eloL
dliN 000-¢TS95-€vT-100
SNO3INVTIIISIN - 095 :Tdnosnidydx3

:SISN3dX3 TYNOILYYIdO - 0€S :Tdnosnidydx3 [e3o)
SIYNLXIH B IWNLINYNS 000-CZ0ES-€¥I-T00
Jagquinp unody

yoday uosiedwo) 123png



OTHER
STOREY
COUNTY FUNDS



010-010
INDIGENT MEDICAL



TIV¥DIA3IN IN3DIANI - 0T0 :3udwiiedaq [e3o)
:S3ISN3IdX3 TYNOLLYYHIdO - 0£S :Tdnoinidydx3 jejoy

%00°0 000 00'000°002 00°000°002 00°000°002 65TV OV v6°v96'88
%000 000 00°000°002 00°000°002 00°000°002 652V 0V v6'v96'88
%000 000 00000002 00"000°002 00000002 6S°TTY OV ¥6'796'88
(aseanaq) leuly anneus) @dpngjeloy  Auandyelol  Auapdy |ezop
/ @seasu) €202-2202 €202-2202 22021202 7202-1202 1202-0202
) % 198png 128png juaieqd
| \ juaied 0} 198png
4 T uosuedwo) T uosiedwo)
W /.,
Ateww ng Juno2dy
- J10day uosuedwo) 193png
| %00°0 0z'0- 00°596°SL 02°S96°SL 0T'¥91°59 LEOEEVS L£°008°8L
| %00°0 000 00°000°S 00°000°'S 000 82°0SS'S 80°99L°L
%000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 000 87°0S5°S 80'99L°L
%0070 0Z°0- 00°S96°0L 02°596°0L 0T v91°S9 60°08L‘8L 62'VE0TL
%000 000 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 0000001 9T°I8YL €S ETTOT
%000 000 000 000 000 8€°789- Tv'€s
%000 000 00°00T 00°00T 00001 [43°741 0T vLT
%00°0 000 00002'8 00002°8 000028 SYYITTZ 68'6V8°€T
%000 0z0- 00°599CS 07°599°CS 0T'v98'9t vS'0vL'0S 9T’ EV89Y
(eseasnaq) |euly aAneudl 128png |e30L Aanoy jeror Ajanoy [e301
/ @seanu| €20Z-z202 €202-220¢C 2202-120¢ c20z-1202 T1202Z-020¢
% 123png 198png juaied
jualed 03 323png

T uosuedwo)

AJewwing 3unoJdy
1oday uosuedwo) 198png

1 uosuedwo)

IVDIG3N IN3IOIANI 000-Z£0€S-010-010
SISNIdX3 TYNOILLYYIdO - 0€S :Tdnosnidydx]

1¥DIG3W INIDIANI - 0TO :3uswiiedag

Jaquinpn Junoly

ALNNOD AFHOLS

“1VDIAG3W IN3IOIANI - 0T0 :pund |BJ0L

3NN3AIY SNOINVTIIDSIN - 9€ :dnosnidyaay ezo)
punj/4vi - 11a34D 000-9053€-010
3INN3AIY SNOINVTIIDSIN - 9€ :dnoinidynsy

JNIYOTVA @V - 1€ :dnosnidyaay |e3o)

(Q3SS3ISSY ATIVHLIN3D-3LVIS
SYVIA ¥Oldd LNINDNIT3A
YV3A LSYI4 LININONN3A
YOSS3ISSV-INIYOTVA AV

dA LIN3YHYND WIHOTVYA AV

000-80TTE-0T0
000-S0TTE-0T0
000-€0TTE-010
000-TOTTE-0T0
000-00TTE-0T0

W3IHOTVA QV - 1€ :dnosnidynay

ALNNOD A3YOLS

TVIIA3IN LN3DIANI - 0TO :pung
J3quinn unoddy




020-020
ROADS



G jo z abed

WY 6%:85:0T 220Z/9/S

%00°0 SL°0- 00°£S6°90L‘T SL°LS6°90LT ST'6S6TEST 89°095°96S°T S9'T80°LEST
%00°0 000 00°000°00% 00°000°00% 00°000°00v 00°000°00€ 0000000V
%000 000 00'000°00% 00"000°00% 00000001 00°000°00€ 00°000°00%
%00°0 00°0 00°0009T 00°000°9T 00°000°9€ 0£°609°LT 88'€LE9S
%00°0 000 000 000 000 STTLS'ST 00'8vY'y
%000 000 000 000 000 T1'9L€E 00°€
%000 000 0000091 00°000°9T 00°000'9€ ¥€'7998 88'7T61S
%00°0 00°0 00°000'S6T 00°000'S6T 007000522 EV'9EL VBT vELEBYTIT
%000 000 00°000'S6T 00°000'S6T 00°000°52¢ EV'9EL V8T YELEGVTT
%000 000 000 000 000 000 000
%00°0 SL0- 00°LS6°€60°T SL°LS6'E60°T ST°656°0L8 SS'¥16°080°T €v°06L°798
%000 SL'0- 00'¥91'6€9 SLY9T'6€9 ST'LT8'69Y 8S°9V6'TVS 67'8STYIS
%000 000 00'€6LVSY 00°€6L'vSY 00°ZET'TOY L6°'L968€S YT'TESSVE
%000 00°0 00"000°Z 00°000°C 00°000'T 00°00€‘E 00°080°€
%000 000 00°000C 00°000C 00°000T 00°00€‘€ 00°080°€
(eseasnaq) Jeul anneud) 328png |e3oL Aoy jesop Ananoy |ezop
/ 3seawu| €202-7207 €202-2207 7202-120¢ 7e0T-120t 1202-020C
% 193png 398png juaieqd
jualed 0} 128png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

:SAVOY - 020 :pung |g30L

*HIISNVHL ANNAYILNI - LE :dnoiDidyAay ejo)
Y3I4SNVYL ANNYILINI 000-002Z€-020
YIISNVYL ANNAYILNI - LE :dnouDidynay

:3INNIAIY SNOINVTIIISIN - 9€ :dnoaDidynay |ezoL
$37vS INIININD3 000-0vS9€-020
Y3H10 - DSIN 000-0059€-020
SONINYV3 1S343LNI 000-00T9€-020
3INNIATY SNOINVTIIDSIW - 9€ :dnosnidynay

1SIDIAYIS YO4 SIDYYHD - v€ :dnosnidynay e1oL
$334 3I9YNNOL 1YOdIAI 000-¢08%€-0¢0
S101d IAVYD/NOILVAVIX3 000-8T9¥€-020
SIDIAY3IS YO4 SIDYVHD - vE :dnounidynay

:DNIANNS TVINIWNYIAODYILNI - €€ :dn01DIdYAY |eI0L
14208 000-205€€-020
XVL1SVD 000-TOSEE-020
DNIANNS TVANIWNYIAODYILNI - €€ :dnosDidynay

SLINY3d / SISN3DI - Z€ :dnosDidyaay |ejoL
SLINY3d NOILVAVIX3 000-C0¢CE-020
SLIAY3d / SISNIDIN - Z€ :dnoumidynay
SQVOY - 020 :pund
JaquinN junody

1oday uosuedwo) 198png



06 Jo z 3bed

WV ZZ:50:6 2202/9/S

%000 000 00°8L6°TS 00'8L6TS 00°8YT‘vY 00°TOS‘SE 00 TY0'VE
%000 000 00°000°S 00°000'S 00°000°S 000 000
%000 000 00'8L6'9% 00'8L69% 00'8¥T°6€ 00°'T0S'SE 00" TY0'vE
%000 00°0 00°009°€S 00°009°€S 00°09Z°€S 6L°8960€ 78°79Tv1
%000 000 00°0002¢ 0000022 00°000°CC LOLTIS'ET 06'¥19°CT
%00°0 000 00°000°0€ 00°000°0€ 00°000°0€ Ty 9T 76'9TC
%000 000 00°009°T 00°009°T 00'092°T 05'600'T 00 TEP'T
%000 000 00°005°L8T 00°00S°L8T 00°000°LTT 6E°6vY'v8 €6°806°LET
%00°0 000 000 000 000 ST°0S 80°'188'67
%000 000 000 000 000 €1'889- 0T°0v0'ZE
%00°0 000 000 000 000 €9°/8C 88'G9¢€
%000 000 00°000°0S 00°000°05 00°000°€Z ZTL0v0T 79°759'1C
%000 000 000 000 000 000 68°0bL
%000 000 00°000°2€ 00°000°C€ 00°000°0€ 07'TL6°0T Tt°809°9C
%00°0 000 00°000'C 00°000°C 00°005‘T 000 6°ELY
%00°0 000 00°005C 00°005°C 00005 000 98'878'Y
%000 000 00°000°s 00°000°S 00°000°S L8'¥8ST I8°€ELTT
%00°0 000 00°000°6 00°000°6 00°000Y v7°858 ST'L8L
%00°0 000 00°000°0C 00°000°0Z 00°000°ST 95'8¥STT 67°618°0T
%00°0 000 000 000 00°000°€ 000 8€'6TS'S
%00°0 000 00°000'S9 00°000'S9 00°000°Tt 10°00Z°LE 00°tS
%000 000 00°000'C 00°000'C 00'000C 6'677T v €96'T
%L0°C- 00'vST'sS- 00°€88'8¥Z 00°LET'VST 00°09Y°112 0S'¥ST‘86T 80°86868T
%00°0 000 00°09T°6S 00°09T°6S 00°005°0¢ 0T'0SSLE St'€99'67
%0€°9- 00952~ 00'908°€ 00790t 00290t 69°€L SLTLLT
%CT 0" 00°€T- 00°€58'S 00'998°S 00°TI¥'S LY OvY'y T9vSL'Y
%T6'€E- 00°T0€C- 00'98€°9S 00°£898S 00'2€5°9S TO'€€T'LS 68'909°LS
%99°€T-  00'PSS'E- 0069t 00'€20°92 00'v6L€ET 99'%556 €9°6VEL
%L8°0 00°0£8 00'602'T0T 00'6£€°00T 00°'191°T6 LY'T01'68 TL°TSL'88
%TT0- 00°'T06- 00'8LL'SO¥ 00°6£9°90% 00°Z¥9°9LE TTITELIE LY TI8'EVE
%00°0 000 000 000 000 6L°826'L v vv9L
%TT0- 00'T06- 00'8LL'SOY 00'6£9°90% 00°T¥9°9LE €¥'76€°60€ €0°/9T°9€E

(eseasdaq) Jeuly annejua) 1@3png jelol  Auandy elol  Anandy jelol

/ @seanu) €202-2202 €202-2202 2202-1202 2202-1202 1202-0202

% 1°3png 198png juaieq
jualed 0} 198png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

:SNO3NVTIADSIN - 095 :TdNoJDIdydx] jejoy

319110NA3A 3IDNVINSNI
WNIAN3Yd IDNVINSNI

000-¢0995-020-020
000-00995-020-020

SNO3ANVTIIDSIN - 09S :Tdnosnidydx3
:INJWNYIAO0D TVHIN3ID - 0vS :Tdnoinidydx3 jeor

SNOIS 13341S
ANVS B LTVS 43INIM
STVIISAHd - VI3

000-e0¥¥S-0¢0-020
000-00¥t5-020-0Z0
000-S1E¥S-0¢0-020

ANIAINYIAOD TVYINID - 0¥S :Tdnoinidydx3
:SISNIAX3 TYNOLLYYILO - 0€S :Tdnoinidydx3 jeyo)

S3DIAY3S TYNOISS330dd
INIVIN dIND3 AAV3H
S3DILON Dinand

S3YIL

TVIYLSNANI ON3Y 30HVL
135310 8 SVO

FYVMLI0S ¥31NdNOD
AIN3WdIND3 ¥31NdNOD
FDNVNILINIVIN OLNV
ONINIVYL

$317ddNS ONILYY3dO
S3LNILN

3DNVN3ILNIVIN ININJIND3
INOHd313L

000-0£0€5-020-020
000-850£5-0¢0-020
000-8¥0€5-0¢0-0¢0
000-T¥0€S-020-0¢0
00S-0v70€S-0¢0-020
000-0v0€5-020-0¢0
000-¥€0€5-0C0-0C0
000-€€0€5-0¢0-020
000-0€0€5-020-020
000-670€5-0¢0-020
000-¥20€5-0¢0-020
000-9T0€5-0¢0-0¢0
000-2T0£5-020-020

S3ISN3dX3 TYNOLLYY3dO - 0€S :Tdnosnidydx3
:S1143N38 IONIYA - 0TS :Tdnoinidydx3] je3or

AYVIQISENS SNI 33YIL3Y
ALIYNDI3S TVIDOS
3YVIIQIN

IDNVYNSNI HITV3IH
1ovd

Sy3d

000-9T0¢5-020-020
000-vT025-0¢0-020
000-€T0¢5-020-0¢0
000-2T025-020-020
000-TT0Z5-020-020
000-0T0Z5-0¢0-020

S1133IN38 IONIYS - 0TS :TdnosnIdydx3

:3SN3dX3 10381 AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnoinidydx3 |ejo)

JNILY3A0
SIOVM B SIRVIVS

000-TT01S-020-020
000-0T0TS-020-020

3ISN3dX3 103410 AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnoanidydx3
SAVOY - 020 Iudwisedag
J2QUINN JUNODY

Joday uosuedwo) 198png



06 Jo ¢ abed

WY 2Z:50:¢ Z2Z0T2/9/S

%0€°0- 00°SST9- 00'6€2°€T0‘C 00"¥6E610°C 00'vTT'TZ8T 61°L9¥'689 €2°€65°999°T
%00°0 00°0 00°005°S90°T 00°005°590°T 00°709‘800T 62°2L6°TT £6°0£9'SY6
%000 000 00°000°00T 00°000°00T 00°000°00T 000 €0'TY99TE
%000 000 000 000 000 000 66°L0C
%000 000 00°000°00T 00°000°00T 00°000°00T 9€'8L7'T 000
%000 000 00°000°00€ 00°000°00€ 00°000°00€ LY LTT'Y S¥'09¢
%000 000 00°000°0S¢ 00°000°0SZ 00°000°0S¢ €1°595°0T 06'ZvE'8ST
%000 000 00°000°0ST 00°000°0ST 00°000°0ST €eors 01°S29'zeY
%000 000 00'000°0ST 00°000°0ST 00'%09'80T 00'TLY'9 9v'898°T€
%000 000 00°00S'ST 00°00S°ST 000 000 00'SZL'S
(aseasnaq) Jeuly EL IS UETY 133png |g101 Aanoy jejor Aianoy ;o)
/ 3seasu) €202-720¢ €202-720¢ (441 rag ¥4114 220z-120C T202-0202
% 198png 193png juaieqd
jualed 03 j128png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

:SAVOY - 020 :3uawiiedaq |e3o)

:0v9 - 09 :1dnosnidydx3 je3o
141 - IAOYdNI AV0OY
3OVNIVYA NOANYD FTIN XIS
3TN XIS - IAOYdINI AV0Y
QOOMMI01 - IAOYdI AV0Y
HOIH DA - 3A0YdWI AVOY
IVML XYV - IAOYdNI VOY
JA - IAO¥dNI AV0Y
AV11LNO 1VLIdVYD

000-0££¥9-0¢0-020
SCT-09/%9-020-020
000-09/¥9-020-020
000-052¥9-020-020
000-0vZ%9-020-0¢0
000-0€£¥9-020-020
000-0TZ¥9-020-0¢0
000-0T0¥9-020-020

09 - 0v9 :Tdnounydydx3y

JaquinN junoddy

Hoday uosuedwo) 198png



050-050

EMERGENCY
MITIGATION



%000 000 00°000°SL 00°000°SL 00°0008L ¥0°090°8¢ €1°9L6'bT8
%00°0 00°0 00°000°SL 00°000°SL 00°000°8L £0°090'87 €1°9L6VZ8
%000 000 000 000 000 000 €T'ET6'089
%000 000 000 000 00°000°€S 7009082 062790 vvT
%000 000 00°000°SZ 00°000'SL 0000052 000 000

(eseanaq) |euiy aanejul)] 123png |e301 Aoy je301 Ainnoy je3o0L

/ @seainu| €202-720¢ €202-720T 2202-120¢ 720z-120T T202-0202

% 195png 128png jualed
juaied 01 193png
T uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

%000 00°0 00°000°8Z 00°000'8L 00°000°8L 92°208°0LY 16'v2€°£28
%00°0 000 00°000°8. 00°000°8L 00°000°8L 00°00S‘8S 00°000°0S
%000 000 00°0008£ 00°000'8L 00°000'8L 0000585 00°000°0S
%00°0 000 000 000 000 9T°20€'TTY 16'vTE'LLL
%000 000 000 000 000 000 00'SY6°CSL
%000 000 000 000 000 92°20€TTY T6'6LE1C

(eseasdaq) |euiy aAneul] 138png |e101 Aanoy |B301 Aianoy je301

/ @seanu| €202-2202 €202-2202 2202Z-1202¢ 2202Z-1202 1202-0202

% 123png 198png jualed
jualed 03 128png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

‘NOILLYDILIN ADNIDYIINT - 0S0 :Juawpedaq [e3o)

*INIWNYIAOD TVY¥INID - 0ps :Tdnosnidydx3 [e30)
)V SIYVI-NOILYOILIN 9433 0¢9-06075-050-050
5T QIAOD-NOLLYOLLIN 9433 619-060%5-050-050
uoneSmA Aduasdiaw3 000-060v5-050-050
AINIWNY3IA0D TV¥INID - 0vS :1dnoinidydx3
NOILYSILIN ADNIDYIINT - 050 :3uawedag
Jaquinn junoldy

Hoday uosuedwo) 328png

‘NOILVOILIN ADN3IDYING - 050 :pung |e3oy

*¥IISNVYL ANNYILINI - L€ :dnounidynay [e3oL
IVHY3INIO IWOYS Y34SNVYL 000-c0¢L€-050
YIISNVYL ANNIYILNI - L€ :dnoinidynay

*ONIANNA TVINIWNYIAODYILNI - €€ :dnosnidyaay [e3o)
10V STYVI-LNVYD 0Z9-00%€€-050
QIAOD-SLNVYO 6T9-007€£-050
ONIANNS TVANIWNYINODYILNI - £€ :dnoinydyasy
NOILYOILIN ADNIDYIINT - 050 :Pung
Jaquinp junody

Hoday uosuedwo) 328png



060-060

EQUIPMENT
ACQUISITION



%vt'6€ 00°000°vLY 00°00L°SL9‘T 00°00£°T0Z‘T 00°02L€82 STELLLY 76'€€9°991
%000 000 00'00L°SLT‘T 00°00L'SLTT 00'02L°LST STETTL'’Y 76°EE9°EST
%000 000 00°00LSLT'T 00°00L'SLT'T 00°02L°LST STETTL'8Y 76'€€9'€ST
%80°€78‘T 00°000vLY 00°000°00S 00°000°92 0000092 00°00S°6T 00°000°€T
%80°€78'T 00°000vLY 00°000°00S 00°000°9 00°0009 00°00S'6T 00'000°€T
\ : (aseanaq) jeuiy aapejuaL 1e8pngjelol  Aamdviesor  Anandy jeor
’ / @seaiu| £€202-720C €202-720C 7202-120T 2202-1202 1202-020¢
% 1e3png 198png juaied
juaied 03 128png
T uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)
/.

%00°0 Yo 00°¥T99SE 9/°€T99S€E 00°22982¢E 0€vI8'SSY v v60°7SY
%00°0 Y20 00'vT99SE 9/°€19°9SE 00°229'8¢¢E 0€'vI8'SSY vy v60°TSY
%00°0 000 00°00LC 007004 00°00L°E 86°'TZT'8S YT86T°9L
%000 000 000 000 000 00°'SYT'9€ 00°S£5°LT
%000 000 000 000 000 §5'585°0¢ 09°90Z‘0t
%000 000 0000LT 00°00LC 00°00L'E EV'TI6ET 99T’
%00°0 vZo 00'vT6°ESE 9L ET6'ESE 00°726'vTE TET69'L6E 0T7°968'SLE
%000 000 00°000°0S 00°0000S 00°000°0S €8°0Tv'LE T2'7898¢€
%000 000 00°00T 00°00T 00°00T 8€'8LE S6°69C
%000 , 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°00S 8€'979 vT6L8
%000 000 000000 00°000°0% 00'000°0t 66'TL5S0T £€6°598°T0T
%00°0 vT0 00°tTE'€9T 9/ €TE'E9T 00°CZEVET YL v0L'EST £8'86TVET

(eseasaq) |euly aAyejus| 193png 3ol Ajamdy jeiol  Ajandy |ejop

/ aseanu| €20Z-70t €702-2202 220Z-120¢ 7e0z-120 1202-020¢

% 19dpng 198png juased
jualed 03} 123png

T uosuedwo)

AJewwing 3uno2dy
1oday uosiedwo) 108png

T uosuedwo)

NOLLISINDIV INININD3 - 090 :3uswisedaq [e30)L

:0v9 - 0v9 :Tdno1nidydx3 |e30L
AepnQ |ende)

000-0T0¥9-050-090
0v9 - 0¥9 :Tdnoinydydxgz

:$32¥N0S DNIDNVNI4 ¥IHLO - 0£S :TdnoJoidydx3 |eo)
MOVEAVd I¥1 OL ¥34SNVYL 000-8C¢£5-090-090
$37HNOS DNIDNVYNIH ¥IHLO - 0L :Tdnoindydx3
NOLLISINDIV LNIJIND3 - 090 :udwiiedag
Jaquinp Junodly

uoday uosuedwo) 193png

:|ezo] woday
INOILSINDDV LNINCIND3I - 090 :pun4 [e301

:3NNIATY SNOINVITIISIA - 9€ :dnoinidynay |e3o)
SINIVID 3DNVINSNI 000-0095€-050
S31VS LNIWJIND3 000-0v59¢-090
SONINYV3I LSIYILNI 000-00T9€-090
INNIAIY SNOINVTIIDSIN - 9€ :dnosnidynay

{NFYOTVA AV - T€ :dnounidyaay jejoy
35S3SSV ATIVYLNID-ILIVLS
SYY3A YOIYd ININONMN3A
¥Y3IA LSY¥I4 ININONN3A

YOSSISSV-WIYOTVA AV 000-TOTTE-090

YV3A LINIYYND WIYOIVA QY 000-00TT€-090

W3IHOTVA aV - T€ :dnoinidyaay
NOILSINDIV LNIWdIND3 - 090 :puny
JaquWiNp Junoddy

000-80TTE-090
000-S0TT€-090
000-€0TTE-090

ALNNOD AFYOLS




070-070
CAPITAL PROJECTS



1$10370¥d TVLIdVD - 0£0 3udwiiedaq ejo)

:0v9 - 0v9 :Tdnosnidydx3 je3o)

I¥L-SIN3INIAOYdINI YOy
11D HO1VvdSIq - Y3LNdINOD 91
JIAIQ r-dIND3 ¥3LNdINOD 91

dIND3 ¥31NdNO0D 394V
30-LN3W3DV1d3Y 3¥YYMLI0S
IAL-LIN3INIDVId3Y 3YVMLI0S
3YYML40S

41D HOLvdSIa

XINNV LYNOD 3D1LSNr
SAINVLYILYM

INVYO 43LVM

AINV1d ¥3IM3S T1IH 4109

13Q LHOIFY4-AVILNO TVLIdYD
1017 ONINYVd ISNOHLYNOD
AV1LNO 1VLIdVYD

000-0£Z¥9-0£G-040
9/T-09Tv9-0£0-020
SLT-09T¥9-0£0-00
000-09T¥9-0£0-020
T8Z-T0T¥9-0£0-020
08¢-T0T¥9-0£0-020
000-T0T¥9-0£0-020
9/T-0T0¥9-0£0-0£0
SZT-0T0¥9-0£0-020
89T-0T0¥9-0£0-020
ZST-0T0%9-0£0-020
TST-0T0v9-020-0£0
TCT-0T0v9-0£0-020
8TT-0T0v9-0£0-0Z0
000-0T0¥9-0£0-020

09 - 09 :Tdnoinidydxy

S1D3r0dd 1V1IdVD - 0£0 :3uswnedag

Jaquinp junoddy

%ET T 0S°Z9€'STZ- 1S'0€0'616°6 TO'€6EVET'OT  00°000°9£8°T YI'€6589L T 9T’ TLTE86'T
%EL T~ 0S"Z9€'STT- TS'0£0°616°6 TO'€6EVET'OT  00°000°9/8°T YT €6S89L T 9T’ TLTE86°T
%000 000 00'v0T°STS‘E 00'v0T'STS‘E 000 000 000
%000 000 000 000 000 0S'T¢8 89'TLL'66
%000 000 000 000 000 000 TP €SEST
%EE9- 00°000°05- T0°LOTOVL T0°£0T'06L 00°000°9tS 6£'595'28¢ ¥0'869°99T
%00°0 000 000 000 000 8%°08S'TE 96'08L'€E
%000 000 000 000 000 9T'¥91'9- ST'SYL'S
%000 000 000ST2Z 00°0ST'LZ 000 000 000
%000 000 000 000 000 000 SE'SOV'ZE
%000 000 00'000'SZ 00°000°ST 000 SETIT8ET OT'TTL'S
%000 000 000 000 000 LTELLTRT 000
%000 000 00°£00'v9t‘T 00°£00v9v'T 000 000 000
%000 000 000 000 000 YLSLETLL 000
%000 000 000 000 000 0£'987°8T 62°LTEYOT
%000 000 000 000 000 000 00°0S.£°0T
%8 ¢~ 0S°79€'S9T- 0ST99°LETY 00'SZO'€0E' Y 00°000°0€E‘T LY'T6T'8YT 8C°879'S0V‘T
(aseaudsq) |euly aagejua) 193png |g301 Aoy jevop Aanoy |e30)
/ @seasu) €202-7202 €70¢-2202 220Z-1202 ra{\rad vdird 120Z-0202
% 123png 123png juaied
judied 03 128png
T uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)
%00°0 00°0 00'v8Lv9T'6 00'v8Lv92'6 00°000°€60°C 0L'TEL'E60°T 6€°667°0L
%00°0 00°0 00°000°000°S 00°000000°S 00°000°000°Z 00°000°000°C 00°0
%00°0 000 000 000 000 000 000
%000 © 000 00°000°000°S 00'000°000°S 00°000°000°C 00°000°000C 000
%00°0 00°0 00°££L°008°C 00°££L008°C 00°000°€6 0L°2ELE6 6£°662°0L
%000 000 00°LLLL0L'T 00°LLL°20L°T 000 000 000
%000 000 00°000°€6 00°000°€6 00°000°€6 0L7TEL’E6 6€662°0L
%00°0 00°0 00°£00°v9Y°T 00°£00°v9v°T 00°0 000 000
%000 000 00°£00'v9¥‘T 00°£00'v9%'T 000 000 000
(eseadaq) leuty anneua) e8png el Auanoyieol  Ayanoy [ejoL
/ ®seasnu €202-2202 €202-7202 2202-1202 2202-1202 T1202-0202
% 183png 128png jualed
juaied 01 193png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

Joday uosuedwo) 198png

*S103r0¥d 1V1IdYD - 040 :pund [e30L

‘¥IISNVYL ANNFYILINI - L€ :dnoinidynay |e30]
YASN INOYS ¥I4SNYYL 000-v7¢/€-020
TVY3INIO INOYS ¥I4SNVYL 000-€0¢2£-020
Y3IISNVYL ANNSYILINI - L€ :dnoioidynay

SIDINYIS YOS SIDYVHD - p€ :dnosnidynay ezo)

123(3 |S3L 1DVYINOD-ONITIIG 000-6TTvE-0Z0

Ad ININD-VIS3IL¥ LYVd=VSD 00Z-80Tv€-0Z0
SIDINYIS YO SIDYYHD - vE :dnoioidynay

‘ONIONNS TVANINNYIAODYILNI - €€ :dnoinidyaay jeo)
AINVY9O ¥3LYM £ST-00v€€-0L0
ONIANNS TYININNYIAODYILNI - €€ :dnonidyaay
S103r0¥d 1V.LIdYD - 00 :pung
Jaquinn Junody

JJoday uosuedwo) 3a8png



T uosuedwo)

AdJewwing Juno2oy
yoday .ﬁ_._mn_e:ou 193png

T uosiiedwo)

%889 SL'ESTT8 00'9S2°8LZ°T S2°T00°961°T 00°82Z°6TZ'T S2'0LSST ££°508898 3
B _ %889 SL'EST'T8 ood|m.-mnwﬁ S2°T0096T°T 00'82Z612'T ST'0LS'ST ££°508°898 B
%LY"TT SL'EST'T8 oon.m(m..N\qu mN.Noc.wmml 00'827°612°'T ST'0LS'ST LL°508°898
%000 000 000 000 00'8ZY’S 000 000
%000 000 000 000 00°£85'T8S ST'0LS'ST 000
%000 000 000 000 000 000 01'085CT
%000 000 000 000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 000 000 000 £9°STT9S8
%100 SL0Y 00'€¥0°99€ $7°700°99€ 000 000 000
%000 00°€TT'Z8 00'€17C8 000 00'€TT'TE9 000 000
/ %00°0 000 00°000°0€8 00°000°0€8 000 00°0 00°0 B
/ %000 000 00'000°0€8 00°000°0€8 000 000 000
\ (aseasdaq) |euid aAnejual 198png |e301 AiAnoy je3on Ajanoy B30
: / @seanu) €202-220C €202-720¢ [44\raa Y4114 eoz-Tz0t 1202-020C
% 193png 193png jualed
jualed 0} 323png
T uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)
Alewwing JuNo2dY
1ioday uositedwo) 123png
... %0000 000 00000005 _ 00°000°00S _  00°000°00S 05'9€8'8YS v'TL9'0LY
R o %000, 000 0000000S  00°000°00S 00000005 05°9€8'89S vy ZL9°0LY
%00°0 000 oo.@@o.oom . 00°00000S 00°000°00S 0S°9€8'8YS vv'2L9°0LY
%000 000 00°000°00S 00°000°00S 00°00000S 0S'9€8'8vS vyTL9°0LY
(aseanaq) |eut4 angejudl 128png |e301 Aunnoy |eyor Ayanoy |e301
/ @seanu| €202-220¢C €202Z-720C cz0z-1202 2202-1202 T1202-0202
% 193png 193png jualed
jualed 03 198png

:|eyo] yoday
:3YNIONYLSYYHANI - 080 :Iudwiiedaq [e30L

:0v9 - 0v9 :Tdnoioidydx3 e3oL
1W-SIN3IW3IAOYdINI VOl
JA-SLN3W3IAOYdNI AVOY

LSNI-LN3WJIND3 ¥31NdN0D

¥3LNdINOD
3AIAIQ-1D 3D1L8nr
LINVYO ¥43LvM
AV1LNO TVLIdVD

000-CTZ¥9-080-080
SZT-09T¥9-080-080
000-09T+9-080-080
ST-0T0v¥9-080-080
LST-0T0v¥9-080-080
000-0T0%¥9-080-080

09 - 0v9 :TdnoJnidydx3

:$324NO0S DNIDNVNI4 ¥3IHLO - 04§ :Tdnosoidydx3 [e1o)

Y3IM3S OL ¥Y34SNVYL

000-£¢¢L5-080-080

S3DYNOS ONIDNVYNI4 ¥IHLO - 045 :Tdnoinidydx3
JYNLONYLISYHINI - 080 :3uawisedag

ALNNOD A3HOLS

:|eyo) uoday

:3YNLONYLISVYINI - 080 ‘pund |B30L

JaquINN JunodYy

ONIGNN TVLNINNYIAODYILNI - €€ :dnosgidynay ejo)

XVL 3¥NLONYLSYYNI

000-80S€€-080

DNIGNN4 TVLANIWNYIAODYILNI - €€ :dnoanidyaay
FHNLONYLSYYANI - 080 :pund
Jaquinpy Junoddy

ALNNOD A3HOLS







080-080
INFRASTUCTURE



100-100
STABILIZATION



0S 40 171 3bed

WV ZZ:S0:6 2202/9/S

%00°0 000 00'000°002 00°000°002 00°000°00v 000 00°0 ‘NOILVZIT8V1S - 00T :3uswiedaq [e30)
%0070 000 00°000°002 00°000°002 00°000°00t 000 000 *SNO3INVTIIDSIN - 095 :Tdnosoidydx3 |eor
%000 000 00°000°00C 00°000°00T 0000000t 000 000 SNO3UE||ISIN 000-00595-00T-00T
SNO3ANVTIIDSIW - 095 :Tdnosnidydx3
NOILVZITEVLS - 00T :3uawiiedaq
JagquinN junody
(eseasdaq) |eul4 anpeuad] 193png |e301 Ananoy jesop Ainnoy je3op
/ @seanu| €202-7202 €202-2202 720Z-1202 2202-1202 T202-020C
% 123png

198png jualed
juaied 01 183png

T uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

Hoday uosuedwo) 398png



135-135
USDA



$t 40 0T 2bed

WY £1:90:6 2202/9/S

%00°0 00°0 89°592°00S 89°592°00S 89°592°00S 9£'902'SLE 08'T8S‘ELY
%00°0 00°0 89°592°00S 89°59Z°00S 89°592°005 9£'90T'SLE v9'12LTTT
%000 000 00°0v9TYT 00°0¥9°TYT 00°0v9TPT 00°08690T 00'0v9°TYT
%000 000 7S'T69°0T 7S'T69°0T 7S'T69°0T ¥9'810'8 98108
%000 000 00'26LTT 0026LTT 00'26LTT 00'tvE9T 00'tvE9T
%000 000 008099 00'¥80°99 00'80°99 00'€95'6Y 00'€95°6Y
%000 000 00'80T'8 00'80Z°8 00'80Z'8 00'09Z°0T 007S0°C
%00°0 000 00'88°8TT 00'v88°8TT 00'¥88'8TT 05'990°S8 0001ty
%000 000 9T'996'T€T 9T'996'TET 9T'996°TET 79°'vL6'86 000
%00°0 00°0 00°0 000 000 000 91°098°0SC
%00°0 000 000 000 000 000 00'68°8TT
%000 000 000 000 000 000 91'996TZT
%00°0 00°0 000 000 00°0 00°0 000
%000 000 000 000 000 000 000
(aseasdaq) Jeuly angeua) 193png k3ol Auamdveiol  Ajapoy jelol
/ @seasnu| €202-7202 €202-720C 2202-1202 2202-1202 1202-0202
% 123png 198png juaieq
juaied 03 198png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

‘vasn - SET :pund |e301

*YIISNVHL ANNLYILINI - LE :dnosDidynay ero)

3414 INOY4 ¥Y34SNVYL
YT-T6 dNS YLM-NI 434SNVYL
T6XNVL 3TN G -NI 434SNVYL
6 SINIT Y3ILVYM -NI ¥Y34SNVYL
CT-6 LNV1d HO-NI 434SNVYL
'dX3 LNVd YMS-NI Y34SNVYL
£076 3INITYMS -NI 434SNVYL

0€0-0TCLE-SET
0/T-C0CZE-SET
69T-C0CLE-SET
89T-C0C/E-SET
0ST-C0CLE-SET
6E€T-C0CLE-SET

Y3ISNVYL ANNFYILNI - L€ :dnosnidynay

:S3DIAY3IS YO SIDYVH) - p€ :dnounidynay |ejo)

VdX3 INV1d 4MS-43HLO AOD
‘6 0Q3Y 3INITYIMS-Y3IHLO AOD

0ST-80TPvE-SET
6€T-80THE-SET

S3DIAY3S HO4 SIDYVHD - vE :dnoanidynay

:ONIAGNNA TVINIWNYIAODYILNI - €€ :dnoinidyaay |e3o)

$333004d ANOd

000-vOvee-SET

ONIAGNN4 TVINIWNYIAODYILNI - €€ :dnosnidynay

vasn - ST :puny
J3quinp 3uno2dYy

Hoday uosiuedwo) 328png



0S 40 p1 2bed

WV 2Z:50:6 2202/9/S

%00°0 00°0 89°592°00S 89°592°005 89°592°00S 79°661°SLE TTTLSELY
%00°0 00°0 88'676'962 88°616°967 ST°Z8£°06T 20°€6Y°LTT 9T°LLL'8ST
%000 000 000 000 000 000 000
%00°0 000 v0'€66°9 v0°€669 98'v16°9 6L°981'S SSEPT'S
%00°0 000 vy SSTYT v SSTYT €0'960%T 9,°7L50T L9¥8Y°0T
%000 000 06'9TT'EY 06°92C'eY €SEVLTY 06'650°C€ YL T6L'TE
%000 000 €L°69€'S €L°69€'S L9°60€'S €57786'€ SE6Y6E
%000 000 82065 8Y°706'CS ¥9°L65'TS LTETLBE 90°0€0'CY
%00°0 000 009998 00°999°78 8L LES'TS TE0ST'T9 61Ty 08
%00°0 000 67°9€S'T6 6796516 ¥9°781°88 St LT8°S9 L8'TS6'P8
%00°0 000 08'STE€02 08'STE‘€0T £5°€88'602 09°90L°LST 96'v6L V1T
%00°0 000 81°'869'€ 81°869°¢€ 99°9LL'E 17°2€8°C Tv°SL8°C
%00°0 000 95°9€5°L 95°9€5°L L6'S69°L YTTLL'S £€°658'S
%00°0 000 0125822 01°L58°TC LY OVE'ET 0T°€0SLT 9T°0LL'LT
%000 000 LT'8E8'T LT'8€8°C £€'868'C LY'ELTT $9°907°C
%000 000 7518699 75'186°59 9€'987°L9 €L°6Y¥'0S ¥6°€58°9L
%00°0 000 91°00€'6Y 91°00€'6t 8€'8TY'0S 0€'vT8'LE YT TPSTS
%00°0 000 TLE0T'TS TLE0T'TS 9E'LSH'YS SSTST'TY €1'889°LS

(eseaiaq) Jeuly angeual @pnglelol  Auanoy|elol  Aanoy elop

/ ®seanu| €202-220C £202-2202 2202-1202 2202-120T 1202-0202

% 198png 198png juaied
juased 03 128png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

'¥asn - SET :3uswyedaq e3oL

:$32UNOS ONIDNVNIL ¥3IHLO - 046 :Tdnosnldydx] |eoL

V1LNO 1V1IdVD OL 434SNVY1
YT1-T6 TWdS ¥1M 31dIDNIYd
0T-T6 XNVL 3TN S 31dIDNIYd
i0-T6 SINIT ¥Y3LVYM 31dIDNIYd
C¢1-26 T1IH G109 31dIDNIYd
7dX3 LNV1d 43IM3S-31dIDNIYd
4 INITYIM3S VASN-ITdIDNIYd
3INION3 3414-37dIDNIYd

000-YCCLS-SET-SET
69T-TOTZS-SET-SET
89T-TOT/S-SET-GET
0ST-TOTZS-SET-SET
0€0-TOTZS-SET-SET

S3DUNOS ONIDNVNIA HIHLO - 0£S :Tdnosoydydx3

*SNOINVIIIISIN - 095 :Tdnoiidydx3 [e3oL

YT-16 TNdS LM LSTIILNI
OT-T6 AINVL 31N G 1SIYILNI
60-T6 SINIT YILVM LSIYILNI
T1IH 109 3SN3dX3 1S3YILNI
NVdX3 INV1d 43IM3S-1SYILNI
14 INITYIM3S vASN-1SIYILINI
3INION3 34I4-1S3Y¥3LNI

0/T-00T95-SET-SET
0€0-00T95-SET-SET

SNO3ANVTITIDSIN - 095 :Tdnoinidydx]

vasn - SET :uawedag
JaquinN junoddy

Joday uosuedwo) 198png



140-140
DRUG COURT



%00°0 00°0 00°00% 00°00t 00°00% 00°08€ 00°049
%0070 000 00°00% 00°00t 00°00% 00°08€ 00°0L9
%000 000 00°00% 00°00% 00°00% 00°08¢€ 00049
(aseaunaq) jeuly 3anneua) 198png |B301 Aianoy |e30p A3anoy |e301
/ @seanu| €20T-220T €202-720¢ 2202-1202 2202-1202 1202-020¢
% 125png 123png jJuaied
jualed 03 193png
T uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)
%00°0 000 00°00v 00°00v 00700t 00°08¢€ 00°049
%00°0 000 00°00% 00°001 00°00% 00°08¢ 00049
%000 000 00°00% 0000t 00°00t 00°08¢ 00049
(aseanaq) |euly anpejua] 133png |g101 Aianoy jexop Aoy |eyo)
/ aseasuy £€202-2202 €202-2202 2202-1202 2202-1202 1202-0202
% 193png 128png juaieq
judied 03 198png

T uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

:13N0J 9NYA - O¥T 3uawpedaq |ero)

:INIWNY3IA0D TVY¥INID - 0vS :Tdnounidydx3 |e3o)
S334 19N0D 5nYa 000-€TctS-0vT-0vT
INIWNYIAOD TVHINID - 0pS :Tdnosnidydx3
1¥N0D 5N¥A - OpT :udwpedag
Jagquinpn junoddy

yoday uosuedwo) 3128png

-14N0D 5NYaA - o¥T :pund |e301

:SIDINY3S YO SIDYVH) - b€ :dnoinidyasy |ezo)
S334 1¥N0D 5ny¥a 000-€TCre-0vT
S3DIAYIS YO4 SIDYYH) - p€ :dnosoidynay
1¥N0D 5Nya - 0vT :pund
Jaquinp Junoddy

1oday uosuedwo) 398png



165-165
TECHNOLOGY FUND



:ONN4 ADOTONHIIL - S9T :Judwiiedaq [e3or

{INJIWNYIAOD 1VYINID - 0pS :Tdnoinidydx3 |ezoy
1SNVDY HD3L HOSSISSY 000-90T¥S-S9T-591
LSOOV HD31 ¥3a40D3y 000-€0T¥5-59T-59T
LIN3IWNYIAOD TVHIN3ID - 0pS :Tdnosnidydxy

*S3SN3IdX3 TYNOILYHIdO - 0€S :Tdnosnidydx3 [e3o0)
SI9-5334 404d 0/7-0£0€5-S9T-59T
SISN3IdX3 TYNOILLYYHIdO - 0€S :Tdnonidydxg
ANN4 ADOTONHDIL - §9T :Judwnedag
Jaquinn junody

Hoday uosuedwo) 398png

‘ADOTONHD3L - S9T :pung |e30)

:3NNIAIFY SNOINVTIIDSIN - 9€ :dnosoidyaay [ejoL
SONINYVY3I 1S343INI 000-00T9€E-S9T
INN3IAIY SNOINVTIIDSIN - 9€ :dnosnidyaay

:SIDIAYIS YO4 SIDYVHD - vE :dnounidynay |eioy

SI9

$334 HO31 ¥YOSS3SsY
S334 HO3L X431
TVIYLSNANI ON3Y JOHVL
$334 HO31 ¥3QY¥0D03y

0L-[TTvESST
000-90TvE-59T
000-S0TvE-59T
005-€0TvE-59T
000-€0TvE-59T

%00°0 00°0 00°000°S0T 00°000'S0T 00°000°S0T YY" LOE'6S 8L°6TT°6S
%000 00°0 00°000°0L 00°000°0L 00'000°0L vy 8EVSE 8C°CESSE
%00°0 000 00°000°09 0000009 00°000°09 v¥'88C°CE 96°508°67
%000 000 00'000°0T 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 00°0ST'E TE9TL's
%000 00°0 00°000°SE 00°000°SE 00°000°SE 00°698°€T 0S°L85€T
%000 000 00°000°S€ 00°000'SE 00°000SE 00'698°cT 0S°£8S'€T

(aseadaq) Jeuty angejus) w@dpngelor Aoy jeiol  Aapoy g0l

/ @seawnuy) €202-220¢ €2027-720¢ ¢20z-1202 2¢0Z-1202 T1202Z-0202

% 12dpng 198png juaied
juaied 0} 198png
T uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

%00°0 00°0 00°008‘T6 00°008°T6 00°00T°LS LL6TIS'SLT 9T'¥8L°0¢T
%00°0 000 00°0 000 00°0 €9°SL S6°679
%000 000 000 000 000 €5°SL S6°679
%00°0 00°0 00°008‘T6 00°008‘T6 00°00T°LS YT vvy'SLT TTPSTOET
%000 000 000 000 000 00°008°T 00°00Z
%000 000 00°000°08 00°000°08 00°000°0S 6v°0£8'8ST Y v16'8TT
%000 000 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 00°00T 05799 00Tt
%000 000 000 000 000 00026 00°S2TT
%000 000 00°008‘8 000088 00°000°L STT60'L SLELYE

(aseanaq) leuy anneuaL 3edpng jejol  Auamdyjelol  Ajapoy jeso)

/ @seau] €202-2202 €202-220¢ 7202-1202 2202-1202 1202-0202

% 128png 123png juaiey
jualed 03 198png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo) .

SIDINY3IS HO4 SIDYVHD - vE :dnosnidyaay
ADO0T0ONHD3L - §9T :pung
Jaquinp Junoddy

Joday uosuedwo) 1a8png



180-180

GENETIC MARKER
TESTING



%00°0

000 00°0009 00°0009 00°000‘9 0S°€SL9 0S°720‘s

%00°0 000 00°000°S 00°000‘S 00°000°S 05°85S‘e 0S°220°s
%000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 00°000°s 05°'855°e 0S°720°s
%00°0 000 00°000°T 00°000°T 00°000°T 00°S6T‘E 000
%0070 000 00°000T 00°000°T 00'000'T 00'S6T‘E 000

(eseasaq) leuty anyejua] 123png |eyo1 Alnnoy jeyor Aingoy je30).

/ @seainu| €202-7202 €202-2202 220zZ-1202 ¢202-1207 1202-0202

% 12dpng 123png juaieq
jualed o3 1938png
T uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

%00°0 000 00°009°8 00°009°8 00°00T‘TT 0S°€8T°6 8S 6TV ET
%00°0 000 00°00S‘€ 00°00S°E 00°000°9 0S° LYYy 05°585°9
%000 000 000 000 000 00671 00°S9
%000 000 00°000T 00°000T 00°000°T 00092 00867
%000 000 00°00SC 00°00S‘T 00'000°S 05°8SS‘e 0S°720°s
%00°0 000 00°001°‘S 00°00T‘S 00°00T‘S 009€L'Y 80'vE8‘9
%000 000 00°00T 00°00T 00°00T 00°'ST 80°ST
%000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 00°000°S 00 T2LY 00'6T8°9

(esearaq) leuly angejua] 198png |e30) Aunnoy |gj0) Annnoy jesor

/ 3seasnu| €202-2202 €202-2202 2202-1202 2202-1202 1202-0202

% 1°3png 193png juaied
jualed 0} j98png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

*ONILSIL ¥INYVIA DILINID - 08T :3uswiiedaq [e3o)

‘0SS - 0SS :Tdnouinidydx3 |ejoy
1018/2I1SN3YO4/TYNY WIHD

000-TOTSS-08T-081
0SS - 0SS :Tdnosoidydxg
*ININY3IN0D TVHIN3ID - 0tS :Tdnoinidydx] |e3oy
LIN3IW3AOYHINI WOOY L¥N0D 000-8T¢v5-08T-08T
ANIWNYINOD TVYINID - 0pS :Tdnosoydydxy
ONILSIL YINYVIN DILINID - 08T 3uawpedaq
Jaquinp junody

1oday uosuedwo) 3a8png

*ONILSIL YINYVYIN DILINID - 08T -pund |E30L

:S1134404 ANV SINI4 - S€ :dnoanidynay je3op
333 NOILYDI4IGOW
334 ALI¥YND3IS LYNOD 000-€TT5E-08T
1019/21SN3¥04/1¥NY WIHD 000-TOTSE-08T
S1134404 ANV S3NIH - S€ :dnoinidynay

000-0¢15E-081

1S3DIAYIS YO SIDUVH) - vE :dnosnidyaay [e3of
Y3H10 S334 14D 1D1¥1S1a 000-50¢v€-08T
$334 19N0D 1D1LSIa 000-00Zv€-08T
SIDINYIS ¥O4 SIDYVHD - p€ :dnounidynay
ONILSIL YINYVYIN D1L1IN3ID - 08T :pund
Jaquinn jJunody

Joday uosiiedwo) 328png



185-185
INDIGENT ACCIDENT



%000 000 00°000°08 00°00008 00°000°08 £8°892°201 0EYVEY9 :1N3ADOV INIDIANI - §8T :3udunuedaq [e3oL
%00°0 000 00°000°08 00°000°08 00°000°08 £8°897°270T 0E"vvEY9 :$3SN3IdX3 TYNOILYYIdO - 0£S :Tdnoinidydx3 jelol
%0070 000 0000008 00°000°08 00°000°08 £8897°20T 0EvYEY9 1N3dIDJV LN3IOIANI 000-9¥0£S-S8T-S8T
\ S3SN3dX3 TYNOLLYY¥3dO - 0£S ‘Tdnoinidydxa
. IN3IANIV INIDIANI - 8T Juauiedaq
J2qWINN 3uNolYy
(aseaneq) Jeuly ELVSUET] 133png |g10L Aagoy |B30) Auandy jexor
/ @seanu| €2¢0¢-2e0e €202-220C ce0z-1202 2202-1202 1202-020¢
~ % 1o3png 128png juaied
juaied 0} 1a3png
tuosuedwo) T uosuedwo)
1oday uosuedwo) 128png
%00°0 €T0- 00°266°L6 €7°266°L6 00°262°68 STLOE6TT TT'€¥8°60T :je3o) Moday
%00°0 €20 00°266°L6 €T°266°L6 00°,62°68 ST'LOE'6TT TT°€¥8'60T *IN3QIDJV IN3IOIANI - S8T :pund |B10]
%0070 €T°0- 00°266°L6 €7°266°L6 00°,62°68 ST'LOE'6TT IT'EV8'60T {NJYOTVA QV - T€ :dnounidynay 1o}
%000 000 00°000vT 00°000vT 00°000VT STETTTT 67°0LT'ST Q3SS3SSVY ATIVHLNID-31VIS 000-80TTE-S8T
%000 000 000 000 000 T€7TT 1808 SYV3IA HOIYd IN3INDNN3A 000-SOTTE-S8T
%0070 000 000 000 000 16°L8T 6T°T9C Y¥V3A LSYI4 ININONN3A 000-€0TT£-S8T
%000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 00°000°S 89'TL9TE 0S°€€0VT YOSSISSV-IWIYOTVA aV 000-TOTTE-S8T
%000 €20 00'7668L €7°766'8L 00°£62°0L 0T°CTT'9L e L6T'0L dV3IA LNIYYND WIYOTVA QY 000-00TTE-S8T
IN3IYOTVA aV - T€ :dnoinidynay
AIN3QID0V IN3IOIANI - S8T :puny
Jaquinp Junodny
(eseasnaq) Jeuy angeual 198png [e301 Annoy |g30) Aoy je30)
/ @seanuy €202-220¢ €202-2202 220Z-1202 2202-1202 1202-0202
% 1odpng 123png juaieyq
judied 0} 328png

Alewwing Junoday

T uosuedwo)

1oday uosiiedwo) 198png

1 uosuedwo)

ALNNOD AFHOLS




187-187
JUSTIC COURT FUND



000 00°000°€9 00°000°€9 00°00099 £8°S90°6T SEI8L6TT *aNN4 LYN0D ID1LSNS - £8T :3uawipiedaq [ejo)
%00°0 000 00°000°€9 00°000°€9 00°000°99 £8°590°6T SE'TI8L6TT ‘0SS - 0SS :Tdnounidydx3 e3oy.
%000 000 00°0000T 00°000°0T 00°000°ST 00°6v0°6 000952 YIESH |RIUSIN-YDVYNIDVIg 000-9¢TSS-£8T-ZST
%000 000 00°000°8 000008 00°0009 89°998°T TL'6666T 090°% SYN ONII TIAID 000-SCTSS-£8T-/8T
%000 000 00°000's2 00°000°s¢ 00°000°SZ TE€7S6°9 00'7zZ'L9 TT90°94T SUN ALIIDVA 14D 000-TTTSS-Z8T-Z8T
%000 000 00°000°0Z 00°000°0Z 00°000°0Z 88°L0T°T €9°666 YT 6S0°9LT SUN £$ S3SSV NIWAY 000-v0TSS-£8T-Z8T
0SS - 055 ‘Tdnosnidydxy
aNNd4 14N0D ID1LSNTr - £8T Juawiredag
J3quiny Junosay
(aseainaq) leuiy4 ELVTSTET 123png |elol Aanoy je301 Ainnoy je30)
/ @seanu €202-220¢ €202-2202 2202-1202 220z-1202 T202-020¢
% 198png 123png jualey
judied 03 198png
T uosuedwo) T uosuedwory
Hoday uosiedwo) 338png
‘ sy . . “ i s 3DILSNr - £8T :pund [B30L
%000 000 00°000°€9 00°000°€9 00700099 05°68LVE €£°08919 aNNd 1HN0J 3D
; > -000°€9 00°000°€9 00°000°99 0S'68L'vE ££°089'v9 'S134404 ANV SINI - S€ :dnosoidyaay [e30)
%0070 00°0 000 — - s34 yoefoe|g 000-9CTSE-8T
%000 000 00°000°0T 00"000°0T 00°000'ST 00°LYLY 00°0SLVT > o oio crre e
. \AAA oy 000" LTT 09°L96Y ONITI4 TAID dOr
%000 000 000008 oo.ooo.m %.%M.MN NM.MNNMH 00'LLE°97 ALMIDV4 1¥N0D 4Of 000-TTTSE-Z8T
%000 000 00°0005Z 00'000°Se : 000-50TSE-28T
. W, sy ey ‘009’ €1°98S°8T £$ INJNSSISSY NINQY dOT
%000 000 0000002 00°000°0Z 00'000°02 00'009°6 S1134404 ANV SANI4 - S€ :dnoiDidynsy
ANNd 1YN0D IDLLSNC - £8T :puny
Jaquinp N0y
(asea123q) jeuyy ELGTATETY 1edpng g0l Aoy mol  Avanoy jelop
/ 3seaunu €202-220T £202-2202 22021202 2202Z-1202 1202-020¢
% 19dpng 128png juased
jualed 0} 123png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

Hoday uosuedwo) 128png



190-190
PARK FUND



%00°0 00°0 00'005°LT 00°00S°LT 00°000°ST 000 00°0
%00°0 00°0 00°00S°LT 00°00S°LZ 00°000°ST 00°0 000
%00°0 000 0000S°C 00005 00°00SZ 000 000
%000 000 00'000°S 00°000°s 00°000°S 000 000
%000 000 00°000°ST 00°000°ST 00005 000 000
%000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 00°000'S 000 000
(sseainaq) |euly aAnejua] 3a3png |exop Aanoy |e30p Auanoy je3op
/ ®seanu) £€202-2202 €202-2202 2202-1202 220z-1202 1202-020C
% 123png 123png juaiey
juaied 03 193png
T uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)
%00°0 000 00°00S°T 00°00S‘T 00°009°T 80°898'v6T 78°078°c
%00°0 00°0 00°0 000 007001 16°0T 28°0L
%00°0 000 000 000 00°00T 16°0T 28°0L
%00°0 000 00°00S°T 00°00ST 00°00S°T LT°LS8V6T 00°0SL°E
%000 000 000 000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 000 000 00°00S 000
%000 000 00°000°'T 00°000°T 00"000°T 000SL‘T 000SLT
%000 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°00S LT°L09°26T 00°000T
(eseanaq) leuly aAnejual 198png je3oL  Auapovelol Aoy R0
/ @seanu| £€202-220¢ €202-7207 22021202 2202-1202 1202Z-0202
% 13dpng 133png juaieqd
jualed 03 123png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

XVLNYVd - 06T :3uawiedaq [ejoy
:0v9 - 019 :Tdnosnidydx3 |e101

anI - XYvd 000-ST9¥9-06T-06T
NIVML XYVYIN-NYVd 000-¥T9v9-06T-06T
HOA-X¥Vd 000-£T9%9-06T-06T
JAYYd 000-¢T9%9-06T-06T

0v9 - 0v9 :Tdnoinydydxa
XVL ¥Y¥Vd - 06T :3udwiedag
13quInN unoloy

1oday uosuedwo) 328png

‘aNNd XV1 MY¥Vd - 06T :pung (B30

3NN3IATY SNOINVTIIDSIN - 9€ :dnounidyaay |e3o)
SONINYV3I L1SIYIINI 000-00T9€-06T
3INN3AIY SNOINVTIIDSIN - 9€ :dnoinidynay

:SIDIAYIS YO4 SIDUVHD - v€ :dnosnidyasy |e3o)

QOOMMDOT-XVL 334 Xyvd 000-ST9vE-061
NIVMDIYVIN-XYL 334 XYvd 000-7T9vc-06T
SANVIHOIH-XVL 334 XY¥vd 000-€T9v¢-06T

DA-XVL 334 ¥vd 000-CTSvE-06T

SIDIAYIS YO SIDYVHD - v€ :dnoinidynsay
AaNN4 XYL MYVd - 06T :pung
JaquinN junoady

Hoday uosuedwo) 3138png



200-200
TRI PAYBACK



€ 0 1 abed

WY 6Z:€0:TT 2202/9/S

%S8°8S 6v°000'VL6 00°6¥1°629°C TS'8YT'SS9‘T 00°000'vL2‘T S6°TEETSO'T 00°000°SSZ
%S8'8S 6v°000'vL6 00°6¥1°629'C 1S°8v1'SS9'T 00°000'vL2°T S6°ZEET80'T 00°000°SSL
%E6 V6 00°000'vL6 00°000°000°C 00°000°920°T 00°000'vLZ°T 00°005'69L 00°000°€T9
%000 000 000 000 00°0008¥C 000 000
%80°€C8T 00°000VLY 00°000°00S 00°000°9 0000097 00'00S'6T 00'000°€T
%00°0S 00°000°00S 00°000°00S'T 00°000°000°T 00'000°000°T 00'000°0SZ 00°000°009
%00°0 000 00°000°8¥Z 00°000°8%¢C 000 00°SL8TTT 00°000°2YT
%000 000 00"0008¥¢ 00'000°8%Z 000 00'SL8'TTC 00°000°ZvT
%00°0 6v°0 00°6vT'T8E 1S'8YT‘I8¢E 000 S6°L5S6°66 000
%000 0s’0 00"€0v‘9€E 0S'70v9€E 000 96'SSt'88 000
%000 T10°0- 00°9VL vy T0°9%L'vv 000 66'T0STT 000
(eseasnaq) |euiq aAneud. 198png |e30L Annoy |eroL Aanoy [ejor
/ @seasnnu| €202-7202 €202-720C 220T-120C 202-1202 1202-020¢
% 198png 198png jualed
juaied 0} 193png

T uosuedwo)

AJewiwing JunoJ2yY
1oday uosuedwo) 328png

T uosuedwo)

:|eyo) oday
MMOVEAVd 141 - 00T :pund [B30L
:YI4SNVYL ANNSYILNI - L€ :dnoDidynay |e3oL

3414 INOYd Y34SNVYL 000-0TZLE-00¢
DIV dIND3 INOYS ¥Y34SNYYL 000-£0TLE-00T
TVYINIO WOYd ¥34SNVYL 000-€02L£-00¢

YIASNVHL ANNJYILNI - L€ :dnosnidynay

:$3DIAY3S YO SIDYVH) - vE :dnounidyaay |eloL
1D141S1d 3414 - LAOD 1,NID 000-801t€-00¢
S3DINY3S YO SIDYVHD - v€ :dnosnidynay

:ONIANNA TVINIWNYIAODYILNI - €€ :dnounidyaay |ejol
%0T -1¥20S 000-Z05€€-00¢
%S-142D JISva 000-905€€-00C
ONIAGNNS TVANINYIAODYILNI - €€ :dnosnidynay
MNIVEAVd 141 - 00T :pund
J3qQWINN JUN022Y

ALNNOD AJYOLS




€ 0 T abeq

WY €T:E€T:TT Z20Z/9/S

%0S°LT-  00°000°00.- 00°000°00€‘€ 00°000°000° 00°000°000°€ TEY9L'VOY'T 00°000°005‘C
%0S°LT-  00°000°00L- 00°000°00€‘E 00°000°000° 00°000°000°€ TEVIL'VOY'T 00°000°005°T
%0S°LT-  00°000°00L- 00°000°00€‘E 00°000°000‘V 00°000°000°€ TEVILVOY'T 00°000°005Z
%0S°LT-  00°000°00Z- 00°000°00€‘€ 00°000°000t 00°000°000°€ TEYILYOY'T 00°00000SC
(aseasnaq) Jeuiq aAnejudl 128png |e10L AAndy |eyor Ananoy |g301
/ @seanu] €202-7202 €202-7207 7202-1202 ¢zoe-1z0t 1202-0202
% 333png 198png juaied
jualed 03 198png

T uosuedwo)

Alewiwing JUuNOJJYy
yoday uosiiedwo) 123png

T uosuedwo)

:jejo] ypoday
IMIVEAVd 141 - 002 :3udwiliedaq [e3o)

1$3DYNOS ONIDNVNI4 ¥IHLO - 0LS :Tdnounidydx3 |e3oL
NIVEAVd 1L 000-90€£5-00¢-00¢
$324NO0S ONIDNVNIL ¥3HLO - 0£S :Tdnoinidydx3
MIVEAVd 141 - 00T Juawiiedag
J3aquinN Junoly

e ANAYy

ALNNOD A3YOLS




206-206
GRANTS



vt 40 8T abed

WV £1:90:6 TZ0T/9/S

%0L°72L  00°000°009°C 00'v9£°656°C 00'9L°6S€ SL'LT8T6E 0S°L£0T0T Y2 0vS0ET
%00°0 00°000°00T 00°000°00T 000 000 000 000
%000 00°000°00T 00°000°00T 000 000 000 000
%06'v69  00°000°005°C 00'92°658'C 00't9L°6S€E SL°L18°T6E 0S°LE0°TOT YT 0vS'0ET
%000 000 000 000 000 000 SLLIT'EY
%000 000 00'%97°98 009798 00'669°C€ TL6L8'EE 000
%00°0 000 00'000°Z€ 00'000Z€ 00°000°C€ 00'000Z€ 8Y'TTZT'6E
%000 000 000 000 000 000 0£'€06°T
%000 000 00'0008€ 00'000'8€ 000 €0°LLS°LT 000
%000 000 00°000°9T 00°000°9T 000 ¥0'8€9°9 00'0ST'L
%000 000 000 000 00'87S'TL TLTY6 TLSYEYT
%000 00°000°005°T 00°000°005°C 000 000 000 000
%00°0 000 000 000 000 000 000
%000 000 000 000 000 000 00206'vT
%000 000 00°00S°Z8T 00005281 SL'065°9ST 000 000
(eseasdaq) |leuly4 ETV T TET 128png |e101 Anandy je3o) Aanoy |e101
/ @seanu| €202-2202 €202-7202 7e0z-1202 2202-120T T202Z-0202
% 1e3png 198png jualeq
juaied 03} 198png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

'SINVYD 31V1IS/1v¥3a3d - 90T :pund [e3o0L

‘¥IISNVHL ANNJYILNI - L€ :dnouDIdyAay |ejo)

TVY3IN3O INOYS ¥34SNVYL

000-€02L£-90¢

YIISNVYL ANNAYILNI - L€ :dnosDidynay

‘ONIANNS TYANINNYIAODHILNI - €€ :dnouDidynay |e3oy

3SNOH Y43dO S, ¥3dld

HD NOLVAY3S3dd JIYOLSIH
ANVLS IM d3LINN
ONINIVYL O1dX3 LVWZVH
OW ADNIOY3IWI-LNVYD DY3S
19N SINI-ONINNV1d-dINH
LIN3INdIND3

SINVYO Tv43034

ANVLS 3IM a3LINN
1IN3NdIND3

SINVYD 31VIS

S61-007E€-90¢C
8/T-00vEE-90C
6¥T-00v€€-90C
EET-00¥€E-90¢C
LTT-00vEE-90¢C
¥0T-00v€E-90C
€0T-00vEE-90¢C
000-00v€€-90¢C
6vT-00T€€-90¢C
€0T-00T€E-90¢C
000-00TEE-90¢C

ONIANNS TVANIWNYIAODYILNI - €€ :dnosnidysay
SINVYD 31V1S/1v¥3a3d - 90T :puny

J3qWINN 3UNodY

Hoday uosiiedwo) 398png



0S 40 Zz 3bed

WV 2Z:50:6 7202/9/S

%S0°76S  00°000°00S‘T  00°¥9Z'TT6'T  00'v9T‘TTY S8'€TL96Y 85°0S5'€ET LTEEY'SYT
%000 00°00000S‘C  00°000°00S‘T 000 00°0 000 000
%000 00'000°00S‘C  00°000°00S'C  00°0 000 000 000
%00°0 00°0 00'v92'72Y 009222y S8'€TL96Y 85°0SS'€ET LUEEY'SPT
%000 000 000 000 000 000 69°TT¥9S
%000 000 0079298 009298 00'669°C€ 8L°70TTS 17°859vT
%000 000 00°000°C€ 00°000°€ 00°000°C€ 00°000Z€ S8 EPTTE
%000 000 000 000 000 000 0£'€06'T
%000 000 00°000'8€ 00°000°8€ 00°000°8€ 05°6€€'8C 0T
%000 000 00°000°9T 00°000°9T 000 ¥0'8€9°9 000
%000 000 000 000 0T'vE6'vL 000 00°0LE'ET
%00'0 000 000 000 000 000 00°206'%T
%000 000 00°000°052 00°0000S¢ SL°060'6TE 9T0LY'VT 000
(aseasdaq) Jeuty anneua) edpng|ejor Ajady(elol  Auapoy jelop
/ 8seasnu) £202-220T €202-2202 2202-1202 2202-1202 1202-0202
% 1e3png 198png jualed
juaied 03 198png

T uosuedwo)

1 uosuedwo)

1902 - 902 :3uawiedaq |e3o)

:$30¥NOS ONIDNVNIL ¥3IHLO - 045 :Tdnoinidydx3 jejol
)3r0¥d VLIdVYD OL ¥34SNVYL 000-¥¢¢25-90¢-90¢
S3IDYNOS ONIDONVNI4 YIHLO - 0£S :Tdnosnidydx3

:SISNIdX3 TYNOILYYIdO - 0€S :Tdnosnidydx3 [e3ol
3ISNOH VY340 SY3did S61-00v€5-902-90¢
HD NOLVAY3S3dd DIYOLSIH 8/T-00v€5-902-90¢
ANVLS 3IM @3LINN 6vT-00v€5-902-90¢
ONINIVYL 01dX3 LYINZVH €€T-00v€5-902-90¢
9N ADNIOYINI-LNVYO D¥3S £7T-00v€5-902-90¢
19N 9W3-ONINNV1d-dIWH v0T-007€S-902-90C

1IN3IWdIND3 €01-00¥€5-90C-90¢
1IN3IWdIND3 €01-00€€5-902-90¢
SINVYD 31VIS 000-00€€£S-90¢-90¢

S3ISNIdX3 TYNOILYYIdO - 0€S :Tdnoinidydxg
907 - 902 :3uawiedag
JaquinN Junoddy

Hoday uosuedwo) 328png



220-220
RAIL PROJECT



00°000°08v

%00°0 00°0 00°000°08% STITY'E6ET 857720206 00°0Tt 9TV
%00°0 00°0 00°000°0€2 00°000°0€2 00°000°05¢ 00960t 00°0
%000 000 00'000°0€T 00'000°0€Z 00°000°052 00960 000
%00°0 000 000 000 00°000T68 00°000°T68 00°000°S0T
%000 000 000 000 00°000'T68 00°000'T68 00°000°S0T
%00°0 000 00°000°052 00°000°052 STITYTST 859269 00°0TY'TTE
%000 000 00'000°0S¢ 00'000°0S¢ 00000052 000 00000052
%000 000 000 000 STI9TY'T 85°9769 000119
(aseasaq) leuly ENGISTIET 198png |e30) Aianoy je3o) Alanoy |g101
/ @seasu| €202-2207 €202-7202 2202-1202 2202-1202 T202-020C
% 123png 138png jualed
juased 03 123png
T uosuedwo) T uosnuedwo)
%00°0 000 00°000°00S 00°000°00S 00°000°0S€ 8v°SYT'SLS 0T'T19°069
%00°0 00°0 00°000°00S 00°000°00S 00°0000S€ 8v'svesLs 0T'TT9069
%000 000 00000005 00000005 00°000°0S€ 65'9T8°8YS 0T'T19°069
%00°0 000 000 000 000 68'8Ct'9C 000
(esean2q) leuy angejuay @3png jeloy  Apamdvielor  Aanoy jelop
/ @seasnu| €202-2202 £€202-2202 2202-1202 7202-1202 T202-0202
% 1adpng 198png juasey
juaied 03 193png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

1123r0Yd L'8A - 022 :3uawiiedaq [e30)

:0t9 - 0¢9 :T1dno1nidydx3 |eyoy
AV1LNO TVLIdYD 000-0T0%¥9-0¢¢-0cC
09 - 0v9 :Tdnosnidydx3y
:$324NO0S ONIDINVYNI4 ¥IHLO - 045 :Tdnosnidydx3 [e3op
J1dIDNIYd 000-T0TZ5-02¢-0C¢
S3DYNOS ONIDINVYNIA YIHLO - 0LS :Tdnoinidydx3

:SNOINVITIDSIA - 095 :Tdnoin3dydx] |ejoL
140ddNS 1IvY L3A 000-50595-0¢¢-0¢¢
3SN3dX3 1SIYILNI 000-00195-0¢¢-0¢¢
SNO3INVITIDSIN - 095 :Tdnosnidydx3
1D3r0¥d 1’8A - 02T :udwpedag
laquinn unoly

1oday uosuedwo) 128png

153r0¥d 1V JA - 022 :pun4 [e30)

*ONIANNS TV.ANIWNIIAODYILNI - €€ :dnoinidynay [e3o)

XeL [ley DA 000-805€€-0CC
ANOS JINONOD3 AYNSY3IYL 000-0Te€E-0¢C

ONIGNNS TVLNIWNYIAODYILNI - €€ :dnosnydyasy
123r0¥d 11vY DA - 022 :pund
Jaquinn junody

Hoday uosuedwo) 328png



230-230
VCTC



vt 40 0T sbed

WV £1:90:6 2202/9/S

%000 000 00°00S‘S 00°00S‘S 00°000°S YT V6T'S 00'6TS9
%000 000 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 000 000 000
%000 000 00°000°ST 00°000°ST 00000t 00'525'8 000
%000 000 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 00°00S°C 00°00ST 00°000°T
%000 000 00°000% 00°000t 00'00SC 00°SST'C 8€'TS0E
%000 000 00'000°S 00°000°S 000 000 000
%000 000 00'00S‘T 00°00S‘T 00'00S‘T 909 6L°T90°T
%00°0 00°0 00°005°8v¥ 00°005‘8tt 00°008‘81Y 76'06L'EEY S2°896'SST
%000 000 00°000°0CT 00'000°0ZT 00'000°0TT Ov'SYLTTT [ANA AR 4!
%000 000 00'000°Z 00'000°L 00'005‘8 95'SLT'8 002S9'Y
%000 000 000 000 000 00°00T 000
%000 000 00'00S°0T 00°00S°0T 00°000°0T LEYIT'6 90'87T0T
%000 000 00'00S‘vT 00005 VT 00°000°ST 000 0028022
%000 000 00000V 00°000't 00'008°L 8v°018'8 000
%00°0 000 000 000 000 000 000
%000 000 00'000°02 00'000°0Z 00°000'ST 9€'€86'VT 000
%000 000 00°000°8€ 00'000°8¢€ 00°000°0t 000 86°T00'€9
%000 000 00°00S ¥ 00005Vt 00°000°0S 00°056'v¥ 71°8€8°6C
%000 000 00'000°8LT 00000'8LT 00°000°0ST SLTYY'8CC 000
%000 000 00'00S‘T 00°00S‘T 00°000C 00°522'T 000
%000 000 00'000°S 00°000°S 00°000°S 00°S6L 000
%000 000 00°00S‘S 00°00S°S 00°00S‘S 00'00T°S L6'ETT'E
%00°0 00°0 00°000°Z+0‘T 00°000°ZY0‘T 00°000°6€8 v6°681°6€6 L¥'6S0°0L8
%000 000 00°000°0¥S 00°000°0tS 00°000°00S 0S'918'8¥S SY'2L9°0LY
%000 000 00'000°0€Y 00'000°0¢Y 00°'000°STE 0b'SLE'88E ¥£'206'TPE
%000 000 00°000C 00000°C 00°000C v0'866'T 8TYETL'T
%000 000 00°000°0Z 00'000°0L 000 000 000
%000 000 000 000 0000022 000 00'0SZ’SS
%000 000 00°000°Zy 00°000°2y 00°000'2¥ 00°0L6'LT 00'0T6'Ey
%000 000 00000 00"000 00"000' 00'002T 00001
%000 000 00°000°8 000008 00°0009 00'09L°S 00'0€€'6
%000 000 00°000CT 00'000°CT 00'000vT 00'S06'v 00°008°TT
%000 000 00°000°0¢ 00°000°0C 00°000°0C 00'S0T‘9 0008907

(sseaaq) jeuld sanejual je8png eiol  Awanovelol  Anagdy [elop

/ aseanu| €202-2202 €202-7202 2202-1202 220Z-170 1202-0202

% 198png 128png jua.ed
juaied 03 128png

1 uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

31AYd SNOILYNOG/SIYLNOD
10430 1HOI1344 DA-SIN3Y
SANNOYOYIVL

10d3d T1IH 4109
SONIATING ALNNOD - SIN3Y
NOILVIHOdSNVYL-SIN3Y
SONINYV3 LSIHILNI

000-00¥9€-0€¢
TZT-£0¢9¢€-0€¢C
¥T1-€029¢€-0€C
80T-€0C9¢€-0€¢
000-€029€-0€C
000-0029€-0€¢C
000-00T9¢€-0€¢

INNIAIY SNOINVTIIISIN - 9€ :dnosDidynay
:$3DIAY3S YO SIDUVHD - v€ :dnoinIdyaay |ero)

SIIVS LINDIL dVD
N3IMOTIVH

SLIHOIN 1SN9NV 10H
AVA SINILINITVA

AVA ¥31HONVA-Y43H1Vd
SVINLSIYHD

0300Y¥Y SYM 11 AVM 3HL
30vd 3SNOHLNO
3440-%002 ITIHD

AY¥4 ¥31SA0

S3OVY 13ANVD
NOILVYEIA 13341S

AINM 40 H1Y

SIN3A3 TVID3dS

000-00£¥€-0€¢C
TEC-ETTIVE0EC
OEC-ETIPE-0EC
8TC-ETTVE-OEC
9TC-ETTvE-0EC
SCC-ETIvE-0EC
9TZ-ETTvE-0EC
60C-ETTVE-OEC
80C-€TTvE-0EC
L0T-€TTvE-0EC
SOC-ETTYE-0EC
YOC-ETTVE-OEC
€0C-ETIVE-OEC
000-€TTrE-0EC

SIDIAYIS Y04 SIDYVHD - vE :dnoinidynay

:ONIANNA TYLNINNYIAODYILNI - €€ :dnoiD1dynay |e3oy

XVLNSIINOL
XV1WOOY

3LV1S - 3SN3IDIT ONINVD
SINVYD 1vy¥30a3d
SINVYD 3LVIS

000-CTSEE-0¢¢C
000-TTSEE-0€C
000-¥0S€E-0EC
000-00v€€-0€C
000-00T€E-0€C

DNIGNN4 TVANIWNYIAODYILNI - €€ :dnoinidynay

:SLIAY3d / SISNIDI - Z€ :dno1DIdyAay |eol

S3ISN3DIN 13¥vavd

0D - S3ISN3DIT ONIANVD
S3SN3IDITHONDIN

(409) SISN3DN SSANISNE

000-90T¢E-0€C
000-€0Tce-0EC
000-¢0TZE-0EC
000-TOTZE-0EC

SLINY3d / SISNIDI - Z€ :dnounidynsy
NOISSININOD ISIINOL DA - 0ET -pung

JaquinN 3uno’y

Joday uosuuedwo) 123png



Pt 40 17 abed

WY £1:90:6 2202/9/S

%00°0 000 00°000°259‘T 00°000°259°T 00°000°90%°T 8€°7TE'S8Y'T TTLY6°08T'T
%00°0 00°0 00°00S 2T 00°005v2T 00002901 TS'TLE'V6 6v°600‘TTT
%000 000 00'000°S 00°000°S 00°000°SZ 00'30Z‘vT 00'v9Z'vT
%000 000 00'000'SL 00'000°SL 000009 9L°LTLT9 6S'SEEEL
%000 000 00°0ST 00°052 00°00C 0C'06¢€ 00°T8
%000 000 00°0SZ 00°0S¢C 00°00S 9€°L09 €L7969°T
(aseasdeq) |euiq EL S TET) 198png |e301 Aoy |e301 Aianoy je101
/ @seasnu| €202-720T €202-2202 202-1202 2202-1202 T202-0202
% 138png 198png jualed
juaied 0} 138png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

‘NOISSININOD INSIYNOL DA - 0€Z :pund |ejo)
‘3INNIAIY SNOINVTTIDSI - 9€ :dnounidynay (ezoL

NI AY3LINID 99T-00£9¢-0€C
SA009 40 S3VS 000-00£9¢-0¢€C
S3ILTVYN3Id DN sng 000-9TS9¢-0€C
Y¥3IHLO - JSIN 000-0059¢€-0€¢

JdaquinN Junoddy

Hoday uosiiedwo) 338png



0S j0 vz ebed

WY 22:50:6 ¢202/9/S

%00°0 000 00°0000LT 00°000°0LT 00°000°LYT €€'GESL8 000
%000 000 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 00°0000T 86°€0L9 ¥9°S8€C
%00°0 000 00°000'tC 00000 00°000°8T L0827 L0°9T0°T
%00°0 000 00°000°02 00°000°0T 00°0058T €7°¥80°0¢ 99°8ZE'TT
%000 000 00'00SC 00°00S°C 000 000 000
%00°0 000 00°000T 00°000°T 00°000'T LT'SSS L6°8TC
%000 000 00'000'T 00°000'T 00'005‘T 00°'TtL'T 67%S9'T
%00°0 000 00°00S‘€ 00°00S‘€ 00°005°€ 8L°€L9 ¥8°7SS’E
%000 000 00°000C 00°000'C 00°00S 8Y'6vC 19721
%000 000 00°005T 00°00S‘T 00°005°T 000 000
%000 000 000 000 00°000'S 6€¥8E'T 19'7€6°T
%00°0 000 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 00°005°C 19'866'C O EpL'T
%00°0 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 00°000°S 88'9LY'L St'ovL'E
%00°0 000 00'000°€ 00°000°€ 00°00S €8°TL- 16°L9L-
%000 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°00S 000 000
%000 000 00°000'T 00°000'T 00°000'T v¥'8YS LT0T8
%00°0 000 00°008°C 00°008°C 000 000 000
%00°0 000 00°000°T 00°000'T 00'052 rand3 000
%00°0 000 00°005C 00'00S°C 00°000C S9vYS'T 65°T8T'T
%000 000 00°000'6 00°000°6 00°000'8 8ELL'S vT°Z0L'S
%000 000 000 000 000 000 000
%000 000 00°000% 00000t 00°000'T 0€'987°C SEBSET
%000 000 00'000C 00°000C 00°000'T $9°909 000
%00°0 000 00°00S'€E 00°00S'€ 00°005°€ v6°v78'T Y vreET
%000 000 00°00S'v 00°00S5't 00°000 TTET6'T 67055y
%000 000 00°000°T 00°000'T 00°0000T ¥2°69C 9%'199°6
%9L"T 00'685°V 00'658°0LT 00°0£2°99T 00°€ST'6ET L0°LS6'VTT 61°T88'ZET
%19 009L 00'€TET 00°LET'T 009t 78'S66'T €5°90L°T
%61°9 00282 00°€26'y 00'9€9'v 00°€SH'y 6L°6L0Y 06'89T'Y
%LT'T- 00'SSZ‘T- 00°56t°9S 00°0SL°LS 00°L£9°9t €5°0SP'8€ 0,'888°cY
%¥9°0 0011 00°£zE8T 00°0TZ'8T 00'9vL€T L5896 78156
%SE9 00v9€’S 00'T08'68 00'LEV'V8 00'188°69 9ET9Y L ¥27'6L0'8L
%029 00'628°6T 00" TS 6€€ 00°ZIL6TE 00°SET'L0E €¥°8E6°€8T €8 TTT'L6T
%00°0 000 000 000 000 €T'V6T 000
%029 0067861 00°'T¥S'6EE 00°CZTL'6TE 00'SET'L0E 0T vYL'€8C €8°TTTL6T

(eseasdaq) leuy anneual 1@8png ol Ayanoy jejor  Anapoy jeiol

/ @seanu| £202-2202 €202-720T 2202-1202 2202-1202 1202-0202

% yodpng 193png juaied
juaied 03 323png

1 uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

I¥2-ONIAGNN4 SIN3IA3 TVID3dS
11S-ONIANN4 SIN3IAI TVID3dS
11¥-ONIAGNN4 SIN3IAI TVID3dS
ONIANNd IN3A3 TVID3dS
)I344 DA-3DNVNILNIVIA 5018
SANNOYOYIVL

10430 T1IH 4109
3DNVNILNIVIA ONIATING
135310 B SVO

SWYO04INN

FYVMULA0S ¥3LNdINOD
AIN3IWdIND3 ¥3LNdNOD
S3OYVHD NV
FDNVNILNIVIN OLNV
ONINIVYL

S3SV3T1 ANV SIN3Y

10430 LHOI3¥4 DA-S3LLNLLN
SANNOYSDYIVL - S3ILNILN
10d3d T1IH @109 S3iLniLn
S3LnN

JDNVNILNIVIA LN3INJIND3
d1¥ds8Nns B sanad

T3AVYL

INOHd313L

$311ddNS 321440

39V1S0d

50¢-090€5-0£C-0¢€C
¥0¢-090€5-0€C-0¢€C
000-090€5-0€C-0£C
¥TT-£50€5-0€C-0€C
000-0v0€5-0€¢-0€C
000-¥€0€S-0£C-0€C
000-€€0€5-0€¢-0¢€C
000-0£0€5-0€¢-0¢€¢C
000-£Z0€S-0€C-0¢€¢C
TCT-CC0ES-0£C-0EC
¥TT-CC0ES-0£C-0€C
801-CC0€S-0£C-0€¢C
000-C¢0€S-0£C-0€¢C
000-9T0€5-0£C-0€¢
000-7T0ES-0EC-0€¢C
000-€T0ES-0€¢-0€C
000-CT0€S-0£C-0¢€C
000-TTOES-0£C-0¢€C
000-0T0ES-0£¢-0¢€C

S3ISN3dX3 TYNOILYYIdO - 0€S :Tdnoinidydx3

:S1143N38 IDNIYA - 0ZS :Tdnounldydx3 je3oy

ALI¥ND3S VID0S
3YVIIQIN
FDNVINSNI HLTV3IH
10vd

Sd3d

000-¥T0¢S-0£C-0€C
000-€T0¢S-0£C-0€¢
000-CT0¢S-0€C-0EC

S1143IN38 IONIYS - 0TS :Tdnoindydx3

:3SN3dX3 1D3Y1Q AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnosnidydx3 |ejor

EITHIENYe)
SIOVYM B SAHVIVS

000-T1015-0€C-0€C
000-0T0TS-0€C-0€C

3ISN3dX3 103410 AYVIVS - 016 :Tdnoinidydx3
NOISSIWINOD WSIYNOL DA - 0£Z Judwypiedag

JaquinN Junoddy

Joday uosiedwo) 128png



06 40 Gz 2bed

WY 22:50:6 2202/9/S

%LY'T 00°8TY'v2 00°SEE'S89‘T 00°LT6°099'T T0°£90°S0L‘T TL'86ETSTT STELOEIT'T
%0070 000 00°000°00T 00°000°00T 00°000°92Z¢€ LTTIS'E0T S6'T8C
%000 000 00°000°00T 00°000°00T 00'0009Z€ LTTIS€0T S6'18C
%00°0 00°0 00°588'SZT 00°588'SZT 00°620°02T TLL6T'60T LETLY'ETT
%000 000 00'000°0TT 00°000°0TT 00'000°00T ST'v70'86 008S0VTT
%000 000 00'SELTT 00°GEL'TT 00'6LL'6 L6'V6L'8 68°70L'8
%000 000 00°006°€ 00°006°€ 00°000°0T 6V'8LET 8Y' IV
%000 000 00°0ST 00°0S¢ 00°0S¢ 000 00°00€
%00°0 000 00°0S0°6v6 00°050°6v6 10°0SL‘2T8 €T'Y6L0ES 16°SZE°609
%00°0 000 00°000'SL 00°000°SL 00'0008¢€ TOTET'VE T00T Ty
%000 000 00'00€'LET 00'00€°LET 00°000'S8 97°€69'9S TL959°9L
%00°0 000 00°000°ST 00°000°ST 00°000°02 9T vv1'0T L'SYT'8E
%00°0 000 00°000LT 00°000°LT 00°000°ST 000 00'0£8°LT
%000 000 0000501 00°00S°0T 0000082 19°€69vT ST°LTT'ST
%00°0 000 00002t 00°00Z°T 00°000'T TTTCET 8Y"'€9€ET
%000 000 00°000°8 000008 00°000°0T 000 00'00S'€
%00°0 000 00°000'% 00°000't 00°000°S 000 000
%000 000 000 000 000 000 00° ey
%00°0 000 00°000°0¥T 00°000°0%T 10°000'v6 87'SS6°LL 00°€T9'S8
%00°0 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°00S 000 000
%000 000 00°000v 00000t 00000t TLLEL'E €1'520C
%000 000 00°0SL 00°0SL 00°00S 96°CS £€5°89C
%000 000 00'000°S 00°000°S 00'000°€ SS'TSTT 00°0ST
%000 000 00'000T 00'000°T 00°000°0% 00°€8Y LS'S6Y'6T
%000 000 00°000°0% 00°000°0t 00°000°0t 16'SL0'SE 6V TELTS
%000 000 00°0059 000059 00°000°S 7T°€60°E LY'T9L'S
%000 000 00°000'T€ 00'000°TE 00000'TE 00°006 00°000°0€
%000 000 00°000°0T 00'000°0T 000009 08°'668°8 £v°995°6
%00°0 000 00'000°€T 00°000°€T 00°000'ST 00°SLS°TT ¥8°0T9°0C
%000 000 0000592 0000592 00°000%C Yy LTYLT 9€£'708'vT
%000 000 00°000°SC 00°000'SZ 000 000 000
%00°0 000 000 000 000 000 000
%000 000 00'000'%C 00°000%C 00°000°ST 08°S86 000
%00°0 000 00°00S°€€ 00°00S°€€ 00°000'8€ 00°009°8¢ 8€'988°09
%000 000 00°000CY 00°000Z¥ 00°000°8Y 00°002'St 60°€SE6C

(aseasaq) leulq4 anyejua)l 133png |ej01 Aoy jejop Aanoy ;301

/ aseasnu| €202-220T €202-720¢ 2202-1202 2202-120C T1202-0202

% 123png 198png juaiegd
juaied 03 128png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

‘NOISSIWINOD SIYNOL JA - 0€Z :3uawiedaq |ejoL

1019 - 0v9 :Tdno1nidydx3 [e3oL

AVILNO VLIV

000-0T0¥9-0€¢-0¢€¢

09 - 0¢9 :Tdnoinidydx3

:SNOANVIIIDSIN - 095 :Tdnoinidydxy |ejoL

ANINISYNEGNIZY 3NNIA dVD
WNIN3Yd IDNVHNSNI
3SN3IdX3 ONILIIN
SNO3NVTIIDSIN

000-00995-0€¢-0€¢C
000-70595-0€¢-0€¢C
000-00595-0€¢-0€¢

SNO3INVIT13DSIW - 095 :Tdnosoidydx3

:S3ISNIdX3 TYNOILYYIdO - 0€S :Tdnoinidydx3 jejor

L13INY3LINI/ VIQIW TVID0S
ONISILYIAQY Y¥v0811I8
ONISILY3IAQY OIavy
ONISILYIAQY AL
ONISILYIAQY INIdd
XVLWOO0d

139ang/L1anv

NSIS30 8IM

SIYNLXI4 B IYNLINYNS
S3DIAY3S TYNOISSIJ0Ud
S3ISN3IdX3 MOHS 30yl
ALNVLIdSOH-SYNOL V4
LIN3WNIV1Y3ILNI

INVYO0Yd INID0a

NI9 AY3L13N3D

S3ISN3IdX3 ¥3ILN3ID YOLISIA
VH-ONIONN4 SIN3IAI TVID3dS
OH-SNIGNN4 SIN3IAI TVID3dS
VA-ONIANNS SIN3AI 1VID3dS
_V4-ONIANN4 SINIAT TVID3dS
HJO-ONIANN4 SIN3A3 TVID3dS
(3¥14/0S) 1O - IN3A3 VI1D3dS
IHL-ONIONN4 SLN3IAI TVID3dS
NO-9NIANNH SIN3IA3 TVID3dS
HO-ONIANNd SIN3A3 TVID3dS
‘AO-ONIANN4 SINIAI TVIDIdS

000-809€5-0€¢-0€¢C
000-909€5-0€¢-0€C
000-¥09€S-0€¢-0€¢C
000-209€S-0€¢-0€C
000-TTSES-0€C-0€C
000-€£0€5-0€¢-0€¢C
000-¢Z0€5-0€¢-0€C
000-0£0€5-0€¢-0€¢
000-990€5-0€¢-0€¢C
TOP-S90€5-0€C-0€C
000-590€S-0€¢-0€¢
000-v90€5-0€¢-0€C
000-T90€5-0€¢-0€¢C
0€¢-090€5-0€¢-0€C
07¢-090€5-0€¢-0€¢C
9T¢-090¢€5-0€¢-0€¢
60¢-090€5-0€C-0€C

JoquinN Junoddy

uoday uosuedwo) 138png



231-231
PIPERS



v 40 2T 3bed

WY £1:90:6 2202/9/S

%00°0 0070 00°000vLZ 00°000vLT 00°00099¢ 80°€0b‘S6T S0"€0S°8v
%00°0 000 00°000°S0T 00°000S0T 00°000°0TT 0000528 00°000°60T
%000 000 00°000°S0T 00°00050T 00°000°0TT 0000528 00°00060T
%00°0 000 00°000‘vZ 00°000°v2 00°000'vZ £0°8S9°TT 96°789°6T
%00°0 000 00'000°€ 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 00’8 LT L0y
%00°0 000 000 000 000 8 LY0T LS'SE
%00°0 000 00°000°T 00°000T 00°000°T S7°920C ovL
%00°0 000 0000002 0000002 00°000°02 00°00S8T 00°00S‘8T
%00°0 000 00°000°6€T 00°000°6€T 00°000°22T 10°Sv2‘88 2L78€L°00T
%00°0 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 000009 6E'€ES’E LTSty
%000 000 00°000°St 00°000°SH 00°'0000% 6T°€96'9¢ 0€°TY6'cT
%000 000 00°000°SZ 00'000°S¢ 00°000°S2 0001 LY L08VT
%000 000 0000007 00°000°0C 00°000°0 T8 EPETT 000zt~
%000 000 00°000vY 00°000v¥ 00°000T€ 79'vET'9Y €7°9S8'LY
%00°0 000 00°000'9 00°000‘9 00°000°0T 00000 LE'T806T
%000 000 000 000 000 000 000
%000 000 000009 000009 00°0000T 00°000°€ LETS0'6T

(eseasaq) Jeuiy annejus] ja3png |g101 Aoy jesop Aoy B30

/ @seanu| €202-2202 €202-7202 7202-1202 T202-1202 1202-020C

% 183png 198png juaseq
juaied 03 323png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

‘ISNOH V¥3dO SY3did - TET :pund |ej0)1

‘YIISNVYL ANNFYILINI - L€ :dnosnidynay |ejoL
TYY3NID INOYS YIISNVYL 000-€07Z€-T€C
Y3IISNVYL ANNJYILNI - L€ :dnoinydynay

‘ANN3A3Y SNOINVTIFDSIN - 9€ :dnoinidyaay |e3op
SA009 40 31vS 000-00£9¢€-T€C
JSIN 000-0059¢€-T¢€¢
31AYd SNOILYNOG/SI4LNOD 000-00%9¢-T¢C
SONIATING ALNNOD - SLN3Y 000-€029€-T€C
INN3IA3Y SNOINVTIADSIN - 9€ :dnoigidynay

:$3DINY3S YO SADUVHD - p€ :dnoinydynay je3o)
SITVS LINDIL dVD 000-00Z%€-T€C
SONIAA3IM-SLNIAI TVID3dS OVZ-ETIPE-TEC
IDNVINYOYId ONIYLS TTCETIvETEC
IDNVINYOYId YILINIM TTCETIPETEC
SLN3A3 TVID3dS 000-€TTPE-TEC
S3IDINYIS ¥O4 SIDYVH)D - v :dnounidynasy

:ONIANNA TYANIWNYIAODYHILNI - €€ :dnosnidynay [e301
SINVYO 1v¥3a3d 000-00vEE-TEC
SINVY9 31VIS 000-00T¢E-TeC
ONIGNNS TYANINNYIAODYILNI - €€ :dnoinydynay
3ISNOH VY¥3dO SY¥3did - TEZ :pung
Jagquwinn uno2y

Moday uosuedwo) 398png



0S 40 97 3bed

WV 22:50:6 T202/9/S

%00°0 00°0 00°008°00T 00°008°00T 00°00L°0TT €1°556°99 £5°S20°08
%000 000 00°000°0T 00°0000T 00°000°8 60'9L6°E 07'816TT
%000 000 00°00SC 00°005°C 00°005C 000 000
%000 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°005C 00620'T 00718
%000 000 00°000°ST 00°000°ST 00°000CT 00°00T‘S 00'526'6
%000 000 00°000°T 00°000T 00°00T°C 000 000
%000 000 00°00ST 00°00S‘T 00°00ST 000 ¥8'6CY
%000 000 000 000 000 000 000SZ°e
%00°0 000 00°000°L 00000°L 00°000'CT 75002 60°96€'L
%000 000 00°00S°L 00°00S°L 00'000CT 006ty 9L°L6EY
%000 000 00°000'8T 00°000°8T 00°000°0 €1°02L9T €T
%000 000 0000S°C 00°005C 00°000°€ ¥€800C 0Ty
%000 000 00°002 00°00¢ 00°002 000 000
%000 000 00°00S 00°00S 000 000 000
%00°0 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 000 60°7€€ 000
%000 000 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 00°00€'€ €8'TS8C 70°S92
%000 000 000 000 000 000 000
%000 000 00°000'T 00'000'T 00'00S‘T £6'8C8 SLSTET
%000 000 00°000°6T 00°000°6T 00'000°6T 65 V€T L¥°908°LT
%000 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°000°C 000 000
%000 000 00°00t'T 00°00%°C 00°009°S 91°008 97'59T'e
%000 000 000 000 000 000 000
%000 000 00000°€ 007000 00'000°€ €E9EY'T v0LT9T
%000 000 00°00S 00005 00°00€ 0v'S8¢€ L¥°SSS
%000 000 00°002 00°002 00002 we $6°8C
%69°€ 00°066‘T 00°6v6'SS 00°656°€S 00°160°TS €2°L66ST 60'tS6°€E
%8L'T 002E 00'528T 00°€6LT 00'8T9°C S6'ELE €Y°LLT
%ET'9 0086 00'869°T 00°009°T 00'685°T ¥9°9€8 €LETOT
%000 000 00 TTIETT 00TIETT 00'8SS'€T 0't€0'6 06'TESTT
%92°0 00'6€ 00'8S6'VT 00'6T6'tT 00'756'CT 78'T8LT 68°LLT'T
%8Y°L 00'TZ8'T 00°£ST°9¢ 00'9€EVT 00'8L€0C 08'6S0'VT $T°€S8°8T
%60°9 00°02L9 00'6L0°LTT 00°6SE0TT 00°€vE‘60T 8€°L9€'8S 68°06€°TL
%609 00°02L9 00°6L0°LTT 00'65€°0TT 00'€vE'60T 8€°L9€'8S 68°06€7L

(aseasaq) leuiy aAnejuaL je3pngjelol  Anapoy elor  Aandy jelol

/ @seainu| £202-7202 €202-2202 2202-1202 2202-120C 1202-020T

% 1e3png 198png juaied
judied 0} 398png

1 uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

:S3SN3IdX3 TYNOILLYYHIdO - 0€S :Tdnosnidydx3 |ezoL

13NY3LNI / VIQ3IW TVID0S
ONISILY3IAQY O1avy
ONISILY3AQY LNIYd
S3DIAY3S TYNOISS310¥d
SISNIAX3 MOHS 3aViL
S3ISNIdX3 YILN3ID YOLISIA
JM-ONIANN4 SINIA3 TVID3dS
JdS-ONIANN4 SIN3AI TVID3dS
IM-ONIONNL SIN3IAI TVID3dS
ONIANNS IN3A3 TVID3dS
JDNVNILNIVN ONIQTING
AYANNVT

SIWYO4INN

aiemyos sandwo)
IN3NdIND3 ¥31NdINOD
S3SV3T ANV SIN3Y

S31NddNS ONILYY3dO
S3nin

IDNVNILNIVIN LNIINJIND3
dI¥2saNns B sana

T3AVHL

INOH4313L

$31NddNS 321440

3OV1SOd

000-609¢€S-TEC-T€C
000-909€5-T€C-TeC
000-¢09€5-T€CTeC
000-0£0€5-T€C-1€C
000-990€5-T€¢-TeC
0¥C-090€5-TEC-TEC
TTZ-090€S-TEC-TEC
TTC-090€5-TEC-T€C
000-090€5-T€C-T€C
000-£5S0€5-TEC-TEC
000-€S0€S-T€C-T€C
000-6€0€5-T€C-1€C
000-7€0ES-TEC-TeC
000-€€0€5-TEC-TeC
000-£C0€S-T€C-T€C
000-7C0ESTEC-TEC
000-C¢0ESTEC-TEC
000-5TOES-TEC-TEC
000-FTOESTECTEC
000-€TOESTEC-TEC
000-CT0ESTEC-TEC
000-TTOESTEC-TEC
000-0T0ES-T€C-TEC

S3ISN3IdX3 TYNOILYY3O - 0€S :Tdnoinidydx3

:S114IN39 IONIYA - 026 :TdnosD1dydx3 B30y

ALI¥NI3S IVID0S
3¥VOIQ3N
3ONVINSNI HITV3IH
10vd

Sd3d

000-¥T0ZS-TEC-T€C
000-€TOCS-TEC-TEC
000-CT0ZSTeC-TeC
000-TTO0CS-TeC-TeC
000-0T0ZS-T€C-T€C

S1143N38 IONIYA - 026 :Tdnoinidydx]
:3SN3IdX3 103HIA AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnosoidydx3 |ejo)

SIOVM 8 SIVIVS

000-0T0TS-TEC-1EC

3SN3dX3 103410 AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnosoidydxy
ISNOH YY3dO SH3did - TET uawnedaq

J1aquinN JUNoNYy

jo0day uosuedwo) 198png



0S 40 £z 3bed

WY 22:50:6 2202/9/S

%ET'E 00°0TL‘8 00°91698¢ 00°902°8L2 00°£59°T8¢ v£°669°09T SS'TZH'S6T
%000 000 00°880°€T 00°880°€T 00°€25°0T 00°08€'6 00°1506
%000 000 00°88€CT 00'88€°ZT 00°€Z€‘0T 00°€€E’6 009268
%00'0 000 00°00L 00°00L 00°002 00°'LY 00°'SL
(asearaq) leuly sngejus] 1e3png (ejol  Auamdy elop Aoy [elop
/ @seanu| £€202-220C £202-2202 2202-1202 2202-1202 1202-0202
% 133png 123png juaiey
jualed o1 193png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

:3SNOH VY340 S¥3did - TEZ uawpedaq e30y

:SNOINVYTIIISIN - 096 :Tdnosnidydx3 jeyoy
WNI3IYd IDNVINSNI 000-00995-T€¢-1€¢
3ISN3IdX3 ONILIIN 000-70S95-T€C-TEC
SNO3INVTIIISIN - 095 :Tdnoinydydx3
Jaquinpy unoddy

uoday uosiuedwo) 1a8png



Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 5/17/2022 10:00 AM - Estimate of Time Required: 15 min
BOCC Meeting

| Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

Title: Consideration and possible approval of change order for the Lockwood Tower
Road and Retaining Wall Repair Project to extend the pavement replacement up to the
fire district turnaround in an amount estimated by MKD construction at $89,777.00.

Recommended motion: I, [commissioner], move to approve the change order in in the
estimated amount of $89,777 to replace the asphalt paving from the original scope of
work up to the fire department turnaround.

Prepared by: Mike Northan

Department: Contact Number: 7753356991

Staff Summary: The original scope of work included replacement of deteriorated asphalt
on the lower section of the road. The balance of the road has deteriorated since the
design was completed several years ago. This would replace the asphalt paving up to the
turnaround and the tower access gate.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: $89,777

Legal review required: False

Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:

County Manager Other Agency Review:
Board Action:
[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

|H



CONSTRUCTION INC.
NV LIC. #50061 CA LIC. -818376

April 25, 2022

Mr. Mike Northan

Operations and Project Coordinator
Storey County Public Works

100 Toll Road

Virginia City, NV 89440

RE: Additional paving for Lockwood Tower Road and Retaining Wall Repair

Dear Mike,

Per your request, MKD Construction proposes to provide the additional paving for this
project. Our crews will remove existing asphalt, regrade, place geo-grid, and place 6” of
Type 2 base, followed by paving 4” of new asphalt.

The work would occur in conjunction with other items of base and paving.

The limits of the new section of paving are roughly a 50’ x 50’ section at the intersection.
It is also assumed that a 50’ x 14’ section paved in a westerly direction will terminate at
the water tank access. Also, a 150’ segment will be paved from the driveway job limit to
the intersection point. This should give the Fire Department the necessary paved
surface required for their emergency vehicles.

MKD Construction will execute the proposed additional items of work for a lump sum
price of $89,777.00.

If further information or an onsite visit to further discuss the limits of new asphalt
pavement is desired, please contact our office. Thank you.

Respectfully,

WA,

Michael J. Grock
President

MJG:ss

20 Stokes Drive, Mound House, Nevada 89706 « Phone (775) 246-1900 « Fax (775) 246-1986



Storey County Board of Fire Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 5/17/2022 Estimate of time required: 5 Minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ X] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of a
Memorandum of Understanding for pre-fire and fuels reduction operations in the Lake
Tahoe Basin and along the Sierra Front.

2. Recommended motion: I (Fire Commissioner) move to approve a Memorandum of
Understanding for pre-fire and fuels reduction operations in the Lake Tahoe Basin and
along the Sierra Front and approve the Fire Chief to sign.

3. Prepared by: Jeremy Loncar
Department: Fire Telephone: 847-0954

4. Staff summary: This MOU is a collaborative between California and Nevada fire agencies
around the Lake Tahoe Basin and along the Sierra Front. This document establishes guidance and
protections to allow resource sharing within the region to perform fuels reduction and is provided
through NRS for 474 fire districts to enter into agreements for assistance for mutual aid and/or
automatic aid.

5. Supporting materials: See attached

6. Fiscal impact:
Funds Available: Fund: ~ Comptroller
7. Legal review required:

X _District Attorney
8. Reviewed by:

_JL_ Department Head Department Name: Fire District

__ County Manager Other agency review: -
9. Board action:

[] Approved [ Approved with Modifications

—

[] Denied [ Continued

Agenda Item No. l(p



FS Agreement No.

Cooperator Agreement No.

CAL FIRE Agreement No.

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING

FOR PRE-FIRE AND FUELS REDUCTION OPERATIONS
IN THE LAKE TAHOE BASIN AND ALONG THE SIERRA FRONT

. PARTIES

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is hereby made and entered into by and between the
agencies, departments, and cooperators whose names are set forth in Exhibit A hereinafter referred
to as “Party” or “Parties.”

For purposes of this MOU, “Cooperator” or “Cooperators” refers to all non-Federal agencies and
non-State agencies, “U.S. Forest Service” refers to the United States Department of Agriculture
(USDA), Forest Service, Lake Tahoe Basin Management Unit (LTBMU), and “CAL FIRE” refers to CAL
FIRE Amador-El Dorado Unit and CAL FIRE Nevada-Yuba-Placer Unit.

L. PURPOSE

The Parties recognize that vegetation management treatments designed to reduce hazardous fuels
build-up on public lands that complement residential defensible space requirements are vital to
protecting public health and safety and the unique natural resources within the Lake Tahoe Basin.
The Parties have employed a coordinated approach to planning projects for the past decade. This
coordinated planning approach has produced collaborative documents such as the Lake Tahoe Basin
Multi-Jurisdictional Fuels Reduction and Wildfire Prevention Strategy, Carson Multi-Jurisdictional
Strategy and Local Community Wildfire Protection Plans. These Strategies and Plans have resulted in
thousands of acres of hazardous fuels reduction treatments.

The Parties further recognize the need to increase the pace and scale of these treatments in order
to make our forests and communities more resilient to the effects of climate change and associated
increased risk of catastrophic wildfire.

The purpose of this MOU is to memorialize the collaborative planning processes Parties have
undertaken for the past decade and to define the terms and conditions under which the Parties will
cooperate and coordinate the activities necessary to increase multi-jurisdictional prescribed fire
capacity, prescribed fire training and all other vegetation management treatments in the Lake Tahoe
Basin and along the Sierra Front. This will further the Parties ability to increase the pace and scale of
these treatments on all properties that the Parties to this MOU have jurisdictional responsibility and
authority to manage.

1|Page



GEOGRAPHIC SCOPE

The geographic scope of the MOU shall include all properties within the geographic boundaries of
the Parties to this MOU, both in the state of California and state of Nevada. See map attached as
Exhihit B,

V.

TASKS

in order to achieve their mutual purposes, goals, the Parties agree to perform the following tasks.

1.

10.

11.

12.

zl,)‘:‘!“

RESOURCE SHARING: Parties will make available all fuels reduction or other fuels treatment
resources owned by or available to the Parties, including but not limited to personnel,
equipment, supplies, and facilities, to the extent allowable by departmental policies and
priorities. No party shall be expected or required to do this if the party has prioritized work
on district. Resource sharing will be mutually agreed upon and coordinated between the
agencies or departments involved.

No Party to the MOU shall be expected or required to deplete unreasonably its emergency
resources or resources needed to accomplish targets of agency or department.

PLANNING: Identify and map project sites. Develop silviculture prescriptions or fuel
treatment recommendations in accordance with federal, state, and local land management,
forest health, and fire protection goals.

IMPLEMENTATION: Prepare a project scope of work based on prescription and treatment
recommendations. Prepare, issue, administer contracts to implement the scope of work.
Assign a contract/project manager for on-site project supervision, oversight and compliance,
and contract project administration to facilitate invoicing and financial compliance.
INSPECTION: Perform project inspections to ensure compliance with project scope of work.
Inspections may also be performed to ensure compliance with applicable State and Federal
Law, permits, and in accordance with agency or department policies.

FUNDING: Work collaboratively to obtain funding, seeking opportunities to increase funding
support for hazardous fuel treatments and needed defensible space work.

BEST MANAGEMENT PRACTIES: Share resources and information about best management
practices for grant application development, project management, and financial
management.

MONITORING: Monitor project performance over time to evaluate effectiveness of project
at reducing fuels and fire behavior.

COOPERATION: Cooperate on the identification, prioritization and implementation of
projects. Cooperate to maximize effective use of funding, resources, equipment and
personnel, including private contractors.

PUBLIC EDUCATION: Provide public education, outreach, and promotion to create a
widespread culture that supports forest health and fuels reduction treatments, while
increasing wildfire awareness and concern, also to engage the public in becoming Fire
Adapted Communities.

PUBLIC INFORMATION: Work collaboratively to provide consistent messaging to the pubilic,
also to proactively provide timely information and updates to the public.

TRAINING: Parties to this MOU are committed to providing training opportunities to other
Parties to the MOU, when available and within the scope of that Parties mission and duties.



D Ao
d E

13. DOCUMENTATION: Tracking hazardous fuel treatment accomplishments, with a report

compiled on an annual basis at a minimum to demonstrate accomplishments and progress
in achieving objectives defined in the Multi-Jurisdictional Strategy and Community Wildfire
Protection Plans.

COOPERATORS AND CAL FIRE SHALL:

1.

INDEMNIFICATION: To the extent allowed under State and Federal Law, CAL FIRE and
Cooperators shall defend, indemnify, and hold harmless each of the other Parties, their
officers, employees and agents from any and all liability, loss, expense (including reasonable
attorney’s fees) or claims for injury or damages arising out of the performance of this MOU
but only in proportion to and to the extent such liability, loss, expense, attorneys’ fees, or
claims for injury or damages are caused by or result from the sole and active negligent or
intentional acts or omissions by the indemnifying Parties.

U.S. FOREST SERVICE SHALL:

1.

LIABILITY: The Federal Government cannot indemnify any other organization as it violates
the Federal Anti-deficiency Act. The U.S. Forest Service shall be liable to the extent allowed
by the Federal Tort Claims Act for claims of personal inquiries or property damage resulting
from the negligent or wrongful act or omission of any employee of the United States while
acting within the scope of his or her employment arising out of this Agreement. In the event
of any inconsistencies between this agreement and the grant agreement, the grant
agreement shall control.

GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

EFFECTIVE DATE: This MOU shall be effective upon execution of a Signature Page by a
minimum of (2) Parties and shall have a term of five (5) years from the date of execution.
AMENDMENT: This MOU may be extended or amended as necessary by mutual consent of
the Parties by execution of a written amendment signed and dated by all parties. This MOU
will be reviewed (5) years and extended if necessary.

MODIFICATIONS: Modifications within the scope of this MOU must be made by mutual
consent of the Parties, by the issuance or a written modification signed and dated by all
properly authorized, signatory officials, prior to any changes being performed. Requests for
modification should be made, in writing, at least 30 days prior to implementation of
requested change.

TERMINATION: Any Party may terminate its participation in the MOU, in whole or in part, by
providing written notice to all other Parties at any time before the date of expiration.
DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION: CAL FIRE and Cooperators shall immediately inform the U.S.
Forest Service if they or any of their principals are presently excluded, debarred, or
suspended from entering into covered transactions with the federal government according
to the terms of 2 CFR Part 180. Additionally, should CAL FIRE and Cooperators or any of their
principals receive a transmittal letter or other official Federal notice of debarment or
suspension, then they shall notify the U.S. Forest Service without undue delay. This applies
whether the exclusion, debarment, or suspension is voluntary or involuntary.



4|Pag

10.

11.

OTHER RELATED AGREEMENTS: This MOU in no way restricts the involved Parties from
participating in similar understandings and/or activities with other public or private
agencies.

ADDITIONAL PARTIES: Additional participants may become Parties to this MOU by execution
of a Signature Page, subject to ratification by a majority of the existing Parties.

PUBLIC DOCUMENTS: Information provided to any government agency pursuant to the
MOU may be subject to either federal or state law including but not limited to the Public
Record Act (Government Code Section 6250 et. seq) and the Freedom of Information Act (95
USC 552).

NON-FUND OBLIGATING DOCUMENT: Nothing in this MOU shall obligate signatories to this
MOU to obligate or transfer funds. Specific work projects or activities that involve the
transfer of funds, services, or property among the various agencies and other signatories to
this MOU will require execution of separate agreements and be contingent upon the
availability of appropriated funds. Such activities must be independently authorized by
appropriate statutory authority. This MOU does not provide such authority. Negotiation,
execution, and administration of each such agreement must comply with all applicable
statutes and regulations.

COUNTERPARTS: This MOU may be executed in one of more counterparts, each of which
shall be deemed an original.

NONBINDING AGREEMENT: This MOU is not intended to, and does not create, any right,
benefit, or trust responsibility, substantive or procedural, enforceable at law or equity, by a
party against any agency, department, or the States of California or Nevada, its agencies, its
officers, or any other parties or persons. The Parties shall manage their respective resources
to meet the purpose(s) of the MOU. Nothing in this MOU authorizes any of the Parties to
obligate or transfer anything of value.

Specific, prospective projects or activities that involve the transfer of funds, services,
property, and/or anything of value to a Party requires the execution of separate agreements
and are contingent upon numerous factors, including, as applicable, but not limited to:
agency availability of appropriated funds and other resources; cooperator availability of
funds and other resources; agency and cooperator administrative and legal requirements
(including agency authorization by statute); etc. This MOU neither provides, nor meets these
criteria. If the Parties elect to enter into an obligation agreement that involves the transfer
of funds, services, property, and/or anything of value to a Party, then the applicable criteria
must be met. Additionally, under a prospective agreement, each Party operates under its
own laws, regulations, and/or policies, and any U.S. Forest Service or CAL FIRE obligation is
subject to the availability of appropriated funds and other resources. The negotiation,
execution, and administration of these prospective agreements must comply with applicable
law.

Nothing in this MOU is intended to alter, limit, or expand the agencies’ statutory and
regulatory authority.



12. PRINCIPAL CONTACTS: Individuals listed below are authorized to act in their respective areas

for matters related to this agreement.

Principal Cooperator Contacts:

Cooperator Program Contact

Name: Jason Gibeaut (Lake Tahoe Regional
Fire Chiefs Association — President/Chair)

Address: 900 Northstar Dr.
City, State, Zip: Truckee, CA 96161
Telephone:

Email: jgibeaut@northstarcsd.org

Cooperator Administrative Contact
Name:
Address:
City, State, Zip:
Telephone:

Email:

Principal U.S. Forest Service Contacts:

U.S. Forest Service Program Manager
Contact

Name: Carrie Thaler

Address: 35 College Dr.

City, State, Zip: South Lake Tahoe, CA 96150
Telephone: 530-721-3738

Email: carrie.thaler@usda.gov

U.S. Forest Service Administrative Contact

Name: Genevieve Villemaire

Address: 35 College Dr.

City, State, Zip: South Lake Tahoe, CA 96150
Telephone: 916-835-0713

Email: genevieve.villemaire@usda.gov

Principal CAL FIRE AEU Contacts:

CAL FIRE Amador-El Dorado Unit Contact
Name: Mike Blankenheim
Address: 2840 Mt. Danaher Rd.
City, State, Zip: Camino, CA 95709
Telephone: 530-708-2700

Email: mike.blankenheim@fire.ca.gov

CAL FIRE AEU Administrative Contact
Name: Nathan Barcklay
Address: 2840 Mt Danaher Rd.
City, State, Zip: Camino, CA 95709
Telephone: 530-708-2702

Email: nathan.barcklay@fire.ca.gov




6P

Principal CAL FIRE NEU Contacts:

CAL FIRE Nevada-Yuba-Placer Unit Contact

Address: 13760 Lincoln Way
City, State, Zip: Auburn, CA 95603
Telephone: 530-277-2300

Email: brian.estes@fire.ca.gov

CAL FIRE NEU Administrative Contact

Name: Steve Robinson, Assistant Chief
Address: 13760 Lincoln Way

City, State, Zip: Auburn, CA 95603
Telephone: 530-277-2302

Email: steve.robinson@fire.ca.gov

13

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

- NOTICES: Any communications affecting the operations covered by this agreement given by
the U.S. Forest Service, CAL FIRE or Cooperators is sufficient only if in writing and delivered
in person, mailed, or transmitted electronically by email or fax. Notices are effective when
delivered in accordance with this provision, or on the effective date of the notice, whichever
is later.

PARTICIPATION IN SIMILAR ACTIVITIES: This MOU in no way restricts the U.S. Forest Service,
CAL FIRE or Cooperators from participating in similar activities with the other public or
private agencies, organizations, and individuals.

ENDORSEMENT: Any of Cooperator’s contributions made under this MOU do not by direct
reference or implication convey U.S. Forest Service or CAL FIRE endorsement of
Cooperator’s products or activities.

USE OF U.S. FOREST SERVICE INSIGNIA: In order for Cooperators to use the U.S. Forest
Service insignia on any published media, such as a web page, printed publication, or
audiovisual production, permission must be granted from the U.S. Forest Service Office of
Communications.

MEMBERS OF CONGRESS: Pursuant to 41 U.S.C. 22, no U.S. member of, or U.S. delegate to,
Congress shall be admitted to any share of part of this agreement, or benefits that may arise
therefrom, either directly or indirectly.

FREEDOM OF INFORMATION ACT (FOIA): Public access to MOU or agreement records must
not be limited, except when such records must be kept confidential and would have been
exempted from disclosure pursuant to Freedom of Information regulations (5 U.S.C. 552).
TEXT MESSAGING WHILE DRIVING: In accordance with Executive Order (EO) 13513, “Federal
Leadership on Reducing Text Messaging While Driving,” any and all text messaging by
federal employees is banned: a) while driving a government owned vehicle (GOV) or driving
a privately owned vehicle (POV) while on official government business ; or b) using any
electronic equipment supplied by the government when driving any vehicle at any time. All
Cooperators, their employees, volunteers, and contractors are encouraged to adopt and
enforce policies that ban text messaging when driving company owned, leased or rented
vehicles, POVs or GOVs when driving while on official government business or when
performing any work for or on behalf of the government.



20. U.S. FOREST SERVICE ACKNOWLEGED IN PUBLICATIONS, AUDIOVISUALS AND ELECTRONIC
MEDIA: Cooperators shall acknowledge the U.S. Forest Service and CAL FIRE support in any
publication, audiovisuals, and electronic media developed as a result of the MOU.

21. NONDISCRIMINATION STATEMENT — PRINTED, ELECTRONIC, OR AUDIOVISUAL MATERIAL:
Cooperators shall include the following statement, in full, in any printed, audiovisual

material, or electronic media for public distribution developed or printed with any federal
funding.

In accordance with Federal law and U.S. Department of Agriculture policy, this
institution is prohibited from discrimination on the basis of race, color, national origin,
sex, age, or disability. (Not all prohibited bases apply to all programs.)

To file a complaint of discrimination, write USDA, Director, Office of Civil Rights, Room
326-W, Whitten Building, 1400 Independence Avenue, SW, Washington, DC 20250-
9410 or call (202)720-5964 (voice and TDD). USDA is an equal opportunity provider
and employer.

If the material is too small to permit the full statement to be included, the material
must, at minimum, include the following statement, in print size no smaller that the
text:

“This institution is an equal opportunity provider.”

22. AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES: By signature below, each Party certifies that the individuals
listed in this document as representatives of the individual Parties are authorized to act in
their respective areas for matters related to this MOU.

In witness whereof, the Parties listed in Exhibit A hereto have executed this MOU as of the
last date written below.

Jason Gibeaut, Fire Chief Date

Northstar Fire Department (Northstar CSD)

Erick Walker, Forest Supervisor Date

U.S. Forest Service, Lake Tahoe Basin Management Unit

7")(‘;:)



Mike Blankenheim, Fire Chief Date

CAL FIRC Amador-Cl Dorado Unit

Brian Estes, Fire Chief Date

CAL FIRE Nevada-Yuba-Placer Unit

The authority and format of this agreement have been reviewed and approved for
signature.

GENEVIEVE VILLEMAIRE Date

U.S. Forest Service Grants Management Specialist

8|Page



EXHIBIT “A”

Full Member:
Cal Fire - AEU Meeks Bay Fire Protection District
By: By:

Date Date
Cal Fire - NEU Nevada State Fire Marshal
By: By:

Date Date
Carson City Fire Department North Lake Tahoe Fire Protection District
By: By:

Date Date
Central Lyon County Fire Protection District North Lyon County Fire Protection District
By: By:

Date Date
East Fork Fire & Paramedic District North Tahoe Fire Protection District
By: By:

Date Date
Eastern Alpine Fire/Rescue Northstar Fire Department
By: By:

Date Date
Fallen Leaf Lake Volunteer Fire Department Reno Fire Department
By: By:

Date Date
Lake Valley Fire Protection District South Lake Tahoe Fire Department
By: By:

Date Date

| 1]



Sparks Fire Department

By:

Date

Squaw Valley Fire Department

By:

Date

Storey County Fire Department

By:

Date

Tahoe Douglas Fire Protection District

By:

Date

Associate Members:
Antelope Valley Fire Protection District

By:

Date

Bear Valley Fire Department

By:

Date

California Tahoe Conservancy

By:

Date

Truckee Fire Protection District

By:

Date

Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District

By:

Date

US Forest Service - LTBMU

By:

Date

Care Flight

By:

Date

Kirkwood Fire Department

By:

Date



Storey County Board of Fire Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 5/17/2022 Estimate of time required: 5 Minutes

Agenda: Consent [ ] Regular agenda [ X ] Public hearing required [ ]

1. Title: DISCUSSION/POSSIBLE ACTION: Consideration and possible approval of contracted
fuels reduction work by Wilderness Forestry Inc. in an amount not to exceed $36,000.00.
Funding related to the proposed contract is allocated by Nevada Division of Forestry
through a sub-grant extension of the 2017 Storey County FPD Fuels Reduction grant
(Grant # HF1801).

2. Recommended motion: | (Fire Commissioner) move to approve the contracted fuels reduction
work by Wilderness Forestry Inc. in an amount not to exceed $36,000.00. and approve the
Fire Chief to sign.

3. Prepared by: Jeremy Loncar

Department: Fire Telephone: 847-0954

4. Staff summary: Storey County Fire Protection District (SCFPD) entered into a sub-grant
agreement with Nevada Division of Forestry (NDF) in 2018. The original sub-grant award for the
2017 Storey County FPD Fuels Reduction Grant (HF1801) was $252,592.00. On 7/25/2021,
SCFPD completed all outlined fuels reduction treatments and closed the sub-grant agreement with
a remaining available balance of $5,971.78. In February 2022, NDF contacted SCFPD and
preposed reallocation of remaining funds from multiple grants around the region as an extension to
HF1801. This was approved by the USDA Forest Service, who provides the grant funds to NDF
for allocation. The total amount of reallocated funding was $36,377.38 and was categorized as
“Contractual.” SCFPD Fuels Management seeks to utilize these funds to hire a vegetation
management contractor while utilizing staff and equipment costs from SCFPD/ NV Energy Fire
Mitigation contract as direct grant match. NDF requires 1:1 match for this grant, which would be
easily obtainable within the proposed project under this platform.

5. Supporting materials: See attached

6. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: $36,377.38 (reimbursable) Fund: 290 Comptroller



7. Legal review required:
X _District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
_JL_ Department Head Department Name: Fire District

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[1] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No.

[T



STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT

GRANT OF RIGHT OF ENTRY TO REAL PROPERTY
AND
FORESTRY WORK PROJECT AGREEMENT
FOR COOPERATORS/Landowners

Project #  2022-04.1/2022-04.2

This agreement is entered into this day of . . by and between the Storey
County Fire Protection District and hereinafter referred to as the
Cooperator.

WHEREAS the Storey County Fire Protection District (SCFPD), pursuant to a Community
Wildfire Protection Plan (CWPP) for fuels reduction, desires to perform conservation work on private

property; and:

WHEREAS the cooperator acknowledges the benefit to his property based on the proposed work
plan; and:

WHEREAS this work will be performed by Storey County Fire Protection District (SCFPD)
personnel and/or contracted fuels reduction companies under supervision of SCFPD personnel and in
accordance with the forestry work project agreement developed for this geographic area, community
and/or real property, and:

WHEREAS the SCFPD needs permission of the cooperator to enter private property for such
work:

Now THEREFORE the private property owner hereby grants permission for SCFPD personnel
and/or contracted fuels reduction companies to enter his/her property and in consideration for SCFPD’s
promise to perform the work as described in the attached Project Plan and Agreement, cooperator, and
SCFPD agree to the following terms and conditions:

TERMS OF GRANT OF RIGHT OF ENTRY:

1. The cooperator agrees his/her signature herein signifies consent and agreement to enter his/her
property to perform work under the Project Work Plan and Agreement (Attachments 1 & 2) for
the subject property.

SCFPD personnel and/or contracted fuels reduction companies will perform the work in a timely
and efficient manner, as delineated by, and in accordance with, the project work plan and leave the
property in an orderly condition.

19

3. The work will be performed at a time agreed upon between SCFPD and the cooperator.

4. Permission to access private property by SCFPD personnel and/or contracted fuels reduction
companies will at all time reside with the cooperator and may be revoked at anytime.

3 This agreement and permission to enter property is intended to be a binding agreement between
the parties.

6. This agreement does not obligate the cooperator for any costs associated with work

performed by SCFPD unless specified.

05/04/22 1



7. Cooperator voluntarily agrees to hold SCFPD and its employees, agents, and contracted fuels
reduction company members harmless against any type of damage to property or persons which
occurs during the project work. Cooperator hereby releases and forever discharges SCFPD, its
officers, employees, agents and contracted fuels reduction companies from all liability, claims,
demands, causes of action, which are in any way connected to or arise out of SCFPD’s project
work on the property upon which SCEPD personnel and/or contracted fuels reduction companies
performed work, including any type of damage or injury alleged to have occurred because of
alleged negligent acts or omissions by SCFPD personnel and/or contracted fuels reduction
companies.

TERM: This agreement shall terminate upon the completion of the project described herein or by

May 31st ,2023 , whichever is earlier. The term of this agreement may be extended by
SCFPD due to lack of manpower as a result of the weather or due to other priorities or emergencies.
Either party may terminate this work agreement upon five (5) days written notice to the other party.

SCFPD, by and through this agreement, neither expressly nor impliedly, warranties or guarantees
the project work as to workmanship or conformity with plans, specifications, or other information not
made available to SCFPD nor expressly made a part of this agreement. SCFPD agrees to use its best
efforts to complete this work agreement in a timely manner. Cooperator expressly agrees that no cause of
action accrues for failure by SCFPD to complete the job.

This agreement represents the entire agreement between the parties and may not be amended
except in writing and signed by both parties.

05/04/22 2



Cooperator’s signature acknowledges he/she may have waived any right to seek damages
against SCFPD on the basis of any claim, loss, or liability he or she may have based on fuels
reduction work performed by SCFPD and contracted fuels reduction companies under the terms
and conditions of this agreement, project plan and financial estimate. Cooperator agrees to a
binding release under the terms set forth above. This agreement shall be construed and interpreted
according to the laws of the State of Nevada.

STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DIST. COOPERATOR/Homeowner
SCFPD Representative Printed Name
Date - Signature
Address
Fuels Management Officer City, State, Zip Code
Date Phone Number

Cooperator acknowledges receipt of a copy of this agreement.

(initials)

05/04/22 3



ATTACHMENT 1

STOREY COUNTY FIRE PROTECTION DISTRICT
PROJECT PLAN AND AGREEMENT

Date: Station/Camp: SCFPD Station 72

PROJECT NAME: HF1801 2018 Storey County Fuels Reduction Grant

LOCATION: Nevada SR 341 Geiger Grade/ Lousetown Rd. | COUNTY: STOREY

COOPERATOR: AGENCY: SCFPD

PROJECT AGENT: Cameron Forcht/ John Funke PHONE:

PURPOSE OF PROJECT: Hazardous fuels reduction, Woodland stand health
improvement, shaded fuel break

PROPOSED STARTING DATE: ESTIMATED WORKING DAYS: Not to exceed
05/02/2022 30

SCHEDULED STARTING DATE: CREW ASSIGNED PROJECT: SCFPD Fuels
05/02/2022 Crew

PROJECT DESCRIPTION:

The project consists of hazardous fuels reduction/stand health treatment of approximately
24 acres of the Pinyon-Juniper woodlands. The project resides along a well-traveled
portion of Nevada State Route 341 approximately 2.5 miles north of Virginia City and
extends across three property ownership boundaries. The treatment will effectively
establish a shaded fuel break alongside and adjacent to the highway corridor within a
critical piece of wildland urban interface, effectively tying into other adjacent completed
and in progress fuels treatments. Additionally, it will serve to reduce fuel loading within a
grossly overstocked pinyon pine and juniper stand by eliminating encroaching juniper
stems, ground/ladder fuels, removing dead and downed stems, and establishing appropriate
crown spacing among live healthy pinyon stems.

Methods of treatment will include mastication via heavy equipment, hand cut and
broadcast chip/chip and haul off site, as well as hand cut, and pile burn in areas otherwise
inaccessible by equipment due to topography. Piles will be constructed to no bigger than
10°x10°x10” and will be assembled in locations outside the tree dripline in locations to
minimize tree scorching and creep. Treatment shall be completed utilizing both SCFPD
fuels crew and private contractor resources.

PRESCRIPTION PARAMETERS

- Treatment of the NV energy infrastructure right of way to a target reduction of 75%
of all fuel loading within the right of way, as well as pole clearing to a radius of at
least 25 feet, to a stubble height of 1” or less. (4 acres)

- Reduce fuel loading of outlined areas (see maps attached) to 50% of its current state
by elimination of the majority of juniper stems, dead and downed fuels, brush fuels
component, as well as removal of diseased and insect damaged pinyon pine.
Preferentially select to retain healthy pinyon pine stems of all age classes for
retention of a mixed age stand. (approx. 20 acres)

05/04/22 4



- Pile burning will be accompanied by an appropriate prescribed fire burn plans and
will occur the following winter after treatment when prescription burn indices allow.

CONTINUED ON __ SHEETS
BOUNDARIES CLEARLY MARKED BY/ FOR LANDOWNER: YES
Homeowners Signature: Verified by authorized personnel (please initial):

MATERIALS REQUIRED FROM COOPERATOR: N/A

CONTINUED ON SHEETS

TECHNICAL PLANS REQUIRED: RXB3 burn plan for pile burning (Fall/ Winter/ Spring
2023)

SCFPD Representative Initials Cooperator’s Initials

Date Date

05/04/22 3



ATTACHMENT 2

FINANCIAL ESTIMATE

*THIS PROJECT IS 100% GRANT FUNDED AND THEREFORE WILL HAVE NO
ASSOCIATED COST TO THE LANDOWNER. FINANCIAL ESTIMATE IS PROVIDED
SOLELY FOR TRACKING AND DOCUMENTATION PURPOSES FOR GRANT
UTILIZATION.

MANPOWER
Crew Supervisor | Crewman Cost/Day or Estimated TOTAL
or Other Hour Days or Hours
Personnel
2-ENGB 42.92/hr
1-HFEO 40.92/hr
3-FEO 35.95/hr
MANPOWER SUBTOTAL: $
EQUIPMENT
Type Cost/Miles or Estimated TOTAL
Hours Miles/Hours
Skid Steer with Masticator 220.00/hr
Type-6 Patrol 150.00/hr
Chipper/Chip truck 95.00/hr
Transport/Trailer 200.00/day
EQUIPMENT SUBTOTAL: $
MISCELLANEOUS ITEMS
Description Cost/Miles or Estimated TOTAL
Hours Miles or Hours
MISCELLANEOUS SUBTOTAL: $
PER TERM OF AGREEMENT:
ESTIMATED COST (check one):
Total Rate or Daily Rate $
SCFPD Representative Signature Date

Right of Entry & Project Agreement Form

05/04/22 6



R

1202T1/S0 - w.noNBOBAZ

..L ..:.»w nr e

o B (m » »xm

.ﬁ




Wilderness Forestry Inc.

6380 Enchanted Valley Dr

Reno, NV 89523

7755271334
whansen@wildernessforestryinc.com

ADDRESS

Storey County Fire

145 North C Street.
P.O. Box 603

Virginia City, NV 89440
Attn: Chris Barton

03/13/2022 Hours

03/13/2022  Hours

Accepted By

WILDERNESS FORESTRY INC.

Qs

PROPOSAL # 1449

-Provide mastication services 7.50
-Machines Furnished- Cat 299
Bobcat T770 and Caterpillar

309, all with mastication heads

Price is per acre
Mobilization 1

TOTAL

Accepted Date

DATE 03/13/2022

3,000.00 22,500.00

1,500.00 1,500.00

$24,000.00



Wilderness Forestry Inc.

6380 Enchanted Valley Dr

Reno, NV 89523

7755271334
whansen@wildernessforestryinc.com

ADDRESS

Storey County Fire
145 North C. St

P.O. Box 603

Virginia City, NV 89440
Attn: Chris Barton

03/30/2022 Hours

03/30/2022  Hours

Accepted By

-Provide mastication services
-Machines Furnished- Cat 299,
Bobcat T770 and Caterpillar
309, all with mastication heads

Price is per acre
moblization

TOTAL

Accepted Date

WILDERNESS FORESTRY INC.

PROPOSAL # 1455
DATE 03/30/2022

350 300000  10,500.00
1 150000  1,500.00
$12,000.00



Wilderness Forestry Inc.

WD aneEss FoRpSTRY In

Terms and Conditions L LA

AUTHORIZATION OF PERFORMANCE: CUSTOMER’S ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL AUTHORIZES AND REQUIRES WILDERNESS FORESTRY INC., A
NEVADA DOMESTIC CORPORATION, TO DO THE WORK DESCRIBED IN THE PROPOSAL. THE PROPOSAL, EXECUTED ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSAL AND
THESE TERMS AND CONDITIONS COLLECTIVELY CONSTITUTE THE BINDING AGREEMENT (“AGREEMENT”) BETWEEN WILDERNESS FORESTRY INC.
AND THE ABOVE SIGNED CUSTOMER (“Storay Counly Fire Protect on Disty ict”) FOR SAME. WILDERNESS FORESTRY INC. AND CUSTOMER ARE
SOMETIMES REFERRED TO HEREIN SINGLY AS A “PARTY” AND COLLECTIVELY AS THE “PARTIES.”

MOBILIZATION: WILDERNESS FORESTRY INC.’S PERSONNEL SHALL ARRIVE UNANNOUNCED AT THE JOB SITE ON THE START DATE UNLESS
OTHERWISE NOTED HEREIN OR BY SUBSEQUENT NOTICE TO THE CUSTOMER. WILDERNESS FORESTRY INC. SHALL ATTEMPT IN GOOD FAITH TO
MEET ALL PERFORMANCE DATES BUT SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR DAMAGES DUE TO DELAYS FROM INCLEMENT WEATHER OR CAUSES BEYOND
WILDERNESS FORESTRY INC.’S CONTROL.

WORKMANSHIP: ALL WORK WILL BE PERFORMED IN A PROFESSIONAL MANNER BY WILDERNESS FORESTRY INC.’S PERSONNEL, WHO WILL BE
OUTFITTED WITH APPROPRIATE TOOLS AND EQUIPMENT TO COMPLETE THE JOB PROPERLY. UNLESS OTHERWISE INDICATED HERE IN, WILDERNESS
FORESTRY INC. WILL REMOVE ALL WOOD, BRUSH AND DEBRIS RESULTING FROM THE JOB.

WILDERNESS FORESTRY INC, WHILE PERFORMING THE AGREED UPON CONTRACT, IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR: DAMAGED IRRIGATION LINES,
GARBAGE CLEANUP/PICKUP (NOT CREATED BY WILDERNESS FORESTRY INC), DAMAGE FROM DEBRIS EJECTED FROM EQUIPMENT, DESTRUCTION
OF UNMARKED VEGETATION/TREES, REMOVAL OF ALL TRACKS LEFT BEHIND DURING COMPLETION, AND WILDERNESS FORESTRY INC. HOLDS THE
RIGHT TO ADD TO THIS LIST DURING PERFORMANCE OF THE CONTRACT.

WILDERNESS FORESTRY INC IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DAMAGES CAUSED BY WILDFIRE, DEFENSIBLE SPACE IS AN ATTEMPT TO DIMINISH FUEL
LOAD NEAR STRUCTURES, BUT IS NOT GUARANTEED TO SAVE ONES HOME FROM WILDFIRE.

DUST CONTROL AND TRACKOUT: WILDERNESS FORESTRY INC IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR DUST MANAGEMENT AND ROAD SWEEPING DUE TO
TRACKOUT (UNLESS OTHERWISE STATED IN JOB CONTRACT).

END USER COMMUNICATION: END CUSTOMERS NOT NAMED IN CONTRACT WILL NOT CONFRONT/APPROACH WILDERNESS FORESTRY INC
ENQUIRING REGARDING DETAILS ABOUT CURRENT PROJECT.

MASTICATION END PRODUCT: MASTICATOR MULCHING HEADS LEAVES NATURAL MULCH (NOT FINE CHIPPER MULCH); PRODUCT WILL BE LEFT
ONSITE IN AN ATTEMPT TO DECREASE THE RISK OF EROSION. MASTICATION DOES NOT LEAVE BEHIND A LANDSCAPED AESTHETIC AND WILL NEED
TIME TO NORMALIZE.

INSURANCE: WILDERNESS FORESTRY INC. CARRIES LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR INJURIES TO PERSONS AND PROPERTY, AND ITS EMPLOYEES ARE
COVERED BY WORKERS’ COMPENSATION INSURANCE.

OWNERSHIP: CUSTOMER WARRANTIES THAT ALL TREES, PLANT MATERIAL AND PROPERTY AT THE JOB SITE ARE OWNED BY THE CUSTOMER OR IS
THAT WRITTEN PERMISSION FOR WILDERNESS FORESTRY INC.’S WORK HERE UNDER HAS BEEN OBTAINED FROM THE OWNER THERE OF.
CUSTOMER SHALL HOLD HARMLESS AND INDEMNIFY WILDERNESS FORESTRY INC. FROM ALL CLAIMS FOR PERSONAL DAMAGES RESULTING
FROM CUSTOMERS FAILURE TO OBTAIN SUCH PERMISSION.

MOBILIZATION FEE: CUSTOMER SHALL PAY TO WILDERNESS FORESTRY INC. AND MOBILIZATION FEE EQUAL TO THIRTY PERCENT (30%) OF THE
PROPOSAL TOTAL, PLUS ALL THIRD-PARTY EQUIPMENT COSTS, IF ANY, IF CUSTOMER TERMINATES OR CANCEL THIS AGREEMENT LESS THAN
SEVEN (7) FULL CALENDAR DAYS PRIOR TO THE START DATE.

TERMS OF PAYMENT: ALL ACCOUNTS ARE DUE AND PAYABLE UPON DELIVERY OF WILDERNESS FORESTRY INC.’S INVOICE UNLESS OTHERWISE
AGREED UPON. A SERVICE CHARGE OF 2% PER MONTH WILL BE ADDED TO ACCOUNTS NOT FULLY PAID WITHIN THIRTY (30) CALENDAR DAYS
FROM THE INVOICE DATE. A CREDIT CARD FEE OF 3% WILL BE CHARGED IF A CREDIT CARD IS USED TO PAY A BILL.

MISCELLANEQUS: THIS AGREEMENT MAY BE EXECUTED IN COUNTERPARTS, WITH EACH DEEMED AN ORIGINAL BUT ALL CONSTITUTING ONE
INSTRUMENT. FACSIMILE AND PHOTOCOPIED SIGNATURES BIND THE PARTIES. WILDERNESS FORESTRY INC.’S NONPERFORMANCE SHALL BE
EXCUSED TO THE EXTENT RENDERED IMPOSSIBLE BY: STRIKE; FIRE; FLOOD; GOVERNMENTAL ACTS OR RESTRICTIONS; AND/OR ANY OTHER
SIMILAR REASON WHERE FAILURE TO PERFORM IS BEYOND THE CONTROL AND NOT CAUSED INTENTIONALLY BY WILDERNESS FORESTRY INC.
NEITHER PARTY IS AN AGENT, PARTNER, OR JOINT VENTURE WITH THE OTHER, AND NEITHER PARTY HAS AUTHORITY TO ASSUME OR CREATE ANY
OBLIGATION FOR OR ON BEHALF OF THE OTHER. THIS AGREEMENTS TITLE AND HEADINGS ARE FOR REFERENCE ONLY AND DO NOT DEFINE OR
LIMIT THIS AGREEMENT'S SCOPE. ALL DECISIONS TO BE MADE BY A PARTY HEREUNDER SHALL BE AT SUCH PARTY’S SOLE AND ARBITRARY

Page 1 of 3



Wilderness Forestry Inc.

WILOERNE S5 FORESTRY ING

Terms and Conditions [ miniay

DISCRETION, EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE PROVIDED FOR HEREIN. THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BE CONSTRUED FAIRLY WITH NO INFERENCE DRAWN
AGAINST THE DRAFTING PARTY. ANY PROVISION HEARING THAT MAY REASONABLY BE INTERPRETED AS BEING INTENDED TO SURVIVE THIS
AGREEMENT'S TERMINATION OR EXPIRATION SHALL DO SO. ALL PAYMENTS REQUIRED HEREIN ARE DUE IN UNITED STATES DOLLARS FROM AN
IMMEDIATE AVAILABLE SOURCE.

ROCK CLAUSE: IN THE EVENT THAT SITE SOIL OR ROCK CONDITIONS ARE SUCH TO PREVENT NORMAL INSTALLATION TIME AND
PROCEDURES, THE OWNER/CUSTOMER WILL BE RESPONSIBLE FOR ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT AND LABOR EXPENSES IN THE AMOUNT
DISCUSSED BY PRIME CONTRACTOR OR DIRECTLY WITH CUSTOMER.

UNDERGROUND UTILITY CLAUSE: NEITHER WILDERNESS FORESTRY INC, ITS EMPLOYEES OR ITS SUB-CONTRACTORS ARE
RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY DAMAGE DONE TO ANY TYPE OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES ON THE SITE CHOSEN BY THE PROPERTY
OWNER/MANAGER TO INSTALL THE EQUIPMENT UNLESS THE OWNER/MANAGER HAS THESE LINES ACCURATELY STAKED PRIOR TO
INSTALLATION COMMENCEMENT. WITHOUT PROPER AND ACCURATE STAKING OF THESE UNDERGROUND LINES, ANY COSTS
INCURRED TO REPAIR DAMAGED LINES OR TO RENDER MEDICAL TREATMENT IN THE EVENT OF INJURY TO AT. WILDERNESS
FORESTRY INC. EMPLOYEE OR SUB-CONTRACTOR DUE TOCONTACT WITH UNMARKED UNDERGROUND LINES, SHALL BE THE SOLE
RESPONSIBILITY OF THE PROPERTY OWNER/MANAGER. WILDERNESS FORESTRY INC,ITS EMPLOYEES OR SUB-CONTRACTORS CANNOT
PROCEED WITH ANY JOB WHERE UNDERGROUND LINES ARE THOUGHT TO BE PRESENT WITHOUT ACCURATE MARKINGS.

THE TERMS OF THIS PROPOSAL ARE UNDERSTOOD AND AGREED UPON BY THE UNDERSIGNED. THE UNDERSIGNED, AS THE OWNER OR

REPRESENTATIVE OF THEOWNER, SWEARS TO BE AUTHORIZED TO SIGN THIS LEGAL AND BINDING AGREEMENT, THEREFORE
ACCEPTING LEGAL RESPONSIBILITY AND LIABILITY FORTHE FULFILLMENT OF THE ABOVE TERMS.

BENEFIT: THIS AGREEMENT BINDS (AND INSURES TO THE BENEFIT OF THE PARTY’S, AND THE PARTY’S RESPECTIVE HEIRS, ASSIGNS, SUCCESSORS
AND LEGAL REPRESENTATIVES, SUBJECT TO ANY AND ALL AGREEMENT RESTRICTIONS SET FORTH HEREIN. HOWEVER, THIS AGREEMENT IS NOT A
THIRD-PARTY BENEFICIARY CONTRACT (AND NO THIRD-PARTY SHALL HAVE ANY CLAIM OR RIGHT OF ACTION HERE UNDER).

SEVERABILITY/WAIVER: IF A TERM HEREOF IS HELD BY A COURT OF COMPETENT JURISDICTION TO BE INVALID OR UNENFORCEABLE, THEN ALL OF
THIS AGREEMENT’S REMAINING TERMS SHALL, IN SUM, REMAIN EFFECTIVE AS IF THE OBJECTIONABLE TERM WAS NOT INCLUDED, (AND THE
INVALID OR UNENFORCEABLE TERM SHALL BE JUDICIALLY MODIFIED AND READ BY THE COURT TO BE ENFORCEABLE TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT
POSSIBLE, IF IT AT ALL). NO DELAY, OMISSION OR FAILURE TO EXERCISE ANY RIGHT OR REMEDY PROVIDED FOR HEREIN SHALL BE DEEMED A
WAIVER THEREOF OR AN ACCEPTANCE OF THE EVENT GIVING RISE TO SUCH REMEDY. RATHER, EVERY SUCH RIGHT OR REMEDY HEREUNDER MAY
BE USED AS THE PARTY EXERCISING IT DEEMS EXPEDIENT.

LEGAL EXPENSES: CUSTOMER AND WILDERNESS FORESTRY INC. WILL MAKE A GOOD FAITH ATTEMPT TO RESOLVE ANY AND ALL CLAIMS AND
DISPUTES BY SUBMITTING THEM TO MEDIATION IN WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA BEFORE RESORTING TO ARBITRATION OR ANY OTHER DISPUTE
RESOLUTION PROCEDURE.

ENTIRE AGREEMENT: THIS AGREEMENT SETS FORTH THE ENTIRE AGREEMENT AND UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN WILDERNESS FORESTRY INC. AND
CUSTOMER RELATING TO THE SUBJECT MATTER HEREIN AND MERGES AND SUPERSEDES ALL PRIOR AGREEMENTS, WRITINGS AND
UNDERSTANDINGS. THIS AGREEMENT (AND ANY WAIVER OF ANY RIGHTS HERE UNDER) SHALL NOT BE AMENDED OR MODIFIED AND LESS IN
WRITING SIGNED BY BOTH WILDERNESS FORESTRY INC. AND CUSTOMER.

NOTICE: ANY NOTICE GIVEN HERE UNDER SHALL BE IN WRITING AND EFFECTIVE UPON CONFIRMATION OF DELIVERY TO THE APPROPRIATE PARTY
BY PERSONAL DELIVERY, RECOGNIZED OVERNIGHT DELIVERY SERVICE, OR FIVE (5) BUSINESS DAYS AFTER BEING SENT VIA FIRST-CLASS MAIL
POSTAGE PREPAID AT/TO THE RESPECTIVE PARTY’S ADDRESS SET FORTH (OR AT/TO SUCH OTHER ADDRESSES AS A PARTY MAY PROVIDE BY
WRITTEN NOTICE TO THE OTHER PARTY FROM TIME TO TIME).

GOVERNING LAW; JURISDICTION/VENUE: THIS AGREEMENT WILL BE EXCLUSIVELY INTERPRETED AND ENFORCE IN A STATE COURT IN WASHOE
COUNTY, NEVADA UNDER NEVADA LAW (WITHOUT REFERENCE TO HIS CHOICE OF LAW RULES). THE PARTIES HEREBY CONSENT TO SUCH VENUE,
GOVERNING LAW, AND THE JURISDICTION OF SUCH COURT.

EACH PARTY HAS INDEPENDENTLY EVALUATED THE DESIRABILITY OF ENTERING INTO THIS AGREEMENT AND IS NOT RELYING ON ANY
REPRESENTATION, GUARANTEE OR STATEMENT NOT SET FORTH HEREIN; AND HAS BEEN AFFORDED THE OPPORTUNITY TO SEEK LEGAL COUNSEL
WITH REGARDS TO ITS RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS AND HAS CONSULTED OR REFUSED SUCH COUNSEL, AND ACCORDINGLY AGREED TO THIS
AGREEMENT.

Page 2 of 3



Wilderness Forestry Inc.

WiLoi anE s Forrstry INc

Terms and Conditions Y

THE PARTIES HAVE EACH EXECUTED THIS AGREEMENT PERSONALLY OR BY DULY AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE AND EACH OF KNOWLEDGES THAT
HE/SHE UNDERSTANDS AND AGREES TO BE BOUND BY IT.

CUSTOMER NAME:

CUSTOMER SIGNATURE:

DATE:

WILDERNESS FORESTRY INC.

WILDERNESS FORESTRY INC. SIGNATURE:

DATE:

Page 3 of 3



=)
Form w 9

(Rev. October 2018)
Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Request for Taxpayer
Identification Number and Certification

» Go to www.irs.gov/FormW$ for instructions and the latest information.

Give Form to the
requester. Do not
send to the IRS.

Wesley B Hansen

1 Name (as shown on your income tax return). Name is required on this line; do not leave this line blank.

2 Business name/disregarded entity name, if different from above
Wilderness Forestry Inc

following seven boxes.

l:] Individual/sole proprietor or I:] C Corporation

single-member LLC

[[] other (see instructions) »

Iz S Corporation

D Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (C=C corporation, S=S corporation, P= Partnership) »

Note: Check the appropriate box in the line above for the tax classification of the single-member owner. Do not check | Exemption from FATCA reporting
LLC if the LLC is classified as a single-member LLC that is disregarded from the owner unless the owner of the LLC is
another LLC that is not disregarded from the owner for U.S. federal tax purposes. Otherwise, a single-member LLC that
is disregarded from the owner should check the appropriate box for the tax classification of its owner.

3 Check appropriate box for federal tax classification of the person whose name is entered on line 1. Check only one of the | 4 Exemptions (codes apply only to

certain entities, not individuals; see
instructions on page 3):
D Partnership D Trust/estate

Exempt payee code (if any) .

code (if any)

(Appiies to accaunts maintained aulsida the U.S)

5 Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.) See instructions.
6380 Enchanted Valley Dr

Print or type.
See Specific Instructions on page 3.

Requester's name and address (optional)

6 City, state, and ZIP code
Reno, NV 89523

7 List account number(s) here (optional)

Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN)

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on line 1 to avoid
backup withholding. For individuals, this is generally your social security number (SSN). However, for a
resident alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the instructions for Part |, later. For other - -
entities, it is your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How to geta

TIN, later.

Note: If the account is in more than one name, see the instructions for line 1. Also see What Name and

Number To Give the Requester for guidelines on whose number to enter.

| Social security number ]

or
Employer identification number

Certification

Under penalties of perjury, | certify that:

1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or | am waiting for a number to be issued to me); and
2. | am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) | am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) | have not been notified by the Internal Revenue
Service (IRS) that | am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has notified me that | am

no longer subject to backup withholding; and
3. lam a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below); and

4. The FATCA code(s) entered on this form (if any) indicating that | am exempt from FATCA reporting is correct.

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup withholding because
you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply. For mortgage interest paid,
acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments
other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sian the certification. but you must provide your correct TIN. See the instructions for Part Il, later.

Sign Signature of '/ Y 4 v 03/02/2020
Here | us.person» /) /)" [or

Verified by PDFliller

bate» 03/02/2020

General Instructions

Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless otherwise
noted.

Future developments. For the latest information about developments
related to Form W-9 and its instructions, such as legislation enacted
after they were published, go to www.irs.gov/FormWwa.

Purpose of Form

An individual or entity (Form W-9 requester) who is required to file an
information return with the IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer
identification number (TIN) which may be your social security number
(SSN), individual taxpayer identification number (ITIN), adoption
taxpayer identification number (ATIN), or employer identification number
(EIN), to report on an information return the amount paid to you, or other
amount reportable on an information return. Examples of information
retumns include, but are not limited to, the following.

* Form 1099-INT (interest earned or paid)

* Form 1099-DIV (dividends, including those from stocks or mutual
funds)

» Form 1099-MISC (various types of income, prizes, awards, or gross
proceeds)

* Form 1099-B (stock or mutual fund sales and certain other
transactions by brokers)

* Form 1099-S (proceeds from real estate transactions)
¢ Form 1099-K (merchant card and third party network transactions)

* Form 1098 (home mortgage interest), 1098-E (student loan interest),
1098-T (tuition)

* Form 1099-C (canceled debt)
« Form 1099-A (acquisition or abandonment of secured property)

Use Form W-8 only if you are a U.S. person (including a resident
alien), to provide your correct TIN.

If you do not return Form W-9 to the requester with a TIN, you might
be subject to backup withholding. See What is backup withholding,
later.

Cat. No. 10231X

Form W-9 (Rev. 10-2018)



) ®
ACORD
V

CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)
2/3/2022

BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES

CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER cummz' ACT Jeff Davis
Hinman & Associates Insurance m, Ext): /75-737-4616 IWQ No):
9744 So Virginia St #D ADDREss: jeff@hinmaninsurance.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Reno NV 89511 INSURER A : Evercst National Insurance Company 10120
INSURED INSURER B : Allied Insurance Company of America 10127
Wilderness Forestry Inc INSURER C : Midwest Employers Casualty Company 23612
6380 Enchanted Valley Dr INSURER D :
INSURER E :
Reno NV 89523-1751 INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:
THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.
LTR TYPE OF INSURANCE INSD | WVD POLICY NUMBER (MM/DO/YYYY) | (MM/DD/YYYY) LIMITS
) | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000
UARAGE TORENTED
ICLAIMS-MADE [g] OCCUR PREMISES (Ea occurrence) | S 100,000
MED EXP (Any one person) S 5,000
A Y Y | 9400002672201 10/01/2021 | 10/01/2022 |PERSONAL & ADV INJURY S 1,000,000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER GENERAL AGGREGATE $ 2,000,000
POLICY [Z] JECT D Loc PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG | $ 2,000,000
OTHER $
ﬂ'OMOBII.E LIABILITY (E» accident) S 1,000,000
X | ANy auTo BODILY INJURY (Per parsan) |$
B OB ONL SCHEDULED Y | Y | ACP3008691225 04/01/2021 | 04/01/2022 [BODILY INJURY (Per acciden) |$
7 HIRED NON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
| M |AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY (Per )
$
umsreLLA LAB | ¥[occur EACH OCCURRENCE $ 1,000,000
A | X |Excess Lias CLAIMS-MADE 9400002672201 10/01/2021 | 10/01/2022 | AGGREGATE $ 1,000,000
DED | | RETENTION § $
KERS COMPENSATION PER OTH-
ND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY ¥ X[stawre | [ e
NY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE . EACH ACCIDENT ,000,
C |OFFICERMEMBER EXCLUDED? [n][nia BNUWC0149914 12/05/2021 | 12/052022 |E= :
Mandatory in NH) E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE|$ 1,000,000
f yas, describe under
IDESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below E L DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT |$ 1,000,000
Per Occurence $1,000,000
A | Loggers Broad Form Property Damage 9400002672201 100172021 | 10/01/2022
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space Is required)
Certificate holder is an additional insured, as required by written contract.
CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

Truckee Fire Protection District

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

10049 Donner Pass Rd

| Truckee, CA 96160

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
Jeff Davig

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD




Storey County Board of Fire Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date:5/17/2022 Estimate of time required: 10 Minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [ X ] Public hearing required [ |

1. Title: Consideration and possible approval of Personnel Policies P501 Work Week and
Work Time, P502 Pay Periods and Time Reporting, P503 Overtime Compensation, P504
Rate of Pay, P506 Acting Pay, P507 Scheduled Salary Step Advancement, P1000
Workplace Investigations, and P1001 Discipline Appeals for the Storey County Fire
Protection District.

2. Recommended motion: I (Fire Commissioner) move to approve the presented personnel
policies PS01 Work Week and Work Time, P502 Pay Periods and Time Reporting, P503 Overtime
Compensation, P504 Rate of Pay, P506 Acting Pay, P5S07 Scheduled Salary Step Advancement,
P1000 Workplace Investigations, and P1001 Discipline Appeals for the Storey County Fire
Protection District.

3. Prepared by: Jeremy Loncar
Department: Fire Telephone: 847-0954

4. Staff summary: The District has been working under the established personnel policies of
Storey County and is now creating policies that remain consistent with the County,
however, also address specific practices that are unique to the fire service and in line with
the CBA with Storey County Firefighters Association Local 4227 Collective Bargaining
Agreement. The presented policies will be delivered to the BOFC in multiple stages to
allow for review and modification by the board if necessary. Personnel Policies and
Administrative Policies shall be approved by the board. Standard Operating Policies and
Procedures shall be approved by the Fire Chief.

5. Supporting materials: See attached

6. Fiscal impact:

a. Funds Available: Fund: ~__ Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

_District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:
a. JL  Department Head Department Name: Fire District

b. _  County Manager Other agency review: County HR
9. Board action:

a. [] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
b. [] Denied [] Continued



STOREY COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT NUMBER: P501

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 05/19/22
REVISED:
AUTHORITY: BOFC
FIRE CHIEF: JL

SUBJECT: Work Week and Work Time

PURPOSE: To establish policy regarding a work week and work schedules for employees
excluding those working 2912 hours per year.

POLICY: 1. Workweek Defined: The work week begins at 12:01 a.m. on Monday and ends
7 days (168 hours) later at midnight on the next Sunday.

2. Work Time

a. Attendance

Employees are expected to be available and ready for work at the beginning of
their assigned shifts and at the end of their scheduled rest and meal periods.
Required preparation for rest and meal periods, as well as the end of the workday,
i1s considered work time. Rest and meal periods include the time spent going to
and from the place where the break is taken.

b. Regularly Scheduled Shift — Non-Exempt Employees

1.

1i.

iii.

Standard workweek: Regular employees will work regular 5-day, 40-hour
workweeks. The workweek will consist of 8 hours per shift for 5 shifts
within the week, with 2, 24-hour periods off over a 7-day period.

Alternative workweek: The Fire Chief may authorize regular employees to
work a regular workweek of more than 8 hours but not more than 10 hours
in any workday, with the workweek not exceeding 40 hours in a 7-day
period.

Variable workweek: The Fire Chief may authorize regular employee(s) to
work a 40-hour variable workweek. Overtime will be paid after 40 hours
worked over a 7-day period. An example of a variable workweek is when
one or more workdays have different starting and/or ending times than
other workdays in the 7-day workweek, thus creating a fluctuating
workweek.

1. The affected employee(s) must sign an alternative variable work
schedule agreement. The variable workweek will end upon the
affected employee(s) written desire to return to a non-variable
workweek or it is rescinded by the Fire Chief.

¢.  Each regular part-time employee will be assigned a regular schedule by the Fire
Chief or his/her designee.

Page 1 of 3



d. The assignment of the regular normal shift will be determined by the Fire Chief or
his/her designee. Consideration will be given to the preferences of staff; however,
the necessity of delivering adequate services to the community will take
precedent.

e. The Fire Chief or his /her designee will provide at least 30 days written notice to
the employee(s) prior to changing the normal regular shift, with exception of a
drastic change in workload or if the schedule change is mutually agreed upon by
the affected employees and the Fire Chief. During temporary instances, such as
during community special events, disasters and emergencies, and unusual staff
shortage conditions, changes to the regular shift may be made by the Fire Chief or
his/her designee, effective immediately.

f. Subject to the provisions of NRS 288.150, nothing herein may be construed to
limit the authority of the district to make temporary assignments to different or
additional locations, shifts, or work duties for the purpose of meeting
emergencies.

3. Rest Periods

Regular employees will be granted one 15-minute hreak or rest period during each
work period of 4 or more hours. Employees may not take rest periods at the
beginning or at the end of the work period. Rest periods may not be scheduled or
taken consecutively or in conjunction with meal periods. This policy does not
apply to Battalion Chiefs and Firefighters.

4. Meal Periods

Regular employees who work 6 or more hours in a workday are allowed an
uninterrupted, unpaid meal period of 30 minutes, up to 1 hour as allowed by the
Fire Chief or his/her designee, at or about mid-point of their workday. Supervisors
will be responsible to ensure that wherever and whenever possiblc, cmployces
will be permitted the meal period uninterrupted by work-related duties. If an
employee’s meal period is interrupted by a work-related matter, the employee will
be paid for the meal period. Employees may not take rest periods at the beginning
or at the end ot the work period.

Meal periods, but not rest periods, may be waived if an employee signs a waiver
with the Fire Chief’s approval waiving his/her meal period. Meal period waivers
will apply to each individual employee who signs the waiver. Each employee may
individually choose not to sign a meal period waiver, and thus be allowed to take
his/her meal period in accordance with this policy. The Fire Chief may deny any
and all meal period waiver requests. The Fire Chief may adjust the employee’s
schedule to accommodate the meal period waiver to avoid overtime pay
requirements.

S. Work Assignments

a) The Fire Chief or his/her designee may adjust rest and meal periods from
time to time to meet the needs of individual employees and/or to respond
to changes in department workload.

Page 2 of 3



b) Nothing herein may be considered to limit or restrict the authority of the
Fire Chief to make temporary assignments to different or additional
locations, shifts, hours of work, or duties as needed to meet the employer’s
needs or to respond to unforeseen or emergency situations.

6. Attendance and Punctuality

Punctuality and attendance are an important part of employment, and employees
are expected to maintain a satisfactory attendance and punctuality record. An
employee who is absent or late without permission is subject to disciplinary action
up to and including termination.

a) Ifthe employee is going to be absent from work or late to work, s/he must
call and notify his/her supervisor, within 15 minutes of the start of the
shift. In the event the supervisor is not available, the employee should
notify the Fire Chief or a Battalion Chief.

b) Ifany employee is absent for 2 day without notifying the district, it will be
assumed he/she has voluntarily abandoned his/her employment and will,
accordingly, be removed from the payroll and terminated from
employment.

7. Inclement Weather

Severe weather is generally to be expected during the winter months. Although
driving may at times be difficult, when caution is exercised, the roads are
normally passable. Except in cases of severe storms, all employees are expected
to work their regular hours. Time taken off due to poor weather conditions is to be
used as vacation or is, in turn, unpaid.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The Fire Chief and HR Director will review this policy every

5 years or sooner as necessary.

Page 3 of 3



STOREY COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT NUMBER: P502

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 05/19/22
REVISED:
AUTHORITY: BOFC
FIRE CHIEF: JL

SUBJECT: Pay Periods and Time Reporting

1. PURPOSE

Establishing a pay period with documentation of recorded hours worked and/or leave time taken
by employees is necessary to provide an accurate basis for preparing paychecks, to assure
compliance with federal and state law, and to maintain an effective and efficient cost accounting
system. (For payroll purposes, non-exempt employees covered by the Fair Labor Standards Act
(FLSA) must report all time spent performing work.)

2o POLICY
2.1 Pay Periods and Paydays

Employees are paid bi-weekly on Friday. Paychecks are deposited into the employee’s bank
account via automated direct-deposit. The Comptroller’s Office will provide each employee a
paystub at the end of each pay period. The employee may choose to opt out of automated direct-
deposit by submitting a letter to the Comptroller’s Office requesting not to participate in direct-
deposit service. The employee opting out of direct-deposit or otherwise receiving a physical
paycheck may pick up his/her paycheck at the Clerk-Treasurer’s Office after 12:00 p.m. on
Friday. If a payday falls on a holiday, employees are paid on the preceding work day.

2.2 Hours Worked

Non-exempt employees will be paid for all hours worked. Hours worked include, but are not
limited to:

a. Time worked before or after the normally assigned shift, or any other irregular hours,
even if the employee volunteers his/her time. Periods of six minutes or less are not
considered overtime unless they occur regularly. (This provision does not apply to
employees who are performing volunteer work which is unrelated to their normal job
functions.)

b. Rest periods of 20 minutes or less.

2

Travel time that occurs during an employee’s normally scheduled work hours, including
regular days off, holidays, etc.

d. Except as provided below in this section, hours spent at lectures, meetings, and training
activities, unless attendance is completely voluntary, outside of normal work hours, non-
job related, and no other work is performed.

Employees will not be compensated for the time spent under the following conditions:

* Voluntary attendance, outside of work hours, at an independent school, college, trade
school, or similar training offered by the employer at the employee’s own initiative
even if the courses are related to the employee’s current job or paid for by the
employer;

Page 1 of 2



2.3

e Training outside of regular work hours required by state or federal law for
certification for public-sector employees; and

e Employees in fire protection activities who are in attendance at a fire academy or
other training facility, are not considered to be on duty during those times when they
are not in class or at a training session, if they are free to use such time for personal
pursuits.

Hours spent serving as volunteer ambulance, fire, peace officer or law enforcement
personnel for an emergency response during normally scheduled work hours.

Position Designations — Exempt or Non-Exempt

All positions are designated as “exempt” or “non-exempt” according to federal and state laws
and regulations. For cost accounting and billing purposes, the district requires employees in
certain positions, regardless of exempt or non-exempt status, to account for hours worked.

24

Responsibility for Exempt or Non-Exempt Designation

The HR Director will examine and evaluate position descriptions and duties performed for all
positions to determine the designation of the position as exempt or non-exempt. The Fire Chief
will notify the HR Director when the duties of a position have substantially changed in order to
ensure an accurate designation.

2.5

Responsibility for Time Reporting

Employees are responsible for accurately completing their own timesheets. Supervisors shall not
alter or adjust the hours that an employee reports on his/her timesheet without authorization from
the employee. If the supervisor believes the employee has completed his/her timesheet in error,
the supervisor shall discuss the issue with the employee.

a.

All non-exempt employees will record all hours worked and all leave time taken, whether
paid or unpaid, and the type of leave taken (e.g., sick leave, annual leave, compensatory
time) on the timesheet.

All cxempt cmployccs in positions which require an accounting of hours worked will
enter their hours worked for cach project. They shall record all leave taken in whole day
increments on the timesheet.

Exempt employees in positions not required to account for hours worked will record only
those hours off for sick leave or annual leave in whole day increments. Except as
permitted by the Family and Medical Leave Act FMLA (including intermittent FMLA
leave), exempt employees may not be charged for absences of less than whole day
increments.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The Fire Chief and HR Director will review this policy every

5 years or sooner as necessary.

Page 2 of 2



TOREY COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT NUMBER: P503

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 05/19/22
REVISED:
AUTHORITY: BOFC
FIRE CHIEF: JL

SUBJECT: Overtime Compensation

1. PURPOSE: Provide Guidelines for Eligibility for Overtime

2. POLICY: To establish policy on overtime pay for employees excluding those working
2912 hours a year. Non-represented Positions will fall under policy P503A..

2.1 Non-Exempt Employees

a. Except as provided below, employees in positions designated as “non-exempt” will be
eligible for overtime compensation as follows:

1. Employees whose normal work schedule is 8 hours a day will receive overtime
compensation for hours worked in excess of 8 hours in a day and in excess of 40
hours in a week.

2. Employees whose alternative normal work schedule is between 8 and 10 hours in
a day will receive overtime compensation for hours worked in excess of 10 hours
in a day and in excess of 40 hours in a week.

3. Employees who request and are approved for a variable workweek will receive
overtime compensation for hours worked in excess of 40 hours in a week.

4. Employees whose hours are established by collective bargaining agreement will
receive overtime accordingly, but not in violation of the NRS or Fair Labor
Standards Act.

b.  All overtime hours must be specifically authorized in advance by the Fire Chief or
Battalion Chief. Overtime will be compensated at 1.5 times the employee’s regular
rate of pay. An employee’s regular rate includes all payments made by the employer to
the employee as required by federal law. Paid overtime will be included in the same
paycheck covering the pay period in which the overtime was earned unless the correct
overtime amount cannot be determined until after the regular pay period.

¢- Employees may, with the approval of the Fire Chief, subject to approval by the HR
Director, elect to receive compensatory time (“comp-time”) off in lieu of overtime
pay. Requests for compensatory time off in lieu of overtime must be made in-writing
and, once approved, will be placed in the employee’s payroll file. Compensatory time
will be earned at the rate of one and one-half (1.5) hours off for each overtime hour
worked. Non-fire fighter employees who elect compensatory time off may accrue up
to 60 hours in a calendar year.

d. When an employee has exceeded the maximum number of hours specified, the excess
hours will be paid out to the employee as overtime pay. Notice to the Fire Chief of
request to use compensatory time oft, the use of compensatory time off, and
limitations thereof will be the same as that specified for annual leave. At any time, the

Page 1 of 3



employer may pay an employee for compensatory time earned and not used, or
schedule use at its discretion.

e. Time paid but not worked, such as sick leave, holidays, and annual leave, does count
toward hours worked for the purpose of computing overtime hours.

2.2 Exempt Employees

Generally, exempt employccs arc hired with the understanding that they are responsible for
accomplishing the duties required for their assigned position. i is the employer’s policy to
comply with all aspects of the FLSA including salary-basis rcquircments. Therefore, making any
deductions from the salaries ot exempt employees which are not aliowed by law is by policy
prohibited.

Consistent with the FLSA and NRS 281employees in exempt positions are not required to be
paid for overtime worked. Subject to certain exceptions set forth in federal regulations, an
exempt employee will be paid the full salary for any work week in which the employee performs
any work, regardless of the number of days or hours worked. Exempt employees will not need to
be paid for any work week in which they perform no work, unless the employee is on approved
paid leave.

a. Itis expected that in ordcr for cxempt cmployces to completc their assigned work from
time to time, it will be necessary that they work beyond the normal work days and
business hours (usually 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through I'riday) of the cmployecr.
If, however, an exempt employee is working well beyond a 40-hour work week on a
regular recurring basis, the HR Director may examine staffing levels and the employee’s
work habits and procedures.

b. Deductions will be made to offset amounts employees receive as jury or witness fees, or
for military pay; or for unpaid disciplinary suspensions of one or more full days imposed
in good faith for workplace conduct rule infractions. The employer will pro rate an
employee’s salary based upon the days worked during the initial and terminal pay period
of employment.

¢. Exempt employees who have completed an extraordinary work assignment and/or spent
substantially more time than a typical workweek to accomplish the job, may be
recognized at the sole discretion of the Fire Chief with:

* Up to 20 hours of time off without using accrued annual or sick leave. The
time off granted under this provision does not constitute compensation
and, thus, has no cash value.

e Additional compensation (e.g., flat sum, bonus payment, straight-time
hourly amount, time and one-half, or any other basis). Such additional
compensation will not void their otherwise exempt status as specifically
provided under the FLSA.

2.3 “Safe Harbor”

The HR Director will classify employees as exempt or non-exempt-in accordance with the Fair
Labor Standards Act and NRS. If an employee feels s/he is improperly classified, s/he should
request a review of the position classification from HR Director. An investigation will be
conducted on a timely basis and the district will act to correct any errors as soon as practicable.
The district will not make improper deductions of pay from any employee, regardless of exempt
or non-exempt status. Improper deductions should be reported to the Comptroller and the HR
Director. The complaint will be investigated and the district will act to reimburse the employee

Page 2 of 3



as required by the FLSA if an error is found. The district will continuously make a good faith
commitment to comply with all provisions of the FLSA and NRS and intends this policy of
correction to satisfy the “safe harbor” provisions of the FLSA regulations, as amended effective
August 23, 2004.

If a non-exempt employee feels s/he has been improperly paid for overtime under the FLSA or
state law, it is the responsibility of the employee to seek correction by reporting any error to the
Comptroller, HR Director, or Fire Chief. An investigation will be conducted on a timely basis
and the district will act to correct any errors as soon as practicable.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The Fire Chief and HR Director will review this policy every
3 years or sooner as necessary.

Page 3 of 3



STOREY COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT NUMBER: P504

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 05/17/22
AUTHORITY: BOFC
FIRE CHIEF: JL

SUBJECT: Rates of Pay

1. PURPOSE: To establish a policy on rates of pay.
y POLICY:
2.1 Compensation Plan

Each regular position will be assigned to a class and pay grade in the compensation plan.
Assignment to a pay grade will be based on the relative level and complexity of the duties,
responsibilities, and authority of the job. The HR Director shall determine the salary ranges
based on these considerations:

a. Rates paid by the district for comparable work:

b. Internal relationships of other job classes in the same or similar occupation;
¢. Rates paid by other fire service employers for comparable work;

d. Other financial commitments of the district; and

e. Funds available to the district for salaries.

The Fire Chief and HR Director, subject to approval of the Fire Board and to the terms of any
applicable collective bargaining agreement, may adjust the minimum and maximum for each
salary range periodically as changes in any of the factors listed above occur, or to recruit and
retain qualified employees for each job. Non represented positions will be evaluated as needed or
requested by the fire chief to ensure compensation remains fair and consistent with surrounding
fire districts within the region.

2.2 Hiring Rate of Pay

The normal hiring rate is the first step of the pay range for the position’s classification. The Fire

Chief and HR Director may authorize advanced step appointments in accordance with Section
2.3.

2.3 Advanced Step Hire

Fairness and equity in the administration of the compensation plan will be maintained when
making advanced step hires. The Fire Chief and HR Director may authorize advanced step
appointments when all of the following circumstances exist:

a. The applicant’s qualifications indicate that s/he will perform at a level commensurate
with the requested step;

b. Other applicants with similar qualifications not requiring an advanced level salary are
unavailable;

Funds are available in the district’s budget to pay the higher rate; and

d. Advanced hire rate will not exceed the step commensurate with current employees of
comparable education, experience, and skill levels.

Page 1 of 3



24

Flat Rate Salaries

Certain job classes may be assigned to flat rates of pay in the compensation plan. Employees in
classes assigned to a flat rate of pay are not eligible for step increases.

25

Casual (Intermittent Part-Time) Worker Rate of I'ay

The employer will pay casual workers as appropriate for the type of work performed. The IIR
Director may adjust the rate of pay consistent with the procedures tor merit rate of pay increases
as provided in Policy 507.

2.6

Salary on Promotion, Transfer, Demotion, Reclassification, and Reallocation

Except as may otherwise be provided by a collective bargaining agreement, a regular
employee who is promoted to a new classification will move to that step in the range for
the new class which provides no less than S percent pay increase from the employee’s
current regular rate of pay, not to exceed the top step in the range for the new class. A
promoted employee’s salary shall not be less than the starting pay of the salary range for
the new position. A promotcd cmployce’s adjusted pay shall be effective on the date so
indicated in the offer letter and accepted by the employee.

An employee who voluntarily transfers to a position at the same grade level will retain
their current grade and step. An employee who voluntarily transfers from a position on a
different salary schedule, to a position with the same (or comparable) maximum base rate
ol pay, will be placed at a grade and step closest to his/her current salary that does not
provide a decrease. An employee who is reassigned by the Fire Chief or HR Director to a
position classified at a lower grade level, through no fault of their own and the
reassignment is for the good of the district, shall be placed in the lower grade level at a
step which is closest to their current salary. If the employee’s current salary exceeds the
top step of the lower pay range the employee may be Y-Rated.

An employee who voluntarily demotes or voluntarily accepts employment to a position at
a lower grade level, or with a lower maximum base rate of pay, will be placed at their
current step in the lower grade.

An employee who is involuntarily demoted as a result of not successfully completing the
probationary period related to a promotion, will be placed at the grade and step they held
prior to the promotion. An cmployce involuntarily demoted as a result of disciplinary
action will be placed at a grade and step consistent with the disciplinary decision as
provided in Policy P1001.Reclassification to a class at a higher grade level or with a
higher salary range is treated as a promotion for purposes of compensation. The Fire
Chief and HR Director may authorize a compensation adjustment exceeding 5% if the
requirements of 2.3 (a, ¢ and d) of this policy are met. An employee in a position that is
reclassified to a class at a lower grade level, or a lower salary range, through no fault of
the employee, will be placed in the lower grade level at a step which is closest to their
current salary. If the employee’s current salary exceeds the top step of the lower pay
range the employee will be Y-Rated. Reclassification to a class at the same grade level,
or salary range, is treated as a transfer for purposes of compensation.

Reallocation of an existing class:

I. To a higher salary range is treated as a promotion. The Fire Chief and HR
Director may authorize a compensation adjustment exceeding 5% if the
requirements of 2.3 (a, ¢ and d) of this policy are met.

Page 2 of 3



2. To alower salary range shall be placed at the step closest to the employee’s
current salary that does not provide a decrease. If the employee’s salary exceeds
the top salary of the lower pay range refer to Y-Rate in section 2.7.

2.7 Y-Rate

The employer may pay an employee, who is reduced to a lower class as a result of
reclassification, reallocation, or District directed reassignment not associated with layoff or
discipline, at his/her current rate of pay which is above the top step of the range or between steps
of the range. This rate shall be known as a “Y-Rate.” At the discretion of the employer,
assignment to such a rate of pay is available to employees who are fully qualified to perform the
work of the lower paid class.

An employee who is at a Y-rate above the top step of the range for the new (lower) class shall
continue to receive the Y-rate while employed in the new class until a change in the rate of pay
for the employee’s new class causes the top step of the new class to be equal to or greater than
the employee’s Y-rate.

An employee who is at a Y-rate which is between the steps of the range for the new (lower) class
shall continue to receive the Y-rate until a change in the rate of pay for the employee causes the
rate for the step in the range to which the employee is entitled to exceed his/her current rate of
pay.

Employees who are Y-Rated will be eligible to receive approved cost of living adjustments for
the class they hold.

2.8 Discussion of Wages

NRS 613.330 states it is unlawful to discriminate against an employee for inquiring about,
discussing, or voluntarily disclosing information about wages. This does not apply to any
employee who has access to or information about the wages of other employees as part of their
essential job functions and discloses that information to a person who does not have access to
that information unless the disclosure is ordered by the Labor Commissioner or court.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The Fire Chief and Human Resources Director will review
this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

Page 3 of 3



STOREY COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT NUMBER: P507

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 05/17/22
AUTHORITY: BOFC
FIRE CHIEF: JL

SUBJECT: Scheduled Salary Step Advancement

1.

PURPOSE

To establish a policy on scheduled salary step advancement and the withholding of advancement.

2,

2.1

2.2

2.3

a.

POLICY

Step Advancement Authorized

An employee who is currently not paid at the top step of the salary range for his/her
class is normally eligible for step advancement on his/her anniversary date. Raises in
salary resulting from step advancements are based on longevity and satisfactory
performance, and are not automatic. Step advancements may be granted only upon a
finding by the Fire Chief that the employee meets all of the performance requirements
of the position and complies with all of the employer’s rules, regulations, and policies.
An employee who is determined to be eligible for step advancements shall move to the
next highest step within the salary grade range.

Salary step advancements are administered by the Fire Chief subject to the validation of
the HR Director that there is adequate documentation that all requirements have been
met. Peer evaluations shall not be considered in evaluating an employee’s performance
for purposes of this policy.

The Board of Fire Commissioners has authority per NRS 474.470 to establish the
salaries of fire district personnel.

If a performance evaluation is not completed within 30 day of the of the employee’s
anniversary date it shall be considered a satisfactory performance evaluation and the
HR Director shall authorize a step advancement retroactive to the employee’s
anniversary date.

Anniversary Date/Step Advancement

a. The date on which an employee becomes eligible for consideration for step

advancement is known as the anniversary date. When approved in-writing, step
advancements will become effective on the employee’s anniversary date.

A promotion and reclassification to a class with a higher salary range shall establish a
new anniversary date.

A demotion, reclassification to a class with a lower salary range, or lateral transfer shall
not establish a new anniversary date.

Casual employees (less than part-time) will be eligible for a step advancement once
they have worked 1039 hours. When approved in writing, the step advancement will
become cffective when the employee has worked 1039 hours.

Withholding of Step Advancement

Page 1 of 2



Job Performance. When the Fire Chief determines the job performance of an
employee is less than satisfactory or below expectations, the step advancement shall
be withheld. The employee’s performance shall be documented, in-writing, and state
the reason(s) upon which the decision was based, and a prescribed remedy to
improve the employee’s performance and a copy of the documentation provided to
the employce by the Fire Chief or his/her designee.

The HR Director may approve step advancement al the beginning ol any pay period
upon finding that the employce now meets the qualifications for advancement, if
within 90 days of the original anniversary date. The employee’s anniversary dale
shall be adjusted to the date on which the step advancement is actually granted. If
step advancement is not granted in the interim, the employee shall be considered for
step advancement on the next anniversary date.

Unpaid Leave of Absence. An employee’s eligibility for consideration for step
advancement shall be delayed by temporary layoffs or unpaid leaves of absence in
excess of 30 working days during the 12-month period following the employee’s last
step advancement. The employee’s anniversary date shall be adjusted by the total
number of days on unpaid leave.

Flat Rate Salaries and Wages

Certain job classifications may be assigned to flal rates of pay in the compensation plan.
Employees in classifications assigned to a flat rate of pay are not eligible for step increases.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The Fire Chief and Human Resources Director will review

this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

Page 2 of 2



STOREY COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT NUMBER: P1000

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 05/17/22
AUTHORITY: BOFC
FIRE CHIEF: JL

SUBJECT: INVESTIGATIONS OF ALLEGED MISCONDUCT

POLICY:  To perform and manage investigations of complaints of harassment,
discrimination, retaliation, performance, and safety and ethical allegations of misconduct in a
timely manner in order to ensure that prohibited actions and behaviors cease immediately and in
order to protect the parties involved in the investigation process.

1.1 Purpose

When an employee makes an informal or formal complaint, or the employer receives information
of wrong-doing the employer will take prompt steps to stop the alleged conflict, protect involved
parties, and begin investigations. Under many laws [e.g., Title VII, the Americans with
Disabilities Act (ADA), the Age Discrimination in Employment Act (ADEA), the Occupational
Safety and Health Act (OSHA), the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, state and local nondiscrimination laws],
employers are legally obligated to investigate complaints (harassment, discrimination, retaliation,
safety and ethical) in a timely manner. In addition, reasonable action is required to be taken by
the employer to ensure illegal actions and behaviors cease immediately.

Responsiveness to a complaint and an investigation will not only yield the best information and
evidence, but it will also enhance both the investigator’s and the employer’s credibility.
Investigations can help the organization identify and resolve internal problems before they
become widespread. The District takes all complaints seriously, and will conduct appropriate,
reasonable, and prompt investigations.

1.2 Investigation Process

No investigation should be undertaken without the knowledge and advice of the HR Director.
The following steps will be taken as soon as the employer receives a verbal or written complaint
that warrants an investigation.

a. Maintain Confidentiality

The employer will protect the confidentiality of employee claims to the best of its ability
and in accordance with law. At the same time, the employer must conduct a prompt and
effective investigation. It may not be possible to keep all information completely
confidential. The employer should explain to the complaining party and all individuals
involved in the investigation that all information gathered will remain confidential to the
extent possible for a thorough investigation. It should also be explained to the parties that
to conduct a prompt and effective investigation, some information may be revealed to the
accused and potential witnesses, but that information will be shared only on a need-to-
know basis. An employer cannot promise absolute confidentiality to any party involved
in the investigation.

Page | of 3



b. Provide Interim Protection

The employer may take immediate measures for the protection of the accuser or the
complainant. Separating the complainant from the accused may be done to guard against
continued harassment or retaliation. Actions such as schedule changes, transfers, or leave
of absence may be necessary, and are not done for retaliatory purposes.

The status of protective action may be changed at any time by the HR Director during the
investigation.

c. Select an Investigator

An investigator will be chosen by the HR Director in conjunction with the Fire Chief or
other appropriate personnel, such as the District Attorney.

The employer may use the resources of experienced HR professionals, internal security,
legal counsel (inside or outside), a third-party investigator, or the employer may use a
team approach.

1.3 Determination

Upon receipt of the completed investigation report, the HR Director will review the entire
investigative file, the employee’s personnel file, and any other relevant materials. The HR
Director may return the entire investigation to the assigned investigator for further investigation
or action. Once the investigation report is to the satisfaction of the HR Director, s/he will review
the report and its findings, and will discuss possible disciplinary action, if any, with the Fire
Chief.

Any decisions to impose disciplinary action against any regular employee must conform to the
procedures set forth in policy P1001 Disciplinary Action and Appeals.

14 Closure of Investigation

Once a decision is made, the HR Director will notity both the complainant and the accused that
the investigation is complete, that the employer took the complaint seriously, and that the
employer took appropriate action. The employer is not obligated to disclose to the complainant
what actions were taken against the accused.

The HR Director should set a time frame to follow up with the complainant to ensure there are
no other issues and that no retaliation has been endured. The employer should encourage
communication and follow-up until the complainant is comfortable again. Finally, the HR
Director should remind all parties to preserve confidentiality as appropriate.

When necessary, the employer must take other reasonable action that is appropriate to the
situation.

1.5  Archiving

Page 2 of 3



The HR Director will maintain confidentiality of all materials related to the investigation and
will store the materials separately from the employee’s personnel file.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The Fire Chief and Human Resources Director will review
this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

Page 3 of 3



STOREY COUNTY FIRE DISTRICT NUMBER: P1001

POLICIES AND PROCEDURES EFFECTIVE DATE: 05/17/22
AUTHORITY: BOFC
FIRE CHIEF: JL

SUBJECT: DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS AND APPEALS

POLICY: Storey County Fire Protection District takes seriously all complaints of misconduct
under its policies. The District will accept and address all complaints of misconduct in accordance
with this policy. It is also the policy of the District to ensure that complaints of misconduct can be
reported without concern for reprisal or retaliation.

1.1 Purpose

This policy provides guidclines for noticing potential discipline, providing due process,
disciplining, and providing for appeals of discipline in a justified and fair manner. Investigations
of alleged misconduct will conform to policy P1000, Investigations of Alleged Misconduct. This
policy, except Sections 1.2 and 1.3 does not apply to the Fire Chief, and it is not intended to create
due process rights for those specific individuals. The District Fire Chief at-will employees, and
nothing in this policy is intended to create due process rights for those individuals.

1.2 Justification for Discipline

Disciplinary action, up to and including termination, may be taken against an employee for
unsatisfactory performance or for misconduct including, but not limited to, the following:

a. Conduct unbecoming an employee in the employer’s service, or discourteous treatment of
members of the public or a fellow employee, or any other act of omission or commission
that impacts negatively on the public’s perception of the integrity or credibility of the
employer or erodes the public confidence in the employer.

b. Falsification of or making a material omission on forms, records, or reports including
applications, timecards, and other employer records.

c. Absence from work without permission or without notification to an appropriate
supervisor or manager, habitual absence or tardiness, or misuse of sick leave.

d. Unauthorized possession, removal, or use of the employer’s property including, but not
limited to, funds, records, keys, confidential information of any kind, equipment, supplies,
or any other materials.

e. Disseminating confidential information to unauthorized persons within and outside the
workplace.

f.  Insubordination, refusing to follow directions, or other disrespectful conduct directed
toward a supervisor or manager.

g. Sexual harassment or other prohibited behavior directed toward another employee,
member of the public, vendor, or anyone doing business with the employer, or anyone
present on premises owned or controlled by the employer.

Page 1 of 6



h. Actual or threatened physical violence including, bul not limited to, intimidation, overt or
subtle threats, harassment, stalking, or any form of coercion, except as may be required of
a peace officer in the course of his/her duties. -

i. Possession or inappropriate use of drugs or alcohol on property owned or controlled by
the employer or while on duty or during an on-call status.

j. Possession, bringing, or aiding others in bringing unauthorized [irearms, weapons,
hazardous biological material or chemicals, or other dangerous substances onto property
owned or controlled by the employer.

k. Violation of safety or health policies or practices or engaging in conduct that creates a
safety or health hazard to other employees, the public, vendors, or him/herself.

I. Dishonesty, including intentionally or negligently providing false information,
intentionally falsifying records, employment applications, or other documents.

m. Willfully or intentionally violating or failing to comply with the employer’s policies,
rules, regulations, and/or procedures.

n. Unsatisfactory work performance.

o. Failure to demonstrate professionalism, courtesy, tact, and discretion in all interactions
with coworkers, supervisors, and the public; use common sense discretion; remain safe,
socially moral, lawful, affective, adaptive, and efficient.

1.3 Forms of Disciplinary Action

a. Disciplinary action includes, but is not limited to, one or more of the following:
i.  Verbal waming (document time, date, and subject)
ii.  Written reprimand
iii.  Suspension
iv.  Pay reduction
v.  Demotion
vi.  Termination

b. A supervisor or Fire Chief who is intending to impose disciplinary action of the above
items 1.3(a)(iii-vi) shall first consult with the HR Director before any action is taken in
order to ensure that all policies and procedures have been followed correctly.

c. Employees’ signed copies of the above items section 1.3(a)(i-vi) must be placed in
employees master personnel file, and a copy provided to employees. The discipline will
remain in the employee’s master personnel file for the following durations or otherwise if
specified in a collective bargaining agreement, and in accordance with records retention
statutes. When the discipline is eligible to be removed from the master personnel file, the
employee may submit a request in writing to the Human Resources office for the file to
be removed from that file. The Human Resources office will have 30 days from receipt of
the request to remove the discipline subject to removal.

i. Verbal warning — 15 months;
ii.  Written reprimand — 15 months;

iii. Suspension — 24 months;

Page 2 of 6



iv. Pay reduction — permanent;
v. Demotion — permanent;
vi. Termination — permanent.

d. FLSA Exempt employees are subject to the following rules regarding disciplinary pay
deductions and unpaid suspensions:

i.  Pay deductions may only be made in cases of violations of safety rules of major
significance, including those rules related to the prevention of serious danger in
the workplace or to other employees. An example would be violating a rule that
prohibits smoking around flammable material. Deductions can be made in any
amount.

ii.  Unpaid suspensions may be imposed for infractions of workplace conduct rules,
such as rules prohibiting sexual harassment, workplace violence, drug or
alcohol use, or for violating state or federal laws. The suspension must be for
serious misconduct, not for performance issues. Suspensions must be in full-
day increments.

1ii.  Suspensions for performance issues must be made in full-week increments.

1.4 Investigation

An investigation of any employee may be conducted in response to a complaint or allegation that
the employee engaged in activity or behavior that violated county administrative policies. The
investigation will be performed in accordance with policy P1000, Investigations of Alleged
Misconduct. The investigation of law enforcement personnel will also conform to NRS 289.

1.5 Due Process

The employee may utilize due process provided for in this policy or s/he may utilize due process,
such as the grievance process, set forth in the applicable collective bargaining agreement, but the
employee may not utilize both processes.

Unless designated otherwise in a contract or collective bargaining agreement, prior to taking
disciplinary action involving suspension, reduction in pay, demotion, or termination against an
employee, the employer will take action intended to ensure that the employee is afforded due
process. Due process in regard to employment-related disciplinary action includes, among other
actions, making certain the employee is provided notice of the reason for the disciplinary action
and is given the opportunity to provide a response to the proposed disciplinary action prior to an
appropriate supervisor making a final decision regarding the disciplinary action.

A. Notice of Intent to Discipline

Unless designated otherwise in a contract or collective bargaining agreement, in situations
where the proposed disciplinary action involves a suspension, a reduction in pay, a
demotion, and/or termination, written notice of the proposed disciplinary action will be
hand-delivered or sent certified mail to the employee. The notice will include the following
information:

I. The nature of the disciplinary action proposed;

2. The effective date of the proposed disciplinary action;

Page 3 of 6



3. A statement of the proposed disciplinary action with documentation, statcments,
and/or other evidence supporting the proposed disciplinary action;

4. A statement advising the employee of his/her right to file a written response, or to
submit a written request for a pre-disciplinary conference with the HR Director
within 5 workdays of receipt of the notice of proposed disciplinary action; and

5. A statement that the employee’s failure to file a written response or request a pre-
disciplinary conlerence in a timely manner, or to appear at the pre-disciplinary
conference after requesting such, will constitute a forfeiture of the employee’s
rights to any further appeal.

B. Employee Review of Allegation and Evidence

[f the regular employce requests, s/he will be given the opportunity, as soon as practical,
to review the documents or other evidence, if any (except for attorney-client privileged
documents), on which the proposed disciplinary action is based.

The HR Director will restrict the employee to “in-camera” (in chambers) review only, in
which s/he may review the documents under close supervision of the HR Director, or
his/her designee, will be allowed to take notes, but will not be allowed to photocopy,
photograph, video, record, duplicate, or otherwise keep the documents or materials. The
employee may have up to two representative present during the review and the
representative(s) may review (he documents with the employee, as allowed by the
employee, under the same restrictions.

C. Pre-Disciplinary Conference

When the employee requests a conference after receipt of the proposed disciplinary action,
but prior to any disciplinary action being imposed, the HR Director will schedule a meeting
with the employee and his/her representative(s) (if the employee requests a
representative(s) be present) and the supervisor in a timely manner to review the reason for
and basis of the proposed disciplinary action. At this conference, the supervisor and the
HR Director will alsv provide the employee with an opportunity to present relevant
information which may impact the nature or severity of the proposed disciplinary action.

The pre-disciplinary process is intended to provide the employee opportunity to present to
the supervisor and the HR Director a written or oral response after having the opportunity
to review the supporting materials and prior to imposed discipline. The employee must
consider the following:

I. The response is not intended to be an adversarial or formal hearing;

2. Although the employec may be represented by one or more uninvolved
representative and/or by legal counsel, the response is not intended to accommodate
the presentation of testimony or witnesses;

3. The employee may suggest that further investigation be conducted, or the employee
may offer any additional information or mitigating factors for the supervisor and
HR Director to consider;

4. In the event the HR Director decides to cause further investigation, the employee
will be provided with a summary of the investigation results prior to imposed
discipline;

Page 4 of 6



5. The employee may, thereafter, have the opportunity to further respond orally or in
writing to the supervisor and HR Director on the limited issues of information
raised in any subsequent materials.

D. Implementation of Discipline

No later than 5 work days from receipt of the employee’s written response or conclusion
of the pre-disciplinary conference, the Fire Chief, after consultation with the HR Director,
will issue a written decision to the affected employee. The written decision will inform the
employee that:

I The proposed disciplinary action will be implemented; or
2. The proposed disciplinary action will be modified, with explanation; or
3. The proposed disciplinary action will be rescinded, with explanation; or

4. That additional time is needed for the employer to review new evidence and/or to
interview additional witnesses brought forth by the employee during the pre-
disciplinary conference.

Nothing in this policy, regardless of whether discipline is or is not administered, shall
preclude or prevent the Fire Chief or the HR Director from requiring the subject employee
to undergo additional training and professional devclopment, participate in an Employee
Assistance Program (EAP) to address job-related matters and consistence with business
necessity, or undergo follow-up or ongoing consultation with the Human Resources office
or other employee improvement program that is intended to correct and improve employee
behavior or performance.

Disciplinary action for law enforcement personnel will conform to NRS 289.

E. Resignation or Retirement Prior to Discipline

In the event the accused employee tenders a written resignation or notice of retirement prior
to the imposition of discipline, the situation shall be noted in the file, except as may be
limited by NRS 289 for law enforcement personnel. The tender of a resignation or
retirement by itself will not serve as the grounds for the termination of any pending
investigation or discipline.

1. Appeal. Unless the employee utilizes the appeal process set forth in a contract or
the applicable collective bargaining agreement, the affected employee may appeal
the disciplinary action to the Fire Chief by filing a written appeal with the HR
Director within 5 work days of the effective date of the disciplinary action.

In the event that a conflict of interest exists with the Fire Chief in the case
involving discipline, the HR Director will seek a qualified Fire Chief from a
jurisdiction outside of Storey County Fire Protection District, preferably a fire
district with reasonably similar staff numbers and other organizational
characteristics to Storey County Fire Protection District, located in the State of
Nevada, to serve as the appellate.

The written appeal must state the basis of the appeal and contain a specific
admission or denial of each of the material statements in the decision. If an

[S®]

Page 5 of 6



employee fails to file a written appeal conlorming (o these requircments within 5
workdays as shown in subsection (1) above, s/he is deemed to have waived the
right to appeal.

After the employee has submitted a timely appeal to the HR Director, the HR
Director will set a date for a disciplinary appeal hearing. At such hearing, the
employee will have the right to be represented by an attorney or other representative

retained by the employee, to present evidence and argument in response to the
disciplinary action, and to question and cross-examine adverse witnesses. The
hearing may be conducted informally without conforming to the formal rules of
evidence and such informality of the hearing process shall not invalidate the
decision rendered. The Fire Chief will issue to the parties a decision within 5

workdays following such hearing. The decision of the Fire Chief is final.

1.6 Administrative Leave During Disciplinary Proceeding

By notifying the employee in writing, the HR Director may place an employee (including the Fire
Chief) on administrative leave, with or without pay pending an investigation of alleged misconduct
or performance deficiencies, prior to or during a disciplinary proceeding, or during the review of
the employee’s response to a proposed disciplinary action. The notice of administrative leave will
include a statement that the leave is not a disciplinary action. An employee placed on
administrative leave without pay who is later reinstated without disciplinary action being imposed
will be reimbursed for any pay and benefits lost during the administrative leave.

1.7 False Accusations

An employee who has been found to have intentionally filed a false report of wrongdoing may be
subject to discipline up to and including termination.

RESPONSIBILITY FOR REVIEW: The Fire Chief and Human Resources Director will review

this policy every 5 years or sooner as necessary.

Page 6 of 6



Storey County Board of County |

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 5/17/2022 10:00 AM - Estimate of Time Required: 10 minutes

BOCC Meeting

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

Title: Review and possible approval of the 2022-2023 Storey County Fire Protection
District Final Budget, for submission to the Department of Taxation.

Recommended motion: I, > approve the filing of the 2022-2023 Storey County
Fire District Final Budget, to the Department of Taxation

Prepared by: Jennifer McCain

Department: Contact Number: 7758471133

Staff Summary: Final 2022-2023 Storey County Fire District Fund Budgets attached for
review and submission to the Nevada Dept. of Taxation

Supporting Materials: See attached
Fiscal Impact: Yes

Legal review required: False

Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other Agency Review:
Board Action:

[ ] Approved ] Approved with Modification

[
Denied [ ] Continued

[T



FIRE DISTRICT
2022-2023
PROPOSED

FINAL BUDGET



SUMMARIES
FIRE DISTRICT



474 Fire District 5/9/22 jm

Summary - Fire 250

2018-19 2019-2020 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2022-23
Audited Audit Audit Final Tentative Final
Beginning Fund Balance 1,324,050 1,098,632 1,799,631 2,124,672 2,093,363 2,093,363
Revenue 6,069,932 6,354,017 6,702,664 7,793,785 8,165,471 8,290,472
Salaries/Wages 3,238,370 3,826,620 4,022,653 4,493,888 4,625,637
Benefits 1,622,366 1,821,235 2,116,283 2,305,962 2,344,164
Service & Supplies 615,503 595,128 798,639 953,562 940,215
Capital Outlay 10,476 44,538 48,593 48,599
Expenses 5,567,162 5,486,715 6,242,983 6,982,113 7,802,005 7,958,615
Revenue vs Expenses 811,672 363,466 331,857
2,456,829 2,425,220
Other Financing Sources (728,188) (251,569) (134,640) 500,000 500,000 500,000
Transfers Out (134,640) 1,133,518 782,500 1,275,140
Contigency 209,463 226,704 238,758
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance 1,098,632 1,714,365 2,124,672 2,093,363 1,947,625 1,411,321

Summary - Fire Emergency

2018-19 2019-2020 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2022-23
Audited Audit Audit Final Tentative Final
Beginning Fund Balance 207,141 207,141 207,141 207,141 - -
Revenue 42,859
Expenses 250,000
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance 207,141 207,141 207,141 - - -

Summary - Fire Mutual Aide

2018-19 2019-2020 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2022-23
Audited Audit Audit Final Tentative Final
Beginning Fund Balance 896,737 1,277,359 1,329,239 1,548,372 1,048,372 1,048,372
Revenue 589,354 93,832 782,134 485,600 485,000 485,000
Expenses 208,732 41,952 413,001 485,600 522,139 522,139
Transfer Out 150,000 500,000 500,000 500,000
Prior Period Adj

Ending Fund Balance 1,277,359 1,329,239 1,548,372 1,048,372 511,233 511,233

1of 2 5-9-22 Final Summary 2022-23.xIsx  Fire



474 Fire District 5/9/22 jm
Summary - Fire 250
2018-19 2019-2020 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2022-23
Audited Audit Audit Final Tentative Final
Summary - Fire Capital Projects
2018-19 2019-2020 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2022-23
Audited Audit Audit Final Tentative Final
Beginning Fund Balance 927,409 597,405 568,530 336,917 390,044 390,044
Revenue 340000 419,641 510,000 710,000
Expenses 330,004 28,875 571613 366,514 755,000 863,637
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance 597,405 568,530 336,917 390,044 145,044 236,407
Summary - Fire Grants
New Fund 21-22 2018-19 2019-2020 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23 2022-23
Audited Audit Audit Final Tentative Final
Beginning Fund Balance - 68,501 68,501
Revenue 1,562,921 2,042,137 2,082,669
Expenses 1,494,420 1,862,037 2,151,169
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance - - - 68,501 248,601 1

20of 2

5-9-22 Final Summary 2022-23.xIsx  Fire



250-250
FIRE DISTRICT 474



p 40 13beq -

WY £0:0€:1T 2202/9/5

Alewwing 1UN0OJJY

%E9°9 00°000°SZT 00°€9T‘0TO'T  00'E9T'S88‘T  00'ISI'VIS‘T  SLTLY'LIST  9v'£08'SSS
%00°0S  00°000°00T 00°000°00€ 00°000°002 000 SL'0ST'SEE 66 T66VTE
%000 000 00°000'5Z 0000052 00°000°SZ 0S'LYL'6T TvLLLLT
%000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 00°000°0S 000 000
%000 000 00°000°L 00°000°L 00°000'9 00°681°0T 00'5€6'6
%000 000 00°000°08 00°000°08 000 000 000
%bT'L 00°000'SZ 00°000°SLE 00°000°0SE 00'000°00€ £T'¥0Y'19€ 95'EvE‘96€
%000 000 00'785°0LT 0078S0LT 009€S°T9T £9°069°£0T 05'SSL9TT
%000 000 00°000°S 00°000'S 000 0L'€05'T 000
%000 000 000 000 00'000°S 000 000
%000 000 00'I8STPO'T  00'T8STYO'T  00'ST99TOT  00°L86T86'T 000
%00°0 050 00°6VE'S8/8'T  0S8YE'SL8'T  STSTI'TITT  OT'LYETIVLT  LT'86S°6ES'T
%000 050 00TSY'LYST  OSTISYIYST  STSITII'T  vLOSYOIV'T  $SZLEOBET
%000 000 000 000 000 000 L9'6TY'T6
%000 000 00°L68'0€€ 00°L68°0€€ 000 9€'968°0€€ 96°008'99
%00°0 000 00°000'vvE 00°000'vvE 000 000 000
%000 000 00°000'%22 00000422 000 000 000
%000 000 00°000°SZ 00°000°SL 000 000 000
%00°0 000 00°000'ST 00°000°ST 000 000 000
%000 000 00°000°0€ 00°000°0€ 000 000 000
%00°0 ST'0 00°096'220°v  S8'656°TZOP  00°6TTLOY'E  L9'OVITEEY  STTIIVVITY
%000 000 00°000°SSS 00°000°SSS 00'000°SSS 08'8LY L0V 0€'78L°0SS
%000 000 000 000 000 ¥SOTLY €0°EV6'T
%000 000 000 000 000 LS'S8T'L 61°995°6
%000 000 00°000°009 00°000°009 00°000°00€ 1£°002'989 9t°60€°0S0°T
%000 L¥0 00°£T8'TT0'T  €S'9Z8'TZ0'T 000 YL LTY'8L8 000
%000 €0 00°'EET'9Y8 TEEET P8 00'612'7SS‘T  TE'ESS'LVE'T  LT'098°0SST
(aseasnaq) leuy anyejua) 1@d3png |e301  Aamdyelol  Auandy |elol
/ @seanuy £202-2202 £202-2202 T202-1202 T202-1202 1202-0202C
% 333png 123png juasey
juased 0} 123png

T uosuedwo)

1oday uosuedwo) 193png

T uosiedwo)

:S3DIAY3S HO4 SIDUVHD - v€ :dnoinidyaay |ejo)

1¥0dSNYYL W3 QYO
A¥3A0D3Y LN3QIDDV
SONITIIE 3did
SNOLLAI¥ISANS FIDNVINGNY
$334 NOLLD3dSNI

ONITIIE IDNVINTNY
V1S31-T 14Vd-vSD

10 LN3A3TVID3dS
SIN3IAITVIDIdS
V1S3L-TLIHVd-VSO

000-STEVE-0SC
000-TTEVE-0ST
000-0T€7E-05C
000-80€7€-05C
000-Z0€¥E-0S¢
000-90et€-0S¢
00C-6TT¥E-05C
0ZC-€TTVE0ST
000-ETTVE-0SC
00Z-80T¥€-05C

S3DINYIS YOS SIDYVH)D - b€ :dnosnidyaay

!ONIANNS TYANIWNYIAODYILNI - €€ :dnoiDidyaay |ejoL

149230s
INVY9 d34
1¥0ddNS 44VLS AODYILNI

000-L05EE-05¢
S9T-00¥€E-0SC
91-00vE€-0S¢

ONIAGNNS TYANINYIAODYILNI - €€ :dnoinidynay

1SLIWY3 / SISNIDN - 2€ :dnosnidynay jejoL

SLINY3d 3414

S1IWY3d 5018

TVYM3IN3IY 3SN3DIT SSINISNG
$334 3SN3DI1 SSANISNE

000-20Zz€-0S¢C
000-S0¢Z€-05¢
000-€0Cz€-05¢C
000-T0Zc€-05¢

SLINY3d / SISNIDIN - Z€ :dnoinidynsy

{NFYOTVA @V - T€ :dnoinidynay |eoL

Q3SS3SSV ATIVYLN3D-3LVLS
SYV3A 4Oldd ININONM3A
YV3A 1S¥14 LNINONIM3A
YOSS3SSV-IWIHOTVA AV
YL-¥9A LINFHEND WIHOTVA QY
YA LNIYEND WIHOTVA aV

000-80TT€-05¢
000-S0TTE-0S¢C
000-€0TTE-05C
000-T0TTE-0SC
00S-00TTE-05¢
000-00TT€-05C

INFYOTVA QV - T€ :dnoiidynay

YLy 1D141S14 Y14 - 0ST -pung
J3qWINN JUN0Y

ALNNQOD AFHOLS




¥ Jo Z abed

WY £0:0€:TT T20T/9/S

%ot $9°000S52T 00°ZLY'06L'8  SETLY'S99'8  ST'SBL'E6LL  00°€0LS8Y'6  6£°€99°7S89
%vt°T $9°000°SZT 00°ZLY°06L°8  SETLY'S99'8  ST'SBL'E6L'L  00°€E0L'S8Y'6  6E£'€99°7S8‘9
%00°0 000 00°00000S 00°000°00S 00°000°00S 00°000°005 00°000°0ST
%000 000 00°00000S 00°000°00S 00000005 00°000°00S 00°000°0ST
%00°0 000 00°000°SE 00°000°SE 00°00£'19 8°9€2'S6 15°008°2HT
%000 000 000 000 000 oT'LTL'sy EVYITY
%000 000 000 000 000 00°00S‘TT 000
%000 000 000 000 000 00°'TS8'¢T 00°186CC
%000 000 000 000 00°00€ 00°9SS 00°5€6
%000 000 00°000°SE 00°000°SE 00°000'T9 8€°709°T¢ 6T 0VT'LL
(aseasnaq) leuyy angejudl je8png|ejor Auamdye3or  AuApody jesop
/ @seanu| €202-220C €202-7202 2202-1202 7202-1202 1202-0202
% 128png 123png juased
jualed 0} 123png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

:je3o) yoday
‘pLY 1D1¥LSIA I - 0ST ‘pund [B30)

:434SNVHL ANNIYIALNI - L€ :dnoiDdynay e3oL
IV IYNLNIA NOYH HI4SNVYL 000-1¢cZe-05¢
¥34SNVYH1 ANNIYILNI - L€ :dnoiDidynay

:3N3IAY SNOINVTIIISIN - 9€ :dnoioidyaay jejoL
ISYNGNITY INIVID 3DNVYENNI 000-0099¢-0s¢

S3TVS LNINCIND3 000-0¥59€-0SC
Y3IHLO - OSIN 000-0059£-0S¢
31A¥d SNOILYNOQ/8I4LNOD 000-00%9¢-05¢C

SONINYVY3I LSIYILINI 000-00T9€-05¢
INNIAIY SNOINVTIIISIW - 9€ :dnosDidynay
Jaquinp unoly

yoday uosuedwo) 198png



S jo 1 abed

WY £S:HT:TT 220T/6/S

AJewwing JuNOJ2dY

%00°0 000 00°0S¥'CT 00°0S¥'CT 00°000'6 SL'¥00'6 LELYS'8
%000 000 00°008'T9 00°008‘T9 00°000°€S v L069Y 68'S68tt
%000 000 00°068°S8 00°068S8 00'9LE'VE wory'vT £8°'TT80C
%200 €T'E 00°0vLCT L89ELTT 009998 €ETLEd €0'%SS‘S
%00°0 000 00°02SvT 00°025PT 00°STS'ET 6L'89Y°ET 0v'609°€T
%000 000 00°EVT'8E 00 €YT‘8E 00°€vL’SE LT1°0TZ'LT 60'7LT'6C
%000 000 00°090°9S 00°090°95 00°€ET vY LT'60T'ST 0E'ELY'LT
%000 000 00'SLT'8 00°'SLT'8 00'9Z€’E 86'LTT'T 66'600'T
%000 000 00°00Z°9 00°00Z9 00'8€L'L 8v°'LLT9 000
%00°0 000 00°0058T 00°00S'8T 00°000°LT SO9TEVT 00'9¥8°9T
%00°0 000 00°0St°T 00°0S%C 00°0StC 97°020C T0°'TZ0C
%000 000 00°0SZ°T 000SZ°T 00°0S2C 9€'6€T 0€£9T'T
%99°'T 00°202'8€ 00'v9T‘VYE'T  00°796°SOE‘T  00°€8TOTT'C  TTS96'E€LL'T TV SET'TI8T
%000 000 00°002‘8Y 00°00Z‘8% 00°000v¥ 8Y'EVY'LT ¥5°9€9°0F
%LEYS-  00°8LEE- 00'5€8°C 00°€TZ'9 00'S80°L LL8'T SYIT9E
%000 000 000 000 000 ¥v°888'6 L' T98TT
%000 000 000 000 000 95°016'T 80°EETT
%8S°C 00'699°T 00'LE€'99 00'899'%9 00'806°LS LY PEE'BE SESTLTY
%000 000 000 000 000 68'STTL SETEOVT
%000 000 000 000 000 91°€0T LL°1TT
%000 000 00°SL6T8Y 00'SL6‘T8Y 00'0PT'8EY L8'TS6'LTE T0°TvT79¢€
%TTC- 00°LLS'S- 00'619'SHT 00'96TTST 00°098°LST $7°550'80¢€ £5°89t°90¢
%ET'E 00°88% 'St 00'86T66%'T 00'0TZ'€S¥'T  00°06CTIET L9PLT'TI0T 95 LOV'SET'T
%E6'T 00°6VLTET 00°££9°ST9'y  00°888‘€6v'y  00°€S9TTOY  96'790°T8Y'E  67°0T9°9T8‘E
%000 000 000 000 000 S9°£70°08T 68'9v7'96T
%66'T 00°TTELT 00'€06'588 00765898 00 TLY'T6L S6°L60°S6S €9°859TLS
%000 000 000 000 000 67 TSE'LSY 68'879°69S
%000 000 000 000 000 S0'968°LTT ETLIT'YL
%9T'€ 00'8EV'YTT 00'VEL'6EL'E  00°962°ST9'€  00TST'TEL'E  TYEB8ITET'T  S98ILETY'T

(aseasnaq) leuty annejua) jedpng e3oL  Auadyjejor  Ajapoy jeol

/ @seanu| €202-7202 €202-2202 7202-120C 202-1202 1202-020C

% ya8png 128png juaied
juaied 0} 198png

T uosuedwo)

1oday uosiiedwo) 123png

T uosuedwo)

LIN3dIND3 ¥31NdNOD
FONVNILNIVIN OLNV
ONINIVYL
SNOLLYDINNWINOD
S3I7ddNS ONILYY3Id0
S3ILNILN
IDNVNILNIVIN LININDIND3
"d1¥2saNns B sana
13AVYL

INOHd313L

S311ddNS 321440
39V1SOd

000-€€0€5-05¢-05¢
000-0£0€5-05¢-05¢
000-620€5-05¢-05C
000-v20€S-05¢-05¢C
000-2¢0€S-052-05¢C
000-9T0€5-05¢-05¢C
000-vT0€S-05¢-05¢C
000-€T0ES-05¢-05¢
000-¢T0€S-05C-05¢C
000-0T0€S-05¢-05¢

S3ISN3IdX3 TYNOILYYIdO - 0€S :Tdnoinidydx3
:S1143IN38 IONIYS - 02S :Tdnosnidydx3 jejoy

AYVIQISENS SNI 3341134
ALIYND3S IVIDO0S

V1S3l

140ddNS 44VLS AOOYILNI
3YVIIQIN

V1S3l

1490ddNS 44V.LS AODYILNI
IDONVYNSNI HLTV3H

10vd

Sd3d

000-9T0Z5-05¢-05¢
000-7T0ZS-05¢-05¢
T9T-€T0¢5-05¢-05¢C
000-€T0ZS-05¢-05¢
00¢-2T0Z5-05¢-05¢C
791-210¢5-05¢-05¢C
000-¢T0Z5-052-0S¢C
000-TT0¢5-052-05¢C

S1143N39 IONIYL - 025 :Tdnosnidydx3

:3SN3dX3 1D3Y10 AYYIVS - 016 :Tdnosidydx3 jejoy

V1S3l

JNILIINO

LARERR

1490ddNS 44VLS AOSYILNI
SIOVM B SIVIVS

000-0TOTS-05¢-05C

3SN3dX3 123410 AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnoinidydx3
vLv 12141510 3414 - 0ST ;3udwpedaq

ALNNOD AJYOLS

J3qWINN 3UN0Y

I.Z/ .f.sf
Sy
I oG

& 550

z



G Jo z abed

WY £S:pT:TT 2202/6/S

%000 00°0v9°ZVT 00°0t9CHT 000 000v9'ZHT 00'086'90T 00°0v9°TvT
%00°0% 00°000°00T 00°000°00Z 00°000°00S €8°0V1 L0V €80T L0V 000
%000 000 000 000 LT'6S8Th LT'6S8CY 000
%000 000 000 000 00°000°0S 00°000°0S 000
%00°0 000 00°000°26 00°000°Z6 00'000'8L €TV0L9L L6'VTTTL
%000 000 000 000 000 000 7S'v9S‘E
%000 000 00°000'v8 00'000%8 00°000°0L 00°'T6L99 00°6TL09
%000 000 000 000 000 €7°€99'¢ €9°9TLY
%000 000 000 000 000 000 CELEE
%000 000 00°000°8 000008 000008 00°052'9 0S°£8LC
%00°0 000 00°00t°0ST 00°00v°0ST Y 6SE‘ETT 95°02Z°LL 0L°€EY'88
%000 000 00'006'St 00°006'St 00°065'8C 86°TL6'VT 00'600°0T
%000 000 00°00€86 00°00€°86 vv'6927°68 SS'S6LTS OT'LYT'€9
%000 000 00°00Z°T 00°00Z°'T 00°00S €0'TSy 000
%000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 00°000°'S 000 09°2.2'S
%881~ L8IVEET- 00°ST8°L69 L8'TIT'TTL 2€°087°L6S S6°LS8'I8€E 96'89S‘vEY
%000 000 000 000 000 000 €7°T98°T
%000 000 00°000°L 00°000°Z 00°000°Z 000 00°005°€
%000 000 00°005°C 00'005C 000 ZETWO'E 000
%000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 000 0S'9EEVT 00°0SL'9
%000 000 000 000 000 000 0T°'S86'CS
%000 000 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 000 000 000
%000 000 00°00%'v0T 00°00¥‘v0T 00°000°0LT 86°STE'8L 69'SYT'68
%000 000 00005V 00005y 00°005'v 000 ST'E6Y'v
%000 000 00°008 00008 00°008 oV'LLL 0T'LTY'T
%LT LS 00'0SE‘ET- 00'000°0T 00'0S€'€T 0000092 8676881 68°L16'6
%000 000 00°0vSC 00°0¥SC 00091 00°T09'T 05°'SZ6'T
%000 000 00'000'T 00000'T 000 000 000
%000 000 00'006'T 00'006'T 0000LT 88'ECY'T 9%°9/9°T
%000 000 00'000°T 00°000'T 000 SLT8L 000
%000 000 00'895°€S 00'895°€S 00°0v9'vv 98'€T6'€T SS'T9LLT
%000 000 00°000'SL 00°000°SL 00°000'2S 60'v67°LE veEVTLLE
%000 000 00°SY9ET 00°S¥9‘€T 00°S€8°'S 86°STEY 17 7483
%000 000 00'¥S6°9% 00°'vS6°9% 0002€'2T ¥1°985TC 0Z'¥9S°L
%000 000 00'0€8°6E 00°0€8°6€ E'8TT'6C TL0ET'9T 9%'166'TC

(aseanaq) leuty angejuaL 1dpng jejor  Auanoy jelol  Ananay jeloL

/ 3seanu| €20¢Z-2202 €202-720¢ zeoz-120C ceoez-tzoe 1202-0202

% 128png 198png jualeq
juaied 01 1a3png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

Vvasn OL ¥34SNVYL

)370¥d TV1IdVD OL ¥Y34SNVYL
IN3IOYINT 3414 OL YIISNVYL
SINVYYO 3414 OL ¥Y34SNVYL

000-vZ¢/S-052-05¢

S3J¥NOS ONIDNYNIS ¥IHLO - 0£S :TdnosDidydx3

:SNO3INVTIIISIW - 09 :Tdnosoidydx] |e3o)

318110NA340 IDNVINSNI
INNINIdd 3DNVENSNI
SANN43d
SNO3NVTI3DSIN
Y33LNNTOA

000-0€595-052-05¢
000-00595-05¢-05¢
000-20¥95-05¢-05¢

SNOINVTIIDSIN - 095 :Tdnoinidydxy

{INJWNYIAOD TVHINIO - 0pS :Tdnosnidydx3 |e3or

1V2Ia3IN

S311ddNS 3IDNVINGNY
NOILN3AIYd 3414
S311ddNS NOILD310¥d 34i4

000-STEYS-0S2-05C
000-80€¥5-052-05¢
000-90€¥5-05¢-05¢
000-50€v5-052-05¢

LINIWNYIAO9 TVHINID - 0tS :Tdnoinidydxy

:S3SN3dX3 TYNOILYYHIdO - 0€S :Tdnoioidydx3 [e3o)

HOLVIA LNVYO
139ang/Lanvy

SIYNLXI4 ANV IYNLINYNL
SNOILV13Y Y08V 3S¥3AAV
49 §13N4-S334 TYNOISS340¥d
SNOILVILO93N NOINN
S3DIAY3S TYNOISS340dd
ALNIGVLISVH
SININIIYOV INIVIN
JONVNILNIVIA ONITING
"INIVIN ¥3HSINONILX3
S1001

AYANNY

S3D1LON JIaNnd

S3YIL

135310 B SVO

SWYO4INN

dIND3 13310Yd 1¥YNOSY3d
FYVMLIOS ¥3LNdNOD

000-TO¥€ES-05¢-05C
000-8¥0€5-052-05¢
13quINN JUN0Y

Joday uosuedwo) 3138png



S Jo ¢ 3bed

WY £S:$T:1T 220T/6/S

%1S°L €8'867'T99 00°€TS‘2LY'6  LTPTTTI8'8  9T'9TL'9TTI'8  TO'LST'T99'9  vE'€29°LTS'9
%1ISL £8'867'199 00'€TSTLY'6  LTPITTI8'S  9T9TLOTI'8  T0°LST'T99'9  VE'€C9LTS9
%000 0,0 00°665'8Y 0€°865°8Y 0S'LES VY IT°165TS 000
%00°0 000 000 000 000 Ly 000
%00°0 0L0 00'665 81 0£'8658% 0S'LES' VY 66'€YSTS 000
%10°0S  00'v69'v0S 00'868°€IS‘T  00'¥0T‘600‘T  00'€E09'VET‘T  00°SS8‘SI8 00°0t9'v82
%TE'S 00'%S0'CT 00°85L8€T 00'v0L'92C 00°€9%'60C 000 000
%0T°€S  00°000°0ST 00°00SCEY 00°00SZ8¢ 00005782 00°SL8‘TTT 00°000°ZYT
(aseasaq) leuly angejual 1e8png je3ol  Auagoy ezol  Auapoy eloL
/ @seanu| €202-220C €202-220C 2202-1202 2202-120C 1202-0202
% yo3png 323png jualed
jualied 0} 3a8png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

:|ejo] yoday
1LY 10141510 Y14 - 05T :3uawiedaq (e30L

:0v9 - 09 :1dnosnidydx3 je3ol
1IN3INGIND3 YILNdWOD
AVILNO TVLIdYD

000-09T¥9-052-05¢
000-0T0¥9-05¢-05C
09 - 019 :1dno4nidydx3
1$3D¥NOS ONIDNVNIF ¥IHLO - 045 :Tdnosnidydx3 |ejoy
ADN3IONILNOD 000-006/5-052-05¢
NIVEAVd 191 OL ¥34SNVHL 000-87¢/5-05¢-05C
JaquinN junoddy

yoday uosiiedwo) 398png



260-260
FIRE EMERGENCY



%000 00°0 00°0 00'0 00°000°052 00'0 000
%00°0 000 00°0 000 00°000°05¢ 00'0 000
%000 000 000 000 00000052 000 000
(sseasdaq) leuly angejual 1@3png e30L  Aamdy (e30l  Alapdy [ejol
/ @seasnu) £202-7202 £202-2202 7202-1202 2202-1202 1202-0202
% 13dpng 138png juasey
judied 03 198png

T uosuedwo) T uosuedwo)

%000 000 000 00°0 L1°6S8TY LT'6S8CY 000
%00°0 00°0 000 00°0 L1°6S8°CY LT°658TY 000
%000 000 000 000 LT'6S8'TY LT'6S8TY 000
(aseaunaq) leuy annejua) 1e3pngjejol Aoy ielol  Ajiapoy |eiop
/ 3seaunuy) €202-7202 €202-2202 2202-1202 2202-120T 1202-0202
% 193png 198png juaseq
ualed 01 193png

T uosuedwo) T uosuedwo) :

:ADNIDHING 3YH - 092 :Iudwitedaq (e30)

:535N3dX3 TYNOILYYH3dO - 0€S :Tdnosnidydx3 [ejoy
$3DIAY3IS TYNOISSIF0¥d 000-0£0€5-092-09¢
$3ISN3IdX3 TYNOILYHIdO - 0€S :Tdnoinidydx3
AJONIDYINI 3HId - 092 :Iudwiedaq
12quInN Junody

yoday uosiiedwo) 3128png

*ADN3DY3INI JYI4 - 092 :pun4 [B30L

'YIISNVYL ANNJYILNI - LE :dnouDidyAaay jero)
(0S2) 3414 INOY4 YIASNVHL 000-0T¢ZE-09¢
YIISNVHL ANNAYILNI - L€ :dnosnidyasy
ADN3IDYING Y14 - 092 :pung
Jaquinp unody

Hoday uosiiedwo) 328png



270-270
MUTUAL AID



71 40 v 2bed

WY ZS:¥1:6 2202/9/S

%000 00°0 00°000°S8% 00°000°s8Y
%00°0 00°0 00°000°S8t 00°000°S8Y
%000 000 00°000°S8% 00°000°s8Y
(eseasdaq) [E] LV UET
/ @seaiu| €20¢T-T20¢ €20¢-270T
% 198png 198png juaied
jualed 0} 198png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

dlv TIVNLNW 3Y14 - 04T :pund |e30]
1SIDIAYIS Y04 SIDYVHD - vE :dnounidynay ejoL

000-0TeEVE-0LC

S3DINYIS Y04 SIDYVHD - v€ :dnoinidyaay

aiv IvNnLNW 3414 - 042 :pung
JaquINp 3UN0NY

110day uosuedwo) 398png



€1 J0 g abed

WY TT:¥T:6 2202/9/S

%000 000 00'6€T°TZO'T  00°6ET‘TZO‘T  00°009°S86 87°69£'888 62°T00°€9S
%000 00°0 00°01S'vT 00°0TS‘ve 00°00S‘tE 6v°9L1°7C 000
%000 000 00'0T5v¢ 00°0TSvC 00°00S'vE 6v'9L1°CC 000
%000 000 00°000°00S 00°000°00S 00°000°00S 00°00000S 00°000°0ST
%000 000 00°000°00S 00°000°00S 00°000°00S 00°00000S 00°000°0ST
%00°0 000 000 00°0 00005 00°0 000
%00°0 000 000 000 00°00SC 000 000
%000 000 00°679°8TT 00°679°8TT 00°00€‘€L 99°689°TH TUBET'6S
%000 000 00000°T 00°000°T 00°000'T 000 ST'GET'8
%000 000 00'620°9% 00'6209% 00°000°ST LTIYT9T 0v'96Z'tT
%000 000 00°000°LT 00'000°LT 00°00TvT 97'8€6'9 16'ST6°CT
%000 000 00°000°0T 0000001 00°000°0T TV T8T'S 8v'8v0t
%00°0 000 00'000ZT 00°000CT 0000501 86'v60°L S6°TYL'E
%00°0 000 0000122 00°00T°2Z 00°00€'8 9%'9T€E S9°'%89°C
%00°0 000 000 000 00'008°€ vETTS 000
%00°0 000 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 0000001 ¥6°06%9 89vTZ'€T
%000 000 00°00S 00°005 00°00S 000 000
%00°0 000 00°000vE 00°000vE 00°00€°0€ LL'096'69 87°598°St
%000 000 00°005'S 00°00S'S 00°€TO’S ¥8'9¥6°E 61°€96C
%000 000 00°000°0T 0000001 00°000°0T 8T°Z0L VT vSE0L'L
%000 000 00°000°0T 0000001 00°'£8%9 9€'STL0T 055669
%000 000 00°005'8 00°005°8 00°008°8 6€°9650Y S0°€07°82
%000 000 00°000°SYE 00°000°SHE 00°000°SYE 9E'TYSEST 6L°L66°L0E
%000 000 00°000°SZ€ 00°000°SZ€ 00°000°S5Z¢€ 9L'T6E VYT SS°0€8°L6T
%000 000 00°000°0¢ 0000002 00°000°0C 09'6vT'6 Y2 L9T°0T

(aseasdaq) leuly angejual 1@8png el Anamdy|elol  Anandy jelol

/ 3seanu| €202-220C £202-2202 2202-1202 2202-1202 1202-0202

% 193png 198png juaseq
jualed 0} 1e8png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

AV TVNLNIN - 0£T ;udwiedaq [e30)

09 - 0v9 :1dnoinidydx3 |e3oL
AVILNO TVLIdYD 000-0T0%9-0/¢-0Z¢

09 - 0v9 :Tdnoinidydxy
*$304NOS ONIDNVNIH YIHLO - 0£S :Tdnoinidydx3 [e3oy

3414 OL ¥Y34SNVYL 000-T¢¢Z5-0L2-0L¢
S30¥NOS ONIDNVNIH YIHLO - 04§ :Tdnoinidydx3

:INJWNYIAOD TVHINID - 0pS :Tdnosnidydx3 [e3or
S31MddNS NOILDILOYd 3Y14 000-50€¥5-02¢-04¢
INIINYIAOD TVY¥IN3ID - 0pS :Tdnoinidydx3

SISN3dX3 TYNOILVYHIJO - 0€S :Tdnoinidydx] |e3ol

SIDIAY3S TYNOISSII0Hd 000-0£0€S-04¢-04¢
LINIVIA dIND3I AAVIH 000-850€5-07¢-04C
S3YIL 000-T¥0€5-0/¢-02¢
135313 8 SVO 000-0v0€5-04¢-04¢C
IDNVNILNIVIN OLNY 000-0€0€5-07¢-0L¢
$311ddNS ONILYYIdO 000-v20€5-022-04¢
IDONVNILNIVIAN ININHIND3 000-9T0€5-0/¢-04¢
13AVYL 000-€T0€S-07¢-0LT
$311ddNS 321440 000-TT0€S-07¢-04¢

SISN3IdX3 TYNOILYY3JO - 0€S :Tdnosnydydxg

‘S1I4IN38 IDNIYA - 0TS :Tdnosnidydx] je3op
IYVIIQIN 000-€1025-0£2-04¢
IDNVYNSNI HLTVIH 000-¢T0¢5-072-04¢
10vd 000-TT0¢5-0/¢-04¢
SY¥3d 000-0T0¢S-0£2-04¢
S1143IN38 IONIYA - 02S :Tdnoloidydxy
:3SNIdX3 1D3HIA AYVIVS - 016 :Tdnoinidydx3 |e3or
JNILYIA0 000-TT0TS-0Z2-0Z¢
SIOVM B SIIYVIVS 000-0T015-0/2-04¢
ISNIdX3I 1D3YI0 AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnoinidydxa
aiv 1IvNLN - 0£Z :3udawyedaq
Jaquinpn junoddy

Hoday uosuedwo) 138png



280-280
FIRE CAPITAL PROJECTS



%6E VT 05°££9'80T 0S°LE9°€98 00°000°SSL 0S°€15°99¢ 1928968 Z6°7T9'TLS
%6EvT 0S°££9°80T 0S°L£9°€98 00"000°SSZ 0S"€TS‘99€ 19°/89'68 26°C19'TLS
%6E VT 05°L€9°80T 05°££9'€98 00°000°SSL 0S'€T5'99¢ 19'£8968 26°TT9'TLS
(eseanaq) |euly CLYR L UETR 198png |®101 Aanoy je3oy Aandy 3o
/ 3seasnuy| €202-720¢ €202-7202 7e0z-120e 720zZ-1202 1202Z-0202
% 1e3png 198png jusleq
juased 03 123png
T uosuedwo) 1 uosuedwo)
%L 6E 00°000°002 00°000°0TL 00°0000TS €8°0v9°61TY ELTIT'ETY 00°000°0t€
%00°0%.  00°000°00Z 00°000°00L 00°000'00S £8°0VTL0Y €8°0VT'LOY 00°0
%000t 00'000°002 00°000°00L 00°000°00S €8°0VT°LOY £8°0VT°LOY 000
%00°0 00°0 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 00°00S'ZT 06°1209 000
%000 000 00°000°0T 00°000°0T 00'00SCT 06’1209 000
%00°0 00°0 000 000 000 000 00°000°0v€
%000 000 000 000 000 000 00°000°0t€
(aseanaq) leuly annejud) 1@3png g0l Auamdv jesol  Ajandy |ejop
/ ®seainu| £€202-720¢ €202-720¢ 2202-1202 2202-1202 T202-020¢
% 198png 198png jualed
juaied 03 198png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

$103r0¥d TV.LIdVYD 3Y4id - 087 ;3uawipiedaq [e30)

:0v9 - 0¢9 :Tdnosnidydx3 [e3oL
S103r0¥d 1VLIdVD 3y 000-01079-082-082

0v9 - 019 :T1dnounidydxy

S123r0¥d 1V.LIdVD 3¥i4 - 082 :3uawedaq

Jaquiny unoddy

Hoday uosiiedwo) 328png

'$10310¥d 1VY.LIdVD 34i4 - 087 :puny |el0L

‘YI4SNVHL ANNLYILNI - L€ :dnoanidynay |e3o)
(052) 34134 INOYS YIISNVYL 000-0T¢ZE-08¢
YIISNVYL ANNIYILNI - L€ :dnospidynay

:3NN3AIY SNOINVTIIDSIN - 9€ :dnoinidynay |e3oL
SONINYY3I LSIYILNI 000-0019€-08¢
INNIAIY SNOINVTIIISIW - 9€ :dnoinidyasy

:DNIANNA TVANIWNYIAODYILNI - €5 :dnosnidyaay |e1oL
Sjueso |esapa4 000-007€€-08C
ONIANN4 TVANIWNYIAODYILNI - €€ :dnosnidynasy
S1D3r0¥d 1V1IdVD 3YId - 082 :puny
Jaquinp unody

uoday uosuedwo) 328png



290-290
FIRE GRANTS



Z1 40 9 2bed

WY 2S:¥1:6 2202/9/5

%00°0 000 00°LET'TYOT 00°LETTV0'T L9'TZ6°T9ST 08°L9T'EV0‘T 000
%00°0 000 000 000 00°000°0S 00°000°0S 00°0
%000 000 000 000 00°000°0S 00°000°0S 000
%00°0 00°0 00°S8T°T90°T 00°S8T‘T90T 00°LSY'€88 8S°VE9'LT6 000
%000 000 00'S8T‘T90T 00'S8T‘T90°T 00°LSY €88 8S¥€9°LT6 000
%000 000 00°756°086 00°256°086 L9'v9Y'6279 TT€E9'S9 000
%000 000 00'756'088 00'756088 L9 Y% VST 000 000
%000 000 00'000°00T 00°000°00T 000 TT'EEY'S9 000
%000 000 000 000 00°000°SLE 000 000

(eseasaq) leuld aAneua) 398png |ejoL Aoy |e;joL

/ @seainu| €202-720C €202-720C ceoe-1z0t 2202-120C

% 1e3png j93png juaaed
juaied 0} 198png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

‘SINVYD 3414 - 06T :pund |ejoL

:¥34SNVYL ANNFYILNI - L€ :dnoiDidyAay |ejo)
(0S2) 3914 INOY4 ¥IINVYL 000-0T¢LE-06¢
YIISNVHL ANNSYILINI - LE :dnoiDidynay

:3NN3AIY SNOINVTIIISIN - 9€ :dnoaDIdynay |eloL
Y3IHLO - INVYD 000-00€9€-06¢
3INN3AZY SNOINVTIIDSIA - 9€ :dnoinidyaay

:ONIGNN4 TVINIWNYIAODYILNI - €€ :dnoiDIdyAay |e3oL

SINVYO VY3034 000-00t€€-06C
80S8S-31V1S 805-00T€E-06C
SINVYO 31VIS 000-007 Le-06C

ONIANN TVANIWNYIAODHILNI - €€ :dnonidynay
SINVYD 3¥ld - 06T :pung
JaquInN JUN02dY

yoday uosuedwo) 128png



€1 40 £ 3bed

WY T1:pT:6 2202Z/9/S

%ES'ST 00°2ET682 00'69T‘TST‘C 00°L£0°298‘T 06°02v'v6v‘T 8€°260°S76 000
%00°0 000 00°08v°SST 00°08Y°SST 000 0T°L90'vv2 000
%000 000 00'08%SST 00°08tSST 000 0T°£90'tvT 000
%00°0 00°0 00°000°S20°T 00°000'S20°T 06°L8TVS0'T SE'9Y8'9VT 000
%000 000 000 000 00°000CTY SE9Y8'IVT 000
%000 000 00°000'SZ6 00°000°526 06'£8T°L9T 000 000
%000 000 00°00000T 00°000°00T 00°000°GLE 000 000
%87 8V 00°99€‘€T 00°€06'8LE 00°L£S°SST 00°'TT1S'99T 8L°LY9'L9T 000
%8T'TLL 00'6T¥'08 00°L18°06 008Z¥‘0T 00'8YLT ¥5°0C 000
%I Y 00'69€C 00'82LL 00'65€’S 00°CIY'E 67 706'E 000
%7901 00'896°L 00'TE0ES 00'€90°SL 00°€LT OV 6596667 000
%C9'vS 00'08vT 00'v12'0L 00°0TY'SP 00'9€v € 09°T99°€S 000
%vS°9 00'908°L 00°€80°LTT 00'LLT°6TT 00'ZvL88 9/'%90°08 000
%16°8€ 00'99L°S91 00'98L°T6S 00°020‘9Zv 00°TTLELT ST'TE€599¢ 000
%000 000 000 000 000 LTTLOT 000
%000 000 00'TEY9S 00'TEY9S 00'TEY8E LLYTEIT 000
%S8° vt 00'99£S9T 00°SSESES 00'685'69€ 00'T62'SET TT'SPT'6EC 000

(aseasaq) leuiy anpejud) je3png jejoL  AuAndy |ejoL

/ @seanuj €202-220¢ €202-2202 7e0e-1202 20z-1202

% ~ jespng 198png juaied
judied 03 198png

1 uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

:SINVYD 314 - 062 :udwisedaq jejol

:0v9 - 0v9 :Tdnosnidydx3 |ejol
AV1LNO TVLIdVD 000-0T079-06¢-06C

0t9 - 09 :1dnosoidydx3

:$3SN3dX3 TYNOILYYH3dO - 0€S :Tdnoioidydx3 |e3on

YIHL10 - INVYD 000-009€5-06¢-06¢
SINVYO Tv¥3a3d 000-007€5-06¢-06¢
SINVYO ILVLS 000-00€€5-06¢-06¢

S3ISN3dX3 TYNOILYY3dO - 0€S :Tdnosnidydxy

:51143N38 IONIYS - 026 :Tdnoinidydx3 je3oy
ALI¥ND3S VID0S 000-¥T0¢S-06¢-06¢
IYVYIIQ3IN 000-€10¢5-062-06¢C
JDNVINSNI H1ITVIH 000-210¢5-06¢-06C
10vd 000-T10¢5-06¢-06C
Sy3d 000-0T0¢5-06¢-06C
S1143N39 IONIYA - 025 :TdnosDidydx3

:3SN3dX3 1D3HIA AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnoinidydx3 |ejol
80STT0TS06206T 805-T1015-06¢-06C
JNILYIAO 000-TT0TS-06¢-06C
SINYVIVS/SIOVM 000-0T0TS-062-06C
3SN3IdX3 1D3HIA AYVTVS - 0TS :Tdnosnidydx3
SINVYD Y4 - 067 :udwisedag
JaquinN Junody

1oday uvosuedwo) 128png



Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 5/17/2022 10:00 AM - Estimate of Time Required: 10 minutes

BOCC Meeting

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

Title: Review and possible approval of the 2022-2023 Storey County Water and Sewer
Final Budget, for submission to the Department of Taxation.

Recommended motion: I, , approve the filing of the 2022-2023 Storey County
Water and Sewer Final Budget, to the Department of Taxation

Prepared by: Jennifer McCain

Department: Contact Number: 7758471133

Staff Summary: Final 2022-2023 Storey County Water and Sewer Fund Budgets
attached for review and submission to the Nevada Dept. of Taxation

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: Yes

Legal review required: False

Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

| Denied [ ] Continued




STOREY COUNTY
WATER
&
2022-2023
SEWER
PROPOSED
FINAL BUDGET



SUMMARIES
WATER & SEWER



Summary - Water

Cash Flows

Beginning Fund Balance
Revenue
Expenses
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance

Summary - Sewer

Beginning Fund Balance
Revenue
Expenses
Prior Period Adj
Ending Fund Balance

1of1l

5-6-22 jm

2019-2020 2020-21 2021-2022 2022-23 2022-23
Audited Audited Final Tentative Final
2,084,589 1,888,961 1,855,099 1,874,044 1,874,044
595,545 596,107 690,100 667,100 667,100
836,866 629,969 671,155 658,201 658,257
1,843,268 1,855,099 1,874,044 1,882,943 1,882,887
2019-2020 20-21 2021-2023 2022-23 2022-23
Audited Audit Final Tentative Final
217,645 146,685 (113,295) (237,124) (237,124)
505,225 444,677 1,060,700 1,279,300 1,279,300
651,653 704,657 1,184,529 566,005 565,698
71,217 (113,295) (237,124) 476,171 476,478

Final to
Final

0.0%

0.1%

5-6-22 Final Summary 2022-23.xIsx Water- Sewer



090-090
WATER



v 40 g abed

WV £1:90:6 2Z0Z/9/S

%00°0 000 00°001°£99 00°00T°£99 00°001°069 €1°6£6'026 8L L6T'OET'T
%00°0 000 00°000°8T 00°000°8T 00°000°06 0€'TES0T 9€°6£9°8€T
%000 000 000 000 000 EE'9TH'T L6°E9%
%000 000 00°000°ZT 00°000CT 00°000°ZT 000009 00°008€T
%000 000 000009 000009 000008 L6Y0T'E 6€°SLEVTT
%00°0 000 00°00T‘6%9 00°00T‘6t9 00°001°009 0Z'69t°5SS r°S61°609
%000 000 00°000°06 00°000°06 00°00£'86 6Y°LSE'LL 6€°TLT'T6
%000 000 000 000 000 000097 00°00T'T
%000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 00°000°S 6€°78Y'L S9°LL0°L
%000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 00°000°S 789159 68°THT'ST
%000 000 00°00T‘6 000016 000016 00°00L°€T €0'88€'€T
%000 000 00°000°0%S 00°000°0tS 00°00€°Z8Y 05218 Lty 9t'STH I8
%000 000 000 000 00'0 €9°8€6VSE 00°€90°Z8€
%000 000 000 000 000 €9'8€6'VSE 00°€90°Z8€

(eseasdaq) Jeuly aanejua) 1°3png |e30L  Ayamdy|elol  Ayapoy [elol

/ 3seanu) €202-2202 £202-7202 7202-1202 72021202 1202-0202

% 198png 198png jualeq
jualed 03 128png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

‘INJLSAS ¥3ILVM - 060 :pun4 |E301

:3INN3AIY SNOANVTIIISIA - 9€ :dnoinidyaay |e3oL
Y3IHLO-DSIN  D00-0059¢-060
SONIQ1ING ALNNOD - SIN3Y 000-€0¢9¢€-060
SONINYY3I 1S3YILNI 000-00T9€-060
INNIAIY SNOINVTIIISIN - 9€ :dnoinydynay

SIDIAYIS YO SIDYVH) - v€ :dnoinidyaay |eioL
OILYZINVLIdVD AQNLS YILYM 000-ZTvv€-060
S11SOd3a ¥3W01sSNd 000-vTvv€-060
S334 LINY3d TVNNNV-4ILYM 000-€T¥¥€-060
SIDYVHD ILV1 ¥ILYM 000-¢TvvE-060
SdNNOOH-AIYINOD TVLIdYD 000-TT¥vE-060
SIDYVHI YILYM 000-0T¥Y€-060

S3DIAY3S HOL SIDYVHD - v€ :dnoinidynay

‘ONIANNS TVINIWNYIAODYILNI - €€ :dnoinidynay |e3ol
TT# JUeID-J3leM TLT-00¥€€-060
ONIANNS TVANIWNYIAODYILNI - €€ :dnoinidynay
W3ILSAS ¥3LVYM - 060 :pung
Jaquinpy 3unody

Hoday uosuedwo) 198png



0S 40 6 abed

WV ZZ:50:6 220Z/9/S

%000 000 00'000'98 00'00098 00°000°08 TETSS09 T8'8LLE8
%000 000 00°00€°€ST 00"00€‘€ST 00°0v6°T2C 8£°89L'67T 8E'0ST'EET
%000 000 00'00SC 00°00SC 00°005°C ST8IET 00'961°C
%00°0 000 00'0009 00°0009 00°0009 000 SC°0ET
%000 000 00°000°ST 00'000°ST 00°000°ST 00'0v9°ST S8°0LY'ST
%000 000 00°00tT 00°00v‘T 001621 0S'0SET 05'908°T
%000 000 00'00C‘TY 00°002 TV 00°0vZ'ST TELET'S 00°S62°C
%000 000 00'000°0€ 00°000°0€ 00'8Z€'6¢ 0v'791°96 000
%000 000 000 000 000 000 000
%000 000 00'000C 00°000C 00°000C 00'v€6 00'94S
%000 000 00'000'C 00000°C 00°000C LE9LTT L¥'988'T
%000 000 00°00S9 00°0059 00°00S 000 8LV6
%000 000 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 000 LS66T'E
%000 000 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 00°000°€ TE€'9LST SLYIL'E
%000 000 00°000°8 000008 00'SZLY 66'S8Y'T 00'7LT'
%000 000 00'000°LY 00'000°L¥ 00°000°St 90'S€L0E TYS0TE
%000 000 00°00S'8T 00°00S'8T 00°000°LT 0'v16'8T 95°998YT
%000 000 000009 00°000'9¢C 00°00092 06°€2L0T 69'96€°6C
%000 000 00'000°0€ 00'000°0€ 00°000°0€ €5°009°'TC TISLPSTT
%000 000 00'000°T 00'000°T 00°096 000€LT 67°LTY'T
%000 000 00°000°8 000008 002529 IS'8ELL €6'578°9
%000 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°00S 9LTTT TE6VY
%000 000 0000LT 00°00L‘T 00'v¥9‘T S8'EETT 0L06LT
%001~ 00°€69- 00°089'89 00°€LE°69 002618 LS'T28L9 12°296'v8
%000 000 00'008't 00008y 00000y 08'988°C 6v°9L9°E
%000 000 000 000 000 ¥6°0C 56009
%650 00'TT 00'068T 00'6/8°T 00°25Y‘T LETSLT 89'165°C
%E0 V- 00'968- 00'S€E'TC 00'T€ETTT 00°5€9°0T TS9L'SsT TLT6LLT
%000 000 006€L9 00'6€L9 00°6€L9 €0°TTLT 66'TS9C
%LS0 00261 00'9T6°EE 00'vTL EE 00°99€vv TTV89'vE 8E€9Y9'LY
%LS0 00°'vvL 00°60L°0ET 00°596°62T 00°SS¥‘69T 61°L08'vTT LEE6S'EST
%000 000 000 000 000 ov'8LY'Y 0T'88YC
%LS°0 00'vPL 00'60L'0ET 00'596'6CT 00°SS¥'69T 6L'87€0CT LT'SOT'T8T

(eseasdaq) leuly annejua) 123png |g10L Annoy |e30) Aynnoy jesop

/ @seaidu) €202-2202 €202-220C 2202-120C 2202-120C 1202-0202

% jo8png 198png juaied
jualied 0} 198png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

3SVHIUNd ¥31LVM

000-v0t¥S-060-060

ANIWNYIAOD 1VYINID - 0S :Tdnoinydydx3
:SISNIX3 TYNOILYYIdO - 0€S :Tdnoinidydx3 jejoL

SIS

S3DIAY3S TYNOISS330dd
S334 av1

S1INY3d

SINIW3IIYOV INIVIN
YN3LNIVIA INILSAS TVNY3LX3
S3DILON DINgnd

S3YIL

135310 8 SVO
FYVMLI0S ¥43LNdNOD
IN3dIND3 ¥3LNdNOD
FDNVNILNIVIN 01NV
ONINIVYL

S317ddNS SNILVY3IdO
SIVOINIHD

s3nun
3ONVN3ILNIVIN LNV1d
SNOILdI¥ISANS B S3Na
3INOHd313L

S31NddNS 301440
39V1SOd

077-0£0€S-060-060
000-0£0€5-060-060
000-6¥0€5-060-060
000-8¥0€5-060-060
000-T#0€S-060-060
000-0v0€5-060-060
000-7€0€5-060-060
000-€€0€5-060-060
000-0£0€5-060-060
000-620€5-060-060
000-¥Z0€5-060-060
000-€20€S-060-060
000-¢0€5-060-060
000-9T0£5-060-060
000-¥T0€5-060-060
000-CT0€S-060-060
000-11T0€5-060-060
000-0T0€5-060-060

S3SN3dX3 TYNOILYYIdO - 0€S :Tdnoinidydx3
:S1143IN38 IONIYL - 02§ :Tdnoinidydx3 jeloy

AYVIQIS8NS SNI 33¥113Y
ALI¥4ND3IS IVIDO0S
3YVIIAIN

3DONVYNSNI HLTV3H
10vd

Sd3d

000-9T0¢S-060-060
000-¥T0¢S-060-060
000-€T0Z5-060-060
000-2T0Z5-060-060
000-TT0Z5-060-060
000-0T0¢5-060-060

S1143N38 3DONIYS - 02S :Tdnosnidydx3

:3SN3dX3 1D3HIA AYYIVS - 0TS :TdnoiDidydx] |e3o)

JNILYINO
S3OVM B SIVIVS

000-TT0TS-060-060
000-0T0TS-060-060

ISN3dX3 103410 AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnosnidydx3
W3LSAS ¥3LVM - 060 :3udwiedaq

Jaquinpn Junody

Hoday uosuedwo) 323png



06 40 0T 3bed

WY 2Z:50:6 2202/9/S

%100 00°TS 75957859 25°502°859 TS'PSTTLY £9°99L¥9S LS'TEEPTY
%0070 000 000 000 000 ST'L9SL 2€°06L°0T
%000 000 000 000 000 ST'L9S'L TE06L°0T
%00°0 000 75°L95'86 2S°L95°86 25°L95°86 v¥9°ST6EL 000
%000 000 7S'169°0T 7S'T69°0T 7516901 $9°810°8 000
%000 000 0026L'TT 00'26L°1C 0026L'TT 00 vvE9T 000
%000 000 00'%80'99 008099 0078099 00°€95'6Y 000
%000 000 000 00'0 000 00'0 66'0LLLTT
%000 000 000 000 000 000 S8'680°96
%00°0 000 000 000 000 000 8EvY
%000 000 000 000 000 000 9L°0¥9'TZ
%00°0 00°0 00°000°£0T 00°000°£0T 00°000°€0T v€°9.8°09 0£'190'v8
%000 000 00°000'T 00000°T 00°000°€ z0'sze 6v°78C
%000 000 00°000°0Z 0000002 00°000°0Z 000 000
(aseaiaq) leuy annejuayl 1@3png jejol  Anamdy jelol  Ananoy |eioL
/ 3seasu) €202-220¢ €202-220¢ 2202-120C ¢702-120¢ T202Z-0202
% 123png 193png juaied
jualed 0} 128png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

INILSAS ¥3LVM - 060 -3udwiedaq |e3oL

:0v9 - 019 :Tdnos9idydx3 |e3o)
AV1LNO TVLIdVYD 000-0T0t9-060-060
09 - 0v9 :Tdnosnidydx3

:$3D¥NOS ONIDNVNIA YIHLO - 0£S :Tdno1nidydx3 |ejoy

dNS YLM-VASN OL Y34SNVHL 0/T-70C£S-060-060

NVL ¥1M-VASN OL ¥34SNVYL 69T1-¢0¢25-060-060

1Y3LVM-YASN OL ¥Y34SNWYL 89T1-¢0¢Z5-060-060
$30¥NO0S ONIDNVNI4 YIHLO - 0£S :Tdnoinidydx3

:SNO3INVTIIDSIN - 095 :Tdnosidydx3 |ejo)

NOILVIO34d3a 000-05595-060-060
SANN43d 000-0£5995-060-060
3ISN3IdX3 1SIYILNI 000-00T95-060-060

SNO3INVTIIDSIN - 095 :Tdnounidydx3

:INJWNYIAOD TVYINIO - 0pS :Tdnosnidydx3 |e3oL
SANN43Y 11S0d3a 000-CTvv5-060-060
SHILIN HILYM 000-0T¥¥S-060-060
J3qWINN 3JUN0Y

Joday uosiiedwo) 138png



130-130
SEWER



v 40 6 9bed

WV £1:90:6 2202/9/S

%00°0 00°0 00°00€‘6L2°T 00°00€°6L2°T 00°00£°090°T €6'9SLE8T’T 0€'959°2£0°T
%00°0 000 00°000°0€8 00°0000€8 00°0 000 000
%00°0 000 00'0000€8 0000008 000 000 000
%00°0 00°0 00°00Z‘€ 00'00Z°€ 00°0089Z 0£°189T S8°LY9'9T
%00°0 000 00'00Z°€ 00'00Z°€ 00°008°9¢ 0€'189'T S8'L¥9°9T
%000 000 00°00T°9¥ 00°00T9v¥ 00°006°EEY ST°7€889¢€ SY'LLI YYD
%000 000 000 000 000 000 06'0T09
%00°0 000 000 000 00°00S'8T [ARATA 17°969'6
%000 000 00'000°092 00000092 00°008SET 01'909°20T 07°2988¥C
%000 000 00°00S 00°00S 00'000°S 67879 09'€9€TT
%000 000 00'00t‘TT 0000v'TT 00'00v‘TT 00'005°9T 00°00Z9T
%00°0 000 00'00ZvLT 00°00TvLT 00°00Z‘€9T YY'6LT'0ET ¥S'6€SCST
%00°0 000 00°0 000 00°000°009 8E'EVT'EI8 00'TEE'TTI
%000 000 000 000 00°000°009 S8'VEY'BLT €£'SST'89T
%000 000 000 000 000 €580V V€9 LTSLOEYY
(eseadaq) leuyy annejual 198png k3oL AuApdy jelol  AlApdy |eloL
/ @seanu| €202-2202 €202-220T 2202-1202 2202-1202 1202-0202
% 198png 193png jualeq
juaied 03 198png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

‘¥IM3S 3AIAIQ/VINIDYHIA - OET :pund [e30)

:¥IASNVHL ANNYILNI - L€ :dnoiDidyaay |ejoy
DNYLSVYANI INOYS YIISNVYL 000-02¢ZE-0¢ET
YIISNVYL ANNJYILNI - L€ :dnoiDidynay

:3NNIAIY SNOINVTIIISIW - 9€ :dnouDidyAay |e3oL
SONINYYI 1SIYILNI 000-00T9£-0€T
INN3IAIY SNOINVITIISIN - 9€ :dnoinidynay
1$3DIAY3S YO4 SIDUVH) - v€ :dnounidynay |eoL
NOILVZITV1IdVD ¥IM3S
11IH 4109
MXIVEAVd VASN - YIM3S
SIOYVHD LV ¥YIM3S
SdNYOOH ¥IM3S 000-Z0v¥€-0ET
SIDYVHI YIM3S 000-90v¥E-0ET
SIDIAYIS YO SIDYVHD - pE :dnonidynay

000-8TYYE-0ET
000-9TYvE-0ET
000-60vvE-0ET

000-80¥vE-0ET

| @ @

:ONIANNA TVINIWNYIAODYILNI - €€ :dnoiDidynay |eoL
N1d 9)d H9-SA3300¥d ANOg TST-VOVEE-0ET
LINV1d HO-S)uelD 44S/ay TST-00VEE-0ET
ONIAGNNA TYANIWNYIAODYILNI - €€ :dnoiDiIdyaay
¥3IM3S 3AIAIQ/VINIDYIA - OET :pund

JaquinN Junody

Hoday uosuedwo) 328png



0§ 4o Z1 3bed

WY 22:50:6 2202/9/S

%000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 00°000°9T 00°00v'L 00°0¥9°9Z
%000 000 000 000 00'000TT 00°00t'L 00'0t9°9
%000 000 00°000°S 00°000°S 00°000's 000 000
%00°0 000 00°009°00T 00°009°00T 00°Z12°96 95°LS8°SS L8'€92°0S
%000 000 00005 0000SC 00'00S°T 0S'€VST 00TTTC
%000 000 000008 000008 00'000°8 009108 00'98L
%000 000 00°00LC 0000LC 00'79v°C 00°02s 009SLY
%000 000 000 000 000 000 00°'S49
%000 000 000 000 000 000 60°022'C
%000 000 00°000°ST 00'000°ST 00'000°ST 000 8T'EBY
%000 000 00'00ST 0000S'T 00°00S‘T 000 80°0LS
%000 000 00°000C 00°000C 00°000'C €LY0T'T 09°'8T0‘T
%000 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°00S 000 8L'Y6
%000 000 00'000°'S 00'000°S 00°00SC 000 679t
%000 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°00S 0S'T6E ZETSL
%000 000 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 00°000°€ 0S'8€T 000
%000 000 00'000‘TT 00°000'TT 00'000°TT 85’18V 9€'v059
%000 000 00°00S°L 00°00S°L 00000 97'9%T'8 S9'16C'Y
%000 000 0000082 0000082 00'000°£L2 6T°067°€C 18°2749°1C
%000 000 0000001 00°0000T 00°000°0T 88'EVE'Y Tv'SSL
%000 000 0000Z‘T 00°002°T 00't0T‘T 95°506 EY'Y6T'T
%000 000 00°00S 00°00S 00°00S 10°20C JAoN) 44
%000 000 0000L‘T 00°00LT 00v¥9'T S8'EETT 0L06LT
%EET- 00°1S0°T- 00't20°8L 00°SL0‘6L 00°€£0°08 T 6€2'v9 TETEL'SY
%000 000 00°008Y 00008% 00'002°S 08'805°C YEI8LY
%000 000 000 000 000 ¥6°0C £€8°009
%90 0011 00'6LLT 00'89LT 00'926'T €7°089T SYEVE'T
%C8°€- 00°087'T- 00°S6TZ€ 00'SLY'EE 00'zzL'0€ S6'6TT'VT 07'88S°ET
%000 000 00°0LE’€E 00°0LE'E 00'0LE’E S8'669°C 786941
%190 00'8TC 00°088°SE 00°799°SE 00°'SS8'8¢€ $9°60T €€ L9'1S9°€T
%190 00°vvL 00'9T0‘€ZT 00'zLTTTT 00'98T‘EET €V TET'BIT 80°TLY'66
%000 000 000 000 000 LS'987C ST'0LS
%190 00'vvL 00'9T0°€CT 00TLTTTT 00'98T‘€€T 98'vv6'STT £€8'T06'86

(eseasaq) Jeuiy aagejus) 198png |eloL Ayandy |eop Aoy je3o)

/ @seanu| €202-7202 €202-2202 2202-1202 7202-1202 1202-0202

% 1°3png 198png juaieq
jualed 03 193png

T uosuedwo)

T uosuedwo)

:INJNYIA0D TVHINID - 0pS :TdnoaDIdydx3 je3o)

T1IH 109
S3DIAYIS ALINILN 8dS

000-9Tv¥S-0ET-0€T
000-90t¥S-0ET-0¢T

AIN3IINYIA0D TVHINID - 0¥S :Tdnoinidydx3
:S3SN3dX3 TYNOLLYYIO - 0€S :Tdnoinidydx3 je3oy

SI9

S33davi

S1INY3d

SINIW33YOV INIVIN
3DNVN3ILINIVIN 5018
VN3LINIVIN W3LSAS TYNY3LX3
S3YIL

135310 B SVO
FYVMI40S ¥31LNdINOD
AN3INHIND3 ¥3LNdINOD
FDNVNILNIVIN OLNY
ONINIVYL

$317ddNS ONILYY3Id0
STVOINIHD

S3lLniLn
FONVNILNIVIN LNV1d
INOHd313L

$311ddNS 321440
39V1SOd

0£7-0£0€5-0€T-0€T
000-690€5-0€T-0€T
000-6S0€S-0€T-0¢T
000-£S0€S-0ET-0€T
000-6¥0€S-0ET-0€T
000-T¥0ES-0ET-0ET
000-0v0€S-0ET-0€T
000-v€0€S-0ET-0€T
000-€€0€S-0ET-0€T
000-0£0€5-0€T-0€T
000-620€S-0ET-0ET
000-9TOES-0ET-0ET
000-CTOES-0ET-0ET
000-TTOES-0ET-0€T
000-0T0ES-0ET-0€T

S3ISN3IdX3 TYNOILYYH3dO - 0€S :Tdnosnidydx3

:S1143IN38 IDNIYS - 025 :Tdnosnidydx3 jejoy

AYVIQISaNS SNI 33491134
ALIYND3S IVIDO0S
3YVIIA3IN

IDNVYNSNI HLTV3H
10vd

Sd3d

000-¥T0ZS-0ET-0€T
000-0T0CS-0ET-0¢T

S1143N38 IONIYA - 075 :Tdnosnidydx3
:3SN3IdX3 1D3HIA AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnoinidydx3 |e30)

JWILY3IN0
S3OVM B SIYVIVS

000-TTOTS-0€T-0¢T
000-0TOTS-0ET-0ET

3ISN3dX3 10381 AYVIVS - 0TS :Tdnoanidydx3
Y3IM3S 3AIAIQ/VINIDYIA - OET :3uswipedag
uwaESZ JUNoddyY

Joday uosuedwo) 128png



05 Jo €1 abed

WY 2Z:50:6 2Z02/9/S

%S0°0-  00°LOf- 91'869°59S 91°500°99S 9T'6ZSV8T'T  TS'HYO‘OVY 29'186'528
%00°0 000 000 000 00°000°009 000 TE'0L9°E
%00°0 000 000 000 000 000 00°00S'T
%00°0 000 000 000 00°000°009 000 000
%00°0 000 000 000 000 000 TE0LT'T
%00°0 000 91°850657 91'850°65¢ 91°850°652 T TOE V6T 0001
%00°0 000 00°80Z°8 00'807°8 00'802°8 00'9ST‘9 000
%000 000 00'788'8TT 00't88°8TT 0088811 0S'0LT'68 00°0T
%000 000 9T°996'TET 9T'996'TET 9T°996'TET 7971686 000
%00°0 000 000 000 000 00'ST S0'Y6T°009
%000 000 000 000 000 000 ST'6v9°8LY
%00°0 000 000 000 000 00'ST 6€ v
%000 000 000 000 000 000 15°0051ZT
(aseainaq) Jeuty anneual 1e3png je3ol  Auamdy |elol  Alanoy |elop
/ @seasnuy) £202-2202 £202-7202 7202-1202 2202-T202 1202-0202
% 198png 128png juated
jualed 03 198png

T uosuedwo)

T uosiiedwo)

:¥IM3S IAIAIQ/VINIDYIA - OET :3uswiiedaq |e3o)

:0v9 - 0v9 :Tdno1D1dydx3 |e3oL
LTOT 41vVd3d J11d3SHO
d 43IM3S HO-AVILNO TV1IdVD
AVILNO VLIV

S¥T-9T0V9-0¢T-0¢T

TST-0TOV9-0¢T-0eL

000-0T0¥9-0ST-0¢T
09 - 0v9 :Tdnounidydx3

1$3D¥NO0S ONIDINVYNI4 Y3IHLO - 045 :Tdnoinidydx3 |ejoy

LNV1d HO-vAaSN OL 434SNVYL
IV1d YMS-vASN OL Y34SNVYL
INITIMS-VASN OL ¥Y3I4SNVYL

TST-¢0C/S-0ET-0¢ET
0ST-70Z/S-0ET-0¢T
6€1-¢0CLS-0ET-0¢eT

$3DYNOS ONIDNVNIZ ¥IHLO - 04§ :Tdnosnidydx3

:SNOINVTIIDSIW - 095 :Tdnoinidydx3 |ejor

NOILVID34d3a
SANN43Y
3SN3dX3 LS3YILNI

000-05595-0€T-0¢c1
000-0€595-0€T-0¢T
000-00T9S-0¢T-0¢€T

SNO3INVTIIDSIW - 095 :Tdnoinidydx3

JaqUINN 3UN0Y

yoday uosuedwo) 338png



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

LIQUOR BOARD

Meeting date: 5/17/22 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ |

I. Title: Amendment of Existing License -1% reading for approval to add an On-Sale and Off-Sale
Liquor License for Virginia City Mexican Restaurant, 65 N C Street, Virginia City, NV.
Applicants are Hipolito G. Cerda and Arturo Valadez.

2. Recommended motion: [ (Insert Name) recommend approval of the 1 reading for to add an
On-Sale and Off-Sale Liquor License for Virginia City Mexican Restaurant, 65 N C Street,
Virginia City, NV.

3. Prepared by: Lori Trowbridge, Administrative Assistant
Department: SCSO Telephone: 775-847-0959
4. Staff summary: Amendment of Existing License -1* reading for approval to add an On-Sale
and Off-Sale Liquor License for Virginia City Mexican Restaurant, 65 N C Street, Virginia
City, NV. Applicants are Hipolito G. Cerda and Arturo Valadez.

5. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact: None

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required:

_ Dustrict Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

_X__ Department Head Departmg ¢: Sheriff’s Office

___ County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved
[] Denied

Approved with Modifications
Continued

e by

Agenda Item No. 0?6



STOREY COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE

Gerald Antinoro
Sheriff

May 9, 2022

To: Dore Nevin, Clerk’s Office
Austin Osborne, County Manager

Fr: Lori Trowbridge

Please add the following item(s) to the May 17, 2022 Commissioners Consent
Agenda:

LICENSE BOARD

First Reading:

. Amendment to Existing License — 1st reading for approval of adding an
On-Sale and Off-Sale Liquor License for Virginia City Mexican
Restaurant, 65 N C Street, Virginia City, NV. Applicants are Hipolito G.
Cerda and Arturo Valadez.

Second Reading:
2. Approval of the 2nd reading for General Business License for Pinion

Services, LLC. - 1820 Castle Peak Road, Reno NV 89521 . Applicant is
Ralph Strahan.

LIQUOR LICENSE BOARD
First Reading:
. Amendment to Existing License -1st reading for approval of an On-Sale
and Off-Sale Liquor License for Virginia City Mexican Restaurant, 65 N

C Street, Virginia City, NV. Applicants are Hipolito G. Cerda and Arturo
Valadez.

PO Box 498
205 South C Street
Virginia City, NV 89440
Office: (775) 847-0959 Fax: (775) 847-0924



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: May 17, 2022 Estimate of time required:

Agenda: Consent [X] Regular agenda [ ] Public hearing required [ |

I. Title: Approval of 2™ reading for General Business License for Pinion Services, LLC — 1820
Castle Pecak Road, Reno NV 89521, Applicant is Ralph Strahan.

2. Recommended motion: | (insert name) motion to approve the 2™ reading for General Business
License for Pinion Services, LLC — 1820 Castle Peak Road. Reno NV 89521. Applicant is
Ralph Strahan.

3. Prepared by: Lori Trowbridge, Admin. Asst.
Department: Storey County Sheriff’s Office Telephone: 775-847-0959

4. Staff summary: Approval of 2™ reading for General Business License for Pinion Services,
LLC - 1820 Castle Peak Road, Reno NV 89521. Applicant is Ralph Strahan.

5. Supporting materials:

6. Fiscal impact: None
Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

7. Legal review required: District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

~X__ Department Head Department Namg: Sheriff’s Office

County Manager Other agency review:

9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications

[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No. 2 5



STOREY COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE

Gerald Antinoro
Sheriff

May 9, 2022

To: Dore Nevin, Clerk’s Office
Austin Osborne, County Manager

Fr: Lori Trowbridge

Please add the following item(s) to the May 17, 2022 Commissioners Consent
Agenda:

LICENSE BOARD

First Reading:

I. Amendment to Existing License — 1st reading for approval of adding an
On-Sale and Off-Sale Liquor License for Virginia City Mexican
Restaurant, 65 N C Street, Virginia City, NV. Applicants are Hipolito G.
Cerda and Arturo Valadez.

Second Reading:

2. Approval of the 2nd reading for General Business License for Pinion
Services, LLC. — 1820 Castle Peak Road, Reno NV 89521. Applicant is
Ralph Strahan.

LIQUOR LICENSE BOARD
First Reading:
I. Amendment to Existing License - st reading for approval of an On-Sale
and Off-Sale Liquor License for Virginia City Mexican Restaurant, 65 N
C Street, Virginia City, NV. Applicants are Hipolito G. Cerda and Arturo
Valadez.

PO Box 498
205 South C Street
Virginia City, NV 89440
Office: (775) 847-0959 Fax: (775) 847-0924



Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 5/17/2022 10:00 AM - Estimate of Time Required: 30 min.
BOCC Meeting
| Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

« Title: Consideration and possible direction of county staff and the Storey County
Planning Commission to consider amendments to Storey County Code Section 17.84.110
Exempt Signs, Section M, to allow up to 50 square-feet for signs associated with the
national, state or local election processes in all regulatory zones including, but not limited
to, the E Estate and R Residential zones, during election seasons set by NRS, and other
related matters.

* Recommended motion: I (commissioner) move to direct county staff and the Storey
County Planning Commission to consider amendments to Storey County Code Section
17.84.110 Exempt Signs, Section M, to allow up to 50 square-feet for signs associated
with the national, state or local election processes in all regulatory zones including, but
not limited to, the E Estate and R Residential zones, during election seasons set by NRS.

* Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department: Contact Number: 7758470968

« Staff Summary: There is increased expression by residents and candidates across the
county to freely display local, state, and national election candidate signs on their
properties during the election season. Signs typically range from three to 32 square feet
(e.g., 4’x8’) in area, and in some cases as much as 50 square-feet (e.g., 5’x10’). This
condition is evident by the current display of such signs throughout the county.

* SCC 17.84.110.M Exempt Signs currently prohibits candidate signs exceeding six
square-feet in the E and R zones. Nevertheless, candidate signs exceeding this limit are
commonly displayed in these zones across all parts of the county.

» Storey County government is small and has limited resources to regularly enforce the
abundance of political candidate signs exceeding certain area thresholds which are within
typical dimensions for such signs.

* The board is asked to look into this matter with county staff, and direct staff and the
planning commission to consider relaxing this sign face area regulation for the purpose
facilitating practicable and consistent enforcement and responding to the expressed desire
of residents and businesses in the county.

* Considerations made in this request are proposed to maintain conformance with the
applicable Nevada Revised Statutes, including the timeframes in which candidate signs
may be displayed before and after an election.

Al



Supporting Materials: Sce attached

Fiscal Impact: none

Legal review required: TRUE

Reviewed by:

Department Head

County Manager

Board Action:

Department Name:

Other Agency Review:

] Approved

[ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied

[ ] Continued




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 5/17/2022 10:00 AM - Estimate of Time Required: 30 min.
BOCC Meeting

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

Title: Workshop Discussion Only/No Possible Action — Discussion, consideration,
general direction to staff per Commissioner Mitchell’s request to consider decreasing
certain base business license fees and home-based business license fees countywide.

Recommended motion: Workshop discussion only, no possible action.

Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department: Contact Number: 7758470968

Staff Summary: Commissioner Mitchell requested that the board engage in a public
workshop to discuss the potential merits and challenges of reducing certain fees for in-
county base general business licenses and for in-county general home-based business
licenses. The scope does not include business license fees related to employee count,
building square-footage, business license application fees, privilege business and other
license fees, and out-of-county businesses. Potential fiscal considerations will be included
in the discussion. For reference, general business license fees are currently $75 and
home-based businesses license fees are $100. The establishment of business license fees
is set forth in Storey County Code 5.04.200.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: Pending

Legal review required: TRUE

Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

| [ ] Approved l [ ] Approved with Modification —’

27



l_[ ] Denied
| [ ] Continued




5/5/22, 4:56 PM Storey County, NV Code of Ordinances

5.04.190 - Increase or decrease of fees by resolution.

All fees established hereinafter in this chapter may be established, increased or decreased from time to

time by resolution of the board of county commissioners.

(Ord. 196, 2005)

5.04.200 - Fees and exemptions from fees.

A. Except for nonprofit organizations, upon application for a new business license, the applicant
shall pay a nonrefundable twenty-five dollar application fee to cover the costs of the review and

processing of the application.

B. Every person, firm, association, or corporation required by this chapter to take out and pay for a
license, shall take out and pay for a license for each of the kinds of businesses enumerated in this
article, and for each separate class of business or trade enumerated herein, and for each place

where such business is carried on.

C. Unless otherwise provided, the following periodic fees are imposed on the following kinds of

business licenses:

' General license ' $75.00 per year !
' Independent contractors, professionals 100.00 per year
r l
< Out-of-county businesses, contractors ' 75.00 per year |
! J 1
' Home businesses 1 100.00 per year
| A | - 7
| Nonprofit ' 0 per year |
— ,“_;__4, R —— _VJ‘
' Escort ' $250.00 per year j
Massages, therapeutic services ' 135.00 per year §
' Subdivision sales 475.00 per year

' Transportation companies 100.00 per year

' Pawn shops 250.00 per year

1/4



5/5/22, 4:56 PM Storey County, NV Code of Ordinances
[ S 1

|

l
' Mining, excavation, earth-moving/processing companies ' 475.00 per year
!

L

D. Unless otherwise provided, the following fees are imposed on the following kinds of business

licenses in addition to any other fees specified:
W l

|

- Commercial units, apartments, storage units, | $ 2.00 per unit annually

RV and MH spaces, pay parking lot spaces

|
- — | : |
 Per gaming machine l 30.00 per quarter |
! Per gaming table ’ 150.00 per quarter 1
Alarm companies 10.00 per alarm per quarter
— B —— -
| Special events five-day permit (excluding | 25.00 per vendor
" liquor) |

E. Unless otherwise provided, the following fees for entertainment are imposed on the following
kinds of business licenses and are exempt from any other fee schedules or the business licenses

specified in this chapter.

1. Brothels and houses of ill fame shall be established pursuant to Storey County Code_Chapter
5.16. 2. Cabarets or other places of live entertainment on the premises one hundred fifty

dollars per year.

3. Fortunetellers, astrologer, clairvoyant, medium, palmist, phrenologist, or others who profess
to foresee the future, seven hundred dollars per year; fortunetelling licenses shall be
approved at the sole discretion of the board of county commissioners. Any employee in an
establishment licensed under this section shall be subject to work permit requirements as

provided in Storey County Code Section 5.08.020(G).

(Ord. 203 (part), 2006; Ord. 179 § 1(part), 2002; Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999)

5.04.210 - Liquor establishment license fees and regulations.
A. The county liquor board imposes the following controls, licenses and fees.

2/4



5/5/22, 4:56 PM

Storey County, NV Code of Ordinances

1. These fees shall be in addition to any other fees in this article and in Title 5.

2. Fees:

a.

b.

Off-sale: $100.00 per year

On sale. On-sale saloon license, which includes the right to sell beer, wine and liquor off-
sale, five hundred dollars per year. An additional fee of fifty dollars shall be charged for a
bar as defined in_Section 5.12.100.

B. No liquor shall be dispensed or sold in any place where, in the judgment of the liquor board, such

distribution or sale creates a public nuisance.

C. Noliquor shall be dispensed or sold to minors, and minors shall not be allowed to loiter in or

about a saloon unless accompanied by their parents, or unless they are in a bona fide food-

service area.

D. The liquor board, at any time may impose a moratorium on liquor licenses for good cause shown

within the city of Virginia City. Such moratorium shall not affect applications pending at the time it

is imposed.

(Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999)

5.04.220 - Square footage fees.

A. The following additional fees shall be assessed on the total square footage of each business:

0-1,999

2K-2,999

3K-4,999

5K-7,499

7.5K-9,999

10K-24,999

25K-100K

100K-500K

500K+

$ 15.00

31.00

63.00

94.00

125.00

188.00

250.00

500.00

1000.00

3/4



5/5/22, 4:56 PM Storey County, NV Code of Ordinances

B. The fees imposed by this section do not apply to special events, home occupation businesses,

independent contractors and out-of-county contractors.

(Ord. 161 § 2(part), 1999)

5.04.230 - Fees for employees.

A. The following additional fees shall be assessed based on the average number of full time
equivalent employees who may reasonably be anticipated to be employed during the license

period including the proprietor:

1-5 $ 25.00

6-10 40.00

11-25 75.00

26-50 125.00

Over 50 125.00 +2.00 each

B. For contractors the fees imposed pursuant to this section shall include only those who support

the contracting business and does not include seasonal construction.

C. The fees imposed by this section do not apply to contract office businesses, home occupation

businesses, independent contractors, special events and out-of-county businesses.

(Ord. 161 8 2(part), 1999)

4/4



Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 5/17/2022 10:00 AM - Estimate of Time Required: 0-5

BOCC Meeting

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

Title: For consideration and possible approval of business license second readings:

A. Buzz Oates Construction Inc. — Contractor / 555 Capital Mall Ste. 900 ~ Sacramento,
CA

B. Icon Reno Property Owner Pool 2 Nevada, LLC — Out of County / 602W. Office Dr.
Ste 200 ~ Fort Washington, PA

C. Main Electric Supply Company LLC — Out of County / 3600 W. Segerstrom Ave ~
Santa Ana, CA

D. Performance Diesel Service — General / 88 Megabyte Dr. ~ McCarran, NV

E. Prietos Roofing, LLC — Contractor / 3690 Grant Dr. Ste J. ~ Reno, NV

F. RC Roofing, Inc. — Contractor / 7785 Crystal Shores Dr. ~ Reno, NV

G. Rivera’s Mexican Food — Food Truck / 5149 Nanook Ct. ~ Reno, NV

H. Roof Crafters — Contractor / PO Box 41268 ~ Reno, NV

[. Star North Construction, LLC — Contractor / 8745 Technology Way Ste. F ~ Reno, NV
J. Steak It Up — Food Truck / PO Box 522 ~ Silver Springs, NV

K. Universal Engineering Sciences — Professional / 695 Edison Way ~ Reno, NV

Recommended motion: Approval

Prepared by: Ashley Mead
Department: Contact Number: 7758470966

Staff Summary: Second Readings of submitted business license applications are
normally approved unless, for various reasons, requested to be continued to the next
meeting. A follow-up letter noting those to be continued or approved will be submitted
prior to the Commission Meeting. The business license are then printed and mailed to the
new business license holder.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: None

Legal review required: False

Reviewed by:

28




Department Head

County Manager

Board Action:

Department Name:

Other Agency Review:

[ ] Approved

[ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied

[ ] Continued




Storey County Community Development

110 Toll Road ~ Gold Hill Divide
P O Box 526 ~ Virginia City NV 89440

(775) 847-0966 ~ Fax (775) 847-0935
CommunityDevelopment@storeycounty.org

To: Dore Nevin, Clerk’s office May 09, 2022
Austin Osborne, County Manager Via Email

Fr: Ashley Mead

Please add the following item(s) to the May 17, 2022 COMMISSIONERS Consent Agenda:
SECOND READINGS:

. Buzz Oates Construction Inc. — Contractor / 555 Capital Mall Ste. 900 ~ Sacramento, CA

Icon Reno Property Owner Pool 2 Nevada, LLC - Out of County / 602W. Office Dr. Ste 200 ~ Fort
Washington, PA

Main Electric Supply Company LLC — Out of County / 3600 W. Segerstrom Ave ~ Santa Ana, CA
Performance Diesel Service — General / 88 Megabyte Dr. ~ McCarran, NV

Prietos Roofing, LLC — Contractor / 3690 Grant Dr. Ste J. ~ Reno, NV

RC Roofing, Inc. — Contractor / 7785 Crystal Shores Dr. ~ Reno, NV

Rivera’s Mexican Food — Food Truck / 5149 Nanook Ct. ~ Reno, NV

Roof Crafters — Contractor / PO Box 41268 ~ Reno, NV

Star North Construction, LLC — Contractor / 8745 Technology Way Ste. F ~ Reno, NV

Steak It Up — Food Truck / PO Box 522 ~ Silver Springs, NV

Universal Engineering Sciences — Professional / 695 Edison Way ~ Reno, NV

w >

ARemZommIN

Ec: Community Development Planning Department Sheriff’s Office
Commissioner’s Office Comptroller’s Office



Storey County Board of County Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: Estimate of time required: 5 minutes

Agenda: Consent [ | Regular agenda [ X | Public hearing required |[ |

1. Title: CORRESPONDENCE ONLY/NO ACTION

2. Recommended motion: NO ACTION

4. Department: Commissioners Telephone: 847-0968
5. Staff summary: See attached
6. Supporting materials:

7. Fiscal impact:

Funds Available: Fund: Comptroller

8. Legal review required:

__District Attorney

8. Reviewed by:

Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other agency review:
9. Board action:
[] Approved [] Approved with Modifications
[] Denied [] Continued

Agenda Item No.




Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 5/17/2022 10:00 AM - Estimate of Time Required: 30 min.
BOCC Meeting

| Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

Title: Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of
conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with
the Storey County Employees’ Association Comstock Chapter, AFSCME Local 4041.
This meeting will begin immediately following the general meeting of the Board of
Storey County Commissioners.

Recommended motion: No action.

Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department: Contact Number: 7758470968

Staff Summary: Pursuant to NRS 288 and the existing 2019-2022 collective bargaining
agreement between the Storey County Employees’ Association and the Storey County
Board of County Commissioners, the bargaining agreement is proposed to be modified as
tentatively agreed between the parties.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: 0

Legal review required: TRUE

Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification

[ ] Denied [ ] Continued

A



STATE OF NEVADA
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
1263 S. Stewart Street
Carson City, Nevada 89712

STEVE SISOLAK
Governor

KRISTINA L. SWALLOW, P.E., Director

In Reply Refer to:
May 9, 2022

Austin Osborne
Storey County Manager
Box 176 Virginia City, NV

Mr. Osborne,

Thank you for the recent meeting regarding Storey County and Nevada Department of Transportation (NDOT)
regarding rights of way along State Route 342. As promised, this letter will summarize our conversation, detail
expectations and describe the procedures necessary for construction, utility and other work along this route.

NDOT has prescriptive rights along SR 342. Prescriptive rights are rights to access and maintain those portions
of the roadway and shoulder area that have been maintained for a period of time. The limits of these
prescriptive rights change over time and are not easily mapped or surveyed. Current NDOT prescriptive rights
can be obtained by submitting a public records request via the NDOT website. The request should include a
definitive work area for the permit to ensure you receive the most accurate mapping information available.
On a case-by-case basis, Storey County and others may request that NDOT provide field staking or other
means to further delineate the prescriptive easement boundary at a particular area of need, e.g., adjacentto a
construction site, proposed driveway approach, etc.

The ownership of the underlying property, also referred to as underlying fee ownership, is also important in
the permitting process. While NDOT may have prescriptive rights to a certain area, there is also an underlying
fee owner. In some cases, NDOT may own the property the road is built on. In many cases, another entity,
such as Storey County, the BLM or a private party may own the land. The NDOT permit application requires
that the applicant obtain the consent of the underlying fee owner.

In some cases, an adjacent private property owner or an agency such as Storey County, might propose
construction work outside of NDOT’s prescriptive right of way. The proposed work may not impact the road or
the maintained shoulder but may require traffic control to be set up in the road. This will require an NDOT
temporary occupancy permit. NDOT District 2 may be reached for such permits at (775) 834-8330 or to obtain
more information on the application process.

If you have any questions, please feel free to contact me.

Sincerely,

Darin Tedford, P.E.
Deputy Director
Nevada Department of Transportation
a 3 29T



| Storey County Board of County

Commissioners
Agenda Action Report

Meeting date: 5/17/2022 10:00 AM - Estimate of Time Required: 30 min.

BOCC Meeting

Agenda Item Type: Discussion/Possible Action

Title: Call to Order Closed Session meeting pursuant to NRS 288.220 for the purpose of
conferring with county management and legal counsel regarding labor negotiations with
the Storey County Employees’ Association Comstock Chapter, AFSCME Local 4041.
This meeting will begin immediately following the general meeting of the Board of
Storey County Commissioners.

Recommended motion: No action.

Prepared by: Austin Osborne

Department: Contact Number: 7758470968

Staff Summary: Pursuant to NRS 288 and the existing 2019-2022 collective bargaining
agreement between the Storey County Employees’ Association and the Storey County
Board of County Commissioners, the bargaining agreement is proposed to be modified as
tentatively agreed between the parties.

Supporting Materials: See attached

Fiscal Impact: 0

Legal review required: TRUE

Reviewed by:
Department Head Department Name:
County Manager Other Agency Review:

Board Action:

[ ] Approved [ ] Approved with Modification
Denied [ ] Continued

33



